BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA
NOVEMBER 3, 2025
6:00 PM

. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

. PUBLIC COMMENT

All wishing to speak must sign up prior to 5:50pm. The comment period will be no
longer than 15 minutes with speakers having three minutes each to speak. No
speaker can speak on a public hearing item or any item that would need to be
discussed under Closed Session. Speakers cannot give their minutes to another
speaker. If you would like to submit comments to be read into the record at the
meeting, please send comments, of 400 words or less, to Dora Moore at

tozclerk@townofzebulon.org by 3:00pm on November 3, 2025.

. INTRODUCTION/POLICE CHIEF SWEARING IN
A. Police Chief

B. Communications Manager

C. Executive Assistant

. PRESENTATIONS

A. Proclamations
i. Operation Green Light

. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Finance
i. Wake County Tax Report — August 2025
ii. Amending Administration Budget — Ordinance 2026-14

B. Fire
i. Utility Easements to Fire/EMS Station Project

C. Public Works
i. CAMPO Grant Funds for N. Arendell Project — Resolution 2026-12


mailto:tozclerk@townofzebulon.org

7. NEW BUSINESS
A. Administration
i. Strategic Plan Grant

B. Economic and Community Development
i. Five County Stadium Lease

C. Parks & Recreation
i. Gill Street Park Site Specific Master Plan — Resolution 2026-13
ii. Zebulon Community Park Site Specific Master Plan and Grant Application
a. Zebulon Community Park Site Specific Master Plan - Resolution 2026-14

b. Allocation of Funds to Zebulon Community Park Renovation and Ballfield
Relocation Project — Ordinance 2026-15

. Creation of Capital Project Fund: Community Park Renovation & Ballfield
Location - Ordinance 2026-16

. Parks & Recreation Capital Improvement Plan — Resolution 2026-15
e. Authorization to Submit Proposal to Wake County Hospitality Fund

D. Planning
i. Public Hearing - Zebulon South Annexation

a. Annexation Request for Zebulon South — Ordinance 2026-17
ii. Planned Development - Sheetz- Ordinance 2026-18

8. MANAGER’S REPORT

A. Public Safety Update - Deputy Chief Grossman

B. 2026 Employment Benefits Update — Bobby Fitts
C. Financials Addendum

9. BOARD COMMENTS

10. ADJOURN



PROCLAMATION
SUPPORTING OPERATION GREEN LIGHT FOR VETERANS

WHEREAS, the residents of the Town of Zebulon have great respect, admiration, and the utmost
gratitude for all the men and women who have selflessly served our country and this community
in the Armed Forces; and

WHEREAS, the contributions and sacrifices of those who served in the Armed Forces have been
vital in maintaining the freedoms and way of life enjoyed by our citizens; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon seeks to honor individuals who have made countless sacrifices
for freedom by placing themselves in harm’s way for the good of all; and

WHEREAS, veterans continue to serve our community in the American Legion, Veterans of
Foreign Wars, religious groups, civil service, and help fellow former service members access
federal health, disability and compensation benefits each year; and

WHEREAS, Approximately 200,000 service members transition to civilian communities annually;
and

WHEREAS, studies indicate that more than half of service members experience high levels of
stress during transition from military to civilian life, which includes being at a high risk for suicide
during their first year after military service; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon appreciates the sacrifices of our United States military personnel
and believes specific recognition should be granted.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED by the Zebulon Board of Commissioners that the week of
November 4 — 11, 2025 is recognized as Operation Greenlight, which is a time to shine a light on
the service of veterans and encourages our citizens to recognize the importance of honoring all
those who made immeasurable sacrifices to preserve freedom by displaying green lights in a
window of their place of business or residence.

Adopted this the 3rd day of November 2025.

Glenn L. York — Mayor

SEAL

Dora Moore, MMC, NCCMC — Interim Town Clerk









STAFF REPORT
ORDINANCE 2026-14
AMENDING ADMINISTRATION BUDGET
NOVEMBER 3, 2025

Topic: Amending Administration Budget — ORDINANCE 2026-14

Speaker: Bobby Fitts, Finance Director (if pulled from Consent)
Prepared by: Bobby Fitts, Finance Director
Approved by: Taiwo Jaiyeoba, Interim Town Manager

Executive Summary:
The Board of Commissioners must approve the movement of budgeted funds from one
line item to another when they are in excess of $10,000.

Background:
The Town of Zebulon has been without a Communications Director since February 2025

and a Town Manager and Assistant Town Manager since mid-April 2025. Due to these
vacancies, it was necessary to bring in an Interim Town Manager, hire a communication
firm to handle the communications duties and an Executive Assistant to support the
Manager’s Office. Taiwo Jaiyeoba was hired as the Interim Town Manager, and NP
Strategies was hired to handle the communications duties for the Town since April. An
Interim Executive Assistant was hired to assist the Town Manager on various projects
until the position could be filled. A permanent Executive Assistant and Communications
Manager is expected to start at the end of October 2025.

Further, during the budget process the Board approved the hiring of various positions that
would be located within the Town Hall building. In an effort to provide office space for the
Communications Manager and the Executive Assistant to the Town Manager, funds
budgeted were used to erect the walls and provide office desks for those positions within
the Administration Suite.

To provide for safety and security of those in the Administration Suite, a security window
needed to be installed so the suite door would not need to be left open and unsecure.
This window would allow the Executive Assistant to greet those who came with questions
or appointments in the Administration suite. The renovations in the suite would require
that some of the walls be painted.

These activities have an impact on the budget totaling $155,000. These funds would be
covered by lapsed salaries and benefits for the positions that have been vacant since
July. It would require that funds be moved from the Salaries and benefits line items to the
Professional Services line item. There would be no change to the total budgeted amount
for the Administration Department and the overall Town budget.

No additional General Fund money is being requested or allocated for these
expenditures.



STAFF REPORT
ORDINANCE 2026-14
AMENDING ADMINISTRATION BUDGET
NOVEMBER 3, 2025

Discussion:
The Board of Commissioners would need to approve the proposed ordinance to move
the funds from the Salaries and benefits line items to the Professional Services line item.

Policy Analysis:
The Board must approve the movement of funds from one line item to another if it is over
$10,000 according to the Town’s Budget Ordinance.

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 2026-14

Attachments:
1. Ordinance 2026-14



ORDINANCE 2026-14

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon, that
pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes 159-15, the following amendment be made
to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2026.

Section 1. To amend the General Fund budget as follows:

INCREASE DECREASE
REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Administration — Salaries $100,000.00
Administration — Professional Services 155,000.00
Administration — FICA 11,000.00
Administration — Group Insurance 11,000.00
Administration — Retirement 33,000.00

Section 2. Copies of this amendment shall be furnished to the Town Clerk, and
to the Budget Officer, and to the Finance Officer for their direction.

Adopted: November 3, 2025

Effective: November 3, 2025

Glenn L. York - Mayor

ATTEST:

Dora K. Moore, MMC — Interim Town Clerk



STAFF REPORT
FIRE/EMS STATION UTILITY EASEMENT
NOVEMBER 3, 2025

Topic: Fire/EMS Station Utility Easements
Speaker: Chris Perry, Fire Chief
From: Chris Perry, Fire Chief
Prepared by: Chris Perry, Fire Chief
Eric Vernon, Town Attorney
Approved by: Taiwo Jaiyeoba, Interim Town Manager

Executive Summary:
Consideration of granting utility easement(s) for the Fire/EMS Station Project.

Background:

As part of the Fire/EMS station construction projects, Duke Energy, Enbridge, and the City of
Raleigh may require easements related to providing power, gas, and water to the building and
potentially to the relocation of power poles near the street. These easements must be in place to
prevent delays in construction. The expected area of easements is from the power poles to the
building transformer, from the gas main to the building, and potentially related to pole relocation
at the street. To keep the project on schedule, staff is requesting the Board approve the granting
of the easement(s) related to the Fire/EMS Station project, as reviewed by the Fire Chief and
Town Attorney, and including granting the authority to sign the easement(s) to the Town Manager.

Discussion:
The discussion before the Board is the granting of the utility easements and delegation of the
authority to sign the easement(s) to the Town Manager.

Policy Analysis:
N.C.G.S. 160A-273 provides authority to a city to grant easements over, through, under, or across
any city property.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the grant of utility easement(s) for the Fire/EMS
station project, the delegation of authority to the Fire Chief and Town Attorney to review the final
scope and description of the easement, and delegation of authority to the Town Manager to sign
the easement(s).

Attachments:
1. Preliminary Map of Required Easements



STAFF REPORT
FIRE/EMS STATION UTILITY EASEMENT
NOVEMBER 3, 2025

Preliminary Map of Required Easements

10



STAFF REPORT
RESOLUTION 2026-12
RETURN GRANT FUNDS FOR N. ARENDELL PROJECT
NOVEMBER 3, 2025

Topic: CAMPO Grant Funds for the N. Arendell Project
Speaker: Mary Duffy, Public Works Administrative/Contracts Manager
From: Richard E. A. Fletcher, lll, Public Works Director

Prepared by: Mary Duffy, Public Works Administrative/Contracts Manager
Approved by: Taiwo Jaiyeoba, Interim Town Manager

Executive Summary:

In 2016, the Town of Zebulon secured a $956,000 federal grant from the Capital Area Metropolitan
Planning Organization (CAMPO), managed by the North Carolina Department of Transportation
(NCDOT), for the North Arendell Avenue Access and Operational Improvements Project. Initially
requiring a $239,000 local match, escalating costs have increased the Town’s share to $3—-$5
million. Meanwhile, developer-led improvements have already addressed most project goals,
significantly reducing its value to the Town. Canceling the grant is justified to avoid substantial
financial strain for minimal additional benefit.

Background:
The North Arendell Project aimed to accomplish the following goals:

o Reduce congestion at Pearces Road and N. Arendell Avenue by modifying the right-turn
lane to allow left turns.

« Complete two of three gaps in Jones Street for alternate highway routes.

e Improve the N. Arendell Ave/Dogwood Dr/US-64 intersection to ease highway off-ramp
congestion.

As part of the grant-funded project, the Town would also be required to improve pedestrian
facilities in the corridor and to add a median on N. Arendell Avenue between Dogwood Drive and
Pearces Road.

Since 2016, design and right-of-way (ROW) acquisitions have faced delays due to rapid
development requiring plan revisions and ROW acquisition challenges. Developer and Town
projects have mitigated congestion through signals at Arendell/Green Pace and Arendell/Pippin,
improved the Dogwood/Arendell intersection, and committed to completing Jones Street and a
Pearces/Proctor roundabout. These advancements have largely achieved the project’s goals,
diminishing its necessity.

Discussion:

Continuing the project commits the Town to a $3-$5 million investment for benefits already largely
achieved by developers, straining budgets without proportional value. Returning the grant avoids

1"



STAFF REPORT
RESOLUTION 2026-12
RETURN GRANT FUNDS FOR N. ARENDELL PROJECT
NOVEMBER 3, 2025

this fiscal burden, reallocates resources to higher-priority projects, and maintains good standing
with CAMPO for future funding.

Fiscal Analysis:

Rising labor and material costs have increased the project’s estimated cost from $1.2 million to
$6-$8 million, including ROW acquisition, engineering, inspections, geotechnical testing,
administration, utilities, and contingencies. The CAMPO grant covers 80% of original estimates,
with a potential 50% share of cost overruns. The Town’s share is estimated at $3-$4 million.
Returning the grant requires repaying $43,580 for ROW funds reimbursed to the Town, plus minor
NCDOT review and engineering invoices — a fraction of continuing costs.

Policy Analysis:

Canceling aligns with fiscal responsibility and prioritizes projects with greater community impact.
It avoids overextending resources on a project with reduced relevance due to developer
contributions.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff strongly recommends returning the CAMPO grant for the North Arendell Project, as
escalating costs and developer-driven improvements have rendered the project financially
unjustifiable and of limited additional value to the Town.

Attachments:
1. Resolution 2026-12 authorizing staff to return the CAMPO grant.

12



RESOLUTION 2026-12
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE RETURN OF GRANT PROCEEDS FOR THE
N. ARENDELL AVENUE ACCESS/OPERATIONAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon entered into agreement number U-5118 FB with the North
Carolina Department of Transportation for federal grant funds to construct the North Arendell
Access and Operations Improvements Project on August 1, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon is grateful for the grant awarded to the Town by the Capital
Area Metropolitan Planning Organization and North Carolina Department of Transportation;
and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon’s project objectives were to improve safety along North
Arendell Avenue, reduce congestion on Pearces Road at the North Arendell Avenue
intersection, create alternate routes to US-64 for residents, and reduce peak-time congestion
on the US-64 off-ramp; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon completed approximately 90% of the design and purchased
some of the right-of-way (ROW) required for construction, of which $43,580 was reimbursed
to the Town from the grant funds; and

WHEREAS, since 2016, design and ROW acquisitions have faced delays due to the rapid rate of
development, imposing extensive plan revisions and ROW acquisition challenges, significantly
impeding the Town’s ability to finalize the project plans; and

WHEREAS, the objectives of the project have largely already been met or are committed to be
constructed by development projects in the corridor; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon determined the costs of construction labor and materials in
Wake County and the State of North Carolina have significantly increased since August 2016;

and

WHEREAS, continuing the project commits the Town to a $3-55 million investment for benefits
already largely achieved by developers; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon can no longer invest the additional required funds to complete
construction of the project; and

WHEREAS, returning the grant avoids this fiscal burden, reallocates resources to higher-priority
projects, and maintains good standing with CAMPO for future funding,

13



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon
directs Town of Zebulon staff to terminate agreement U-5118 FB and release the grant funds of
$956,000, including repayment of the $43,580 previously reimbursed to the Town.

Adopted the 3™ day of November 2025.

Glenn L. York - Mayor

Town Seal

Dora Moore, MMC, NCCMC — Interim Town Clerk

14



STAFF REPORT
STRATEGIC PLAN GRANT UPDATE
NOVEMBER 3, 2025

Topic: Strategic Plan Grant

Speaker: Sheila Long, Parks and Recreation Director
Prepared by: Sheila Long, Parks and Recreation Director
Approved by: Taiwo Jaiyeoba, Interim Town Manager

Executive Summary:
The Board of Commissioners will receive and discuss Strategic Plan Grant applications and
the Review Committee Recommendation.

Background:

The Fiscal Year 2025 Strategic Plan Grant program accepted 16 grant applications in March.
Application consideration was paused due to staff transitions and a need to focus on Fiscal
Year 2026 Budget development. Applicants had the opportunity to update their requests,
and the Review Committee has since reviewed the applications.

The Committee’s review was blind with identifying information redacted. The committee held
discussion based on the grant policy’s expectation. The committee’s discussion and
recommendation remained blind. The results of their meeting was shared at the October
work session. The applications and any submitted videos were made available online Friday,
October 17" by the end of the business day.

Fiscal Analysis:

At the August Regular Meeting, the Board rolled over $20,000 of funds not issued in Fiscal
Year 2025 for the Strategic Plan Grant. The $20,000 will support two $5000 grants and five
$2,000 grants.

Discussion:
The Board will consider and discuss applications to identify applicants to award grants.

$5,000 $2,000

N WIN =

15



Requested Non- Profit
# Organization Name Amount EIN Status Ineligible Expensese
1|Miss Zebulon Organization $2,000/82-0822172 Confirmed
2|Knightdale-Wake Forest Education $5,000(26-3630518 Confirmed
3[Zebulon Downtown Arts Council $5,000(81-5040243 Confirmed
4]Angel Prints Corporation $5,000(88-1503945 Confirmed
5|Boys & Girls Clubs $5,000/56-0863051 Confirmed
6|Zebulon United Methodist Church $5,000(56-1194464 Faith
7|Operation Restoration Inc $2,000|93-4715104 Confirmed
8|NC 501C3 Hub, Inc. $2,000|99-3955776 Confirmed
9|Zebulon Aggies Football and Cheer $2,000/99-3941734 Confirmed
10|Bridging the Gap with Adoption $2,000/81-1909894 Confirmed
11|Preservation Zebulon $2,000(81-5112597 Confirmed
12(Communities In Schools $5,000(56-1704570 Confirmed personnel
13|East Wake Education Foundation $5,000/56-1825860 Confirmed maintnenace, personnel
14(Extended Hands of North Carolina, Inc. $2,000(45-5025882 Confirmed
15|URBIVOR $2,000(33-3774678 Confirmed
16|James E. Shepard School Alumni Association JESSAA $5,000(61-1860117 Confirmed
Committee Recommendation
$5,000 $2,000
1|6- Zebulon, United Methodist Church 7- Operation Restoration Inc
2(5- Boys and Girls Club 15- Urbivor
3 2- Knightdale-Wake Forest Education Foundation
4 3- Zebulon Downtown Arts Council
5 9- Zebulon Aggies Football and Cheer
Runner Up |16-James E Shepard School Alumni 11- Preservation Zebulon

16




Grant Review Committee Minutes
September 20™, 2025, 10:30 AM-11:45 AM, Zebulon Town Hall
Committee Members Present: Johnathon Jackson, Stephanie Dixon, Monique Wheeler

Staff Liaison: Sheila Long

Committee Scoring & Recommendation

17

Applicant | Request | Average :2::15 Applicant | Request | Average :;:’tls
1 2,000 10 20 6 5,000 19 38
2 5,000 17 33 5 5,000 19 37
3 5,000 15 29 16 5,000 18 36
4 5,000 14 28 2 5,000 17 33
5 5,000 19 37 14 5,000 17 33
6 5,000 19 38 12 5,000 16 32
7 2,000 18 35 3 5,000 15 29
8 2,000 9 18 13 5,000 15 29
9 2,000 13 26 4 5,000 14 28

10 2,000 13 26
11 2,000 11 21 7 2,000 18 35
12 5,000 16 32 15 2,000 18 35
13 5,000 15 29 9 2,000 13 26
14 5,000 17 33 10 2,000 13 26
15 2,000 18 35 11 2,000 11 21
16 5,000 18 36 1 2,000 10 20
8 2,000 9 18
. Total

Applicant | Request | Average Points
6 5,000 19 38
5 5,000 19 37

16 5,000 18 36
7 2,000 18 35
15 2,000 18 35
2 5,000 17 33
14 5,000 17 33
12 5,000 16 32
3 5,000 15 29
13 5,000 15 29
4 5,000 14 28
9 2,000 13 26
10 2,000 13 26
11 2,000 11 21
1 2,000 10 20
8 2,000 9 18




Committee Recommendation

$5,000 $2,000
1 6 7
2 5 15
3 2
4 3
5 9
Runner Up 16 11

Recommendation Considerations

The committee felt the S5000 applications should be considered for the $2000 after reviewing all projects
submitted. Their discussion and recommendation considered the following:

e Total points

e Request included eligible expenses

e Feasibility

e Roll of the Town versus other government organizations
e Overall project impact

18



STAFF REPORT

APPROVAL OF FIVE COUNTY STADIUM LEASE AGREEMENT

NOVEMBER 3, 2025

Topic: Approval of Stadium Lease Agreement

Speaker: Shannon Johnson, Community & Economic Development Director

Prepared by: Shannon Johnson, Community & Economic Development Director

Approved by: Taiwo Jaiyeoba, Interim Town Manager

Purpose:

Background:

Strategic Plan:

The Town of Zebulon Board of Commissioners must approve
leases of Town property per North Carolina Statute § 160A-272,
Lease or rental of property.

In January 2025, the County and Town issued RFP #24-108
(Lessee and Operator of Five County Stadium for Wake County
Government & the Town of Zebulon), seeking a new tenant and
operator for the Stadium. The County and Town received three
responses to the RFP. After significant evaluation by staff, elected
officials, and subject matter consultants, staff recommend awarding
the RFP to Capitol Broadcasting Company, Inc. (“CBC” or “Lessee”)
in September 2025. Since that Board action, County, Town, and
CBC staff have worked to finalize a lease agreement and schedule
of stadium improvements, as outlined in the Additional Information
Section.

This action supports the Vision 2030 Strategic goals within Small
Town Life: promote more community events and festivals, and
enhance and create more community gathering places. Also, within
Growing Smart, by pursuing economic development opportunities
with our community partners.

Additional Information:

In January 2025, Wake County and the Town of Zebulon released RFP #24-108 (Lessee
and Operator of Five County Stadium for Wake County Government & the Town of
Zebulon). The County received three responses to the RFP.

The responses to the RFP were reviewed and/or evaluated by County and Town staff
and elected officials, staff from Wake County Economic Development and Visit Raleigh,
and by the County’s contracted consultant (CAA ICON).

Following a thorough review of the responses, County and Town staff began non-binding

19



negotiations with CBC as lessee and operator of the Stadium, starting January 1, 2026,
through December 31, 2035.

Highlights of the terms and conditions include:

The County and Town will ("Lessor”) receive bi-annual lease payments totaling
$710,000 over the 10-year lease period;

Lessors are subject to receive additional rent if Lessee secures additional
subtenants;

Lessee assumes the annual operating expenses aligning with the current tenant’s
operating expenses plus all utility expenses, including those currently the
obligation of Lessor;

Lessee and Lessor shall share naming rights revenues at a 75%/25% share for
the first three years of the lease term, then at a rate of 50%/50% for the remaining
years of the lease term;

Lessee retains rights to all other revenues generated;

The County and Town remain responsible for funding maintenance and capital
repairs of the Stadium, through a new Maintenance & Capital Repairs Fund;
Lessee shall be responsible for routine maintenance of the Stadium based upon
annual maintenance plans developed in conjunction with the County and Town;
Lessee submits an annual event and operations plan to the County and Town;
The Stadium hosts, at a minimum, a Coastal Plain League (CPL) baseball team
each season (starting in 2026) and all Wake Technical Community College
(WTCC) baseball, softball, and men’s and women’s soccer games;

The County and Town can host up to 10 total rent-free events that use the
Stadium’s seating bowl annually;

Lessee may assign the lease to an affiliated entity under its primary control,
subject to a guaranty of all obligations under the lease

Lessee may submit a redevelopment plan for the undeveloped areas of the
property adjacent to the Stadium, for consideration by the County and Town on
or before December 31, 2030.

To incentivize additional activity at the Stadium, Lessee will be subject to receiving an
operating credit of $2.50 per ticket sold for the first five years, then $1.50 per ticket sold
in the second five years, for non-tenant ticketed events held at the Stadium, up to a
maximum of $100,000 annually.

In exchange for Lessee’s maintenance and operation of the Stadium, the County and
Town agree to an initial investment of $8,626,875 beginning with the commencement of
this lease.

For 2026, the following improvements will be managed by Lessee, to be reimbursed by
the County/Town:

Replacement of the existing playing surface with a synthetic field;
Removal of the bleacher seats along the first and third base sides of the seating
bowl;

20



e Installation of new outfield walls;
e Grading and stormwater improvements; and
e Installation of new stadium lighting.

The maximum reimbursable amount for these improvements is $4 million.

The County will manage several Lessor (County/Town) improvements with the balance
of the $8,626,875 and funds already set aside for stadium improvements in the Major
Facilities Capital Fund, including:

e Locker room and administrative office updates;

e Concourse and exterior aesthetic enhancements;

¢ Installation of a social and group event space formerly occupied by the third base
bleachers;

e Installation of a family and children’s space formerly occupied by the first base
bleachers, including a play area accessible on non-event dates;

e Replacement of the existing scoreboard (existing funds);

e Upper-level suite and group area improvements; and

e Concession updates, including the installation of various kitchen equipment.

Additionally, the County and Town will establish a Maintenance & Capital Repairs Fund
(“Fund”) with an initial balance of $1,975,000. The annual rent payment and net share
of naming rights revenue will be added to this Fund to offset use over time. This Fund
is exclusive of known, planned for infrastructure replacements, such as HVAC, roofing,
and elevator replacements scheduled between now and Fiscal Year 2032.

The combined $10,601,875 investment in Stadium improvements and the Maintenance
& Capital Repair Fund will be paid by the County and Town, approximately in proportion
to each entity's current ownership interest. The Town’s portion (15%) is $1,590,281.25
and will be allocated during the 2026/27 and the 2027/28 fiscal years. The County
intends to fund its allocation with capital reserves previously set aside for anticipated
Stadium improvements, the existing rent fund, and the Termination Payment due from
the current Lessee on or before December 31, 2025.

Future rent payments and revenue shares from naming rights under this new lease
agreement will be included in the Maintenance & Capital Repairs Fund unit as part of
the annual budget process.

Staff Recommendation:
That the Board of Commissioners:

Approves the lease agreement between Wake County, Town of Zebulon, and Capitol
Broadcasting Company, subject to terms and conditions acceptable to the Town
Attorney.

21



Attachments:

1. Presentation
2. Lease Agreement

22



STAFF REPORT
RESOLUTION 2026-13
GILL STREET PARK:
SITE SPECIFIC MASTER PLAN
NOVEMBER 3, 2025

Topic: Resolution 2026-13 — Gill Street Park Site Specific Master Plan

Speaker: Sheila Long, Parks and Recreation Director
Prepared by: Sheila Long, Parks and Recreation Director
Approved by: Taiwo Jaiyeoba, Interim Town Manager

Executive Summary:
The Board of Commissioners will consider adopting the Gill Street Park Site Specific
Master Plan.

Background:

The Master Plan for Gill Street Park is a site-specific master plan based on
recommendations from the 2021 Zebulon Parks and Recreation Master Plan, as well as
the follow-up "How We Play" effort in 2023. The Master Plan is also influenced by recent
developments at Gill Street Park that will be highlighted on the following page. The Town
is working to develop an expansion of Gill Street Park with new community amenities, as
well as improving the existing park to enhance recreation opportunities for the
neighborhood. The tasks associated with this plan included developing concept
alternatives, holding public workshops to obtain input, refining a final concept, and
developing cost estimates and phasing that will help the Town move forward with design
and construction.

Following adoption of the plan, Staff will prepare a bid package for designs of the Plan’s
first phase. Still will also consider grant opportunities to apply to that could support this
project.

Discussion:
The discussion before the Board of Commissioners is to consider adoption of the Gill
Street Park Site Specific Master Plan.

Policy Analysis:
Adopting this plan is consistent with the vision and goals of the Play Zebulon: Parks and
Recreation Master Plan.

Financial Analysis:
Adopting this Plan offers the following financial support:

e Increases the competitiveness of grant applications.

e Phases the capital and operational costs of future projects and programs.

e Creates opportunities to partner with other agencies on adjacent, and similar,
projects.

23



STAFF REPORT
RESOLUTION 2026-13
GILL STREET PARK:
SITE SPECIFIC MASTER PLAN
NOVEMBER 3, 2025

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board Recommendation:

At the October 20, 2025, Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Meeting, the Advisory
Board recommended the Board of Commissioners adopt the proposed Gill Street Park
Site Specific Master Plan

Staff Recommendation:
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution 2026-13 - the Gill Street Park Site Specific

Master Plan subject to final edits and corrections.

Attachments:
1. Resolution 2026-13

2. Proposed Gill Street Park Site Specific Master Plan

View online:

24


https://publicinput.com/Customer/File/Full/830a62b7-307f-425b-9b4b-17d81296c6c2

RESOLUTION 2026-13
ADOPTION OF GILL STREET PARK
SITE SPECIFIC MASTER PLAN

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners adopted the Play Zebulon: Parks and Recreation Comprehensive
Master Plan on September 13, 2021; and

WHEREAS, Play Zebulon provides a vision, goals, and action items based on community input to guide
Parks and Recreation decisions; and

WHEREAS, developing a specific plan for Gill Street Park is consistent with Play Zebulon vision goals:
e Engage community in planning and implementation,
e Provide quality, diverse parks, facilities, programs, and open space for people of all ages and
backgrounds,

WHEREAS, the Gill Street Park Site Specific Master Plan was developed by gathering input from the
community; and

WHEREAS, there were community input meetings, an on demand virtual meeting, and input by the Parks
& Recreation Advisory Board and the Board of Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, the consultant, AECOM, used gathered public input combined with previous studies and
environmental considerations to propose a draft of the Gill Street Park Master Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board recommended adoption of the proposed Gill Street
Park Site Specific Master Plan by a unanimous vote at their October 20, 2025 meeting.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon hereby
adopts the Gill Street Park Site Specific Master Plan as recommended by the Parks and Recreation Advisory

Board.

Adopted this 3rd day of November 2025.

Glenn L. York — Mayor

SEAL

Dora Moore, MMC, NCCMC- Interim Town Clerk

25



Master

DRAFT




Adopted by Town Commission on
Month, Date, 2025

Town of Zebulon Parks and
Recreation Department
1003 N Arendell Ave
Zebulon. NC 27597
www.townofzebulon.org/

27



ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Mayor
Glenn L York

Town Commissioners
Jessica Harrison
Shannon Baxter
Amber Davis

Quentin Miles

Trenton Schmit

Interim Town Manager
Taiwo Jaiyeoba

Interim Town Clerk
Dora Moore

Town Attorney
Eric Vernon

Parks and Recreation Director
Sheila Long

Parks and Recreation Staff

Nick Rummage, Parks Superintendent
Amy Hayden, Recreation Superintendent

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
Brandon Wiggins - Chair

Quinton Crosson-Taylor - Vice Chair
Garrett Underhill

Wendi Watson

Orlando Reyes

Dexter De’Andre Privette

Marcus Bennett






TABLE OF CONTENTS

B Project Process and Purpose «eeeesseeesesneeninneciinnneens . 6
l Site Context & Existing CoNditions «eeeceereecceccencccccenss - 8
I Preliminary Concept Development «eceeceeeceeciacennnen. .12
B Public Engagement «eoeeernniiiiiiniiiiiie - 18
B Final Concept «oeeeeeeemeemme, . 28
B Cost Estimates & Phasing «+eeeeeeeeseseesassssasassasaaaannnns « 32




PROJECT PROGESS AND PURPOSE

PROJECT PURPOSE

The Master Plan for Gill Street Park is a site-specific master plan
based on recommendations from the 2021 Zebulon Parks and
Recreation Master Plan, as well as the follow-up “How We Play”
effort in 2023. The Town is working to develop an expansion

of Gill Street Park with new community amenities, as well as
improving the existing park to enhance recreation opportunities
for the neighborhood.

Department records note that Gill Street Park was the Town

of Zebulon's second park and was opened in the 1960s. Prior

to the 60s, the location served the Town as a household

waste landfill. The Town has recently been working to install

a new playground and restrooms at Gill Street Park, and held

a workshop specifically for the playground during the “How

We Play” effort in 2023. As these renovations would require
substantial soil disturbance, Staff sought a soil survey to identify
if there were concerns for the disposal of existing equipment and
disturbance for new equipment and structures. Initial studies

Gill Street Park Public Engagement at the Back to School Bash

31

DRAFT

noted lead present at a depth of a foot below the surface in the
area of the playground. The town engaged in surfacing testing for
the entirety of the park site. Elevated lead levels were identified
along Privette St and the Northern boundary of the park. Both
the playground and bathrooms are pending DEQ testing and
guidance.

In an effort to find an alternative for the proposed improvements
at Gill Street Park, the Town has been exploring properties where
these improvements could be placed and provide a similar and
enhanced level of service to the neighborhood. The existing Gill
Street Park is part of a larger Town-owned parcel that includes the
cemetery. This parcel has 5 acres of undeveloped land, referred
to as New Park Site in this document, on its north end that is
adjacent to Zebulon Middle School and East Wake Academy. While
this parcel has some utility and environmental constraints, there
is enough developable land to build a neighborhood park and a
small community building.



PROJECT PROCESS

The project process progressed in a linear fashion, beginning with initial tasks that included a review of previous
planning documents, site planimetric data and research studies. The project team also conducted a physical
inventory of existing conditions of the New Park Site and surrounding area. Research for potential programming
also included the analysis of facility and program precedents that were consistent with stakeholder input.

The next step involved a synthesis of information to develop a preliminary concept for both the existing Gill
Street Park and the potential New Park Site. Elements in these concepts included improved circulation and
access, new community amenities for the New Park Site, and activation of the Existing Park Site within the
environmental constraints. These concepts, along with precedent images, were presented through a series of
public engagement opportunities in order to validate the concepts and programming elements.

PROJECT PROCESS DIAGRAM

After receiving input from the public through a variety of in-person opportunities as well as virtual engagement,
the project team updated the final concept to reflect input received from the community. The final step in the
process was the preparation of a Final Park Master Plan, which included updated cost estimates and phasing
for proposed improvements. This consolidated document was then presented to the Advisory Board and Town
Commission for final adoption. Once adopted, this Master Plan will be used to help secure funding and advance
this project to design and construction.

Gill Street Park Master Plan Document

/\

PRELIMINARY
CONCEPT
ALTERNATIVES

EXISTING SITE PUBLIC

ENGAGEMENT

CONDITIONS

COST
ESTIMATES

& PHASING

DESIGN &
CONSTRUCTION




SITE CONTEXT AND EXISTING

CONDITIONS

SITE CONTEXT
ADDRESS: 600 N Privette, Zebulon, NC 27597
AREA: 512 ACRES

SITE CONTEXT

The New Park Site is located along Cemetery Rd in the central
part of the Town of Zebulon. The park site is less than a mile
northeast of the Town center. The proposed 5-acres of the park
site are primarily accessed from Cemetery Rd and N Gill St. The
New Park Site is located approximately 0.1 mi from the existing
Gill Street Park location and is accessible via N Gill St.

PARK CONNECTIVITY

The Vision Chapter of the Play Zebulon Parks and Recreation
Master Plan highlights a proposed priority pedestrian
connection to the existing Gill Street Park which would help
connect the park to the larger Town system. This connection can
potentially be extended to the New Park Site along N Gill St, thus
making the new site a part of the larger parks and open green
space connectivity route.

With the strategic location of the New Park Site between the
two educational institutions - Zebulon Middle School along its
western edge and East Wake Academy to the north, the New
Park Site has the potential of becoming a pivotal anchor in
the Town's park system. Pathway connections from the site

to the two educational institutes and beyond can help enrich
the overall pedestrian experience of the neighborhood. These
connections would also aide in the shared-use of the park and
the school's recreational facilities.

Additionally, a pathway connection along N Gill St would provide
safe pedestrian connectivity to the existing Gill Street Park.
Connecting these two park sites, existing and proposed, and
the neighborhood, would help expand the footprint of the park
as people effortlessly walk back and forth between the varied
amenities that would be provided at both the sites.

33

DRAFT

EXISTING CONDITIONS

The New Park Site is predominantly a wooded lot with an
uninterrupted patch of open green space present at the
southeastern corner of the site. Little Creek meanders through
the northern part of the park site in the wooded area.

The other major existing site elements include a utility corridor
cutting east to west across the park. Underground sewer lines
and above ground utility lines are present in this utility corridor
while another utility line passes through the site along the
western edge.



Existing Park Site

Acreage: 1.5 acres

New Park Site
Acreage: 5.12 acres

Existing Structures & Amenities:

+ Playground

« Qutdoor Basketball Court
* Picnic Shelter with Seating
+ Parking Spaces

+ Bike Rack

* Benches and Trashcans

Proposed Structures & Amenities
(Existing Park Site):

+ Skate Park

* Picnic Shelter

+ Shaded Seating Areas

+ Paved Parking

+ Walkways

Proposed Structures & Amenities (New
Park Site):

Community Center and Parking
Indoor Multipurpose Court
Playground

Picnic Shelter

Outdoor Multipurpose Sports Court
Multi-use Open Green Space

Disc Golf Course

Walkways

Shaded Seating Areas

Existing Utilities:

Underground Utility Lines
Regulatory Floodway

Gill Street Park Context
34 9



DRAFT

Gill Street Park - NEW SITE - Existing Conditions

Legend

Property Boundary

—— Parcel Line
Easement

—————— Setback

----=-  Utility Line

bo
Q-
I
===== Planned Greenway o
&
Regulatory Floodway QIG
©

1% Annual Chance /
Flood

Future Conditions 1%

0 30 60 120 ft N

10 35 1 inch equals 60 feet




DRAFT

Gill Street Park - EXISTING SITE - Existing Conditions

25

N Privette st
N Gill s¢

Legend

Property Line

—— Parcel Line
---- Easement
ffffff Setback

...... Utility Line

Planned Greenway

1"

0 25 50 1001 N
N Y Y SN A N NN B A
36

1 inch equals 50 feet




PRELIMINARY CONCEPT

DEVELOPMENT

PRELIMINARY PROGRAM ELEMENTS

The initial concepts for both the Existing Gill Street Park Site
and the New Park Site are based on recommendations from the
2021 Zebulon Parks and Recreation Master Plan, as well as the
follow-up “How We Play” effort in 2023.

The concepts for the Existing Park Site take into consideration
the results of the recent Town-led studies which identified
presence of lead under the surface of the existing park site.
Therefore, the conceptual options proposes park elements that
would cause minimal disturbance to the sub-surface of the park
site.

The information obtained through prior engagement, research,
site visits and conversations with Town staff provided the
project team with a comprehensive understanding of the
existing conditions in Gill Street Park, and established a basis for
identifying preliminary program elements for the New Park Site.

37

DRAFT

PRELIMINARY CONCEPT PLAN
NEW PARK SITE:

Two preliminary concept options were developed for both the
park sites - Existing Gill Street Park site and the New Site for the
park.

The New Park Site concepts highlight the following preliminary
park elements:

Community center

Parking lot

Playground

Multi-purpose sports courts
Multi-use open green space

Disc golf course

Paved and unpaved walking trails
Security lighting

Walkway connections to adjacent parcels, particularly to
the educational institutions

EXISTING PARK SITE

Two conceptual options were developed for the Existing

Gill Street Park Site. The first option highlights a passive
neighborhood park with open green spaces, a dog park, and

a paved parking lot that could serve as an overflow parking
space for the Town. The second option highlights a more robust
repurposing of the park with the addition a skate park, open
green spaces, seating areas and a paved parking lot.



Gill Street Park - NEW SITE - OPTION 1

Legend

== Park Boundary

—— Parcel Line
---- Easement
------ Setback
------ Utility Line
=== Planned Greenway Disc Golf
|
"= e e Trail
IHLNINT Vehicular Access Playground
mnnn Pedestrian Access Multi-purpose
Green Space
é Disc Golf Shelter —
~ 77~  Multi-purpose
Y<Z=? Green Space ¢
{7y Trail Head
- . [ ]
Multi-purpose
' Pedestrian Entrance Green Space Multi-Sport
Court
é Playground
. Proposed Trees ° ° <
Proposed <&
@ Security Light Community D
Building (~ 4,200 SF) 5,’
Regulatory Floodway S
< > o
1% Annual Chance SI f\")f 9
Flood Security Light 54 Parking S
arkin aces
% Future Conditions 1% &-P
38 13



DRAFT

Gill Street Park - NEW SITE - OPTION 2

Legend

Park Boundary

—— Parcel Line

Easement

ffffff Setback

------ Utility Line
===== Planned Greenway Disc Golf
o em e Trail
IITEEN] Vehicular Access Playground

mnEnn Pedestrian Access Multi-purpose
— Green Space

’—. Disc Golf

~ 77~ Multi-purpose
\
<~—=~=" Green Space
Multi-purpose

¢ » Trail Head
Green Space

Shelter —

' Pedestrian Entrance

Multi-Sport
é Playground . Court
: itv Li Proposed
’ Proposed Trees Security Light ——— ComrF:mnity =3
— -2 &
e  Security Light Building (~ 4,200 SF) $
&
Regulatory Floodway . 5
=) N o
©
1% Annual Chance ‘_I \

Flood 17 Parking Spaces
5 Parking Spaces

Future Conditions 1%

14 39 1 inch equals 60 feet



DRAFT

Gill Street Park - EXISTING SITE - OPTION 1 - Natural Open Space Park

Existing Trees to Remain

Dog Park
. Existing Green Space
& Playground Legend
p to Remain or be
b 25’ Demolished w—— Property Line
Q —f——F ‘_;
E (75 —— Parcel Line
> —~ [T] asemen
= Setback
23 Pal’king Spaces T Utility Line
Planned Greenway
] ° IEILEED Vehicular Access
Security Light
1nnEl Pedestrian Access
s User Flow

Green Space

09

. Pedestrian Entrance

Proposed Trees
. Proposed Trees

Q Security Light

]

15

0 25 50 100t N
N Y Y SN A N NN B A

1 inch equals 50 feet




DRAFT

Gill Street Park - EXISTING SITE - OPTION 2 - Skate Park

Existing Trees to Remain

—_
U

User Flow . Advanced
Area di
Inte;\r?:a iate Legend
. R Technical Areas
:;)' ) Property Line
T Multi-Skill Beginner
bt Ramps Area —— Parcel Line
=)
g 7 &
= ---- Easement
= 2
= 20 G ffffff Setback
B < — Utility Line
23 Parki Planned Greenway
king Spaces
IHLEEED Vehicular Access
—  Security Light
1IEEE . Pedestrian Access

= User Flow

50’

Seating / Viewing

Proposed Trees
Areas

Green Areas

Proposed Trees

. Pedestrian Entrance
) Security Light

0O 25 50 100 ft
I I N (NN NN A N M

1 inch equals 50 feet

41

16



Skate Park Example Images

MULTI-SKILL RAMP

BEGINNER COMPONENTS

INTERMEDIATE COMPONENTS

ADVANCED COMPONENTS

DRAFT




PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT
OVERVIEW

Public engagement is the foundation of any successful planning
effort, representing the qualitative side of the investigation and
research upon which successful master plans are implemented.
Public engagement for Gill Street Park has been a priority for the
department since the Play Zebulon Master Plan, and a number
of methods and opportunities have been utilized in order to
ensure that community priorities are met. The primary goals of
this Master Plan’s public participation were to build on previous
efforts, raise awareness of the project, build support for the park
enhancements, and obtain input from residents on ideas for
park amenities and concepts.

The main effort of the Gill Street Master Plan public engagement
involved a pop-up workshop at the annual Back-2-School

Bash event to obtain ideas for design and gather community
comments on form and function alternatives. The Town also
engaged with the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board to

obtain additional input on the materials presented at the public
workshop. In addition to these meetings, the Town also hosted
a Virtual Open House through an online platform to provide
on-demand access for the general public. The following are
summaries of findings for each method.

PREVIOUS EFFORTS

The 2021 Play Zebulon Master Plan highlighted the need for
improvements at Gill Street Park, particularly as it relates to the
park’s playground and current amenities. Noting the importance
of this park to the surrounding community, the Town launched a
specific effort for Gill Street Park in 2023. Engagement methods
had included visual preference exercises held at the Gill Street
Cookout and with students from Zebulon Middle School, a
meeting with the Town's Recreation and Parks Advisory Board,
and an online engagement survey. All engagement methods
were conducted alongside the “How We Play” initiative that
focuses on system-wide improvements to Zebulon's parks and
recreation facilities.

The extensive outreach conducted during the 2023 Gill Street
Park engagement process resulted in the participation of close
to 200 residents and a wealth of input on the future of their

43

DRAFT

park and playground. From the results of the Gill Street Cookout
public engagement event, Zebulon Middle School workshop,
Advisory Board Meeting and online survey, the following
common themes can be derived for Gill Street Park:

* Climbing, spinning and sliding elements
* Features for older teens and adults

* Modern, colorful playground styles

* Shade structures

« Safety for the playground and the other areas of
the park

* Accessible and inclusive play

* Incorporating natural elements

* Sensory elements

* Friendly, inviting areas

* Confidence and skill building opportunities
« Community gathering

* Providing something for all age groups

Gill Street Cookout - 2023



POP-UP WORKSHOP AT THE BACK-2-SCHOOL BASH

Due to the timing of the Master Plan effort, the Town was provided a
unigque opportunity to engage a substantial portion of the community in a
special event setting across the street from Gill Street Park. On August 2,
2025, the Town of Zebulon hosted their annual Back-2-School Bash at Mt.
Zion United Holiness Church. The event, which drew hundreds of people,
featured food, fun, and an opportunity for the neighborhood residents

to provide their ideas for Gill Street Park, providing an ideal setting to
engage with members of the community who may not have otherwise
participated in the public involvement process. The project team provided
information that included an overview of the project purpose, process
and concept alternatives for the existing Gill Street Park site and the New
Park Site. Event attendees were able to walk through the displays as they
made their way around the exhibit area and view the presented material,
as well as participate in a visual preference exercise for the proposed park
elements.

The project team was available to answer questions and encourage
participants to provide comments. Over 130 people visited the boards
during the Back-2-School Bash workshop.

Back-2-School Bash

Common themes below were gathered from comment boards:

Outdoor pickleball courts
Pool or splash pad

Tennis court
Sensory-friendly

Basketball court
Gymnasium (for gymnastics)

Variety of outdoor activities

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD MEETING

In addition to the Back-2-School pop-up workshop, the Town presented
the workshop materials to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
Meeting on August 26th, 2025. The Advisory Board reviewed the materials
and participated in the visual preference exercises.

Attendees at all meetings were encouraged to select their preferred
alternative for each park site and provide ideas to help shape the future
of their park. Most attendees expressed support for the park and its
development, with a clear consensus for Option 2 for the New Park Site,
and the skate park option for the existing park site, resulting from the
park concept alternative selection. The visual preference exercise saw
heavy participation, providing valuable insight into the types of amenities
residents want to see in Gill Street Park. Results from the concept
alternative selection and the Visual Preference Exercise can be found on
the following spreads, along with the Virtual Engagement Summary.



PROJECT WEBSITE

In order to provide on-demand access for all members of the public to the project materials, the Gill Street Park
Master Plan utilized an online platform as a “one-stop-shop” for information about the plan. This platform was
run through Publicinput.com and utilized the URL, www.publicinput.com/GillStreetParkMP as the landing page
for all online engagement. The platform served as the access point for project information and updates, as well
as the Virtual Open House. The landing page also included information intended to help the public understand
why their feedback is important, and how the results of this plan can impact the future of their parks and
recreation services. Extensive outreach was conducted to encourage access to this platform, as well as provide
input opportunities for those who may have difficulty attending in-person engagement workshops.

VIRTUAL OPEN HOUSE

Community members were invited to visit a Virtual Open House and provide feedback on the needs and
priorities for parks and recreation facilities and services for both the park sites. Once in the Virtual Open House,
participants could view information boards, and participate in a series of engagement exercises to provide
input. The Virtual Open House remained accessible at any time online from August 2nd through August 31st, to
provide an opportunity for the community to provide input about the Master Plan priorities.

Comments on the Gill Street Park Concept
The following is a summary of the comments provided on the preliminary Gill Street Park Concept Plan:
Need for dedicated pickleball courts
A walking trail loop around the park
Shaded playground, walkways and seating areas
Addition of tree canopy for shade
Need for restrooms
A splashpad/ water play element

A space for roller skating in the skate park

20

45

VISUAL
PREFERENCE BY
THE NUMBERS

Selections
Made

DRAFT

131

In-Person
Participants

Online
Participants

Back-2-School Bash Participation Tally



General Comments on the Gill Street Park Master Plan

Participants were also provided an additional opportunity to provide
general comments about the project. The following is a summary of the
general comments provided.

Make park amenities and elements accessible and inclusive.

Provide amenities that cater to multiple age groups - need
amenities for adults who accompany their children to the park

Create playgrounds that are enclosed for safety of children. It is
particularly critical for families with neurodiverse children.

Looking forward to seeing the plan move forward and enjoying the
park.

Precedent Image Ranking Exercise

In addition to opportunities to provide open ended comments,
participants in the Virtual Open House were also able to view the same
series of precedent images included in the in-person meetings. In lieu of
a green dot exercise, participants were asked to rank the images in each
category. A summary of these results is included on the following pages.

DRAFT

Pop-up Workshop at Back-2-School Bash
46 21



DRAFT

PREFERRED BUNBEPT HESULTS = NEW SITE Back to School Bash Selections Advisory Board Selections ‘ Online Selections
12 1 9 22 40 3 16 59
Concept Boards Visual Preference Boards Pop-up Workshop

22 47



DRAFT

PREFERRED CDNCEPT RESUI.TS = EXISTING SITE ‘ Back to School Bash Selections . Advisory Board Selections ‘ Online Selections

®-0|-

Visual Preference Boards Concept Boards Comment Boards

48 23



VISUAL PREFERENCE RESULTS - TOP CHOICES PER CATEGORY

Advisory Board Selections ' Online Selections

Back-2-School Bash Selections

COMMUNITY CENTER

Online Ranking

1 1 2 0 42
0 0 4

15 14 16

26 14 62

#2 #6 #1

4 4 5 5 8
1 0 0

14 15 16

19 20 24

#5 #4 #3

PLAYGROUND

1 32 2 29 29
1 1 1

14 16 19

47 46 49

#1 #3 #2

4 25 5 21 10
1 2 0

16 14 12

42 37 22

#4 #5 #6

24

49

MULTI-PURPOSE GREEN SPACE

DRAFT

1 11 24 2
0 3 1
18 15 15
29 42 18
#3 #1 #2
WALKING TRAILS
1 11 5 29
2 1 1
14 17 15
27 23 45
#2 #3 #1
DISC GOLF
1 12 8 10
2 0 1
19 14 14
33 22 25
#1 #2 #3
MULTI-SPORT COURT
1 31 19 36
2 0 1
18 11 1
51 30 48
#1 #3 #2




DRAFT

VISUAL PREFERENCE RESULTS - TOP CHOICES PER CATEGORY VISUAL PREFERENCE RESULTS - SUPPORTING PARK AMENITIES (TOP 3)
‘ Back-2-School Bash Selections Advisory Board Selections . Online Selections ‘ Online Ranking . Back-2-School Bash Selections Advisory Board Selections . Online Selections
DOG PARK WI-FI CONNECTIVITY LIGHTING
1 ® L2 @ o = =
1 0 4 4 5
31 23 33 e e
#2 #3 #1
SKATE PARK PUBLIC ART SHADE STRUCTURES
1 . 2 ‘ 3

h |
ul

49

#1 #3 #2

SIGNAGE SEATING AREAS

—_—

44

BIKE RACKS ENVIRONMENTAL FEATURES

5 0
37

25




DRAFT

VISUAL PREFERENCE RESULTS - PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES (TOP 3)

‘ Back-2-School Bash Selections Advisory Board Selections ‘ Online Selections
SUMMER CAMPS AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS TEEN PROGRAMS
0 4 1
8 7 5
22 19
20
ACTIVE ADULT PROGRAMS PRESCHOOL AND EARLY INDOOR SPORTS

CHILDHOOD PROGRAMS

0 3
0
2 2
6 [ [
- 33
15 13
FITNESS PROGRAMS ART PROGRAMS SPECIAL EVENTS

COOKING AND
NUTRITION PROGRAMS MUSICAL PROGRAMS COMPUTER ACCESS

26

26

51



SUMMARY

The extensive outreach conducted during the Gill Street Park Master Plan
resulted in the participation of over 160 residents and a wealth of input
from the community on the future of both park sites. The results from
the Back-2-School Bash, Advisory Board Meeting and online survey, the
following common themes can be derived for Gill Street Park:

» Strong consensus for Option 2 at the New Park Site, and the
Skate Park Option for the Existing Park Site

« Community Center with a wide-range of activities, flexible
spaces, and a modern aesthetic

» Colorful playground with a mix of natural and traditional
elements, providing access for users of all ages and abilities

* Flexible outdoor green spaces

* Access to restrooms in the park

« Walking trails through natural areas with disc golf

» Multi-sport court supporting a wide-range of opportunities
* Multi-skill skate park ramps for all ages

* Public art

* Shade and places to sit

» Security lighting and Wi-Fi available

* Indoor sports

* Fitness programs

» Cooking and Nutrition programs

Activities at Back-2-School Bash

DRAFT

52 27



FINAL CONCEPT

FINAL CONCEPT - NEW PARK SITE

Once the Public Engagement was completed, the project

team summarized all written comments, the results from

the precedent image exercises, and any notes taken during
conversations with stakeholders and public participants. Input
received was analyzed to determine the alignment of the public’s
needs and priorities with the ideas presented in the preliminary
concept. The input received through the multiple avenues

of engagement validated the design elements presented in

the preliminary concepts, provided direction for additional
improvements to be included, and helped to visualize the intent
of the design elements through the precedent image exercises.

The final concept plan, which is a refinement of the Option 2
preliminary concept plan, contains the following programmatic
and design elements for the New Park Site:

An approximately 5,000 square feet multi-use community
center that anchors the other park amenities

Security lighting features illuminating the major park
elements such as the parking lot, playground and sports
courts

A centrally located multi-purpose open green space with
open views to surrounding park elements

Inclusive and accessible playground

Addition of multi-purpose sports courts that could be
utilized for multiple sports such as futsal/ basketball/
pickleball

An off-street paved parking lot and on-street parking that
provide a total of 23 parking spaces

Retaining and enhancing the naturalized, wooded
northern portion of the park with the addition of a disc
golf course and unpaved walking trail loop

53

DRAFT

Improved and expanded walking trail network with a mix
of paved pathways and unpaved trails, and boardwalk
connection over Little Creek

Potential future connections to adjacent parcels,
particularly to Zebulon Middle School and East
Wake Academy, existing Gill Street Park and further
connections to future City-wide trail network

Stormwater improvements throughout the park



FINAL CONCEPT PLAN - NEW PARK SITE

Concept Key Future Connection to East
Wake Academy School Park

Proposed Community
Building - ~5,000 SF

Proposed Parking Lot Future Connection to

East Wake Academy —e
Multi-Sport Courts -
Futsal/Basketball/Pickleball

Multi-purpose Green Space
purp P Future Connection to

Zebulon Middle School

ORONONONOXONONOXOXO,

Playground
Shelter
Security Light
Disc Golf @
Trail
Wooden Boardwalk @
® N
@ 3
o
® @ > ¢
[
Future Connection to
Existing Gill Street Park ° @
® Proposed Trees
Legend
— — — Property Line 18 Parking Spaces 5 Parking Spaces
0 60 120 N
e tility Line I T N I Y S S A
1 inch equals 60 feet
54 29



FINAL CONCEPT

FINAL CONCEPT - EXISTING PARK SITE

During the Back-2-School Bash public engagement workshop,
two preliminary concepts were presented for the redevelopment
of the existing Gill Street Park site. Option 1 included a passive
natural open green space park, and Option 2 included a skate
park as the primary park element. Of the two concepts, Option

2 garnered the highest number of votes from the community.
Based on the feedback received this concept was further refined
to include all public comments and input.

The final concept contains the following programmatic and
design elements for redevelopment of the existing Gill Street
Park Site:

Skate park with allocated spaces for three skill-levels:
advanced, intermediate, and beginner, and a multi-skilled
ramp area

Shaded seating/viewing areas located at multiple vantage
points around the skating areas

Security lighting features illuminating the major park
elements and sidewalks

Improved and expanded walking trail network with
potential future connection to new park site along N Gill
St

Stormwater improvements throughout the park

55

DRAFT




FINAL CONCEPT PLAN - EXISTING PARK SITE

Concept Key

Multi-Skill Ramps

Proposed Parking Lot

Sidewalk .
) Future Connection
to New Park Site °
@ Variable Skill Ramps User Flow
@ Security Light @ L -—- ~.
¢ N\
, I ’ \
@ Seating / Viewing Areas ! L.
o ¢ | <:> -r S
v \ s ] N
’ N
3 \ 4 4 \
- S R4 \
g NS -_Jd- 7 1
2 - |
£ ® \ .
- O | '
\ ’

Y
- [
5
2
I @
Legend
— = — PropertyLline 25 Parking Spaces
Utility Line
VAR
( I Advanced Zone
N_7
VARRS
l I Intermediate Zone
N_7
0 50 120 N
Beginner Zone Lo 11 A
1 inch equals 50 feet

56



COST ESTIMATE & PHASING

INTRODUCTION

The next step in the master planning process is to establish clear
implementation strategies and priorities for the advancement of
the community-driven concept for both the Existing Gill Street
Park Site as well as the New Park Site. This involves developing
estimates of probable cost for the proposed improvements

at both the sites, and then aligning community priorities with
available funding to establish an achievable phasing plan.

ESTIMATE OF PROBABLE COST
COST CONSIDERATIONS

The estimate of probable cost associated with the Gill Street
Park Master Plan is based on current market trends, similar
projects, and project-specific research conducted by the project
team. The project team utilized all of its available resources and
technical expertise to provide order-of-magnitude cost estimates
that are for planning purposes only.

The concepts for both the park sites may be modified over time
in response to actual costs, future Town objectives, and available
funding sources. Additionally, it is recommended that proposed
improvements undergo a detailed feasibility and cost analysis
prior to physical implementation.

COST ESTIMATES

The table on the following page details the overall estimate

of probable cost for both the Existing Gill Street Park Site as
well as the New Park Site, including direct construction costs,
indirect costs associated with construction, contingency, design,
permitting, and construction administration/construction
management.

57

DRAFT

Estimate of Probable Cost
New Park Site

$5,530,699

Estimate of Probable Cost
Existing Park Site

$1,839,101



GILL STREET PARK IMPROVEMENTS - NEW PARK SITE

Gill Street Park Master Plan
Order of Magnitude Estimate of Probable Capital Improvement Costs (2025)

DRAFT

Total Direct Total Landscape
Total Direct Costs with Development New Trees Each 30 $175 $5,250 $9,113 $10,480
Unit Quantity Unit Cost Costs Markups Cost Multi-purpose green space (Sod) SY 1625 $6 $9,750 $16,924 $19,462
Gill Street Park Improvements - New Park Site Additional Landscape Allowance Allowance 1 $20,000 $20,000 $34,716 $39,923
Irrigation Allowance Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Site Work Subtotal: $85,000 $147,541 $169,673
Site Clearing Acre 4 $10,000 $40,000 $69,431 $79,846
Site Grading and Balancing Acre 2 $20,000 $40,000 $69,431 $79,846 Park Elements
Erosion Control (Fences, Diversions, tree protection Playground (2,000 SF, Play Equipment, Surfacing,
barrier, temporary construction entrance) Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807 Shade, Curb) Allowance 1 $250,000 $250,000 $433,945 $499,037
Stream Restoration & Bank Stabilization (as needed) Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Subtotal- $180,000 $312,441 $359,307 Multi-purpose play courts (futsal/ basketball/ pickleball) Allowance 1 $250,000 $250,000 $433,945 $499,037
Disc Golf Allowance 1 $65,000 $65,000 $112,826 $129,750
Utilities Security Lighting Allowance 1 $120,000 $120,000 $208,294 $239,538
Sanitary Service Supply Allowance 1 $75,000 $75,000 $130,184 $149,711 Signage Allowance (Educational Signage, Wayfinding) | Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Water Service Supply Allowance 1 $75,000 $75,000 $130,184 $149,711 Amenity Upgrade Allowance (Benches, Picnic Tables, Al ] 0000 50,000 56,780 99,807
Electrical Service Supply Allowance 1 $30,000 $30,000 $52,073 $59,884 Trash Receptacles, Water Fountains) owance $50, $50, $8s, $99,
Stormwater Treatment Areas Allowance 1 $70,000 $70,000 $121,505 $139,730 Subtotal: $760,000 $1,319,194 $1,517,073
Subtotal: $250,000 $433,945 $499,037
i $2,770,685
Building and Structures olalblieeHEnsts
Community Center SF 5000 $220 $1,100,000 $1,909,359 $2,195,763
Large Pavilion (20'x30') Each 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807 Mobilization and General Conditions 15.0% $415,603
Subtotal: $1,150,000 $1,996,148 $2,295,571 SR $3,186,288
Bonds, Insurance 5.0% $159,314
Hardscape
i - Subtotal $3,345,602
Paved Parking and Drop-off (Asphalt Pavement, sy 810 $130 $105,300 $182,778 $210,194
Subgrade, Base, Parking Bumpers, Signs, Striping) Contractor Fees (Profit, Overhead, Expenses) 15.0% $501,840
?g;zgﬂl):’athway (6" Wide, Concrete Surface, Base, LF 1275 $40 $51,000 $88.525 $101,804 Subtotal $3,847,442
oaved Path 70 ity Contor (8 Wid Contingency 25.0% $961,861
aved Pathway around Community Center ide,
Concrete Surface, Base, Topsoil) LF 192 $50 $9,600 $16.664 $19.163
il (8' Wi i 4,809,303
Unpaved Trail (8' Wide, Compacted Gravel Surface, LF 2605 $22 $57.310 $99.478 $114,399 Total Construction Costs I I $4,809, |
Base, Topsoil)
Concrete Pads (playground area, pavilion) SY 45 $55 $2,475 $4,296 $4,940 - T i — ) | | | $721,395
Boardwalk for Trails LF 100 $1.200 $120,000 $208.294 $239.538 Site Investigation, Design, Permitting, and CA/CM Fees 15.0% ’
Subtotal: $345,685 $600,034 $690,039
Total Cost for New Gill Street Park Site Improvements | | | $5,530,699

58

33



GILL STREET PARK IMPROVEMENTS - EXISTING PARK SITE

DRAFT

Gill Street Park Master Plan Landscape
Order of Magnitude Estimate of Probable Capital Improvement Costs (2025) New Trees Each 10 $175 a0 HEMEE AR
Additional Landscape Allowance Allowance 1 $20,000 $20,000 $34,716 $39,923
Total Direct Total Direct Total Irrigation Allowance Allowance 1 $30,000 $30,000 $52,073 $59,884
o gost';ec Costs with | Development Subtotal: $51,750 $89,827 $103,301
Unit Quantity | Unit Cost Markups Cost
Gill Street Park Improvements - Existing Site - Skate Park Park Elements
Security Lighting Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Site Work Signage Allowance (Educational Signage, Wayfinding) Allowance 1 $15,000 $15,000 $26,037 $29,942
Site Clearing Acre 15 $15,000 $22,500 $39,055 $44,913 Ameniy Upgrads Aliowance (Benches, Picnic Tables. | Aliowance 1 $40,000 $40,000 $69,431 $79,846
Site Grading and Balancing Acre 1 $20,000 $20,000 $34,716 $39,023 rash Receptacles, Water Fountains)
i i i i Subtotal: $105,000 $182,257 $209,596
Erospn Control (Fences, Dlyers:ons, tree protection Allowance 1 $60,000 $60,000 $104,147 $119.769
barrier, temporary construction entrance)
Subtotal: $102,500 $177,918 $204,605 Total Direct Costs $921,325
Utilities — = $138.199
Water Service Supply Allowance 1 $30,000 $30,000 $52,073 $59,884 Motbilization and General Conditions 15.0% 2
Electrical Service Supply Allowance 1 $30,000 $30,000 $52,073 $59,884 Subtotal $1,059,524
Stormwater Treatment Areas Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807 Bonds, Insurance 5.0% $52,976
Subtotal: $110,000 $190,936 $219,576 Subtotal $1,112,500
Building and Structures Contractor Fees (Profit, Overhead, Expenses) 15.0% $166,875
Large Pavilion (15'%20') Each 1 $20,000 $20,000 $34,716 $39,923 Subtotal $1,279,375
Shade Structures Each 7 $5,000 $35,000 $60,752 $69,865 Contingency 25.0% $319,844
Subtotal: $55,000 $95,468 $109,788
Hardscape Total Construction Costs | | $1,599,219 |
:ZEZ P o ’g;’gef:sg’ar:ts P 2,”,‘7’,",?”)‘ Subgrade, Base, % 1080 $160 $172,800 $299,043 $344,934
g BUMPeTS, >Igns, Siping Design. Permitting, and CA/CM Fees 15.0% | | | $239,883
Skate Park (concrete bowls, wooden ramps, metal Allowance 1 $250,000 $250,000 $433,945 $499,037
rails, drainage, and site preparation) | | |
— Total Cost for Existing Gill Street Park Improvements $1,839,101
Paved'Pathway (6' Wide, Concrete Surface, Base, LE 1740 $40 $69,600 $120,810 $138.932
Topsoil)
Concrete Pads (pavilion, shaded seating areas) SY 85 $55 $4,675 $8,115 $9,332
Subtotal: $497,075 $862,813 $992,235

34



PHASING

After the completion of the cost estimates, the project team met with
Town staff to discuss the implementation and phasing strategies for Gill
Street Park. Discussions with Town Staff resulted in the development of
three phases for the implementation of the New Park Site concept plan
and two phases for the Existing Park Site improvements, with each phase
seeking to provide meaningful improvements while laying the foundation
and building momentum for future phases. The phases are intended to
utilize current and future funding and be implemented as this funding
becomes available.

NEW PARK SITE

Phase 1 will be initiated upon completion of this Master Plan Study,

and provide infrastructure improvements that activate new areas of
the park for a wide variety of users, expand programmable areas of the
park, and help set the stage for further improvements. Phase 1 includes
developing the playground, picnic shelter, multi-use play courts, multi-
purpose green space, paved off-street parking lot, and all associated
hardscape and landscape connecting these amenities. This approach

is intended to attract the users of the existing Gill Street Park to this
new location as well as attract new users with expanded and enhanced
amenities, and generate momentum for future improvements that
would require additional funding. Phase 2 would include developing the
community center, on-street parking spaces, and associated hardscape
and landscape elements. Phase 3 would include developing the disc
golf course, the unpaved trails network around the course, and the trail
segments that would connect the park to the neighboring parcels of
Zebulon Middle School, East Wake Academy, East Wake Academy School
Park, and connection to the existing Gill Street Park.

EXISTING PARK SITE

Phase 1 for the Existing Park Site will be initiated upon completion of the
New Park Site developments and pending soil remediation efforts by
NCDEQ, and provide additional recreational opportunities for the users.
With the New Park Site completed, the existing park can be demolished in
preparation for the new developments. Phase 1 for the existing site would
include the development of the variable skill ramps segment of the skate
park, paved parking and associated hardscape and landscape elements.
Phase 2 would include the development of the multi-skill ramp segment
of the skate park, picnic shelter, and associated hardscape and landscape
elements.

FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES

The funding analysis from the 2021 Play Zebulon Master Plan highlighted

a 10-year schedule of projected funding that could be utilized to advance
capital projects, including Gill Street Park. The Town of Zebulon has

several funding sources available that can be utilized for implementation,
many of which can be phased or even enhanced for additional funding
opportunities to help address economic fluctuations and changing Town
priorities over time. Through the analysis of available sources, projections of
funding options and recommendations are as follows:

* General Fund Revenues - As a result of the 2021 Plan, the
department initiated its first dedicated CIP, for Parks and Recreation
projects, which has helped direct much needed funding toward
improvements across the system. With continued population growth
projected for the Town, this figure will likely increase each year,
especially in the long-term implementation phases of park projects.

* Grants - The funding analysis from the 2021 Plan identified over
a dozen grant opportunities annually. New grants have since
been implemented at the State and County level, furthering
the department’s potential to increase funds available for park
improvements.

* Parks and Recreation Impact Fees - Impact fees assign growth-
related capital costs to those new residents responsible for such costs.
The Town of Zebulon has recognized this capital funding strategy as
an appropriate method for funding the increased capital requirements
resulting from growth. Implemented in 2021, the Parks and Recreation
Impact Fee has helped supplement the Capital Improvement Budget
for upcoming parks and recreation projects. Funding from this fee is
expected to increase as the Town continues to grow.

* Tax Revenue - The department currently has access to funds
generated from a 1/2-cent tax for walkability improvements, which
could included access improvements, sidewalks, signage, and
greenways.

DRAFT

Borrowing - As a funding source, general obligation bonds have
historically received support from municipalities in Wake County.
While Zebulon has made it a practice to fund most capital outlay from
current operating budgets rather than through long-term financing,
debt financing may prove to be the most cost-effective means of
future funding for infrastructure improvements. A potential option to
consider is utilizing projected funding through CIP, grants, taxes and
impact fees to fund the first phases of park projects, while utilizing

a bond to fund the proposed improvements that fall within the later
phases. It is recommended that the Town explore the feasibility of a
bond through additional public engagement and financial analysis.



DRAFT

PHASE

Total Direct Total
Total Direct Cost with Development
New Gill Street Park Improvements Phase 1 Quantity Unit Cost Cost Markups Cost
Site Work
Site Clearing Acre 1 $10,000 $10,000 $17,358 $19,961
Site Grading and Balancing Acre 0.5 $20,000 $10,000 $17,358 $19,961
Erospn Control (Fences, Dn_/ersmns, tree protection Allowance 1 $20,000 $20,000 $34.716 $39,923
barrier, temporary construction entrance)
Subtotal: $40,000 $69,431 $79,846
Utilities
Sanitary Service Supply Allowance 1 $75,000 $75,000 $130,184 $149,711
Water Service Supply Allowance 1 $75,000 $75,000 $130,184 $149,711
Electrical Service Supply Allowance 1 $30,000 $30,000 $52,073 $59,884
Stormwater Treatment Areas Allowance 1 $35,000 $35,000 $60,752 $69,865
Subtotal: $215,000 $373,193 $429,172
Building and Structures
Large Pavilion (20'x30’) Each 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Subtotal: $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Hardscape
Paved On-street Parking and Drop-off (Asphalt
Pavement, Subgrade, Base, Parking Bumpers, Signs, SY 695 $130 $90,350 $156,828 $180,352
Striping)
Paved'Pathway (6' Wide, Concrete Surface, Base, LF 483 $40 $19,320 $33,535 $38.566
Topsoil)
..... .. Paved Pathway around Community Center (8' Wide,
3 Concrete Surface, Base, Topsoil) LF 101 $50 $5,050 $8,766 $10,081
Concrete Pads (playground area, pavilion) Sy 45 $55 $2,475 $4,296 $4,940
Subtotal: $117,195 $203,425 $233,939
H Landscape
New Trees Each 23 $175 $4,025 $6,987 $8,034
Multi-purpose green space (Sod) SY 1625 $6 $9,750 $16,924 $19,462
Additional Landscape Allowance Allowance 1 $12,000 $12,000 $20,829 $23,954
i Irrigation Allowance Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
A . Subtotal: $75,775 $131,529 $151,258
Phasing Legend
Park Elements
. Playground (2,000 SF, Play Equipment, Surfacing,
i 5 Phase 1 Site Shade, Curb) Allowance 1 $250,000 $250,000 $433,945 $499,037
frreend Im p rovements Multi-purpose play courts (futsal/ basketball/ pickleball) Allowance 1 $250,000 $250,000 $433,945 $499,037
. . Security Lighting Allowance 1 $120,000 $120,000 $208,294 $239,538
Phase 1 Circulation Signage Allowance (Educational Signage, Wayfinding) | Allowance 1 $15,000 $15,000 $26,037 $29,042
Improvements Amenity Upgrade Allowance (Benches, Picnic Tables,
p Trash Receptacles, Water Fountains) Allowance 1 $40,000 $40,000 $69,431 $79,846
Subtotal: $675,000 $1,171,652 $1,347,400
Total Direct Costs $1,172,970
Mobilization and General Conditions 15.0% $175,946
Subtotal $1,348,916
Bonds, Insurance 5.0% $67,446
Subtotal $1,416,361
Contractor Fees (Profit, Overhead, Expenses) 15.0% $212,454
Subtotal $1,628,815
Contingency 25.0% $407,204
Total Construction Costs | | | | | $2,036,019 |
Site Investigation, Design, Permitting, and CA/CM Fees | | 15.0% | | | | $305,403

Total Cost for New Gill Street Park Phase 1 Improvements $2,341,422
36 61



PHASE 2

DRAFT

Total Direct Total
Total Direct Cost with Development
New Gill Street Park Improvements Phase 2 Quantity Unit Cost Cost Markups Cost
Site Work
Site Clearing Acre 0.5 $10,000 $5,000 $8,679 $9,981
Site Grading and Balancing Acre 0.5 $20,000 $10,000 $17,358 $19,961
Erospn Control (Fences, DIYSI’SIOnS, tree protection Allowance 1 $20,000 $20,000 $34.716 $39.923
barrier, temporary construction entrance)
Subtotal: [ s3mo0 | seo7s2 [ sesses |
Utilities
Stormwater Treatment Areas Allowance 1 $20,000 $20,000 $34,716 $39,923
Building and Structures
Community Center SF 5000 $220 $1,100,000 $1,909,359 $2,195,763
Hardscape
Paved Off-street parking (Asphalt Pavement,
Subgrade, Base, Parking Bumpers, Signs, Striping) sY "5 $130 i 2 T
Paved'Pathway (6' Wide, Concrete Surface, Base, LF 302 $40 $12,080 $20.968 $24.113
Topsoil)
Paved Pathway around Community Center (8' Wide,
Concrete Surface, Base, Topsoil) LF 91 $50 BAEED I R
Landscape
New Trees Each 7 $175 $1,225 $2,126 $2,445
Additional Landscape Allowance Allowance 1 $6,000 $6,000 $10,415 $11,977
Park Elements
Signage Allowance (Educational Signage, Wayfinding) Allowance 1 $5,000 $5,000 $8,679 $9,981
Amenity Upgrade Allowance (Benches, Picnic Tables,
Trash Receptacles, Water Fountains) Allowance 1 $5,000 $5,000 $8,679 $9,981

Phasing Legend

- Phase 2 Site
Improvements
Phase 2 Circulation
Improvements

Subtotal:

Estimate of Probable Cost for Phase 2 - $2,402,973

Phase 2 would include developing the community center, on-street parking spaces, and associated
hardscape and landscape features.

Total Cost for New Gill Street Park Phase 2 Improvements

$2,402,973




DRAFT

PHASE 3

Phasing Legend

- Phase 3 Site
Improvements
Phase 3 Circulation
Improvements

Estimate of Probable Cost for Phase 3 - $786,303

Phase 3 would include developing the disc golf course, the unpaved trails network around the course,

and the trail segments that would connect the park to the neighboring parcels.

38 63

Total Direct Total
Total Direct Cost with Development
New Gill Street Park Improvements Phase 3 Quantity Unit Cost Cost Markups Cost
Site Work
Site Clearing Acre 2.5 $10,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Site Grading and Balancing Acre 1 $20,000 $20,000 $34,716 $39,923
Erospn Control (Fences, Dn_/ers:ons, tree protection Allowance 1 $10,000 $10,000 $17.358 $19,961
barrier, temporary construction entrance)
Stream Restoration & Bank Stabilization (as needed) Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Utilities
Stormwater Treatment Areas Allowance 1 $15,000 $15,000 $26,037 $29,942
Subtotal:
Hardscape
Paved'Pathway (6' Wide, Concrete Surface, Base, LF 490 $40 $19,600 $34,021 $39.125
Topsoil)
Unpaved Tra'll (8' Wide, Compacted Gravel Surface, LF 2605 $22 $57,310 $99.478 $114,399
Base, Topsoil)
Boardwalk for Trails LF 100 $1,200 $120,000 $208,294 $239,538
Subtotal:
Landscape
Additional Landscape Allowance Allowance 1 $2,000 $2,000 $3,472 $3,992
Subtotal:
Park Elements
Disc Golf Allowance 1 $65,000 $65,000 $112,826 $129,750
Signage Allowance (Educational Signage, Wayfinding) Allowance 1 $5,000 $5,000 $8,679 $9,981
Amenity Upgrade Allowance (Benches, Picnic Tables,
Trash Receptacles, Water Fountains) Allowance ! $5,000 i TR e
Subtotal:
Subtta I I I o A Y
Subtta 1 [ ] serses
Subtotal [ ] ssesems
Total Cost for New Gill Street Park Phase 3 Improvements $786,303



COMPREHENSIVE PHASING PLAN

Concept Key

Future Connection to East
Wake Academy School Park

SNONONONONORONOXOXO

Legend

Proposed Community

Building - ~5,000 SF Future Connection to

East Wake Academy

T

Proposed Parking Lot

Multi-Sport Courts -
Futsal/Basketball/Pickleball

Multi-purpose Green Space _
Future Connection to

Zebulon Middle School
Playground

Shelter
Security Light
Disc Golf
Trail

Wooden Boardwalk

= Utility Line

18 Parking Spaces

Property Line
5 Parking Spaces

Proposed Trees ,

64

Future Connection to
Existing Gill Street Park

DRAFT

Phasing Legend

................. . Phase 1 Site
R i Improvements

Phase 1 Circulation
Improvements

Phase 2

‘ Phase 2 Site
Improvements
Phase 2 Circulation
Improvements

Phase 3

- Phase 3 Site
Improvements
Phase 3 Circulation
Improvements

39




DRAFT

PHASE

Total Direct Total
Total Direct Cost with Development
New Gill Street Park Improvements Phase 1 Quantity Unit Cost Cost Markups Cost
Site Work
Site Clearing Acre 1.5 $15,000 $22,500 $39,055 $44,913
Site Grading and Balancing Acre 0.5 $20,000 $10,000 $17,358 $19,961
Erosion Control (Fer'rces, Diversions, tree protection barrier, Allowance 1 $40,000 $40,000 $69,431 $79,846
temporary construction entrance)
Subtotal: $72,500 $125,844 $144,721
Utilities
Water Service Supply Allowance 1 $30,000 $30,000 $52,073 $59,884
Electrical Service Supply Allowance 1 $30,000 $30,000 $52,073 $59,884
Stormwater Treatment Areas Allowance 1 $30,000 $30,000 $52,073 $59,884
Subtotal: $90,000 $156,220 $179,653
Building and Structures
Large Pavilion (15'x20') Each 1 $20,000 $20,000 $34,716 $39,923
Shade Structures Each 4 $5,000 $20,000 $34,716 $39,923
I $40,000 $69,431 $79,846
Hardscape
Paved Parkl'ng (Aspﬁa'lt Pavement, Subgrade, Base, Parking sy 1080 $160 $172,800 $299,943 $344,934
Bumpers, Signs, Striping)
Ska'te Park (con'crete bowls', wooden ramps, metal rails, Allowance 1 $150,000 $150,000 $260,367 $299.422
drainage, and site preparation)
Paved Pathway (6" Wide, Concrete Surface, Base, Topsoil) LF 517 $40 $20,680 $35,896 $41,280
Concrete Pads (pavilion, shaded seating areas) SY 40 $55 $2,200 $3,819 $4,392
Subtotal: $345,680 $600,025 $690,029
Landscape
New Trees Each 10 $175 $1,750 $3,038 $3,493
Additional Landscape Allowance Allowance 1 $10,000 $10,000 $17,358 $19,961
Irrigation Allowance Allowance 1 $30,000 $30,000 $52,073 $59,884
Subtotal: $41,750 $72,469 $83,339
Park Elements
. Security Lighting Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Phasin g Le gen d Signage Allowance (Educational Signage, Wayfinding) Allowance 1 $10,000 $10,000 $17,358 $19,961
Amenity Upgrade Allowance (Benches, Picnic Tables, Trash
Receptacles, Water Fountains) Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
¢ Phase 1 Site Subtotal: $85,000 $147,541 $169,673
Improvements
Total Direct Costs $674,930
Phase 1 Circulation Mobilization and General Conditions 15.0% $101,240
Improvements $776,170
Bonds, Insurance and Overhead 5.0% $38,808
$814,978
Contractor Fees and Expenses 15.0% $122,247
$937,225
Contingency 25.0% $234,306
Total Construction Costs | | | | | $1,171,531 |
Design. Permitting, and CA/CM Fees | | 15.0% | | | | $175,730

Total Cost for Existing Gill Street Park Phase 1 Improvements $1,347,260



Phasing Legend
- Phase 2 Site
Improvements

Phase 2 Circulation
Improvements

Estimate of Probable Cost for Phase 2 - $491,841

Phase 2 includes the development of the multi-skill ramp segment of the skate park, picnic shelter,
and associated hardscape and landscape elements.

PHASE 2

DRAFT

Total Direct Total
Total Direct Cost with Development
New Gill Street Park Improvements Phase 2 Quantity Unit Cost Cost Markups Cost
Site Work
Site Grading and Balancing Acre 0.5 $20,000 $10,000 $17,358 $19,961
gra(:;g)] Control (Fences, Diversions, Waddles and Skimmer Allowance 1 $20,000 $20,000 $34.716 $39,923
Subtotal: [ sso000 | ss2073 | ssoss4 |
Utilities
Stormwater Treatment Areas Allowance 1 $20,000 $20,000 $34,716 $39,923
Building and Structures
Shade Structures Each 3 $5,000 $15,000 $26,037 $29,942
Hardscape
Skafe Park (conf:rete bowlg, wooden ramps, metal rails, Allowance 1 $100,000 $100,000 $173,578 $199,615
drainage, and site preparation)
Paved Pathway (6' Wide, Concrete Surface, Base, Topsoil) LF 1223 $40 $48,920 $84,914 $97,652
Concrete Pads (pavilion, shaded seating areas) SY 45 $55 $2,475 $4,296 $4,940
Landscape
Ad(ditional Landscape Allowance Allowance 1 $10,000 $10,000 $17,358 $19,961
Park Elements
Signage Allowance (Educational Signage, Wayfinding) Allowance 1 $5,000 $5,000 $8,679 $9,981
Amenity Upgrade Allowance (Benches, Picnic Tables, Trash
Receptacles, Water Fountains) Allowance 1 $15,000 $15,000 $26,037 $29,942
Subtotal:
Total Cost for Existing Gill Street Park Phase 2 Improvements $491,841



COMPREHENSIVE PHASING PLAN

Concept Key

OJORCRORONO

Multi-Skill Ramps

Proposed Parking Lot

Sidewalk

Variable Skill Ramps
Security Light

Seating / Viewing Areas

VAN
|
N_7
PARRN

42

Property Line
Utility Line

Advanced Zone

Intermediate Zone

Beginner Zone

N Privette St.

User Flow

67

Future Connection
to New Park Site

25 Parking Spaces

N Gill s¢.

DRAFT

Phasing Legend

aeeeeessennanas : Phase 1 Site
Improvements

Phase 1 Circulation
Improvements

Phase 2

— Phase 2 Site
Improvements
Phase 2 Circulation
Improvements




68

DRAFT







STAFF REPORT
ZEBULON COMMUNITY PARK
SITE SPECIFIC MASTER PLAN

NOVEMBER 3, 2025

Topic: Zebulon Community Park Site Specific Master Plan

Speaker: Sheila Long, Parks and Recreation Director

Prepared by: Sheila Long, Parks and Recreation Director
Bobby Fitts, Finance Director

Approved by: Taiwo Jaiyeoba, Interim Town Manager

Executive Summary:
The Board of Commissioners will consider adopting the Zebulon Community Park Site
Specific Master Plan and support action to prepare for implementation of the plan.

Background:

In 1977, the Town of Zebulon purchased 45 acres of land that would become the Town's
third park, Zebulon Community Park. The site was initially developed in the 1980's and
included two baseball fields. Additional development took place in the early 1990's, thanks
in part to grant funding through the federal Land and Water Conservation Fund, and
included a playground, restrooms, fitness trail, picnic shelters, and basketball courts.
Several land acquisitions have taken place since the mid-2000's and the full site is now
53 acres and also includes the Zebulon Community Center and the Parks & Recreation
Maintenance Shop.

Zebulon Community Park Site Specific Master Plan

The Play Zebulon Parks and Recreation Master Plan, adopted in 2021, identified
Zebulon Community Park as a potential site in need of renovation and a site
specific plan for the Park leans on community engagement, adopted policy, and
local recreation trends to provide a vision for the future of the park and how we can
maximize providing recreation services to the community. Staff will present the Site
Specific Plan in order for the Board to consider adoption.

2025-2026 Competitive Funding Process for the Raleigh/Wake Hospitality
Tax Funds.

The County will consider proposals to award up to $5,500,000 to leverage
resources and enhance arts, culture, sports and convention facilities in Wake
County. A total of $8 million may be awarded by Wake County and the City of
Raleigh. Award amounts will vary. The Hospitality Tax Fund Match must be less
than 50% of the total project cost.

The Request for Proposals was released on September 8" and staff believes the
Zebulon Community Park project should be submitted for consideration. The grant
is due November 6" at 2 PM. Staff is moving quickly to take advantage of this
opportunity and will seek action from the Board to support the application to include
allocation of funds and adoption of the Capital Improvement Plan.

70



STAFF REPORT
ZEBULON COMMUNITY PARK
SITE SPECIFIC MASTER PLAN

NOVEMBER 3, 2025

Policy Analysis:
Adopting this plan is consistent with the vision and goals of the Play Zebulon: Parks and
Recreation Master Plan.

Financial Analysis:
Adopting this Plan offers the following financial support:

Increases the competitiveness of grant applications.

Phases the capital and operational costs of future projects and programs.
Creates opportunities to partner with other agencies on adjacent, and similar,
projects.

Fund Allocation

The Board allocated funds in the Fiscal Year 2026 budget for land acquisition. Staff
is requesting these funds be reallocated to the Zebulon Community Park Renovation
and Ballfield Relocation project. Staff is also seeking to allocate an additional
$3,000,000 of Recreation Impact Fees to the project with additional funds being
allocated in the Fiscal Year 2027 budget for phase 1 of the plan.

Capital Fund

With the allocation of funds, staff seeks development of a capital project fund.
Creation of a capital fund recognizes this project will span over multiple fiscal years.

Capital Improvement Plan

Staff is also asking for the Board to adopt an updated Capital Improvement Plan for
Parks and Recreation. The plan is a tool for the Board and Staff to anticipate how
services and projects can be implemented over the next five or more years.

Discussion:
The discussion before the Board of Commissioners is to consider:

Adoption of the Zebulon Community Park Site Specific Master Plan (Resolution
2026-14),

Adoption of Ordinance 2026-15 to transfer allocated General Fund funds to a
capital project fund

Adoption of Ordinance 2026-16 to create a Capital Project Fund

Adoption of the Parks and Recreation Capital Improvement Plan (Resolution
2026-15)

Authorization for the staff to apply to the Wake County/Raleigh Hospitality Fund.

Parks & Recreation Advisory Board Recommendation:

At the October 20, 2025, Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Meeting, the Advisory
Board recommended the Board of Commissioners adopt the proposed Zebulon
Community Park Site Specific Master Plan

71



STAFF REPORT
ZEBULON COMMUNITY PARK
SITE SPECIFIC MASTER PLAN

NOVEMBER 3, 2025

Staff Recommendation:

Staff recommends:

e Adoption of Resolution 2026-14 - the Zebulon Community Park Site Specific
Master Plan subject to final edits and corrections.

e Adoption of Ordinance 2026-15 to allocate funds to the Zebulon Community Park
Renovation and Ballfield Relocation project.
e Adoption of Ordinance 2026-16 to create a capital project fund.

¢ Adoption of Resolution 2026-15- the Parks and Recreation Capital Improvement
Plan

Attachments:

e Zebulon Community Park Site Specific Master Plan (QR Code)

e Resolution 2026-14: Zebulon Community Park Site Specific Master
Plan

e Resolution 2026-15: Capital Improvement Plan

e Ordinance 2026-15: Budget Transfer

e Ordinance 2026-16: Capital Project Fund: Community Park Renovation &
Ballfield Relocation

72


https://publicinput.com/Customer/File/Full/f9096551-09d7-4546-b9cb-1de7adc480be

RESOLUTION 2026-14
ADOPTION OF ZEBULON COMMUNITY PARK
SITE SPECIFIC MASTER PLAN

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners adopted the Play Zebulon: Parks and Recreation Comprehensive
Master Plan on September 13, 2021; and

WHEREAS, Play Zebulon provides a vision, goals, and action items based on community input to guide
Parks and Recreation decisions; and

WHEREAS, developing a specific plan for Zebulon Community Park is consistent with Play Zebulon vision
goals:
e Engage community in planning and implementation,
e Provide quality, diverse parks, facilities, programs, and open space for people of all ages and
backgrounds,
e Support economic development, and
e Expand athletic fields.

WHEREAS, the Zebulon Community Park Site Specific Master Plan was developed by gathering input from
the community; and

WHEREAS, there were community input meetings, an on demand virtual meeting, and input by the Parks
& Recreation Advisory Board and the Board of Commissioners; and

WHEREAS, the consultant, AECOM, used gathered public input combined with previous studies and
environmental considerations to propose a draft of the Zebulon Community Park Site Specific Master Plan;
and

WHEREAS, the Parks & Recreation Advisory Board recommended adoption of the proposed Zebulon
Community Park Site Specific Master Plan by a unanimous vote at their October 20, 2025 meeting.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon hereby
adopts the Zebulon Community Park Site Specific Master Plan as recommended by the Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board.

Adopted this 3rd day of November 2025.

Glenn L. York — Mayor

SEAL

Dora Moore, MMC, NCCMC- Interim Town Clerk

73



TOWN OF ZEBULON

Zebulon Community Park
Master Plan




Adopted by Town Commission on
Month, Date, 2025

Town of Zebulon Parks and
Recreation Department
1003 N Arendell Ave
Zebulon. NC 27597

www.townofzebulon.org/

75

DRAFT




ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Mayor
Glenn L York

Town Commissioners
Jessica Harrison
Shannon Baxter
Amber Davis

Quentin Miles
Trenton Schmit

Interim Town Manager
Taiwo Jaiyeoba

Interim Town Clerk
Dora Moore

Town Attorney
Eric Vernon

Parks and Recreation Director
Sheila Long

Parks and Recreation Staff

Nick Rummage, Parks Superintendent
Amy Hayden, Recreation Superintendent

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board
Brandon Wiggins - Chair

Quinton Crosson-Taylor - Vice Chair
Garrett Underhill

Wendi Watson

Orlando Reyes

Dexter De’Andre Privette

Marcus Bennett



77

DRAFT




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Project Process and PUrpose «++++sssssssesssssssssusssusssnesnnes S
Site Context & Existing CONditions s++ssessessessessasssesaeans . 8
Preliminary Concept Development @t sssssesessssesennes «10
PUDIiC ENGagement ««++ssssssessesssesssesssesnisiiniinniinnsenns .14

Flnal Concept ......................................................... ° 16

Cost Estimates, Phasing & Benefit AnalySiS .................... D4

78 5



PROJECT PROCESS AND PURPOSE

PROJECT PURPOSE

Zebulon Community Park, the Town'’s largest and most
centrally located park, has long been recognized as a
cornerstone of community recreation and open space. The
park received substantial attention during the 2021 Parks
and Recreation Master Plan process, with further community
engagement conducted in 2023 to refine priorities and
highlight desired improvements. Together, these efforts
underscored the park’s critical role in meeting the needs of a
growing and diverse population while setting the stage for a
comprehensive reimagining of its future. Coupled with recent

land acquisitions that expand opportunities for recreation and

connectivity, the Town is now uniquely positioned to develop
a site-specific master plan that not only reflects community
aspirations but also establishes a clear framework for
implementation.

DRAFT

The purpose of this project is to prepare a master plan that
builds upon these earlier planning initiatives and sustained
public feedback, providing a vision for Zebulon Community
Park as a dynamic, inclusive, and sustainable recreational
destination. The plan is rooted in a robust planning process
that includes site analysis, conceptual design development,
and multiple opportunities for public engagement. Through
a combination of public workshops, an online survey, and
advisory board discussions, residents will play an active
role in shaping the plan’s recommendations, ensuring that
outcomes reflect the community’s shared values and priorities.
The process will also include budget-level cost estimates and
phasing strategies, giving the Town a practical and actionable
roadmap to guide future investments.

Zebulon Community Park Public Engagement event at Rock the Block on Horton Street

79



PROJECT PROCESS

The project process progressed in a linear and collaborative manner, beginning with an in-depth review of The preliminary concept, along with supporting precedent imagery, was presented to the public through a
previous planning documents, including the 2021 Parks and Recreation Master Plan and the 2023 community =~ community workshop and an online survey, providing multiple avenues for residents to share feedback and
engagement findings, along with site data provided by the Town. A site visit and physical inventory were validate priorities. Based on input received, the concept was refined and a Draft Master Plan was prepared,
conducted to document existing conditions, circulation patterns, natural features, and adjacent land uses. which included an illustrative plan, budget-level cost estimates, and phasing strategies. The process

This information, combined with community priorities identified through earlier engagement, served as the concluded with the preparation of a final Master Plan document consolidating all findings, concepts, and
foundation for developing a preliminary concept plan for Zebulon Community Park. The concept explored recommendations. The proposed concept plan and cost estimates, from the Master Plan report document,
opportunities for improved access and circulation, updated amenities, and expanded recreation within the were presented to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board for review and adoption, creating a clear,
park’s environmental and spatial context. actionable, and community-driven roadmap to guide the future design, funding, and implementation of

Zebulon Community Park.

PROJECT PROCESS DIAGRAM

Zebulon Community Park Master Plan Document

SITE ANALYSIS PUBLIC

AND DATA ENGAGEMENT
COLLECTION

PRELIMINARY DRAFT
CONCEPT MASTER PLAN

FINAL MASTER
PLAN FOR
ADOPTION




SITE CONTEXT AND EXISTING CONDITIONS

SITE CONTEXT
ADDRESS: 401S Arendell Ave, Zebulon, NC 27597
AREA: 53.4 ACRES

SITE CONTEXT

Zebulon Community Park, located at 401 South Arendell
Avenue, Zebulon, NC is the Town's largest and most centrally
located park. It is primarily surrounded by residential
neighborhoods, with nearby commercial services and schools,
and includes natural areas and small waterways that shape
the site’s character. This context positions the park as a
central recreational hub with opportunities for expanded
amenities, improved connectivity, and inclusive programming
for the community.

PARK CONNECTIVITY

Zebulon Community Park’s central location provides
convenient access for residents and visitors. The park is well-
connected to the surrounding community through pedestrian
pathways, including a walking trail that loops around the
park’s perimeter. The park is also located along future
greenway connections to Five-County Stadium and future
residential neighborhoods.

Additionally, the park’s proximity to major roadways such

as North Arendell Avenue and Gannon Avenue enhances
vehicular access. The surrounding residential neighborhoods
offer easy walking or biking access to the park, promoting
active transportation options for users. These features
collectively make Zebulon Community Park an accessible and
integral part of the Town'’s recreational infrastructure.

81

DRAFT

EXISTING CONDITIONS

The park spans 53.4 acres and serves as the town's largest
recreational area. The park features two multi-use athletic
fields, two outdoor basketball courts, two playgrounds, and
a picnic shelter. A 0.7-mile walking trail encircles the park,
providing accessible pedestrian circulation. An 18-hole disc
golf course offers recreational opportunities for enthusiasts.
Additional amenities include restrooms, drinking water
fountains, and pet-friendly areas. The park’s natural features,
such as wooded areas and small waterways, contribute to
its environmental character and influence site planning and
programming.

Zebulon Community Park Existing Site

Acreage: 53.4 acres

Existing Structures & Amenities:
Athletic Fields
Baskethall Courts
Disc Golf Course
Playgrounds (small playground and larger playground)
Walking trail
Picnic Shelter
Restrooms
Water Fountains
Wooded Areas and Small Waterways

Existing Utilities:
Water and Sewer Services
Electricity
Natural Gas
Internet and Cable




Zebulon Community Park - Existing Conditions

540 feet N
0 1?0 | 2{0 L l?!%é)feletﬁ\ | g0teet A

82 9



PRELIMINARY CONCEPT DEVELOPMENT

PRELIMINARY PROGRAM ELEMENTS

During the public engagement segment of the Zebulon Parks
and Recreation Master Plan project, Zebulon Community
Park was identified as a key community park for focused
improvements. The park received substantial feedback
through the 2021 Master Plan, follow-up engagement in 2023,
and input gathered from in-person workshops and online
surveys. Community members emphasized the importance
of the park as a central recreational asset and highlighted the
need for amenities that meet the evolving needs of residents.

The information obtained through prior engagement,
research, site analysis, and conversations with Town
staff provided the project team with a comprehensive
understanding of the existing conditions at Zebulon
Community Park and established a basis for identifying
preliminary program elements. These elements includes:

PRELIMINARY CONCEPT PLAN

The Preliminary Concept Plan for Zebulon Community

Park establishes an initial vision for the park’s future
development, drawing on previous planning efforts,
community engagement, site analysis, and input from Town
staff. The plan aims to balance the park’s natural features
with expanded recreational opportunities, ensuring that it
continues to serve as a central and accessible resource for the
growing community of Zebulon. Key goals include improving
connectivity, enhancing visitor experience, modernizing
facilities, and creating flexible spaces that accommodate a
variety of recreational and community uses.

The plan proposes significant expansions and enhancements,
including an enlarged community center, maintenance yard,
and maintenance building to support park operations and
programmatic needs. Recreational improvements feature
playground replacement and a small playground for young
children, a splash pad with a new restroom, relocated
basketball courts, and new pickleball courts. Sports facilities
are also emphasized, including full-size soccer fields, practice
and youth fields, an artificial turf baseball field with an
amphitheater, and relocation of existing baseball fields to
optimize layout and accessibility. Additional program elements
include a dog park, community garden, and natural areas that
support walking trails and disc golf.

The Town is also exploring a partnership to enter into a joint-use
agreement with East Wake Academy to build four new baseball
fields located west of the school's campus. This property will be
redeveloped into the new East Wake Academy School Park.

83

DRAFT

To improve access and circulation, the concept incorporates a
new access drive off Barbee Street and expanded parking to
accommodate visitors arriving by vehicle, bicycle, or on foot.
Multiple layout options were developed to explore different
configurations of amenities while maintaining environmental
and aesthetic features. Public engagement—including
workshops and online surveys—helped validate priorities,
assess preferences, and refine spatial organization. The
Preliminary Concept Plan provides a foundation for the Draft
Master Plan, offering guidance on phased implementation,
budget considerations, and strategies to ensure Zebulon
Community Park evolves as a dynamic, inclusive, and
sustainable recreational destination for all residents.

Zebulon Community Park Proposed Site

Acreage: 53.4 acres

Proposed Structures & Amenities:
Community Center Expansion
Expanded Maintenance Yard and Building
Community Garden
Baskethall Courts
Playground
Splash Pad
Restroom / Shelter
Small Playground
Pickleball Courts
Full-size Soccer Field
Practice / Flex Field
Artificial Turf Softball Field/ Amphitheater
Dog Park
Natural Areas with Walking Trails
Disc Golf
New Access Drive (off Barbee Street)
New Parking
Walkways




Zebulon Community Park - Preliminary Concept Plan - Option 1

Concept Key

Community Center Addition -
Approx. 40,000 SF

Expanded Maintenance Yard
Approx. 38,000 SF

Community Garden

Basketball Courts

Playground

Splash Pad

Restroom / Shelter

Small Playground
Pickleball Courts

Full-size Soccer Field

Practice / Flex Field
Softball / Amphitheater

Dog Park

Natural Areas / Disc Golf /
Trails

New Access Drive

Parking
(Approximately 506 Spaces)

®
©
FOOOO0OOOOOOHOOOOOO

0 270 540 feet N
[

|||I|||IA

84 11



DRAFT

Zebulon Community Park - Preliminary Concept Plan - Option 2

Concept Key

Community Center Addition -
Approx. 40,000 SF

Expanded Maintenance Yard
Approx. 38,000 SF

Community Garden

Basketball Courts

Playground

Splash Pad

Restroom / Shelter

Small Playground

Pickleball Courts

Full-size Soccer Field

Softball / Amphitheater

Dog Park

Natural Areas / Disc Golf /
Trails

New Access Drive

Parking
(Approximately 484 Spaces)

©
1O00000ON0OOOOOO

270 540 feet N

AT |







PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

OVERVIEW

The Zebulon Community Park Site-Specific Master Plan is built
upon recommendations from the 2021 Parks and Recreation
Master Plan and the 2023 “How We Play” follow-up effort.

The plan aims to provide the community an opportunity to
reimagine the Town'’s largest park, including considerations
for multipurpose athletic fields and potential relocation of
baseball diamonds.

Public engagement activities included a mix of in-person and
virtual opportunities to gather input on concept alternatives,
priorities, and design preferences. The project was launched
at the “Rock the Block” event on September 12, 2025,
followed by a public workshop at the Zebulon Community
Center on September 22, Additional outreach took place

at the Gill Street Cookout & Coat Drive Distribution on
September 25" and Outdoor Movie Night at Five County
Stadium on September 26%.

A Virtual Open House was also provided in English and
Spanish, allowing residents to share feedback online through
September 30, 2025. These engagement efforts helped the
project team refine preliminary concepts, inform the final
design, and establish priorities for amenities, circulation, and
site improvements to meet the evolving needs of the Zebulon
community.

PREVIOUS EFFORTS

Zebulon Community Park has been the focus of multiple
community engagement initiatives over the past several years,
beginning with the 2021 Parks and Recreation Master Plan,
which collected broad input on the Town's recreational needs,
priorities, and desired improvements. Following this, the “How
We Play” engagement in 2023 further refined community
preferences specifically for Zebulon Community Park,
providing more detailed insight into amenities, programming,
and site improvements.

87

DRAFT

These prior efforts included a combination of surveys, public
workshops, and advisory board discussions, allowing residents
to provide feedback on park facilities, circulation, accessibility,
and recreational priorities. The engagement highlighted
community interest in modernized amenities, multipurpose
athletic fields, and spaces that serve diverse age groups

and abilities. Input from these initiatives directly informed
preliminary planning concepts, including considerations for
playgrounds, sports fields, community gardens, natural areas,
and other site improvements.

The information gathered through these efforts established a
strong foundation for the current site-specific master planning
process, ensuring that future design decisions are grounded
in the community’s expressed needs and preferences. This
history of engagement reflects the Town’s commitment to
responsive, community-driven planning and positions Zebulon
Community Park to evolve in a way that meets both current
and future demands.

+ Create a central hub for community identity and
gathering

+ Provide more opportunities for active recreation (fields,
courts, sports facilities)

+ Enhance family-oriented play areas for all age groups

+ Support health and wellness through walking trails and
fitness focused amenities

« Ensure accessibility and inclusivity across facilities and
programs

* Preserve and highlight natural areas within the park

* Plan for community growth and flexibility in
programming and design



PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT OPPORTUNITIES
PROJECT KICKOFF

Due to the timing of the Zebulon Community Park Master Plan effort,
the Town was able to connect with residents at a variety of well-
attended community events throughout September 2025. The first
opportunity occurred during Rock the Block on Horton Street on
September 12, where the project was introduced to the public. The
event, which drew a large and diverse crowd, provided an ideal setting
for raising awareness, sharing information about the project’s purpose
and process, and beginning to collect feedback from community
members.

IN-PERSON WORKSHOPS

Following the project kickoff, the project team presented the public
engagement material at a series of in- workshops which helped reach a
wider group of community members and yielded additional comments
and feedback. An in-person workshop was held on September 22" at
the Zebulon Community Center. The Project Boards were also left up
at the Community Center for three days, allowing visitors to view the
project materials and provide feedback. At these sessions, residents
were able to review project materials, ask questions, and share their
ideas directly with staff. The preliminary concept plan materials were
presented on September 25 at the Gill Street Park Cookout event, and
on September 26" during the Outdoor Movie Night event at Five County
Stadium.

Advisory Board Meeting Project Kickoff at Rock the Block - September 2025

88

Common themes gathered from comment boards are listed below:

Accessible and inclusive amenities and programs
Pool or splash pad

Restrooms/ shelters that are easily accessible from
different parts of the park

Security lighting illuminating all park amenities and
walkways

Additional basketball courts

Pickleball courts

In-Person Workshop - Outdoor Movie Night

15



PROJECT WEBSITE

In order to provide on-demand access for all members of the public to the project materials, the Zebulon
Community Park Master Plan utilized an online platform as a “one-stop-shop” for information about the
plan. This platform was run through Publicinput.com and utilized the URL, www.publicinput.com/ZCP as the
landing page for all online engagement. The platform served as the access point for project information and
updates, as well as the Virtual Open House. The landing page also included information intended to help the
public understand why their feedback is important, and how the results of this plan can impact the future of
their parks and recreation services. Extensive outreach was conducted to encourage access to this platform,
as well as provide input opportunities for those who may have difficulty attending in-person engagement
workshops.

VIRTUAL OPEN HOUSE

Feedback from Town of Zebulon residents is integral to the Zebulon Community Park Master Planning
process. Community members were invited to visit a Virtual Open House and provide feedback on the
needs and priorities for parks and recreation facilities and services for the nature-based park. Once in the
Virtual Open House, participants could view information boards, and participate in a series of engagement
exercises to provide input. The Virtual Open House remained accessible at any time online from September
12 to September 30™, to provide an opportunity for the community to provide input about the Master Plan
priorities.

Comments on the Zebulon Community Park Concept Plan

The following is a summary of the comments provided on the preliminary Zebulon Community Park Concept
Plan:

+ Need for a community pool

*  Need for dedicated soccer fields

*  Preserve the disc golf course

+ Shaded picnic areas, seating areas, and walkways
*  More pickleball courts

+ Need for restrooms

+ Asplash pad/ water play element

+ Retain the existing walking trail and add more

* Need an additional entrance to the park

16 89

DRAFT

VISUAL 1 99

PREFERENCE BY In-Person
THE NUMBERS Participants

Online Participants

Selections Made

Event Workshop Participation Tally




General Comments on the Zebulon Community Park Master Plan

Participants were also provided an additional opportunity to provide
general comments about the project. The following is a summary of the
general comments provided.

* Looking forward to seeing the plan move forward and enjoying
the park

Make park amenities and elements accessible and inclusive

Addition of park programs such as after school programs,
daycare, and Basic Life Support programs.

Partnership with non-profits for the community garden.

The plan needs to be implemented fast to meet the needs of the
growing Zebulon community

Precedent Image Ranking Exercise

In addition to opportunities to provide open ended comments,
participants in the Virtual Open House were also able to view the same
series of precedent images included in the in-person meetings. In lieu
of a green dot exercise, participants were asked to rank the images in
each category. A summary of these results is included in the summary
on the following pages.

Project Kickoff at Rock the Block - September 2025

90




DRAFT

PREFERRED CUNCEPT RESUI.TS = NEW SITE Rock the Block Selections Advisory Board Selections . Pop-ups Selections Online Selections

50

56

52

164

2 Project Kickoff at Rock the Block - September 2025

24

33

Feedback Received at In-Person Workshops

18 o1



DRAFT

VISUAL PREFERENCE RESULTS - TOP CHOICES PER CATEGORY

. Rock the Block Selections Advisory Board Selections ‘ Pop-ups Selections Online Ranking
COMMUNITY CENTER PICKLEBALL
1 @ L L JE ® (b ® L L JE u
2 0 5 1 6 0
® ® ® ® ® ®
59 9 26 25 39 45
#1 #3 #2 #3 #1 #2
SPLASH PAD DISC GOLF
! oL oL ® |t ® L oL @
5 2 0 2 1 1
® ® ® ® ® ®
85 43 8 33 18 13
#1 #2 #3 #2 #1 #3
PLAYGROUND BASKETBALL
1 ® L @ G @ |L ® L L JE @
0 0 7 2 1 3
® ) @ @ ® ®
31 20 90 47 8 29
#2 #3 #1 #1 #3 #2
DOG PARK COMMUNITY GARDEN
! oL oL ® |t ® L oL K3
0 4 2 5 0 0
® ® ® ® ® ®
13 68 13 51 16 34
#3 #1 #2 #2 #3 #1




DRAFT

VISUAL PREFERENCE RESULTS - TOP CHOICES PER CATEGORY VISUAL PREFERENCE RESULTS - PRIORITY PARK AMENITIES (TOP 3)
Rock the Block Selections Advisory Board Selections . Pop-ups Selections Online Ranking Rock the Block Selections Advisory Board Selections . Pop-ups Selections Online Selections
COMMUNITY AMPHITHEATER WI-FI CONNECTIVITY LIGHTING
1 3 2 43 |3 1 19 24
1 5 0 3 4
7 40 5 17 29
o 3 6 16 2
#2 #1 #3 ? ?
RESTROOMS PUBLIC ART SHADE STRUCTURES
1 31 2 10 3 7 29 26
4 1 0 > 3
26 16 12 30 27
7 ? T 4 44
#3 #2 #1 6 100
WALKING TRAILS SIGNAGE SEATING AREAS
1 10 2 12 13 29 4 18
1 1 3 1 3
6 1 33 1 28
2 - 3 4 2
#3 #2 #1 20 &3
SOCCER FIELDS BIKE RACKS ENVIRONMENTAL FEATURES
1 31 - 4 3 5 7 18
5 1 0 0 0
27 13 3 11 20
e K3 s : 7
#3 #2 #1 9 oy



DRAFT

VISUAL PREFERENCE RESULTS - PRIORITY PARK PROGRAMS (TOP 3)

. Rock the Block Selections ‘ Advisory Board Selections . Pop-ups Selections . Online Selections
SUMMER CAMPS AFTER SCHOOL PROGRAMS TEEN PROGRAMS

0
o
w
| DD

PRESCHOOL AND EARLY
ACTIVE ADULT PROGRAMS CHILDHOOD PROGRAMS INDOOR SPORTS

| 9D
o
w
N
U
JEC N

FITNESS PROGRAMS ART PROGRAMS SPECIAL EVENTS

COOKING AND
NUTRITION PROGRAMS MUSICAL PROGRAMS COMPUTER ACCESS

43 38 29

Project Kickoff at Rock the Block - September 2025

94 21



FINAL CONCEPT

FINAL CONCEPT

Once the Public Engagement was completed, the project
team summarized all written comments, the results from
the precedent image exercises, and any notes taken during
conversations with stakeholders and public participants. Input
received was analyzed to determine the alignment of the
public's needs and priorities with the ideas presented in the
preliminary concept. The input received through the multiple
avenues of engagement validated the design elements
presented in the preliminary concepts, provided direction
for additional improvements to be included, and helped

to visualize the intent of the design elements through the
precedent image exercises.

The final concept plan, which is a refinement of the
Option 1 preliminary concept plan, contains the following
programmatic and design elements for the park site:

+ Expanding the existing community center to
approximately 40,000 SF

+ Expanding the existing maintenance yard and building
to approximately 38,000 SF

+ Develop a new access to the park off of East Barbee
Street

«  Security lighting features illuminating the major park
elements such as the parking lots, playgrounds, sports
courts, sports fields and walkways

« A centrally located multi-purpose softball field
and amphitheater facility with seating spaces and
performance stage

* Inclusive and accessible playgrounds - one larger,
centrally located playground and another smaller
playground located closer to the athletic fields

*  Anew splash pad

+ Restrooms/ shelters in close access to all major park
amenities

+ Addition of three full-sized soccer parks and one
practice/ flex field

95

DRAFT

Addition of sports courts such as two basketball courts
and six pickleball courts

Multiple new parking lots that provide easy access to
various park amenities providing around 561 parking
spaces.

Retaining and enhancing the naturalized, wooded
portion of the park with the existing disc golf course
and addition of unpaved walking trails

Improved and expanded walking trail network with a
mix of paved pathways and unpaved trails

Addition of a new community garden

Stormwater improvements throughout the park



FINAL CONCEPT PLAN - ZEBULON COMMUNITY PARK

Concept Key

Community Center Addition -
Approx. 40,000 SF

Expanded Maintenance Yard and
Building - Approx. 38,000 SF

Community Garden
Basketball Courts (2)
Playground

Splash Pad

Restroom / Shelter
Small Playground
Pickleball Courts (6)
Full-size Soccer Fields (3)

Practice/ Flex Field

Softball / Amphitheater

Stage & Drop-off Area

Dog Park

Natural Areas / Disc Golf /
Trails

Small Picnic Shelter (4) b B, it . W > ' T ="

PPOOOOOOOHOHOOOO® O

New Access Drive

s a e

Parking
(Approximately 561 Spaces)

#/Spaces

Legend

270
1 1 |

— — — Property Line : e SR Nz _ |
- Utility Line R e T R TS iR B e o Re ks 1 inch equals 270 feet




COST ESTIMATE, PHASING &
BENEFITS ANALYSIS

INTRODUCTION

The next step in the master planning process is to establish
clear implementation strategies and priorities for the
advancement of the community-driven concept for the
expansion and development of Zebulon Community Park.
This involves developing estimates of probable cost for the
proposed improvements at park site, and then aligning
community priorities with available funding to establish an
achievable phasing plan.

ESTIMATE OF PROBABLE COST
COST CONSIDERATIONS

The estimate of probable cost associated with the Zebulon
Community Park Master Plan is based on current market
trends, similar projects, and project-specific research
conducted by the project team. The project team utilized all
of its available resources and technical expertise to provide
order-of-magnitude cost estimates that are for planning
purposes only.

The concept for the park site may be modified over time in
response to actual costs, future Town objectives, and available
funding sources. Additionally, it is recommended that
proposed improvements undergo a detailed feasibility and
cost analysis prior to physical implementation.

COST ESTIMATES

The table on the following page details the overall estimate of
probable cost for the park Site, including direct construction
costs, indirect costs associated with construction, contingency,
design, permitting, and construction administration/
construction management.

97

DRAFT

Estimate of Probable Cost

$45,624,308




ZEBULON COMMUNITY PARK IMPROVEMENTS

DRAFT

e O U d d <
Order o ag de ate of Probable Cap proveme 0
. Total Direct Total Flex Field (1)
Total Direct .
. . . Costs with Development Sod SY 8270 $6 $49,620 $86,129 $99,049
Unit Quantity Unit Cost Costs —
Markups Cost Lighting Allowance 1 $150,000 $150,000 $260,367 $299,422
Zebulon Community Park Improvements Equipment (Bleachers, goals) Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Subtotal: $249,620 $433,286 $498,279

Site Work
Site Clearing Acre 28 $15,000 $420,000 $729,028 $838,382 Amphitheater
Site Grading and Balancing Acre 28 $25,000 $700,000 $1,215,047 $1,397,304 Seating Allowance 1 $100,000 $100,000 $173,578 $199,615
Demolition Allowas 1 $150,000 $150,000 $260,367 $299,422 Stage Allowance 1 $250,000 $250,000 $433,945 $499,037
Er0§lon Control (Fences, DIYeI'SIOHS, tree protection Allowance 1 $400,000 $400,000 $694.313 $798.459 Atrtificial Turf Softball Field SF 40000 $21 $840,000 $1,458,056 $1,676,765
barrier, temporary construction entrance) Subtotal: $1,190,000 $2,065,580 $2,375,417

Subtotal: $1,670,000 $2,898,755 $3,333,568
Park Elements
Utilities i i
Playground - 12,500 SF (Play Equipment, Surfacing,
Sanitary Service Supply Allowance 1 $150,000 $150,000 $260,367 $209,422 Shade, Curb) Allowance ! $500,000 UG DY PR EEEA
Water Service Supply Allowance 1 $150,000 $150,000 $260,367 $299,422 Small Pla R ;
yground - 1,500 SF (Play Equipment,
Electrical Service Supply Allowance 1 $200,000 $200,000 $347,156 $399,230 Surfacing, Shade, Curb) Allowance L $150,000 $150,000 $260,307 9299422
Stormwater Treatment Areas Allowance 1 $100,000 $100,000 $173,578 $199,615 S ; ;
) g g g plash Pad - 2,500 SF (Equipment, Surfacing, Pump
Subtotal: $600,000 $1,041,469 $1,197,689 room) Allowance 1 $500,000 $500,000 $867,891 $998,074
Building and Structures ?;,ft’l.‘sg)’a” Courts (surfacing, fencing, equipment, court | ,\vance 1 $200,000 $200,000 $347,156 $399,230
Community Center Expansion SF 40000 $220 $8,800,000 $15,274,875 $17,566,106 : - - -
Pickleball Courts (surfacing, fencing, equipment, court
Soccer Restroom/Concessions (3500 SF) SF 3500 $150 $525,000 $911,285 $1,047,978 lighting) Allowance 1 $500,000 $500,000 $867,891 $998,074
Splash Pad Restroom (2000 SF) SF 2000 $150 $300,000 $520,734 $598,845 Disc Golf (equipment, clearing) Allowance 1 $100,000 $100,000 $173,578 $199,615
Small Shelter (20x20) Each 4 $40,000 $160,000 $277,725 $319,384 Dog Park (sod, fencing, water fountain, seating, entry
Maintenance Yard Expansion SF 38000 $10 $380,000 $659,597 $758,536 gate) ' ' ' ' Allowance 1 $200,000 $200,000 $347,156 $399,230
New Maintenance Building SF 7100 $150 $1,065,000 $1,848,607 $2,125,898 Security Lighting Allowance 1 $225.000 $225.000 $390,551 $449.133
Subtotal: $11,230,000 $19,492,823 $22,416,747 Signage Allowance (Educational Signage, Wayfinding) | _Allowance 1 $100,000 $100,000 $173,578 $199,615
Amenity Upgrade Allowance (Benches, Picnic Tables,

Hardscape T é’ecgz aclos. Water Fo(un tains) Allowance 1 $100,000 $100,000 $173,578 $199,615
Paved Parking and Drop-off (Asphalt Pavement, sy 22300 $130 $2,899,000 $5,032,030 $5,786,834 Subtotal: $2,575,000 $4,469,637 $5,140,082
Subgrade, Base, Parking Bumpers, Signs, Striping)

Driveway (26' Wide, Asphalt Surface, Subsurface Base) sY 9100 $75 $682,500 $1,184,671 $1,362,371 Total Direct Costs $22,856,170

Paved Pathway (67 8' Wide, Concrete Surface, Base,

Topsoil) LF 11800 $50 HEEG T TR SR Mobilization and General Conditions 15.0% $3,428,426

Concr‘ete Pads (playground area, pavilions,restrooms, sy 1200 $55 $66,000 $114.562 $131,746 Subtotal $26,284,596

amphitheater stage area) $1.314,230

0,
Subtotal: $4,237,500 $7,355,373 $8,458,679 Bonds, Insurance 005 ki

Subtotal $27,598,825

Landscape Contractor Fees (Profit, Overhead, Expenses) 15.0% $4,139,824
Community Garden - 5,000 SF sy 1625 $50 $81,250 $141,032 $162,187 N $31,738,649
Landscape Allowance Allowance 1 $100,000 $100,000 $173,578 $199,615 $7.934,662

1 0,
Irmigation Allowance Allowance 1 $150,000 $150,000 $260,367 $299,422 Contingency 25.0% i
Subtotal: $331,250 $574,978 $661,224
Total Construction Costs $39,673,311 |
Full Size Soccer Fields (3)
Sod sy 9600 $6 $57,600 $99,981 $114,978 : — [ ssos0007
Lighting Allowance 1 $150,000 $150,000 $260,367 $299,422 Design. Permitting, and CA/CM Fees 15.0% s
Equipment (Bleachers, goals) Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Subtotal: $257,600 $447,137 $514,208 Total Cost for Zebulon Community Park Improvements | $45,624,308
Total for 3 Fields: $772,800 $1,341,412 $1,542,624

98



PHASING

After the completion of the cost estimates, the project team met with
Town staff to discuss the implementation and phasing strategies for
Zebulon Community Park. Discussions with Town Staff resulted in the
development of five phases for the implementation of the concept
plan, with each phase seeking to provide meaningful improvements
while laying the foundation and building momentum for future
phases. The phases are intended to utilize current and future funding
and be implemented as this funding becomes available. Phase 1 will
be initiated upon completion of this Master Plan Study, and provide
infrastructure improvements that activate new areas of the park for
a wide variety of users, expand programmable areas of the park, and
help set the stage for further improvements.

PHASE 1COMPONENTS:

+  Soccer fields
* Practice/ Flex Field
Soccer parking - 193 spaces
+ Sidewalks to soccer fields
+ Entrance drive
Paved pathway along entrance drive
« Small Playground

* Disc Golf relocation

PHASE 2 COMPONENTS:
+ Soccer field lighting
+ Softball/ Amphitheater
+ Amphitheater parking - 124 spaces
+ Restroom/concessions at soccer complex
+  Pickleball
+ Dog Park
+ Pickleball/Dog Park parking - 66 spaces

+ Pathways connections pickleball and dog park

26

PHASE 3 COMPONENTS:

+ Large playground replacement
Splash pad

+ Basketball courts

+  Community garden
Playground parking lot - 30 spaces

* Perimeter trail (Future greenway connection will be completed
through a separate projects as part of the Greenways Plan)

PHASE 4 COMPONENTS:
+ Planning, design, and permitting for Community Center
expansion

* Maintenance yard and building expansion

+ Remaining Park amenities

PHASE 5 COMPONENTS:

+  Community Center construction

+  Community Center parking - 151 spaces

FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES

The funding analysis from the 2021 Play Zebulon Master Plan
highlighted a 10-year schedule of projected funding that could be
utilized to advance capital projects, including Zebulon Community
Park. The Town of Zebulon has several funding sources available that
can be utilized for implementation, many of which can be phased or
even enhanced for additional funding opportunities to help address
economic fluctuations and changing Town priorities over time.

99

DRAFT

Through the analysis of available sources, projections of funding
options and recommendations are as follows:

* General Fund Revenues - As a result of the 2021 Plan, the
department initiated its first dedicated CIP, for Parks and
Recreation projects, which has helped direct much needed
funding toward improvements across the system. With continued
population growth projected for the Town, this figure will likely
increase each year, especially in the long-term implementation
phases of park projects.

+ Grants - The funding analysis from the 2021 Plan identified over
a dozen grant opportunities annually. New grants have since
been implemented at the State and County level, furthering
the department’s potential to increase funds available for park
improvements.

+ Parks and Recreation Impact Fees - Impact fees assign growth-
related capital costs to those new residents responsible for such
costs. The Town of Zebulon has recognized this capital funding
strategy as an appropriate method for funding the increased capital
requirements resulting from growth. Implemented in 2021, the
Parks and Recreation Impact Fee has helped supplement the Capital
Improvement Budget for upcoming parks and recreation projects.
Funding from this fee is expected to increase as the Town continues
to grow.

+ Tax Revenue - The department currently has access to funds
generated from a 1/2-cent tax for walkability improvements, which
could included access improvements, sidewalks, signage, and
greenways.

+ Bond/Borrowing - As a funding source, general obligation bonds
have historically received support from municipalities in Wake
County. While Zebulon has made it a practice to fund most park
capital outlay from current operating budgets rather than through
long-term financing, debt financing may prove to be the most cost-
effective means of future funding for major park infrastructure
improvements. A potential option to consider is utilizing projected
funding through CIP, grants, taxes and impact fees to fund the
first phases of park projects, while utilizing a bond to fund the
proposed improvements that fall within the later phases. It is
recommended that the Town explore the feasibility of a bond
through additional public engagement and financial analysis.



Phasing Legend

i . Phase 1 Site
S Improvements

Phase 1 Circulation
Improvements

100

PHASE 1

DRAFT

. Total Direct Total
Zebulon Community Park Improvements Phase 1 Total Direct Costs with Development
Quantity Unit Cost Costs Markups Cost
Site Work
Site Clearing Acre 15 $15,000 $225,000 $390,551 $449,133
Site Grading and Balancing Acre 15 $25,000 $375,000 $650,918 $748,556
Demolition Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
EZ?Z:Ze?OHUOI (Fences, Diversions, tree protection barrier, temporary construction Allowance 1 $150,000 $150,000 $260,367 $299.422
Subtotal: $775,000 $1,345,230 $1,547,015
Utilities
Stormwater Treatment Areas Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
I $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Hardscape
};i:;z;arking and Drop-off (Asphalt Pavement, Subgrade, Base, Parking Bumpers, Signs, sy 7762 $130 $1,009,060 $1,751,507 $2,014,234
Driveway (26' Wide, Asphalt Surface, Subsurface Base) SY 6300 $75 $472,500 $820,157 $943,180
Paved Pathway (67 8' Wide, Concrete Surface, Base, Topsoil) LF 3800 $50 $190,000 $329,798 $379,268
$1,671,560 $2,901,463 $3,336,682
Landscape
Irrigation Allowance Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Subtotal: $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Full Size Soccer Fields (3)
Sod SY 9600 $6 $57,600 $99,981 $114,978
Equipment (Bleachers, goals) Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
I $107,600 $186,770 $214,786
Total for 3 Fields: $322,800 $560,310 $644,357
Flex Field (1)
Sod SY 8270 $6 $49,620 $86,129 $99,049
Equipment (Bleachers, goals) Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Subtotal: $99,620 $172,919 $198,856
Park Elements
Small Playground - 1,500 SF (Play Equipment, Surfacing, Shade, Curb) Allowance 1 $150,000 $150,000 $260,367 $299,422
Disc Golf (equipment, clearing) Allowance 1 $100,000 $100,000 $173,578 $199,615
Subtotal: $250,000 $433,945 $499,037
Total Direct Costs $3,218,980
Mobilization and General Conditions 15.0% $482,847
Subtotal $3,701,827
Bonds, Insurance 5.0% $185,091
Subtotal $3,886,918
Contractor Fees (Profit, Overhead, Expenses) 15.0% $583,038
Subtotal $4,469,956
Contingency 25.0% $1,117,489
Total Construction Costs $5,587,445 |
Design. Permitting, and CA/CM Fees 15.0% | $838,117

Total Cost for Zebulon Community Park Phase 1 Improvements $6,425,562

27



DRAFT

Phasing Legend PHASE 2

. o Total Direct Total
- Phase 2 Site Zbulon Community Park Improvements Phase 2 Total Diract ol T eV e
| . .
Improvements i Quantity  Unit Cost Costs Markups Cost
Site Work
Phase 2 Clrculatlon I Site Clearing Acre 5 $15,000 $75,000 $130,184 $149,711
CE—— Site Grading and Balancing Acre 5 $25,000 $125,000 $216,973 $249,519
Im proveme nts A : Demolition Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
4 frrit;rs;zze(;ontrol (Fences, Diversions, tree protection barrier, temporary construction Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
$275,000 $477,340 $548,941
Utilities
Sanitary Service Supply Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Water Service Supply Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Electrical Service Supply Allowance 1 $100,000 $100,000 $173,578 $199,615
$150,000 $260,367 $299,422
Building and Structures
Soccer Restroom/Concessions (3500 SF) SF 3500 $150 $525,000 $911,285 $1,047,978
Subtotal: $525,000 $911,285 $1,047,978
Hardscape
g.tar;)eig s;’arkmg and Drop-off (Asphalt Pavement, Subgrade, Base, Parking Bumpers, Signs, sy 6450 $130 $838,500 $1,455 453 $1,673,770
Driveway (26' Wide, Asphalt Surface, Subsurface Base) sY 1400 $75 $105,000 $182,257 $209,596
Paved Pathway (67 8' Wide, Concrete Surface, Base, Topsoil) LF 1400 $50 $70,000 $121,505 $139,730
Concrete Pads (playground area, pavilions,restrooms, amphitheater stage area) SY 600 $55 $33,000 $57,281 $65,873
b I $1,046,500 $1,816,495 $2,088,969
Landscape
Landscape Allowance Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Irrigation Allowance Allowance 1 $10,000 $10,000 $17,358 $19,961
Subtotal: $35,000 $60,752 $69,865
Full Size Soccer Fields (3)
Lighting Allowance 1 $150,000 $150,000 $260,367 $299,422
$150,000 $260,367 $299,422
Total for 3 Fields: $450,000 $781,102 $898,267
Flex Field (1)
Lighting Allowance 1 $150,000 $150,000 $260,367 $299,422
Subtotal: $150,000 $260,367 $299,422
Amphitheater
Seating Allowance 1 $100,000 $100,000 $173,578 $199,615
Stage Allowance 1 $250,000 $250,000 $433,945 $499,037
Artificial Turf Softball Field SF 40000 $21 $840,000 $1,458,056 $1,676,765
Subtotal: $1,190,000 $2,065,580 $2,375,417
Park Elements
Pickleball Courts (surfacing, fencing, equipment, court lighting) Allowance 1 $500,000 $500,000 $867,891 $998,074
Dog Park (sod, fencing, water fountain, seating, entry gate) Allowance 1 $200,000 $200,000 $347,156 $399,230
Security Lighting Allowance 1 $100,000 $100,000 $173,578 $199,615
Signage Allowance (Educational Signage, Wayfinding) Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Amenity Upgrade Allowance (Benches, Picnic Tables, Trash Receptacles, Water Fountains) Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
b I $875,000 $1,518,809 $1,746,630
Total Direct Costs $4,696,500
Mobilization and General Conditions 15.0% $704,475
Subtotal $5,400,975
Bonds, Insurance 5.0% $270,049
Subtotal $5,671,024
Contractor Fees (Profit, Overhead, Expenses) 15.0% $850,654
Subtotal $6,521,677
Estimate of Probable Cost for Ph 2-%8,374,811 — —
stimate OotT Fropapile Cost 10r ase , ,
Total Construction Costs | $8,152,097 |
Phase 2 includes athletic field lighting, baseball field and amphitheater facilities, soccer restroom/concessions,
1 1 1 1+i H Design. Permitting, and CA/CM F 15.0% $1,222,814
pickleball courts, a dog park, trails connecting the new amenities, and associated hardscape and landscape. osign. Permitting, an o5 |

Total Cost for Zebulon Community Park Phase 2 Improvements $9,374,911

28 101



DRAFT

PHASE 3

Phasing Legend

N Total Direct Total
H Phase 3 Site ZevulonlCommunityfaariimprovementelhasels Total Direct Costs with Development
|mprovements Quantity Unit Cost Costs Markups Cost
Site Work
. . Site Clearing Acre 4.5 $15,000 $67,500 $117,165 $134,740
G P h ase 3 CI rcu Iat ion Site Grading and Balancing Acre 4.5 $25,000 $112,500 $195,275 $224,567
Im p rovements Demolition Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Z(t)rs;ize())ontml (Fences, Diversions, tree protection barrier, temporary construction Allowance 1 $100,000 $100,000 $173.578 $199.615
Subtotal: $305,000 $529,413 $608,825
Utilities
Sanitary Service Supply Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Water Service Supply Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Electrical Service Supply Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Stormwater Treatment Areas Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Subtotal: $175,000 $303,762 $349,326
Building and Structures
Splash Pad Restroom (2000 SF) SF 2000 $150 $300,000 $520,734 $598,845
Small Shelter (20x20) Each 4 $40,000 $160,000 $277,725 $319,384
Subtotal: $460,000 $798,459 $918,228
Hardscape
.‘;a”‘_/peiggF)’arkmg and Drop-off (Asphalt Pavement, Subgrade, Base, Parking Bumpers, Signs, sy 1100 $130 $143,000 $248.217 $285.449
Paved Pathway (67 8' Wide, Concrete Surface, Base, Topsoil) LF 6120 $50 $306,000 $531,149 $610,821
Concrete Pads (playground area, pavilions,restrooms, amphitheater stage area) Sy 400 $55 $22,000 $38,187 $43,915
Subtotal: $471,000 $817,553 $940,186
Landscape
Community Garden - 5,000 SF SY 1625 $50 $81,250 $141,032 $162,187
Landscape Allowance Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Irrigation Allowance Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Subtotal: $131,250 $227,821 $261,994
Park Elements
Playground - 12,500 SF (Play Equipment, Surfacing, Shade, Curb) Allowance 1 $500,000 $500,000 $867,891 $998,074
Splash Pad - 2,500 SF (Equipment, Surfacing, Pump room) Allowance 1 $500,000 $500,000 $867,891 $998,074
Basketball Courts (surfacing, fencing, equipment, court lighting) Allowance 1 $200,000 $200,000 $347,156 $399,230
Security Lighting Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Signage Allowance (Educational Signage, Wayfinding) Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Amenity Upgrade Allowance (Benches, Picnic Tables, Trash Receptacles, Water Fountains) Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
$1,300,000 $2,256,516 $2,594,993
Total Direct Costs $2,842,250
Mobilization and General Conditions 15.0% $426,338
Subtotal $3,268,588
Bonds, Insurance 5.0% $163,429
Subtotal $3,432,017
Contractor Fees (Profit, Overhead, Expenses) 15.0% $514,803
Subtotal $3,946,819
Contingency 25.0% $986,705
e ————m
Total Construction Costs $4,933,524 |
% Design. Permitting, and CA/CM Fees 15.0% | $740,029

Total Cost for Zebulon Community Park Phase 3 Improvements $5,673,553

Estimate of Probable Cost for Phase 3 - $5,673,553

Phase 3 includes the large playground, splash pad and associated restroom/shelter, community garden,
basketball courts, perimeter walking trail, and associated hardscape and landscape.

102 29



Phasing Legend e

Phase 4 Site
Improvements

Phase 4 Circulation
Improvements

=D
@

i

Fa
W&

W

Estimate of Probable Cost for Phase 4 - $9,760,667

Phase 4 includes the expansion of the maintenance yard and building, and associated hardscape and
landscape. Phase 4 also includes the planning, design and permitting for the Community Center expansion.

30 103

PHASE 4

Zebulon Community Park Improvements Phase 4

DRAFT

Total Direct Total

Total Direct Costs with Development

Quantity Unit Cost Costs Markups Cost
Site Work
Site Clearing Acre 1.5 $15,000 $22,500 $39,055 $44,913
Site Grading and Balancing Acre 1.5 $25,000 $37,500 $65,092 $74,856
Demolition Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Erosion Control (Fences, Diversions, tree protection barrier, temporary construction Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
entrance)
Utilities
Sanitary Service Supply Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Water Service Supply Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Electrical Service Supply Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Building and Structures
Community Center Expansion - Planning, Design and Permitting IS 1 $3,000,000 $3,000,000 $5,207,344 $5,988,445
Maintenance Yard Expansion SF 38000 $10 $380,000 $659,597 $758,536
New Maintenance Building SF 7100 $150 $1,065,000 $1,848,607 $2,125,898
Subtotal: [ sassoo0 | sr7issas | sesrass0 |
Hardscape
Driveway (26' Wide, Asphalt Surface, Subsurface Base) SY 1400 $75 $105,000 $182,257 $209,596
Paved Pathway (67 8' Wide, Concrete Surface, Base, Topsoil) LF 375 $50 $18,750 $32,546 $37,428
Concrete Pads (playground area, pavilions,restrooms, amphitheater stage area) SY 200 $55 $11,000 $19,094 $21,958
Park Elements
Security Lighting Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Amenity Upgrade Allowance (Benches, Picnic Tables, Trash R les, Water Fountail Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807
Subtotal:

Total Cost for Zebulon Community Park Phase 4 Improvements

$9,760,667



Phasing Legend
- Phase 5 Site
Improvements

Phase 5 Circulation
Improvements

Estimate of Probable Cost for Phase 5 - $14,389,615

Phase 5 includes construction of the Community Center expansion, parking lot, and associated hardscape and

landscape.

104

DRAFT

PHASE 5

. Total Direct Total
Zebulon Community Park Improvements Phase 5 Total Direct Costs with Development
Quantity Unit Cost Costs Markups Cost

Site Work

Site Clearing Acre 2 $15,000 $30,000 $52,073 $59,884

Site Grading and Balancing Acre 2 $25,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807

Demolition Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904

Erosion Control (Fences, Diversions, tree protection barrier, temporary construction Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807

entrance)
Utilities

Sanitary Service Supply Allowance 1 $75,000 $75,000 $130,184 $149,711

Water Service Supply Allowance 1 $50,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807

Electrical Service Supply Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904
Building and Structures

C ity Center Expansion Construction IS 1 $5,800,000 $5,800,000 $10,067,531 $11,577,661
Hardscape

g}a’:;?ei;d, gl;‘arkmg and Drop-off (Asphalt Pavement, Subgrade, Base, Parking Bumpers, Signs, sy 6988 $130 $908,440 $1,576,853 $1,813,381

Paved Pathway (67 8' Wide, Concrete Surface, Base, Topsoil) LF 105 $50 $5,250 $9,113 $10,480
Landscape

Landscape Allowance Allowance 1 $100,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807

Irrigation Allowance Allowance 1 $65,000 $65,000 $112,826 $129,750
Park Elements

Security Lighting Allowance 1 $225,000 $50,000 $86,789 $99,807

Signage Allowance (Educational Signage, Wayfinding) Allowance 1 $25,000 $25,000 $43,395 $49,904

Subtotal:

$14,389,615

Total Cost for Zebulon Community Park Phase 5 Improvements

31




Concept Key

FOOOOOOOOOOHOODOOOO O

Community Center Addition -

Approx. 40,000 SF

Expanded Maintenance Yard and

Building - Approx. 38,000 SF

Community Garden
Basketball Courts (2)
Playground

Splash Pad

Restroom / Shelter
Small Playground
Pickleball Courts (6)
Full-size Soccer Fields (3)

Practice/ Flex Field

Softball / Amphitheater

Stage

Dog Park

Natural Areas / Disc Golf /
Trails

Small Picnic Shelter (4)

New Access Drive

Parking
(Approximately 561 Spaces)
Legend
— — — Property Line
ceee Utility Line
32

Phasing Legend

..................

i i Phase 1 Site
feiit Improvements

Phase 1 Circulation
Improvements

- Phase 2 Site
Improvements
CE———

Phase 2 Circulation
Improvements

Phase 3 Circulation
Improvements

- Phase 3 Site
Improvements
N

: : Phase 4 Site
N Improvements

Phase 4 Circulation
Improvements

i 1 Phase 5 Site
Improvements

Phase 5 Circulation
Improvements

DRAFT

105

270 540

1 inch equals 270 feet

N




BENEFIT ANALYSIS
Operating Plan

The Town of Zebulon is committed to the phased improvements

for Zebulon Community Park. The Town anticipates upfront costs
associated with each phase, as well as personnel and maintenance
costs that will be incurred on an annual basis. The following table
summarizes the forecasted operation costs associated with each phase
of development.

Park Benefits Analysis

Analysis of Demand or Unmet Need

Zebulon Community Park Phase 1 is intended to address the demand
for high quality athletic fields that exists in our community, identified
both through the Town's planning efforts. This Phase is also intended
to be implemented alongside the relocation of two baseball fields

to East Wake Academy School Park as part of Phase 1 of that Park’s
Development.

Operational Costs for Zebulon Community Park Improvements

Multi-use athletic fields and turf fields were identified as high priority
by the citizens of Zebulon using a statistically valid survey and other
methods of engagement through the 2021 Master Plan and the follow
up “How We Play” effort.

Zebulon is a growing municipality that has exceeded 10,000 people
as of 2025. This figure is up from approximately 5,000 just five years
ago. The growing populations of surrounding municipalities has also
contributed to an increase in demand for recreation facilities like
Zebulon Community Park.

Addressing Community Needs

The development of Zebulon Community Park Phase 1 will meet the
demand and unmet needs and provide room for expansion of athletic
opportunities in the community. The addition of the soccer fields and
the relocation of the baseball fields will provide high quality playing
fields suitable for local leagues as well as regional tournaments. Phase
2 will also incorporate lighting on the fields that will increase availability
and expand parking to accommodate additional visitors.

DRAFT

The redevelopment of Zebulon Community Park will achieve an
attractive and functional facility that will provide new opportunities for
athletic play and support the long-term vision of Zebulon as a sports
tourism destination within Wake County.

Additional Benefits of Redevelopment

The link between high quality sports facilities and the increase in
overnight room stays and food and beverage purchases has been well
established. The redevelopment of Zebulon Community Park Phase

1, coupled with East Wake Academy School Park Phase 1 will increase
overnight room stays and food and beverage purchases once these
projects are completed.

Special events will also be a major component for visitor attraction with
the development of the Phase 2 and Phase 5 improvements. These
elements will provide state of the art indoor and outdoor facilities

that will serve as premier destinations for residents throughout Wake
County.

Phase Equipment Maintenance Costs (Annual) | Additional Personnel Additional Personnel Costs Total Initial Costs Annual Costs (Running)
Phase 1 $350,000.00 $64,255.62 2.5 $187500.00 $601,755.62 $350,000.00 $251,755.62

Phase 2 $500,000.00 $93,749.11 2.5 $187500.00 $781,249.11 $500,000.00 $533,004.73

Phase 3 $100,000.00 $56,735.53 0 S- $166,735.53 $100,000.00 $689,740.26

Phase 4 $500,000.00 $97,606.67 2 $150,000.00 $747,606.67 $500,000.00 $837,346.93

Phase 5 $500,000.00 $143,896.15 5 $375,000.00 $1,018,896.15 $500,000.00 $1,356,243.08

Total $1,950,000.00 $456,243.08 $10.00 $900,000.00 $3,306,243.08

106

33



DRAFT

Collaboration with Other Organizations

Estimated Visitors to Zebulon Community Park

Zebulon Parks and Recreation Department works closely with youth As part of the master planning process for Zebulon Community Park,
organizations to offer athletic programming for all ages at parks estimates were developed to determine the impact of the development
throughout the Town. However, demand for recreation spaces of a regional destination for athletic tournament play, as well as a
continues to rise. The development of Zebulon Community Park high quality park that serves residents of Zebulon and surrounding

will result in these relationships continuing and expanding . The communities on a daily basis. The table below provides estimates for

Department has held meetings with representatives from youth sports  |ocal visitors, tournament visitors, and special event visitors as each
organizations across the Town to better understand their needs and phase of the park is developed.

opportunities for collaboration as park facilities are activated through
development efforts. These efforts will continue as Zebulon Community
Park and East Wake Academy School Park are developed..

Estimated Visitors for Zebulon Community Park and East Wake Academy School Park

Phase Local Visitors Tournaments Tournament Visitors Special Events Special Event Visitors Total

Phase 1 24,000 16 14,400 0 0 38,400
Phase 2 60,000 24 21,600 20 40,000 121,600
Phase 3 80,000 24 21,600 30 60,000 161,600
Phase 4 80,000 24 21,600 35 70,000 171,600
Phase 5 120,000 30 27000 40 80,000 227000

34

107



108

DRAFT

35






ORDINANCE 2026-15

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon, that
pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes 159-15, the following amendment be made
to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2026.

Section 1. To amend the General Fund budget as follows:

INCREASE DECREASE
REVENUES
Fund Balance Appropriated (Rec Impact Fee) $3,000,000.00

EXPENDITURES
Parks & Recreation — Land Acquisition $1,400,000.00
Parks & Recreation — Transfer to Zebulon Community Park Development Capital
Project Fund

4,400,000.00

Section 2. Copies of this amendment shall be furnished to the Town Clerk, and
to the Budget Officer, and to the Finance Officer for their direction.

Adopted: November 3, 2025

Effective: November 3, 2025

Glenn L. York - Mayor

ATTEST:

Dora Moore, MMC, NCCMC- Interim Town Clerk

110



ORDINANCE 2026-16
ESTABLISHING A CAPITAL PROJECT FUND FOR
ZEBULON COMMUNITY PARK RENOVATION AND BALLFIELD RELOCATION

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon, that pursuant to §159-13.2 of
the North Carolina General Statutes, the following Capital Project Ordinance is hereby adopted.

Section 1. The project authorized is the Zebulon Community Park Renovation and Ballfield Relocation
Capital Project.

Section 2. The officers of this unit are hereby directed to proceed with the capital project
within the terms of the grant agreement and the budget contained herein.

Section 3. The following amounts are appropriated for the project.

Zebulon Community Park Renovation & Ballfield Relocation $4,400,000.00
Total $4,400,000.00

Section 4. The following revenues are anticipated to be available to complete this project.

Transfer from General Fund $4,400,000.00
Total $4,400,000.00

Section 5. The Finance Officer is hereby directed to maintain within the Capital Project Fund
sufficient specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the requirements of the grant and state
regulations.

Section 6. Funds may be advanced from the General Fund for the purpose of making
payments as due.

Section 7. The Finance Officer is directed to include a detailed analysis of past and future costs
and revenues on this capital project in every budget submission made to the Board.

Section 8. The Finance Officer is directed to report on a quarterly basis on the financial status
of each project element in Section 3.

Section 9. Copies of this Capital Project Ordinance shall be furnished to the Town Clerk, to the
Governing Body, the Budget Officer, and to the Finance Officer for direction in carrying out this

project.

Adopted this 3™ day of November 2025.

Glenn L. York, Mayor
ATTEST

Dora Moore, MMC, NCCMC- Interim Town Clerk

111



RESOLUTION 2026-15
ADOPTION OF PARK CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners adopted the Play Zebulon: Parks and Recreation Comprehensive
Master Plan on September 13, 2021; and

WHEREAS, Play Zebulon provides a vision, goals, and action items based on community input to guide
Parks and Recreation decisions; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners adopted the Little River Site Specific Master Plan on November
7,2022; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners adopted the Gill Street Park Site Specific Master Plan on
November 3", 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners adopted the Zebulon Community Park Site Specific Master Plan
on November 3™, 2025; and

WHEREAS, Play Zebulon and Site Specific Master Plans were developed by gathering input from the
community; and

WHEREAS, there were community input workshops, on demand virtual meetings, and input by the Parks
& Recreation Advisory Board; and

WHEREAS, a Park Capital Improvement Plan provides a roadmap to complete projects identified in the
adopted park plans.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon hereby
adopts the 2026-2030 Park Capital Improvement.

Adopted this the 3 day of November 2025.

Glenn L. York — Mayor

SEAL

Dora Moore, MMC, NCCMC- Interim Town Clerk

112



TOWN OF ZEBULON-GENERAL FUND (DRAFT)

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS & FINANCING PLAN

FISCAL YEARS 2026-2030 (Updated November 2025)

DEPARTMENT EXPENDITURE

Dedicated Potential |[Impact Fee
Project Cost |Capital Project . .. FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 Outyear Notes
Parks & Recreation - Fund Bond Project| Eligible
Community Center Floor Replacement $130,000 $130,000
Master Plan Implementation $60,000 $60,000 plan development, due diligence
Park Signage $35,000 $35,000 rollover
Land Acquisition $64,625 $64,625
Little River Park
Phase 1 $1,635,000 | $1,285,000 $350,000 $500,000 PARTF grant
Phase 2 $1,400,000 $1,400,000
Phase 3 $2,700,000 $2,700,000
Zebulon Community Park & Ball Field Relocation
Phase 1 $6,500,000 $3,400,000 $3,100,000
Phase 2 $9,400,000 $2,000,000 | $3,000,000 | $4,400,000
Phase 3 $5,700,000 $5,700,000
Phase 4 $9,800,000 $9,800,000
Phase 5 $14,400,000 X X $14,400,000
Gill Street Park
Expansion: Phase 1 $2,000,000 $766,000 $500,000 $734,000
Expansion: Phase 2 $2,500,000 X X $2,500,000
Expansion: Phase 3 $800,000 X $800,000
Existing Site: Phase 1 $1,200,000 X $1,200,000
Existing Site: Phase 2 $400,000 X $400,000
Baseball/Softball Complex
Phase 1 $3,800,000 X X $1,000,000 | $2,800,000
Phase 2 $3,300,000 $500,000 $2,800,000
Phase 3 $4,500,000 X X $4,500,000
Greenway
Planning & Design $1,000,000 X X $500,000 $500,000
The Spine $3,200,000 X X $500,000 $2,700,000
Downtown Connector $2,300,000 X X $2,300,000
Beaverdam Creek: Phase 2 $1,600,000 X X $1,600,000
Downtown Park $1,700,000 X $1,700,000
Neighborhood Park (4 parks) $7,000,000 X X $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $2,000,000 $3,500,000
Total $87,124,625| $2,051,000 $5,039,625 $6,900,000 $3,734,000 | $4,500,000 | $14,500,000 | $50,400,000
Projected Revenue FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030 Outyear Notes
Recreation Impact Fee Reserves $4,850,000 $1,278,635
General Fund $189,625 $1,750,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $6,400,000
Grant $3,000,000 $1,250,000 $500,000 $5,000,000 |Must apply for.
Bond $1,531,239 $2,500,000 [ $12,500,000 $34,000,000 |Must go to referendum.
Greenway Impact Fee Reserves $452,761
Recreation Impact Fee $871,365 $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 $5,000,000
Total $5,039,625 $6,900,000 $3,734,000 $4,000,000 | $14,500,000 $50,400,000

113




ZEBULON

NORTH CAROLINA

Certificate of Sufficiency

PIN 2705512202 - 700 S Arendell Ave
PIN 2704492511 - 751 S Wakefield St
PIN 2705413075 — 0 S Wakefield St
PIN 2705513114 — 730 S Arendell Ave

To the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon, North Carolina:

1003 N. Arendell Avenue
Zebulon, NC 27597
919.823.1800

www.townofzebulon.org

I, Dora K. Moore, Interim Clerk to the Zebulon Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that |
have investigated the petition attached hereto, and have found as a fact that said petition is
signed by all the owners or their legal representative of real property lying in the area described

therein, in accordance with G.S. 160A-31.

In witness whereof, | have here unto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town of Zebulon,

this 21% day of October 2025.

\\

\\“\\mmm,,,/
“‘ 3’9 on,,' (o

/
§ % 7 Z Dora K. Moore MMC —interim Town Clerk
Z 3
Z 1 / s

”l CA \\\
Uttty

114



Hervey
i.‘"ixk‘::,', F_i I 3%

October 21, 2025

Town of Zebulon

Attn: Eric A. Vernon, Town Attorney
Wyrick Robbins Yates & Ponton LLP
4101 Lake Boone Trail, Suite 300
Raleigh, NC 27607

Re:  Certification of Ownership: Wake County PIN Numbers 2705512202 and 2705513114
(the “Properties™)

Dear Eric:
We have conducted a title search on the above-referenced Properties from October 6, 1928 to
October 21, 2025 at 2:30 P.M. Based on our search we have determined that the owners of the

Properties are:

e Harrison Alexander Hughes
e Joseph Wood Temple, Jr.
e Holly Temple Hughes
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call.

Sincerely,

HERVEY & HERVEY, P.A.

Benjamin H. Hervey

Benjamin H. Hervey DD: 919.467.9012 E: ben@herveyandhervey.com

115



Town of Zebulon

Planning Department

1003 N. Arendell Avenue, Zebulon, NC 27597
Phone: (919) 823-1810  Fax: (919) 887-2824
www.townofzebulon.org

ANNEXATION PETITION

GENERAL INFORMATION:

In accordance with Section 2.2.2 of the UDO, upon receipt of a valid petition signed by all of the owners of real
property in the area described therein, the Town may annex an area either contiguous or not contiguous to its
primary corporate limits when the area meets the standards set out under North Carolina General Statutes 160A-
31 and 160A-58.1. The petition need not be signed by the owners of real property that is wholly exempt from
property taxation under the Constitution and laws of North Carolina, nor by railroad companies, public utilities
as defined in G.S. 62-3(23), or electric or telephone membership corporations.

INSTRUCTIONS:

PRE-APPLICATION MEETING: A pre-application meeting with staff in accordance with Section 2.3.2 of
the UDO to verify the application requirements, processes, and procedures regarding a proposed request. To
schedule a meeting, applicants must e-mail a pdf map, drawing, model, site or sketch plan to the Planning
Department (planning@townofzebulon.org) no later than five (5) working days prior to the desired meeting day.

FILE PETITION: Submit hard copy application to the Planning Department with the applicable requirements
in accordance with Section 2.2.2 of the UDO.

CERTIFICATION OF SUFFICIENCY: The Town Clerk shall investigate and certify whether the petition
is legally sufficient. Only legally sufficient petitions shall be considered by the Town.

REVIEW BY STAFF: The Planning and Public Works Departments review the annexation submission.
Comments will be sent to the applicant via email.

LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT: A legal advertisement will be published on the Town of Zebulon’s website
and in a paper of general circulation once no more than 25 days and one within 10 days of the date of the public
hearing.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING/PUBLIC HEARING:
The BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS Meeting is typically held the first Monday of each month. The Board of
Commissioners will either adopt or deny an ordinance to extend the corporate limits of the Town of Zebulon.

NOTICE OF DECISION: The formal notice of decision shall be provided to the applicant in accordance
with Section 2.3.9 of the UDO.

RECORDATION: If the annexation is approved by the Board of Commissioners, the Town Clerk will have
the Annexation Plats recorded at the Wake County Register of Deeds. Wake County will keep one of the
recorded plats, one copy will be returned to the Planning Department and the surveying company is given the
remaining recorded Annexation Plat.

116
Page 1 0of 6


mailto:planning@townofzebulon.org

Application Requirements -

APPLICATION FOR
ANNEXATION

The applicant requesting an annexation must submit an application through the Town of Zebulon GeoCivix Web
Portal. As noted below some materials must be brought in person to the Zebulon Planning Department to complete
the application process. Access to the GeoCivix portal can be found on the Town of Zebulon Website or through

this link (https://townofzebulon.geocivix.com/secure/)

e Materials to Submit through the Town of

Zebulon GeoCivix Web Portal:

0}
o

0}

Completed Application Form

One (1) Legal Description (metes and
bounds) of subject property

Registered survey of subject property
Certified List of Property Owners within
750 feet of subject property

Agent Authorization Form

117

Materials to Submit in Person with the
Town of Zebulon Planning Department:
0 Stamped envelopes addressed to Certified

List of Property Owners all the
homeowners associations of those
properties within 750 feet of the outer
boundary subject property or properties.
Affixed with the following return address:
Town of Zebulon
Planning Department
1003 N. Arendell Ave
Zebulon, NC 27597

Petition Fee (Please See Fee Schedule)
(Can be paid online but applicants must let
Planning Staff know prior to paying)

Page 2 of 6


https://townofzebulon.geocivix.com/secure/

118



700 S Arendell Ave  APPLICATION FOR
ANNEXATION

PART 4. PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION

To the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon, North Carolina:

1. We, the undersigned owners of real property, respectfully request that the area described in Part 4 be annexed to

the Town of Zebulon, County, North Carolina.
2. The area to be annexed is (satellite) to the Town of Zebulon, North Carolina and
the boundaries are as contained in the and bounds description attached hereto

3. If contiguous, this annexation will include all intervening rights-of-way for streets, railroads and other areas as
stated in G.S 160A-31(f), unless otherwise stated in the annexation amendment.

4. T/We acknowledge that any zoning vested rights acquired pursuant to G.S. 160A385.1 or G.S. 153A-344.1 must be
declared and identified on this petition. I/We further acknowledge that failure to declare such rights on this petition
shall result in a termination of vested rights previously acquired for the property. (If zoning vested rights are
claimed, indicate below and attach proof.)

All individual owners must sign. (If additional signatures are necessary, please attach an additional sheet.)

I hereby state that the facts related in this application and any documents submitted herewith are complete, true,
and accurate to the best of  kno

Signature of Owner: Print Name: |ng eph Wood Temple Date:
—_—— .
W R au 2%
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Harrison Alexander Date:
Hughes 4\/&‘/2 v
of Print Name: : Date:
S Holly T hes  afefey

Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:

Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:

Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:

Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:
STATE OF
COUNTY OF e
Sworn and before a Public for the above State and County,
this “ of,

a_
blic
D W
NOTARY PUBLIC )
Franklin County 0
North Carolina My Commission

Commission Expires March 28,

119 Page 4 of 6



751 S Wakefield St

PART 4. PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION
To the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon, North Carolina:

APPLICATION FOR
ANNEXATION

1. We, the undersigned owners of real property, respectfully request that the area described in Part 4 be annexed to

ke
2,

ain

claimed, indicate below and attach proof.)

iguous (satellite) to th

of Zebulon, North Carolina and

nds description attach 0.

3. If contiguous, this annexation will include all intervening rights-of-way for streets, railroads and other areas as
stated in G.S. 160A-31(f), unless otherwise stated in the annexation amendment.

4. I/We acknowledge that any zoning vested rights acquired pursuant to G.S. 160A385.1 or G.S. 153A-344.1 must be
declared and identified on this petition. [/We further acknowledge that failure to declare such rights on this petition
shall result in a termination of vested rights previously acquired for the property. (If zoning vested rights are

All individual owners must sign. (If additional signatures are necessary, please attach an additional sheet.)

I hereby state that the facts related in this application and any documents submitted herewith are complete, true,

correct, and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

Signature of Owner:

STt Gme, Dty

Signature of Owner:
Signature of Owner:
Signature of Owner:
Signature of Owner:
Signature of Owner:

Signature of Owner:

STATE OF
COUNTY

Sworn and subscribed before

this the \D 4 day of,

MELANIE M NARRAMORE
SEAL NOTARY PUBLIC

FRANKLIN COUNTY, NC
My Commission Expires 3-22-2027

120

Print Name: Brittany Boone Darby Date: .
02\ 2071
Print Name: jnsha Stewart Boone Date:
PrintName,'Har()'d J Narron Date:
Print Name: Gharles K Corbett Date:
Print Name: Jerry S Boone Date:
Print Name: Date:
Print Name: Date:
aN Public for the above State and County,
AN AT
2-9D SO

My Commission Expires

Page 4 of 6



4 751 S Wakefield St APPLICATION FOR
ZI@ZPtI{lITQN ANNEXATION

l PART 4. PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION l
To the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon, North Carolina:

1. We, the undersigned owners of real property, respectfully request that the area described in Part 4 be annexed to
the Town of Zebulon, Wake County, North Carolina.

2. The area to be annexed is .contlguous non-contiguous (satellite) to the Town of Zebulon, North Carolina and
the boundaries are as contained in the metes and bounds description attached hereto.

3. If contiguous, this annexation will include all intervening rights-of-way for streets, railroads and other areas as
stated in G.S. 160A-31(f), unless otherwise stated in the annexation amendment.

4. T/We acknowledge that any zoning vested rights acquired pursuant to G.S. 160A385.1 or G.S. 153A-344.1 must be
declared and identified on this petition. I/'We further acknowledge that failure to declare such rights on this petition
shall result in a termination of vested rights previously acquired for the property. (If zoning vested rights are
claimed, indicate below and attach proof.)

All individual owners must sign. (If additional signatures are necessary, please attach an additional sheet.)
I hereby state that the facts related in this application and any documents submitted herewith are complete, true,
correct, and accurate to the best of my knowledge.
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Brittany Boone Darby Date:
Signature of Owner: . Print Name: Joshua Stewart Boone Date:
W""/ |0/13/ 2025
Signature of Owner: / Print Name: Harold J Narron Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Charles K Corbett Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: J erry S Boone Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:

STATE OF 44
COUNTY OF _(eer4tire it

Sworn and subscribed before me, JCB!W Q\S'I“CW &WL-{ a Notary Public for the above State and County,

thisthe A3 dayof,  Octohty 2018 \V\ gl . aﬂé,/
3 .u\um'“;tm,, - Notcyjubllc
e*q.?’ -----

SEAL %,
‘\oTA.q-,_ T Y
{ Wommen ;2 March 11, 2030
2O\ “mm ; i My Commission Expires:

N

l
MI' ’Iummi"‘* 121
Page 4 of 6



ZEBULON

751 S Wakefield St APPLICATION FOR
ANNEXATION

[ PART 4. PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION

To the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon, North Carolina:

1. We, the undersigned owners of real property, respectfully request that the area described in Part 4 be annexed to

the Town of Zebulon, Wake County, North Carolina.

2. The area to be annexed is .connguous non-contiguous (satellite) to the Town of Zebulon, North Carolina and
the boundaries are as contained in the metes and bounds description attached hereto.
3. If contiguous, this annexation will include all intervening rights-of-way for streets, railroads and other areas as
stated in G.S. 160A-31(f), unless otherwise stated in the annexation amendment.
4. I/We acknowledge that any zoning vested rights acquired pursuant to G.S. 160A385.1 or G.S. 153A-344.1 must be
declared and identified on this petition. I/'We further acknowledge that failure to declare such rights on this petition
shall result in a termination of vested rights previously acquired for the property. (If zoning vested rights are

claimed, indicate below and attach proof.)

All individual owners must sign. (If additional signatures are necessary, please attach an additional sheet.)

I hereby state that the facts related in this application and any documents submitted herewith are complete, true,
correct, and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

Signature of Owner: Print Name: Brittany Boone Da rby Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Joshua Stewart Boone Date:
Signature of Owner: M Print Name: Hgrold J Narron Date:

5]
Ve 7 Z ///me/ lo-375
iz

Signature of Owner: y Print Name: Charles K Corbett Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Jerry S Boone Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:

STATE OF Mﬂﬁm Coxp\N\ O
COUNTY OF Wia y.e

Sworn and subscribed before me, T\’\C\\SS&. F-O;,\‘ v

this the | % day of, DCADDOEY .2035.

o \\HAHI/
\\ \’\Ss F,qp///

WO TAR

PugL\C
é S

/ 4'50 ‘{ \\
///”O”U‘“\‘\\\

\\\\\\“”I“///

\\

s

//
/
’/Imu\\\\

122

Modisa Fumg

, a Notary Public for the above State and County,

Notary Public

d-4- 202 %

My Commission Expires:

Page 4 of 6



751 S Wakefield St~ APPLICATION FE
ANNEXATI

PART 4. PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION

To the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon, North Carolina

1.

2.

We, the undersigned owners of real propetty, respectfully request that the area described in Part 4 be annex
the Town of Zebulon, Wake County, North Carolina

The area to be annexed is v -contiguous (satellite) to the Town of Zebulon, North Carolinz
the boundaries are as contained in the and bounds description attached hereto

If contiguous, this annexation will include all intervening rights-of-way for streets, railroads and other are:
stated in G.8. 160A-31(f), unless ollierwise stated in the annexdtion amendmient.

I/We acknowledge that any zoning vested rights acquired pursuant to G.S. 160A385.1 or G.S. 153A-344.1 mu
declared and identified on this petition. I/We further acknowledge that failure to declare such rights on this pet
shall result in a termination of vested rights previously acquired for the property. (If zoning vested right:
claimed, indicate below and attach proof.)

All individual owners must sign. (If additional signatures are necessary, pleasc attach an additional sheet.)

EAL

I hereby state that the tacts related in this tion and any documents su d herewith are complete, true,
and accuarate fo the best kno
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Brittany Boone Darby Date:
Signatiire of Owier: Print Joshua Stewart Boone Drfte:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Harqid J Narron Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Ch rbett Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Jerry S ne Date;
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:
STATE OF o Yo
COUNTY OF  Jshinste
Sworn and su 7 a Notary Public for the above State and County
this the a™ ° 2025

Notary  blic

County 1olaa]2s

123 ]
My Commission Expires:



751 S Wakefield St APPLICATION FOR
ANNEXATION

PART 4. PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION

To the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon, North Carolina

1. We, the undersigned owners of real property, respectfully request that the area described in Part 4 be annexed to
the Town of Zebulon, Wake County, North Carolina.

2. The area to be annexed is[v] non-contiguous (satellite) to the Town of Zebulon, North Carolina and
the boundaries are as contained in the and bounds description attached hereto.

3. If contiguous, this annexation will include all intervening rights-of-way for streets, railroads and other areas as
stated in G.S. 160A-31(f), unless otherwise stated in the annexation amendment,

4. 1/We acknowledge that any zoning vested rights acquired pursuant to G.S. 160A385.1 or G.S. 153A-344.1 must be
declared and identified on this petition. I/We further acknowledge that failure to declare such rights on this petition
shall result in a termination of vested rights previously acquired for the property. (If zoning vested rights are
claimed, indicate below and attach proof.)

All individual owners must sign. (If additional signatures are necessary, please attach an additional sheet.)

I hereby state that the facts related in this application and any documents submitted herewith are complete, true,
and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

Signature of Owner: Print Nam Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name';l-l-afd'd"d'ﬁa‘ﬁ'gl’;] Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name.mt Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Jerry S Boone Date:
Slg@f/tm‘e 8f Owner: Print Name: Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:
STATE OF
COUNTY OF
Sworn and subscribed before /%{fﬁ/\ Iﬂ & axell .a Notary Public for the above State and County,
this the 2.6 day of, 2028
Notary Public
SEAL eB
SHA- 2[5 20
- s My Commission Expires:
" Page 4 of 6

124



0 S Wakefield St APPLICATION FOR
ZEBULON ANNEXATION

PART 4. PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION
To the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon, North Carolina:

1. We, the undersigned owners of real property, respectfully request that the area described in Part 4 be annexed to

the Town of Zebulon, County, North Carolina.
2. The area to be annexed is (satellite) to the Town of Zebulon, North Carolina and
the boundaries are as contained in the and bounds description attached hereto

3. If contiguous, this annexation will include all intervening rights-of-way for streets, railroads and other areas as
stated in G.S. 160A-31(f), unless otherwise stated in the annexation amendment.

4. I/We acknowledge that any zoning vested rights acquired pursuant to G.S. 160A385.1 or G.S. 153A-344.1 must be
declared and identified on this petition. I/We further acknowledge that failure to declare such rights on this petition
shall result in a termination of vested rights previously acquired for the property. (If zoning vested rights are
claimed, indicate below and attach proof.)

All individual owners must sign. (If additional signatures are necessary, please attach an additional sheet.)

I hereby state that the facts related in this application and any documents submitted herewith are complete, true,
correct, and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

Signature of Owner: Print Name:\\jatson Family Il LLC Date:
p " [n
[Vt ne W et Y lposs

Sz}gnéf re of Ownerd' Print Name: Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:
Signature of Owner: Print Name: Date:

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

Sworn and subscribed before me a Public for the State and County,

thisthe _ J Nt \day of],
Pu

SEAL

[ 03

My Expires:

1Y 125 Page 4 of 6



ANNEXATION LAND DESCRIPTION
=
~
N Beginning at an existing iron pipe along the eastern right of way of Pulley Gordon Road, having a North
%’ Carolina State Plane Coordinate (NAD 1983-2011) value of North 749044.53 feet, Fast 2203638.58 feet. "’Yp
o 1 " 1 . . . . . A3
9( CURVE TABLE Robert E. Grooch Thence S89° 06' 44"W, 43.52' to a point in the centerline of Pulley Gordon Road; thence with the 5
P Kmancli:’wge ) centerline of Pulley Gordon Road N31° 40' 13"W, 17.82' to a point; thence with a curve to the right H/ («32
athey F. Creecl . . . . o ]
CURVE | DELTA | RADIUS | LENGTH | TANGENT | CHORD BEARING | CHORD DB 9289, PG 1838 having a radius of 745.63), a length of 258.84' and a chord bearing and distance of N21° 43' 32"W, o b DR N
PIN 2705520074 . ° . . . . )
09: ct 19°6322" | 745.63' | 258.84' 130.73' 521°4332'E 257.54' N78°36'17E 257.54" to a point; thence N11° 46' 51"W, 141.30' to a point in the centerline of South Wakefield Street; - PERRY CURTIS RD.
8 c2 14°17118" | 898.66' | 224.11' 112.64' N1°14'44"E 223.53' 154.76' Total N thence with the centerline of South Wakefield Street with a curve to the left having a radius of 898.66', §
> c3 32032" | 2330.34' | 135.93' 67.98" S2°1339'F 135.91" 5 = C‘%: a length of 224.11', and a chord bearing and distance of N1° 14' 44"E, 223.53' to a point; thence N5° 53' 3
153'59, % \o 55"W, 188.25' to a point; thence with a curve to the right having a radius of 2330.34', a length of 5 AN c
c4 3°3247" | 1695.94" | 104.97 52.50" 50°4700°E 104.96" ' 2 135.93', and a chord bearing and distance of N4° 13' 39"W, 135.91' to a point; thence N2° 33' 23"W, - ~ S
c5 1°42'59" | 4451.25' | 133.35' 66.68' NO°07'54"E 133.35' 47.94' to a point; thence with a curve to the right having a radius of 1695.94' a length of 104.97' and a o 9
% chord bearing and distance of NO° 47' 00"W, 104.96' to a point; thence with a curve to the left having a S gg
5 radius of 4451.25', a length of 133.35, and a chord bearing and distance of NO° 07' 54"E, 133.35' to a w Zz E 3
Martha H. Vi S » g ° ' " ' . . . . T - =
LINE TABLE 8 10y o 28 _8 A\ S ponlt, t{wencs NO 43’ 36"W, 12.0.‘66 .to a fao/nt, thence t/’eavmg t’he centerline of the‘afores.a/d rgad MORPHUS = R
M 2005, PG 223 ;Q%Hp\ 5% 528°5024"E 588° 41" 25"E, 331.00' to an existing iron pipe; thence NO° 50" 44"W, 407.57' to an existing iron pipe; RD. < Wz o
LINE | BEARING | LENGTH / o r—= A\ 761.06' thence N89° 19' 57"W, 330.04' to a point in the centerline of South Wakefield Street; thence with the oW 23 =
< G 5 i . o 1 " 1 : : : icini - a4 —_
L1 | N31°4013'W | 17.82' / S ” 3 i_\‘\‘ centerline of South Wakefield Street NO° 43' 36"W, 59.99' to a point; thence leaving the aforesaid Vicinity Map - Not to Scale < E o R w
12 | N11eass1w | 141.30° / b % centerline S89° 19' 57"E, 330.02' to an existing iron pipe; thence NO° 44' 29"W, 389.63' to an existing Ho g % z
. ¥ ® = . . ° . . . . ° A
/° =2 iron pipe; thence N89° 53' 37"W, 129.83' to an existing iron pipe; thence N3° 52' 53"E, 233.74' to an g 5 3 o g
°53'55" ' .. X . ° .. , , ° =
L3 | Nos3ss"W | 16825 / - S89°1500"E  1384.54" J o existing iron pipe; thence S89° 15' 00"E, 1384.54' to an existing iron pipe; thence N1° 20' 40"E, 480.67' gﬂ @ <>3<\ <
14 N2°33'23"W 47.94' (\ ( Chain Link - ?) Joseph Wood Temple, Sr. -Z;) to an existing iron pipe; thence N78° 36' 17"E, 124.17' to an existing iron pipe; thence continuing N78° 2 é 9[ < g
15 | No4336'W | 12066 \ N3°52'53'E _T/Fence Bfl’lf ;9;’;901 :’ GG 7745249 S 36' 17"E, 30.59' to a point in the centerline of South Arendell Avenue; thence with the centerline of a S &
: ! 4 o : o 1 . Ln
= oo | se00 H . 23,73-74 ' . PIN 2705512202 N 1:.}/% South Arendell Avenue S28° 50' 24"E, 761.08' to a point; thence S28° 50' 24"E, 425.02' to a point; thence %’ e ;:)
. X o 1 - . . . o I =2 A&
\\ reennotise \\c\' o AREA: 7.02 Ac. %(‘(\ 529° 13" 43"E, 667.05' to a point; thence leaving the centerline of the aforesaid road N88° 26' 36"W, = Z9oE
° { " ! | H H H H o I n" I ” H o
L7 | Noo000OW | 30.%6 \ o ? P8 SAY 584.64' to an existing iron pipe; thence $89° 11' 28"W, 68.13' to a 5/8” capped iron rod set; thence S2 F29
& 2z ] " ] ” . o ] " 1 e g . .
t8 | NOWOOOE | 227 \ " shed w Bamn 1% \ =7 12" 27"F, 1759.55' to a 5/8” capped iron rod set; thence S88° 17' 33"W, 346.50' to an existing iron pipe; 38
L9 | N90°0000'E | 30.56' \’% NBO5337 W ?ﬁ L9 I \c 5, A\ thence N3° 17' 33"E, 478.27' to an existing iron pipe; thence S89° 06' 44"W, 1540.50' to the Beginning, '-“E
\ Lot7 . o g\ A7 19755 e containing 118.61 acres more, or less.
L10 | S0°00'00"E 3227 ot 129.83 Z S L8 1S 2 20 S$28°50°24'E g A
- g ¢ = House 425.02
5 55 L7 Barn
e g sEZ k
ﬁ\ s N Ag,’lg Silo &
"Property Survey For Lot6 ™ 3 2 o
- ~ o Cemetery NC STATE PLANE Z >
Johnny Watson S WATSON FAMILY, Il, LLC & 0.02 AC. COORDINATES o
BM 1993, PG 942 ~ DB 8099, PG 2738 NORTH=751140.59 FT. (:5
S BM 1993, PG 942 EAST=2205340.06 FT. 2
Lot5 \Q\% PIN 2705413075 - A 3
15" RCP | N AREA: 32.80 Ac. S o
Inv=354.23 SB9°19'57"E  330.02' rot% ~ g '5
~ 29.92' 300.10' \C}9 (_,g Barn A\ a
N 0.00' 300.04' o “o 24" RCP N J >
| g 89°19'57"W  330.04'  Total) 2 \\\ Inv=333.20 n R Joseph Wood Temple, Sr. T
| N Lot4 gle N DB 8410, PG 754 529°1343'E Q
. 5 0 SR N 3 BM 1999, PG 1429 ) 667.05'
15"RcP |/ g B 3 Pond ) =
Inv=354.39 .&ﬁ 24" RCP ~N N PIN 2705512202 on 9
) | / Lot 3 %, S % Inv=329.52 -
'Property Survey For | » N AN 3| 2 ~
Johnny P. Watson" SO Sl w5 ols \ 3
BM 1991, PG 461 3 —  Lot2 alS ~, |5 15" ROP o
| N ~ Inv=331.90
19)) | g h \\\ b '
0 N Lot % o A\ %
O’§ | 88°41'25"] . ~ 34.57' -
SN ! » 5'E_331.00' Totall. . >
2 3 3 / S88°41'25"E ' ' . ' E
TX | 2 Té\sa . 0% —0) 1248.69 <€ Jo‘ 418.53 §8 15 e 200.10° __ 349.97' A
% m S ‘ AN = S589°1128"W  486.66' N88°26'36"W | 584.64'  Total A
= I' L AN N NC STATE PLANE COORDINATES ‘
U TOTAL PROPOSED Sy Randa Long Lany parker pADes ot
s QO | ~ and DB 17718, PG 2043 NORTH= 750345.41 FT
S 2 il ANEXATION AREA N Catherine Long BN 2014, PG 1774 EAST= 2206047.79 FT
CD i ZL)LO 2 \\o DB 17718, PG 2043 PIN 2705509203 '
T 118.61 ACRES 3 o1 00 PG 574
. | V _j \ ~N ~ PIN 2705506134 ‘
I [ NG Possible Gap
18"RCP|_/ | 18"RCP ., /
/nv=353.201 ~ Inv=353.90 O\S\ .
T Ll N o
7\E ; \O’Yo
| 2] ~ : °
I B
| an \\\O TOWN OF ZEBULON [
| N CORPORATE LIMITS
3 N
ot i
V21 %
\ 2 Harold Narron
\ = and
\3 “ C. Fred Corbett
S DB 3452, PG 715
\ k PIN 2704492511 9
\ AREA: 63.34 Ac. N
\ )
\o 2 N
2 N
o
- N N
N ks
o N (1Y
Q Y <
Abandoned N
3 House 51
} ~U IO} Larry N. Parker
— m and wife
T M. Park
™ QIO H DB 18351, PG 896
T I00 PIN 2704597445
Q13
2N I
Ul SRS
c > 3N
= S Im Fﬂ SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION
Ayl r~
@ ) , Q =C 1, Terry L. Westendori, PLS, hereby certify that this plat was drawn
WS 43.52 SN 1
- ’ 1540.50' > S0 under imy supervision from an actual survey made unaer my
[ ] ~ Supervision, as aescrioea /11 aeeas ana /maps or recora or other
) Ty TR 1 Jld=s it descrived in deeds and # record or oth
‘3 O 58970644V ’ ° o referernce sources; that the positional accuracy as calculated 1s 0.07"
Q) ’ﬂ P.O.B. 2 @2 Sigma, that the boundaries not surveyed are sfiowrn as brokern
oY | @) NC STATE PLANE COORDINATES lines plotted from information of recora, that this map was prepared in
= OZ xg/D??-/ (2% ;i) 53 FT X R ““NE'A?/”\‘:'"" accordance with G.S. 47-30 as amended.
= . N o™ O ‘,,
= EAST=2203638.58 FT AGARWAL ASSOCIATES, LLC N ‘\‘\QQ;\Y'\' ESSI</ “, This survey is of an existing parcel or parcels of land.
O DB 15693, PG 2345 ¥ SE- Qgg %/% 3
- Bgﬁg%ﬁg‘gzg w s < Y witness my original signature, license number and seal this 5th day
Etg o SEAL oz of September, a.d., 2025.
8 iy 3232 G f
(‘r) - - ~
z .< Y
SURVEY NOTES: < % /73"74@ SR \lckél' L‘\s
%, A DR NS Terry L. Westendorf £=3232
1-  Prepared for DEACON DEVELOPMENT , Y | W Sﬁ§\o“ 4 {5
35'77\ ll"l”" Eu\\\\“‘
[} 1
2- Horizontal control is based on North Carolina State Plane q "
Coordinates NAD 1983(2011). g 1735 W 346.50'
. . D\ N3°1445"E
3-  Not all improvements to this property have been shown. 45.73' Tie
4-  Area computation is by the Coordinate Method. 2 (|2
O ~ Larry N. Ffarker
5-  This survey was completed without benefit of a Legal Title / S‘ § Ty Parker
Commitment or Title Examination. Q DB 18351, PG 896
PIN 2704574734
6-  The survey of the property shown hereon was finalized LNLI Ll\“
October 10, 2022. L <
Coy Berkley Martin, Jr. Qo \'g
DB 16149, PG 485
s SR 128 CONTIGUOUS ANNEXATION PLAT
, g
0 I 58 DEACON DEVELOPMENT
® Iron Rod Found Tie Line ~ O
® 3 Capped Iron Rod Set Line Not Surveyed
8 ]
A Computed Point DS X Fence PIN(S). 270449251 1/ 2705413075,
1 Concrete Monument Found OHP Overhead Power Line
X Power Pole R/W R/W Right of Way Line 270551 22 02 _
Oxx  Light Pole Proposed Annexation
< Guy Anchor Little River Township Wake County
Date: October 10, 2022 Scale: "= 200'
SCALE: 1"=200' Sheet 1 of 1 Job#:49084
I e e e— Drawn By: TLW Checked By:
200 0 200 400 Revised:

126




ANNEXATION DESCRIPTION

Beginning at an existing iron pipe along the eastern right of way of Pulley Gordon Road, having a North
Carolina State Plane Coordinate (NAD 1983-2011) value of North 749044.53 feet, East 2203638.58 feet.
Thence S89° 06' 44"W, 43.52’ to a point in the centerline of Pulley Gordon Road; thence with the
centerline of Pulley Gordon Road N31° 40' 13"W, 17.82' to a point; thence with a curve to the right having
a radius of 745.63’, a length of 258.84’, and a chord bearing and distance of N21° 43' 32"W, 257.54’ to a
point; thence N11° 46' 51"W, 141.30' to a point in the centerline of South Wakefield Street; thence with
the centerline of South Wakefield Street with a curve to the left having a radius of 898.66’, a length of
224.11’, and achord bearing and distance of N1° 14' 44"E, 223.53’ to a point; thence N5° 53' 55"W, 188.25'
to a point; thence with a curve to the right having a radius of 2330.34’, a length of 135.93’, and a chord
bearing and distance of N4° 13' 39"W, 135.91' to a point; thence N2° 33' 23"W, 47.94' to a point; thence
with a curve to the right having a radius of 1695.94’, a length of 104.97’, and a chord bearing and distance
of NO° 47' 00"W, 104.96’ to a point; thence with a curve to the left having a radius of 4451.25’, a length
of 133.35’, and a chord bearing and distance of NO° 07' 54"E, 133.35’ to a point; thence NO° 43' 36"W,
120.66' to a point; thence leaving the centerline of the aforesaid road S88° 41' 25"E, 331.00' to an existing
iron pipe; thence NO° 50' 44"W, 407.57' to an existing iron pipe; thence N89° 19' 57"W, 330.04' to a point
in the centerline of South Wakefield Street; thence with the centerline of South Wakefield Street NO° 43'
36"W, 59.99' to a point; thence leaving the aforesaid centerline $89° 19' 57"E, 330.02' to an existing iron
pipe; thence NO° 44' 29"W, 389.63' to an existing iron pipe; thence N89° 53' 37"W, 129.83' to an existing
iron pipe; thence N3° 52' 53"E, 233.74' to an existing iron pipe; thence S89° 15' 00"E, 1384.54' to an
existing iron pipe; thence N1° 20' 40"E, 480.67' to an existing iron pipe; thence N78° 36' 17"E, 124.17' to
an existing iron pipe; thence continuing N78°36'17"E, 30.59' to a point in the centerline of South Arendell
Avenue; thence with the centerline of South Arendell Avenue S28° 50' 24"E, 761.08' to a point; thence
$28° 50' 24"E, 425.02' to a point; thence S29° 13' 43"E, 667.05' to a point; thence leaving the centerline
of the aforesaid road N88° 26' 36"W, 584.64' to an existing iron pipe; thence S89° 11' 28"W, 68.13' to a
5/8” capped iron rod set; thence S2° 12' 27"E, 1759.55' to a 5/8” capped iron rod set; thence S88° 17'
33"W, 346.50' to an existing iron pipe; thence N3° 17' 33"E, 478.27' to an existing iron pipe; thence S89°
06' 44"W, 1540.50' to the Beginning, containing 118.61 acres more, or less.

127



Certified Property Owners within 750' of Project Boundary

Owner
AGARWAL ASSOCIATES LLC
ALPHIN, DOUGLAS W
AMBRIZ, JAIME ESPINOZA PONCE, MIRIAM GARCIA
ARMSTRONG, HENRY C ARMSTRONG, BRENDAM
BARRERA, EMILIO VILLEGAS ARMENTA, BERTHA CORTEZ
BLOUNT, BARBARA ANN
BRADSHAW, BETTIE SUE
C W S SYSTEMS INC
CARRILLO, JOSE SANTOS CARRILLO, MARY D
CARROLL, ELAINE H CARROLL, WILLIAM AYDEN JR
CHURCH OF GOD EASTERN NC STATE OFFICE
CHURCH, JUSTIN WALLACE
COBLE, THOMAS F COBLE, JENNIFER M
CONYERS, BEVERLY A CONYERS, CASSANDRA L
COTTONFIELD DEVELOPMENT LLC
COYT, RAFAEL NUNEZ
CREECH, ROBERT E CREECH, KATHEY P
DAVID BULLOCK CONSTRUCTION INC
DE LA CRUZ, EDWIN CID, VICTORIA
DEAN, ATWELL STUART
DELACRUZ, ZOILA DELACRUZ, RAFAEL
DIXON LAND INVESTMENTS LLC
DUNN, MARY FRANCES DUNN, RICHARD BENJAMIN
ENNIS, WOOMADEVI
ESTRADA, JILBER VELAZQUEZ
FOX, JEFFERY M FOX, PENNY M
FUENTES, BAYRON JOSUE LOPEZ HILARIO, RAMONA LLINETT LOPEZ
GARCIA, LAURA A REYES, GERARDO REYES
GOMEZ, MARIA DEL ROCIO HURTADO

Mailing Address 1
2000 KILLEARN MILL CT
105 TEMPLE JOHNSON RD
435 SIR DAVID DR
PO BOX 1143
301 SIR DAVID DR
707 S WAKEFIELD ST
697 S WAKEFIELD ST
500 W MONROE ST STE 3600
812 S WAKEFIELD ST
2516 MORPHUS BRIDGE RD
PO BOX 100
1190 COTTONSPRINGS DR
1201 PULLEY GORDON RD
631 S WAKEFIELD ST
4801 GLENWOOD AVE
166 WESTSIDE CIR
13713 POSSUM TRACK RD
2805 AUBURN KNIGHTDALE RD
712 CHANCE CIR
604 S ARENDELL AVE
5102 DELANO CT
PO BOX 598
748 S WAKEFIELD ST
406 SIR DAVID DR
106 WOODGATE DR
753 S ARENDELL AVE
709 CHANCE CIR
621 S WAKEFIELD ST
613 BULLHARDT DR

128

Mailing Address 2
CARY NC 27513-4293
ZEBULON NC 27597-8744
ZEBULON NC 27597-6808
ZEBULON NC 27597-1143
ZEBULON NC 27597-6801
ZEBULON NC 27597-2567
ZEBULON NC 27597-2565
CHICAGO IL 60661-3779
ZEBULON NC 27597-2568
ZEBULON NC 27597-9622
KENLY NC 27542-0100
WENDELL NC 27591-3302
ZEBULON NC 27597-8896
ZEBULON NC 27597-2565
RALEIGH NC 27612-3856
ZEBULON NC 27597-6978
RALEIGH NC 27614-9381
RALEIGH NC 27610-9712
ZEBULON NC 27597-6809
ZEBULON NC 27597-8202
ZEBULON NC 27597-7718
ZEBULON NC 27597-0598
ZEBULON NC 27597-2566
ZEBULON NC 27597-6802
GARNER NC 27529-2738
ZEBULON NC 27597-8205
ZEBULON NC 27597-6809
ZEBULON NC 27597-2565
ZEBULON NC 27597-6810



GOWER, JERRY L GOWER, JOANN

HANNAH, KRYSTAL

HERNANDEZ, LYDIA FABIOLA MATEO

HICKS, MELVILLE HOWARD JR

HILL, TIMOTHY GORDON HILL, LILLIAN AVENT
HOLLAND, JIMMY LEON HOLLAND, HELEN M
HORTON FAMILY CEMETERY

HORTON, TIMOTHY WYATT HORTON, LISA RAPER
JAYS ARENDELL PROPERTIES LLC

JIMENEZ, FRANCISCO SANAGUSTIN, CANDELARIA
KNOTT, MARSH WENDELL JR

LINDSEY POINTE HOMEOWNERS

LONG, CHARLES WESLEY LONG, KAY P

LONG, RANDALL S

MARSHALL & MARSHALL LLC

MARSHALL, RICHARD CODY

MARTINEZ, JERONIMO SANCHEZ

MCCULLERS, JAMIE

MCNABB, LYNN CASWELL

MOGENSEN, DALE ALPHIN

NARRON, HAROLD CORBETT, C FRED

NIEVES PACHECO, JUAN M HERNANDEZ, ALICIA JIMENEZ
PARKER, JAMES R PARKER, LAURA H

PARKER, LARRY N

PEREZ PALOMO, FRANCISCO JAVIER

RAPER, JEAN D TRUSTEE ROYAL, JENNY RAPER TRUSTEE
RICE, CAREY PERRY HEIRS C/O BARBARA RICE
RODRIGUEZ, BENITO

ROSSMAN, MAXINE

RS RENTAL Il LLC

SANDERS HOMES LLC

SANTOS, ALEJANDRO WILIBALDO ROSALES CASTILLO, ELIA ORTEGA
SHAW, SHIRLEY D

7324 SIEMENS RD

304 SIR DAVID DR

610 S WAKEFIELD ST

PO BOX 660

745 S ARENDELL AVE

737 S ARENDELL AVE

5110 UNION DR

550 S WAKEFIELD ST

2709 BELMONT VIEW LOOP
417 SIR DAVID DR

PO BOX 635

2805 AUBURN KNIGHTDALE RD
8212 MITCHELL MILL RD
908 S ARENDELL AVE

500 S WAKEFIELD ST

500 S WAKEFIELD ST

636 BULLHARDT DR

611 S WAKEFIELD ST

1900 LITTLE ELM TRL APT 70
109 TEMPLE JOHNSON RD
3941 ZEBULON RD

624 BULLHARDT DR

3329 MARKS CREEK RD

900 S ARENDELL AVE

409 SIR DAVID DR

1317 MORPHUS BRIDGE RD
3113 CHARLES B ROOT WYND
427 SIR DAVID DR

600 S WAKEFIELD ST

199 LAFAYETTE ST

1008 SAWYER CREEK DR
PO BOX 332

738 S WAKEFIELD ST

129

WENDELL NC 27591-8315
ZEBULON NC 27597-6800
ZEBULON NC 27597-2564
ZEBULON NC 27597-0660
ZEBULON NC 27597-8205
ZEBULON NC 27597-8205
WAKE FOREST NC 27587
ZEBULON NC 27597-2562
CARY NC 27519-7725
ZEBULON NC 27597-6808
WENDELL NC 27591-0635
RALEIGH NC 27610-9712
ZEBULON NC 27597-8445
ZEBULON NC 27597-8208
ZEBULON NC 27597-2562
ZEBULON NC 27597-2562
ZEBULON NC 27597-6810
ZEBULON NC 27597-2565
CEDAR PARKTX 78613-2834
ZEBULON NC 27597-8744
ZEBULON NC 27597-8187
ZEBULON NC 27597-6810
KNIGHTDALE NC 27545-8243
ZEBULON NC 27597-8208
ZEBULON NC 27597-6808
WENDELL NC 27591-8377
RALEIGH NC 27612-5379
ZEBULON NC 27597-6808
ZEBULON NC 27597-2564
NEW YORK NY 10012-4279
ZEBULON NC 27597-6876
WENDELL NC 27591-0332
ZEBULON NC 27597-2566



SILBER, EVA TRUSTEE EVA SILBER LIVING TRUST THE
SPRUILL, JOSEPH PAUL SPRUILL, CONNIE SUE HALL
STANCIL, LAURIE BEATRICE

TEATOR, MICHAEL

TEMPLE, JM

TEMPLE, JOSEPH WOOD

TEMPLE, JOSEPH WOOD SR HUGHES, HARRISON ALEXANDER
TIDEWATER INVESTORS VI LLC

TOVAR, ARMANDO ATOVAR, GERARDO A

TRIANGLE HOMES AND REHAB INC

VILLAFRANCA, IRIS

VILLALPANDO, MIGUEL ANGEL

VINSON, MARTHA H

VINSON, THOMAS E VINSON, APRIL R

WATSON FAMILY Il LLC

5117 MELBOURNE RD
305 SIR DAVID DR

701 S WAKEFIELD ST
744 S WAKEFIELD ST
1424 S HOLLYBROOK RD
1424 SHOLLYBROOK RD
1424 S HOLLYBROOK RD
1011 W GANNON AVE
703 CHANCE CIR

3807 WOODSIDE RD
713 CHANCE CIR

110 LEGEND VALLEY LN UNIT 13

500 PERRY CURTIS RD
520 PERRY CURTIS RD
6220 FORESTVILLE RD

130

RALEIGH NC 27606-1747

ZEBULON NC 27597-6801
ZEBULON NC 27597-2567
ZEBULON NC 27597-2566
WENDELL NC 27591-9584
WENDELL NC 27591-9584
WENDELL NC 27591-9584
ZEBULON NC 27597-2130
ZEBULON NC 27597-6809
GARNER NC 27529-2649

ZEBULON NC 27597-6809
ZEBULON NC 27597-9503
ZEBULON NC 27597-8877
ZEBULON NC 27597-8877
RALEIGH NC 27604-8618



131



132



133



> c 2%  https//wakeweekly.column.us/search?activeNotice=wQWhMRwShGQmMO0IgsC8s-0

Powered by Column

Q, Search @

zebulon
B Date

09/29/2025 10/29/2025
> Notice Type

Select notice type

Reset Get Alerts

© Get your public natice published quickly and ea:

Help Center

it

Notice of Hearing

..pursuant to the provisions of Article 2.3.6 of the Unified Develo
pment Ordinance of the City of Zebulon that a public hearing will
be held on November 3, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. at the Zebuion Muni
pal Complex, 1003 N. Arendell Avenue, and will be conducted by
the Board of Commissioners to consider the following elements: |

© WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CARCLINA ) 2025-10-24

Eb

Estate (Probate) Filings

NOTICE TO CREDITORS ESTATE OF MATTHEW.....the 3rd day of O
ctober, 2025. Anita L. O'Brien, Executor 2301 Baucatcher Lane Zeb
ulon, NC 27597 The Wake Weekly October 3, 10, 17, 24, 2025

@ WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

B z025-10-17

Y - (WAKE COUNTY) BE

Notice of Hearing

..Hearing Notice is hereby given pursuant to the provisicns of Art
icle 2.3.6 of the Town of Zebulon Unified Development Ordinance
that a public hearing will be held on October 13th, 2025, at &:00 P
M at the Zebulon Municipal Complex, 1003 N. Arendell Avenue, a
nd will be conducted by the Board of Commissioners and Plannin

@ WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

) z2025-10-10

. Click "Get Started" to draft and submit your legal notice. For help with commonly asked ques

JAKE WEEKLY -

AKE COUNTY) 2]
Estate (Probate) Filings

NCTICE TO CREDITORS ESTATE OF MATTHEW.....the 3rd day of O

ctober, 2025. Anita L. O'Brien, Executor 2301 Baucatcher Lane Zeb

wlon, NC 27597 The Wake Weekly October 3, 10, 17, 24, 2025

© WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA ) 2025-10-24

NTY) 5]

Notice to Creditors

NOTICE TO CREDITORS The undersigne.....Estate of Charles Phillip
Meeler, Jr. (25E003827-910, Wake County), late of 501 Flowers Av
enue, Zebulon, North Carolina 27597, to exhibit them to the unde
rsigned on or before the January 13, 2026, or this notice will be pl

ead in bar of their recovery. All persons, firms and corporation:

@ WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

9 20251017

THE WAKE WEEKLY - (WAKE COUNTY) g
Estate (Probate) Filings

NCTICE TO CREDITORS ESTATE OF MATTHEW.....the 3rd day of O

ctober, 2025. Anita L. O'Brien, Executor 2301 Baucatcher Lane Zeb

wlon, NC 27597 The Wake Weekly October 3, 10, 17, 24, 2025

@ WAKE COUNTY. NORTH CAROLINA ) 20251010

w @ ¥ @

Notice of Hearing
Published in The Wake Weekly - (Wake County) on October 24, 2025

Location a

Wake County, North Carolina

Notice Text

Notice is hereby given pursuant to the provisions of Article 2.3.6 of the
Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Zebulon that a public
hearing be held on November 3, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. at the Zebulon
Municipal Complex, 1003 N. Arendell Avenue. and will be conducted by
the Board of Commissioners to consider the following elements:

134

ITD Project Number 1854731 A ion 2025-05 A ion of
Zebulon South

PIN #2705512202, 2704482511, 2705413075 and 2705513114, An
application by Deacon Companies, for the annexation of four lots at 5
Wakefield St & 5 Arendell Ave into the corporate boundaries of the city of
Zebulon.

Public comments may be submitted to
publiccomments@townofzebulon.org no later than 12:00 noon on the day
of the hearing to be read on the record. Links will be provided along with
the completed application packet and documentation on the Planning
Department webpage in
https://www.townofzebulon.org/departments/planning/public-hearing-
information. If you have questions or additional information, please
contact us at (919) 823-1811.

The Wake Weekly

October 24, 31, 2025
. >




135



136



137



138



139



140



141



CASE # ORDINANCE 2026-17: Zebulon South Annexation

HEARING DATE: November 3, 2025

State of North Carolina

County of
BEFORE ME, the undersigned Notary, on
this day of 20 , personally appeared Matthew Lower,

known to me to be a credible person and of lawful age, who being by me first duly sworn, on his oath,
deposes and says:

| Matthew Lower, Planning Director for the Town of Zebulon, affirm that the following Public Notice
Procedures have been completed in accordance with applicable North Carolina General Statute and
Town of Zebulon Unified Development Ordinance Section 2.3.6 have been satisfied for the above
referenced hearing.

e Advertisement in a Paper of General Circulation sent on October 21, 2025 (Wake weekly,
publication dates 10/24/2025 & 10/31/2025)

e Posted to Planning Department Website 10/21/2025

e Signs Posted on Site 10/22/2025

e Mailed Notices sent out 10/22/2025

Matthew Lower Date

Subscribed and sworn to before me, this day of 20

[Notary Seal:]

[signature of Notary] [printed name of Notary]

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commission expires: , 20

142



Return to: Town of Zebulon
Town Clerk
1003 N. Arendell Avenue
Zebulon, NC 27597
Attention: Town Clerk

Ordinance 2026-17

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMIT OF THE
TOWN OF ZEBULON, NORTH CAROLINA

PIN 2705512202 - 700 S Arendell Ave
PIN 2704492511 - 751 S Wakefield St
PIN 2705413075 - 0 S Wakefield St
PIN 2705513114 - 730 S Arendell Ave

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon has been petitioned under G.S. 160A-31 to annex the area as
described below; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon has by resolution directed the Town Clerk to investigate the
sufficiency of the petition; and

WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition and a public hearing on the
guestion of this annexation was held at 1003 N. Arendell Avenue at 6:00 PM November 3, 2025
after due notice by publication in the Wake Weekly on October 24, 2025, and October 31, 2025;

and

WHEREAS, the Town of Zebulon finds that the petition meets the requirements of G.S. 160A-31.

143



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Zebulon, North
Carolina that:

Section 1. By virtue of the authority granted by G.S. 160A-31, the attached following
described territory (see attachment) to include the adjoining public right of way (see also
attached map) is hereby annexed and made part of the Town of Zebulon as of November
3, 2025.

Section 2. Upon and after November 3, 2025, the described territory (see
attachment) and its citizens and property shall be subject to all laws, ordinances and
regulations in force in the Town of Zebulon and shall be entitled to the same privileges
and benefits as other parts of the Town of Zebulon. Said territory shall be subject to
municipal taxes according to G.S. 160A-31.

Section 3. The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem of the Town of Zebulon shall cause to be
recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds of Wake County, and in the office of the
Secretary of State at Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory
described in Section 1 above, together with a duly certified copy of this ordinance. Such
a map shall also be delivered to the County Board of Elections, as required by G.S. 163-
288.1.

Adopted this the 3™ day of November 2025.

Glenn L. York —Mayor
(SEAL)

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Dora K. Moore — Interim Town Clerk Eric A. Vernon —Town Attorney

144



145



APPLICATION FOR
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

LEGISLATIVE CONSIDERATIONS — PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

The applicant shall propose site-specific standards and conditions that take into account the following considerations,
which are considerations that are relevant to the legislative determination of whether or not the proposed planned
development is in the public interest. Therese considerations do not exclude the legislative consideration of any other
factor that is relevant to the public interest. Failure to adequately address the findings below may result in denial of
the application. Please provide responses to the following standards as outlined in Section 2.2.15 of the Unified
Development Ordinance.

1.

Please provide details on how the proposed Planned Development advances the public health, safety, or welfare

The proposed Planned Development advances the public health, safety, and welfare of the
community by redeveloping an aged-store and development. The access points are
consistent with existing conditions and new lighting/underground storage tanks will be
included. The proposed development has planned a fence in between the residential and
retail to enhance safety of the neighbors.

Please provide details on how the proposed Planned Development is appropriate for its proposed location, and is
consistent with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the Town’s adopted policy guidance.

The proposed Planned Development is appropriate for its proposed location and is
consistent with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the Town's adopted policy
guidance because it maintains the current use but modifies the orientation to be consistent
with new Town standards and Comprehensive Plan.

Please provide details on how the proposed Planned Development is reasonable and in the public interest.

The proposed Planned Development is reasonable and in the public interest because it
redevelops an aged-store and development. The development will become consistent with
new Town standards and Comprehensive Plan.

Please provide details on how the proposed Planned Unit Development provides for innovative land planning and site
design concepts that support a high quality of life and achieve a high quality of development, environmental sensitivity,
energy efficiency, and other Town goals and objectives.

The proposed Planned Development provides for innovative land planning and site design
concepts that support a high quality of life and achieve a high quality of development,
environmental sensitivity, energy efficiency, and other Town goals and objectives because
the store will be rebuilt to current Sheetz standards, including the latest lighting design,
which is most efficient. The development will become in compliance with the latest Town
standards.

Please provide details on how the proposed planned unit development provides improved means of access, open space, and design
amenities;

The proposed Planned Development provides improved means of access, open space, and
design amenities because it is not increasing the impervious area onsite, the existing
stormwater management pond is being maintained, and the access points are being
maintained. A new amenity for the community, a pick-up window, is being proposed so
customers can have easier accessibility to getting food and beverage from the store.

146
Page 4 of 10


Heather.Timothy
Text Box
The proposed Planned Development is appropriate for its proposed location and is consistent with the purposes, goals, objectives, and policies of the Town's adopted policy guidance because it maintains the current use but modifies the orientation to be consistent with new Town standards and Comprehensive Plan. 

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
The proposed Planned Development is reasonable and in the public interest because it redevelops an aged-store and development. The development will become consistent with new Town standards and Comprehensive Plan.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
The proposed Planned Development advances the public health, safety, and welfare of the community by redeveloping an aged-store and development. The access points are consistent with existing conditions and new lighting/underground storage tanks will be included. The proposed development has planned a fence in between the residential and retail to enhance safety of the neighbors.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
The proposed Planned Development provides for innovative land planning and site design concepts that support a high quality of life and achieve a high quality of development, environmental sensitivity, energy efficiency, and other Town goals and objectives because the store will be rebuilt to current Sheetz standards, including the latest lighting design, which is most efficient. The development will become in compliance with the latest Town standards.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
The proposed Planned Development provides improved means of access, open space, and design amenities because it is not increasing the impervious area onsite, the existing stormwater management pond is being maintained, and the access points are being maintained. A new amenity for the community, a pick-up window, is being proposed so customers can have easier accessibility to getting food and beverage from the store. 


APPLICATION FOR
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

Please provide details on how the proposed Planned Unit Development provides a well-integrated mix of residential and
nonresidential land uses in the same development, including a mix of housing types, lot sizes, and densities;

The proposed Planned Development provides a commercial use that is adjacent to a
residential use.

Please provide details on how the proposed Planned Unit Development creates a system of incentives for redevelopment
and infill in order to revitalize established areas;

The proposed Planned Development creates a system of incentives for redevelopment and
infill in order to revitalize established areas because it is demolishing and rebuilding a
successful, existing use in order to bring the site up to current standards and appearance.
Completing this rebuild project will allow Sheetz to continue to bring in business for the
community for another 15+ years.

Please provide details on how the proposed Planned Unit Development promotes a vibrant public realm by placing
increased emphasis on active ground floor uses, pedestrian-oriented building fagade design, intensive use of sidewalks,
and establishment of public gathering areas;

The proposed Planned Development promotes a vibrant public realm by including bike
racks, outdoor seating, and maintains the open space adjacent to the street frontages.

Please provide details on how the proposed Planned Unit Development provides for efficient use of land resulting in
smaller networks of utilities and streets and thereby lowering development and housing costs; and

The proposed Planned Development provides for efficient use of land because it maintains
the existing use. There is no new Town infrastructure required.

10.

Please provide details on how the proposed Planned Unit Development provides quality design and environmentally
sensitive development that respects surrounding established land use character and respects and takes advantage of a
site’s natural and man-made features, such as trees, estuaries, shorelines, special flood hazard area, and historic features.

The proposed Planned Development provides quality design and environmentally sensitive
development because it is maintaining the existing open space and stormwater
management facility onsite. The vegetated buffer in between the Sheetz and residential
property will be increased along with the addition of a fence to prevent noise.

11.

Other factors as the Board of Commissioners may determine to be relevant.

147
Page 5 of 10


Heather.Timothy
Text Box
The proposed Planned Development provides a commercial use that is adjacent to a residential use.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
The proposed Planned Development creates a system of incentives for redevelopment and infill in order to revitalize established areas because it is demolishing and rebuilding a successful, existing use in order to bring the site up to current standards and appearance. Completing this rebuild project will allow Sheetz to continue to bring in business for the community for another 15+ years. 

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
The proposed Planned Development promotes a vibrant public realm by including bike racks, outdoor seating, and maintains the open space adjacent to the street frontages.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
The proposed Planned Development provides for efficient use of land because it maintains the existing use. There is no new Town infrastructure required.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
The proposed Planned Development provides quality design and environmentally sensitive development because it is maintaining the existing open space and stormwater management facility onsite. The vegetated buffer in between the Sheetz and residential property will be increased along with the addition of a fence to prevent noise.


JUNE 2, 2025

148


Heather.Timothy
Text Box
JUNE 2, 2025


APPLICATION FOR
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

CONCEPT PLAN REQUIREMENTS

Every applicant requesting Planned Development approval shall submit 8 copies and 1 pdf CHECKIF
(e-mail or USB Drive) of a concept plan drawing with the application for a Planned SUBMITTED
Development. The concept plan shall contain sufficient information to adequately determine

the type of development being proposed. The concept plan drawing shall include, at a

minimum, the following features unless otherwise specified by the Planning Department:

ITEM

1. Plot plan showing all existing and planned structures, building setback lines, v
perimeter boundaries, and easements.

2. Elevation drawings of all buildings indicating the proposed exterior finish materials. v

3. Landscaping plan, lighting, fencing, screening, and walls, indicating all heights and v
locations.

4. Location of all ingress and egress. v

5. Off-street parking and loading facilities, with calculations showing how the v
quantities were obtained.

6. All pedestrian walks and open areas for use by residents, tenants, or the public. v

7. Proposed land uses indicating areas in square feet. v

8. The location and types of all signs, including lighting and heights, with elevation v
drawings.

9. Existing and/or proposed street names. v

10. Proposed potable or reuse water, wastewater connections, and storm sewer line; v
proposed grading and drainage patterns; proposed water and sewer allocations.

11. Such additional items and conditions, including design standards as the Planning N/A
Board and Board of Commissioners deems necessary.

12. Trip generation data and TIA if applicable in accordance with Section 6.13 of the v
uUDO.

149
Page 7 of 10


Heather.Timothy
KH - Check

Heather.Timothy
KH - Check

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
N/A

Heather.Timothy
KH - Check

Heather.Timothy
KH - Check

Heather.Timothy
KH - Check

Heather.Timothy
KH - Check

Heather.Timothy
KH - Check

Heather.Timothy
KH - Check

Heather.Timothy
KH - Check

Heather.Timothy
KH - Check

Heather.Timothy
KH - Check


APPLICATION FOR
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

PROPOSED USES

An application has been duly filed requesting that the property described in this application be rezoned from

HC (HEAVY COMMERCIAL) to PD (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT) . It is understood and acknowledged that if the
property is rezoned as requested, the property described in this request will be perpetually bound to the use(s)
authorized and subject to such conditions as imposed, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in
the Unified Development Ordinance. It is further understood and acknowledged that final plans for any specific
development to be made pursuant to any such Planned Development shall be submitted for site or subdivision plan
approval. Use additional pages as needed.

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses are
subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the Use Table and any additional limitations or regulations stated
below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the Unified Development Ordinance may be referenced; such
references do not imply that other sections of the Unified Development Ordinance do not apply.

1. CONVENIENCE STORE (WITH GASOLINE SALES) | 25,
2. 26.
3. 27.
4. 28.
5. 29.
6. 30.
7. 31.
8. 32.
9. 33.
10. 34.
11. 35.
12. 36.
13. 37.
14. 38.
15. 39.
16 40.
17. 41.
18. 42.
19. 43.
20. 44,
21. 45,
22. 46.
23. 47.
24. 48.

150
Page 8 of 10


Heather.Timothy
Text Box
HC (HEAVY COMMERCIAL)

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
PD (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT)

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
CONVENIENCE STORE (WITH GASOLINE SALES)


APPLICATION FOR
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS

The applicant hereby requests that the Zebulon Board of Commissioners, pursuant to Section 3.3.5 of the Unified
Development Ordinance, approve the Proposed Planned Development with above listed use(s), subject to the
following condition(s), requested deviations, and proposed alternative means of compliance. (Attach additional
pages as needed)

Condition #1:
Modification from 5.3.2.3.a&b of Mixed-Use Design Standards:
The building will be configured as shown on the site plan.

Condition #2:

Modification from 5.3.2.4.a

The building will occupy approximately 25% of the frontage along Pearces Road.

The building will occupy approximately 50% of the frontage along N Arendell Avenue (NC 96).

Condition #3:
Modification from 5.3.2.6.a&b
A drive aisle and parking rows are proposed between the building and the N Arendell Avenue (NC 96).

Condition #4:
Modification from 5.3.2.8.b
Alternative transparency requirements are provided along Pearces Road.

Condition #5:
Modification from 5.3.2.12
A pick-up window is proposed with this development.

Condition #6:

Modification from 5.6.12.D.1

The street buffer along Pearces Road is 8' All other buffer requirements are met. Curb line is consistent with existing
conditions.

Condition #7:

Modification from Table 5.6.10.C

The buffer along the adjacent commercial property is 3 feet. All other buffer requirements are met. Curb line is consistent
with existing conditions.

Condition #8:
Modification from Table 5.11.9.M
There will be two wall signs on the front building facade.

151
Page 9 of 10


Heather.Timothy
Text Box
Condition #1: 
Modification from 5.3.2.3.a&b of Mixed-Use Design Standards:
The building will be configured as shown on the site plan. 

Condition #2:
Modification from 5.3.2.4.a
The building will occupy approximately 25% of the frontage along Pearces Road. 
The building will occupy approximately 50% of the frontage along N Arendell Avenue (NC 96).

Condition #3:
Modification from 5.3.2.6.a&b
A drive aisle and parking rows are proposed between the building and the N Arendell Avenue (NC 96).

Condition #4:
Modification from 5.3.2.8.b
Alternative transparency requirements are provided along Pearces Road.

Condition #5:
Modification from 5.3.2.12
A pick-up window is proposed with this development.

Condition #6:
Modification from 5.6.12.D.1
The street buffer along Pearces Road is 8' All other buffer requirements are met. Curb line is consistent with existing conditions.

Condition #7:
Modification from Table 5.6.10.C
The buffer along the adjacent commercial property is 3 feet. All other buffer requirements are met. Curb line is consistent with existing conditions.

Condition #8:
Modification from Table 5.11.9.M
There will be two wall signs on the front building facade.




APPLICATION FOR
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT

PROPOSED USES

An application has been duly filed requesting that the property described in this application be rezoned from

HC (HEAVY COMMERCIAL) to PD (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT) . It is understood and acknowledged that if the
property is rezoned as requested, the property described in this request will be perpetually bound to the use(s)
authorized and subject to such conditions as imposed, unless subsequently changed or amended as provided for in
the Unified Development Ordinance. It is further understood and acknowledged that final plans for any specific
development to be made pursuant to any such Planned Development shall be submitted for site or subdivision plan
approval. Use additional pages as needed.

The Rezoned Lands may be used for, and only for, the uses listed immediately below. The permitted uses are
subject to the limitations and regulations stated in the Use Table and any additional limitations or regulations stated
below. For convenience, some relevant sections of the Unified Development Ordinance may be referenced; such
references do not imply that other sections of the Unified Development Ordinance do not apply.

1. CONVENIENCE STORE (WITH GASOLINE SALES) | 25,
2. DRIVE THROUGH / PICK-UP WINDOW 26.
3. 27.
4. 28.
5. 29.
6. 30.
7. 31.
8. 32.
9. 33.
10. 34.
11. 35.
12. 36.
13. 37.
14. 38.
15. 39.
16 40.
17. 41.
18. 42.
19. 43.
20. 44,
21. 45,
22. 46.
23. 47.
24. 48.

152
Page 8 of 10


Heather.Timothy
Text Box
HC (HEAVY COMMERCIAL)

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
PD (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT)

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
CONVENIENCE STORE (WITH GASOLINE SALES)

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
DRIVE THROUGH / PICK-UP WINDOW


INFORMATION PACKET FOR
NEIGHBORHOOD MEETINGS

NOTICE OF NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING

This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the
Town’s website or disclosed to third parties.

Dear Neighbor:
You are invited to a neighborhood meeting to review and discuss the development proposal at:

1406 N ARENDELL AVENUE, ZEBULON, NC 27597 2706011220
(Address) (Pin Numbers)

in accordance with the Town of Zebulon Neighborhood Meeting procedures. This meeting is intended to be a
way for the applicant to discuss the project and review the proposed plans with adjacent neighbors and
neighborhood organizations before the submittal of an application to the Town. This provides neighbors an
opportunity to raise questions and discuss any concerns about the impacts of the project before it is officially
submitted. Once an application has been submitted to the Town, it may be tracked using the Interactive
Development Map located on the Town of Zebulon website at:

https://www.townofzebulon.org/planning/interactive-development-map

A Neighborhood Meeting is requested because this project will include:
O Conditional Rezoning
Planned Unit Development
Site Plan within the Downtown Core or Downtown Periphery Zoning Districts
Zoning Map Amendment (results in more intensive uses or increased density)
Special Use Permit (Quasi-Judicial Hearing)
*Quasi-Judicial Hearing: The Board of Commissioners cannot discuss the project prior to the public hearing.

000K

The following is a description of the proposed (also see attached map(s) and/or plan sheet(s)):
Redevelopment of the existing Sheetz site. The building and site will be demoed and rebuilt to
include a 6,139 SF building with a pickup window and 1 additional MPD. The existing car wash
will be removed. New landscaping will be included.

Estimated Submittal Date: APRIL 30, 2025

MEETING INFORMATION:
Property Owner(s) Name(s) OLDE HERITAGE PROPERTIES LLC

Applicant(s) KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. ON BEHALF OF SHEETZ, INC.

Contact Information (e-mail/phone) HEATH ER.TIMOTHY@KIMLEY-HORN.COM

Meeting Address: ZEBULON COMMUNITY CENTER; 301 S ARENDELL AVE, ZEBULON, NC 27597
Date of Meeting: ~ THURSDAY, APRIL 17, 2025

Time of Meeting: _6:00 - 8:00 PM

**Meetings shall occur between 5:00 p.m.-9:00 p.m. on a Monday through Thursday (excluding Town recognized holidays). If you have questions
about the general process for this application, please contact the Planning Department at 919-823-1809. You may also find information about the
Zebulon Planning Department and on-going planning efforts at https://www.townofzebulon.org/services/planning

153
Page 3 of 8


Heather.Timothy
Text Box
1406 N ARENDELL AVENUE, ZEBULON, NC 27597

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
2706011220

Heather.Timothy
KH - Check

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
APRIL 30, 2025

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
OLDE HERITAGE PROPERTIES LLC

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. ON BEHALF OF SHEETZ, INC.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
HEATHER.TIMOTHY@KIMLEY-HORN.COM

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
ZEBULON COMMUNITY CENTER; 301 S ARENDELL AVE, ZEBULON, NC 27597

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
THURSDAY, APRIL 17, 2025

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
6:00 - 8:00 PM

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
Redevelopment of the existing Sheetz site. The building and site will be demoed and rebuilt to include a 6,139 SF building with a pickup window and 1 additional MPD. The existing car wash will be removed. New landscaping will be included.  


INFORMATION PACKET FOR
NEIGHBORHOOD MEETINGS

PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION

This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to third
parties.

Development Contacts:

Project Name: 416 SHEETZ ZEBULON \ Zoning: HC, HEAVY COMMERCIAL (CURRENT)
Location: 1406 N ARENDELL AVE (CORNER OF PEARCES RD & N ARENDELL AVE)
Property PIN(s): 2706011220 ‘ Acreage/Square Feet: 2.50

Property Owner: OLDE HERITAGE PROPERTIES LLC

Address: 806 N ARENDELL AVE

City: ZEBULON | State: NC Zip: 27597

Phone: N/A Email: N/A

Developer: SHEETZ, INC.

Address: 243 SHEETZ WAY

City: CLAYSBURG State: PA Z1p:16625

Phone: 814-312-1705 Fax: N/A Email: KBROWN@SHEETZ.COM

Engineer: KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

Address: 421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET, SUITE 600

City: RALEIGH State: NC Zip: 27601

Phone: 703-870-3644 Fax: Email: HEATHER.TIMOTHY @KIMLEY-HORN.COM
Builder (if known):

Address:

City: State: Zip:

Phone: Fax: Email:

154
Page 4 of 8


Heather.Timothy
Text Box
OLDE HERITAGE PROPERTIES LLC

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
ZEBULON

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
NC

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
27597

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
SHEETZ, INC.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
HEATHER.TIMOTHY@KIMLEY-HORN.COM

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
NC

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
27601

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
703-870-3644

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
RALEIGH

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET, SUITE 600

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
416 SHEETZ ZEBULON

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
HC, HEAVY COMMERCIAL (CURRENT)

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
1406 N ARENDELL AVE (CORNER OF PEARCES RD & N ARENDELL AVE)

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
2706011220

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
2.50

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
243 SHEETZ WAY

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
CLAYSBURG

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
PA

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
16625

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
KBROWN@SHEETZ.COM

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
814-312-1705

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
N/A

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
N/A

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
N/A

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
806 N ARENDELL AVE


[any

N

W

1)

[0]

~

0o

©

1

[=]

1

[N

12

13

14

1

1)

16

17

18

19

2

(=]

2

[y

22

23

24

2

ol

26

27

28

29

PIN Property Owner Name Property Address Mailing Address
2705184110 |Town of Zebulon Planning Department 1003 N Arendell Ave Same as property address
13037 NC HIGHWAY 39
2706012606 |WAKELON TOWNHOMES HOMEOWNERS ASSN INC 201 Pearces Rd
ZEBULON NC 27597-8028
1212 Wicker D
1796919353 |Wake County Board of Alchoholic Control 1420 N Arendell Ave icker br
RALEIGH, NC 27604-1428
120 EAST END AVE APT 10B
1796918552  (WEN 14582 ZEBULON LLC 1500 N Arendell Ave
NEW YORK VA 10028
1796915297 [TRIARC FOOD SYSTEMS INC 1513 N Arendell Ave 4905 WATERS EDGE DR
RALEIGH NC 27606-2405
PO BOX 167
1796902666 [TRUIST BANK 49 Green Pace Rd
WINSTON SALEM NC 27102-0167
1796907983  [PARRISH REALTY CO OF ZEBULON INC 1413 N Arendell Ave 2072 EARPSBORO RD
ZEBULON NC 27597-6896
LNPINC POBOX 1128
1796909941 1405 N Arendell Ave
PARRISH REALTY C/O RENEE BAKER ZEBULON NC 27597-1128
1796908821 [PARRISH REALTY CO OF ZEBULON INC 0 N Arendell Ave 2072 EARPSBORO RD
ZEBULON NC 27597-6896
POBOX 1128
2706000800 |LNPINC 1403 N Arendell Ave
ZEBULON NC 27597-1128
LNPINC POBOX 1128
2706000607 1309 N Arendell Ave
PARRISH REALTY C/O RENEE BAKER ZEBULON NC 27597-1128
2706001516 |EDDINS OIL COMPANY INC 1301 N Arendell Ave Same as property address
2706002456 |BB CAR WASH LLC DR CARWASH LLC 1211 N Arendell Ave 120 WIND CHIME CT
RALEIGH NC 27615-6433
120 WIND CHIME CT
2706003318 |BB CARWASH LLC DR CARWASH LLC 1209 N Arendell Ave
RALEIGH NC 27615-6433
2705091833 |BB CARWASH LLC DR CARWASH LLC 0 Hendricks Dr 120 WIND CHIME CT
RALEIGH NC 27615-6433
2701 E MILLBROOK RD
2706003875 |BELLWOOD FOREST LLC 1300 N Arendell Ave
RALEIGH NC 27604-2811
WAFFLE HOUSE INC 5986 FINANCIAL DR
2706013095 102 Pearces Rd
TAX DEPARTMENT NORCROSS GA 30071-2949
1609 WHISPERING MEADOWS DR
2706015099 |CG ENTERPRISES OF NC LLC 301 Jones St
ZEBULON NC 27597-7367
3715 HINTON GROVE PL
2706014107 |LE, KHANH Q NGUYEN, NGOC N 106 Pearces Rd
RALEIGH NC 27604-5058
2706014224 |CG ENTERPRISES OF NC LLC 108 Pearces Rd 1609 WHISPERING MEADOWS DR
ZEBULON NC 27597-7367
603 BRANTLEYTOWN RD
2706016424 |BUNN, DONNA GREEN GREEN, RICHARD ALLEN 204 Pearces Rd
ZEBULON NC 27597-6021
) 101 NOSTALGIA LN
2706012471 |MANDAL, ABIRK 101 Nostalgia Ln
ZEBULON NC 27597-6871
2706012442 |SILVER, RODERICKN 103 Nostalgia Ln 103 NOSTALGIALN
’ 8 ZEBULON NC 27597-6871
) 105 NOSTALGIA LN
2706012423 |HEMPHILL, ANDREW SCOTT 105 Nostalgia Ln
ZEBULON NC 27597-6871
2706011494  |WILSON, SHELIA COUNCIL 107 Nostalgia Ln 107 NOSTALGIALN
’ 8 ZEBULON NC 27597-6871
) 109 NOSTALGIA LN
2706011475 |GILLEENY, RYAN GILLEENY, KYNDRA 109 Nostalgia Ln
ZEBULON NC 27597-6871
2706011446 |DAUPHINAIS, STEPHANIE DAUPHINAIS, PAUL B 111 Nostalgia Ln 111 NOSTALGIALN
’ ’ 8 ZEBULON NC 27597-6871
) 113 NOSTALGIA LN
2706011417 |HARPER, MARTHA ANN 113 Nostalgia Ln
ZEBULON NC 27597-6871
2706010523 |UNDERHILL, KAREN 201 Nostalgia Ln Same as property address

155




3

(=]

3
32
33
34
3

-

a1

36

37
38

39

4

(=]

4

=

42
43
44

4

a1

MOSS, KIMBERLY HOCUTT EXECUTOR THE ESTATE OF

10704 THORNBURY CREST CT

2706010536 203 Nostalgia Ln
EVA D HOCUTT RALEIGH NC 27614-7845
2706010548 |BINDER, TINA H BINDER, MICHAEL | 205 Nostalgia Ln Same as property address
2706010651 |SCHILLING, DOMENICK CAIN, LORI 207 Nostalgia Ln Same as property address
2706010666 |MACHACEK, JOHN D MACHACEK, ELLEN G 209 Nostalgia Ln Same as property address
2706010679 |KUHN, GERALD G KUHN, YARITZA 211 Nostalgia Ln Same as property address
2706010781 |BLACKWELL, EMILY 213 Nostalgia Ln Same as property address
2706011576 |BERUBE, TAD ARTHUR 300 Nostalgia Ln 8721 ZEIGLER DR
’ 8 KNIGHTDALE NC 27545-7466
2706012518 |GUEVARA, BETHANN M 304 Nostalgia Ln Same as property address
2706012536 |CARAPELLE, BEVERLY L 106 Nostalgia Ln Same as property address
) PO BOX 1629
2706012555 |EGGIMANN, PETER EGGIMANN, DEVERA 104 Nostalgia Ln
WENDELL NC 27591-1629
2706012584 |WHITE, AMESHA 102 Nostalgia Ln 102NOSTALGIALN
’ 8 ZEBULON NC 27597-6870
SPELLER, JULIAN THOMAS TRUSTEE SPELLER, BRENDA ) 106 E LEE ST
2706013513 100 Nostalgia Ln
AYERS TRUSTEE ZEBULON NC 27597-2426
2706013519 |INGRAM, BIELCA INGRAM, WILLIAM 308 Nostalgia Ln Same as property address
2706013622 |PAUL, BETTY 311 Nostalgia Ln Same as property address
1796917959 |WAKEFIELD CENTRAL BAPTIST CHURCH 308 Proctor St Same as property address
1188 COCO PALMS DR
1796916679  [BL FAMILY TRUST 1512 N Arendell Ave

EL CAJON CA 92020-7873

156




INFORMATION PACKET FOR.
NEIGHBORHOOD MEETINGS

ZEBU LON

NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING SIGN-IN SHEET:

This document is a public recard under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town's website or disclosed to third
parties.

Project Name: SheefZ Hip Zebolowm
Meeting Address; Ztbulor® Pmmounity CM) B0l S Arended! Ave Zdoulen NC 27547

Date of Meeting: ___Thersday Aprit 17 20 2.5 Time of Meeting: :00-8:00 ¢nA
Property Owner(s) Names: _01d € Hevitaoe P (opesties LL.C
Applicants: _SheetZ inc.

Please print your name below, state your address and/or affiliation with a neighborhood group, and provide your phone
number and email address. Providing your name below does not represent support or opposition to the project; it is for
documentation purposes only.

Name/ Organization Address Phone# E-mail
; Tine 2 Whi5o Binden aﬁégnﬁg‘@igm La_ |96 00t -8 dabmib@ G wouD .con),
wdon_ AL
3 | Dagménick S | Jo7 Mestaccit o | 909.913 Tlew )éo#mcmé@fvc AR ]
4 | Farew Undel k7 l/ =YY i ¢ 279576 | Lendordett Bome i L
5 EBJ&M‘& Seloar iof& ‘%ﬁﬁ-f’v 152883 - o6 flaa] 5%"’@';‘&4""’“"‘!’ LD,
6 Emm%aczs 1207 Wicke, br. ﬁ'&%& N-912-220|  bhicks @ wakeabe com.
7 1Locy Cane L7 Nosstadasalnl 19 -44q-Ship>
8 | Shebhtnsre Dawfhin/s /] /WJMRM Lol | Gio 4231 Ciaa,M dgﬁ.fﬂ@éﬁlé‘aﬂ et
9 | Yo asel VO i Lt (B281555A800 L o L. M
10\ Dnew Hruphill (0% M@siuﬁm Lo |91 -215-941l leﬂﬁz?@mw o,
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Attach Additional Sheets If Necessary.

157 Page 6 of 8



Name: LOF‘ C/ﬁwﬁéﬂk

Email/ Phone: 6%%\&]&}\@3 ﬁ{, @ %/M\@@ (O ﬂ/\

Comment/Ouestlon AAS %M& mwﬁﬁj&; iQ. ﬁ} ‘D(OQM“%W‘@ W
@,@Mm Nes _MW\D@R} AN Burerer Dadl Deioeen
i a’ : I :

*”l/’"\{jai/\éaiw el o eanadoo OIS Juac™0 oy
D drup wm;oiew Aaumﬁmmmbaw w\,\uvw@\ watulovy
Name: D OMEMICHK §c,gf«{f(,uﬂf

Email/ Phone: DSCHIU-NG @ Ne , #2 . covu 91§ 9%, 7600
Comment/Question:  (OMEANS - ﬁ/ﬁﬁfj 4 fﬂ#/jﬁil(;/, //(?//7/,/

Covtsre BARcR. Between us L slicere Please
e

Name: Laven  Onserhl))
Email / Phone: Wﬁw (@ Al CIm P27 95 /6
Comment/OueStlon M dfj“w WWW Caed iy AR, u—yff_..

MW!\ L»fxbu.vm V“‘ﬁm MWWWM /}\,Mé%,v,
MWW—W Lossramad . /:/LW /kﬁ-w««ﬁrrw

Name:’ef'%n&f;ﬂ&’ S uss’
 Email/Phone: Neal 3He@hstmar [ ope 252 88306 u
e Comment/Question: ’Bu.} Mz Smuﬂé_« Parcsn s | %L}w%« ﬂw?\’ »lmw., hmd{

158



Name: !L)DV/V CC{A A,

Email/ Phone: SWW\\[&E\U\JA\“M ¢ M’M LOW
Comment/Question: M\\@\\}V\%ﬁ/\ﬁ /)‘.ﬁ@ﬁ"& \.)Q K% [@V\/\ﬁ« E)\'\-;% ﬁ q/g/\‘/b

Dm\&i’ \ Q\A@%%Mﬁ@“\x% CWNetkg o Wik (0 M“)M
T@% %deﬁ U NLE S b dee ) M@\Mﬂ%f%mw

Name: ~7véaa_ Brnder
RV G-{, o4 85%L2,
Comment/Question; ‘rffa/!\k:m g\fQQ@QI\;‘{:s ; ‘\&038@ &N\Q@
Mpoe Air alds . Noge Piene T les , TTuin Qmu».c@ircc@}«r e
“lownhames 15 gh 4+ Mo Rood W 2 Lewn 1% Qﬁﬁ&@b\ DR £ LD NeAD

e o KTkl QL:D

Email / Phone:

Name;mgm[aﬂ “E{W&S (Wﬁkc G)U\ﬂj}‘f %EC)
bhicks @ waleabe, com T19-¥33-27

Comment/Question:

S ompren cxsts  on (1) e Wake A0 ﬁfwws‘f@f as i appenrs access s lost
~beomn <t Stz poperty.  We e _doed Sangboan A T salln s i
@wﬁw 4

AO025 S ¥, S

jm/vz/\ ﬂ&fm@% M (Ja?\ %"ﬁ?ﬁl?yw% 5+ any
4 @(57[5 () ovt of Statewedds

Vg NS“S @ 55 ) a5 A Cﬂbﬁf ACCeL S W‘/
L NC’/%M{T&() Wﬂz&@ ABC % '—(\W Z‘%[fr% G pengls t‘/‘llmcﬁ Sy Prgfga/‘-‘icy womadlp

Email/ Phone:

159



160



Timothy, Heather

From: A Harper <nnhrpr3@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, April 16, 2025 10:21 PM
To: kbrown@sheetz.com; Timothy, Heather
Subject: Sheetz Redevelopment Zebulon NC
Attachments: Sheetz Redevelopment.docx
Categories: External

You don't often get email from nnhrpr3@gmail.com. Learn why this is important

M. Ann Harper

113 Nostalgia Ln, Zebulon, NC 27597
nnhrpr3@gmail.com

919.333.5898

161



Olde Heritage Properties LLC
Sheetz, Inc.

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. on Behalf of Sheetz, Inc.

To Whom it May Concern:

I’'m writing to express my concerns of the proposed redevelopment of the Sheetz located on
Arendell Ave. and Pearce Rd. in Zebulon NC.

(1) Safety & Privacy: My property, (113 Nostalgia Ln) sits directly behind and in between the car
wash and the ABC store. Non-residents of Wakelon Townhomes have now made a path thru the
woods adjacent to my property to gain access to the Sheetz. This has become very alarming and
a safety concern.

Solution: A concrete divider wall to limit pedestrian traffic of non-residents.

(2) Noise: The proposed redevelopment would significantly increase the already high volume of
noise. Increased construction noise during the development process could disrupt our daily
living and privacy.

Solution: A concrete divider wall that will absorb some of the noise. Limit the hours of
operation, particularly for the food pickup window.

(3) Increased Traffic: The proposed redevelopment would also drastically increase the already
congested area.

Solution: Close the entrance on Pearce Rd. and add a second entrance on Arendell Ave. Widen
Pearce’s Rd. and add turn lanes to accommodate the increase of traffic.

Thank you for taking the time to review my concerns. | hope you consider the potential
implications of this redevelopment.

Sincerely,

M. Ann Harper
113 Nostalgia Ln
Zebulon NC 27597

162



Timothy, Heather

From: Wakelon Townhomes <wakelonhoa@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, April 18, 2025 10:28 AM

To: Timothy, Heather

Subject: Wakelon Townhomes Community Feedback for Sheetz Redevelopment Plan
Categories: External

You don't often get email from wakelonhoa@gmail.com. Learn why this is important

Hello Heather -

Thanks to Chris, Tom and yourself for presenting the initial plans for the Sheetz demolition and re-
build to some of the residents here at Wakelon Townhomes in Zebulon last night. It was very helpful, and
I hope that we can put together a plan that will be satisfactory to everyone.

Below I've pasted my email to our residents, and two responses received that you can add to your
community feedback. | didn't simply forward the whole chain since there is a lot of extraneous stuff that
would just clog up your email (out of office replies, undeliverable addresses etc.).

The responses were from Gina Pace of 305 Nostalgia Ln and Courtney Parker West of 301 Nostalgia
Ln. Let me know if you need any other information.

Sincerely,
Domenick Schilling

President, Wakelon Townhomes HOA
207 NostalgiaLn

Hello All -

Everyone should have received the notice regarding the changes at the Sheetz station. PLEASE READ

IT! There are plans to demolish the Sheetz station and rebuild it with more pumps and a drive-thru pick up
window. This means more traffic and more noise and more people cutting through the neighborhood or
using it as a turn around.

There will be a meeting on Thursday 4/17 from 6:00pm - 8:00pm to ask questions and express concerns. You
can just stop in anytime, you don't need to be there right at 6:00 or stay for the entire time. Please make
plans to go if at all possible.

Some ideas I thought about:

1. A concrete divider wall (not a landscape buffer) between Wakelon Townhomes and Sheetz.

2. Close off the entrance to Sheetz from Pearces Rd and add another entrance from Arendell Ave.

3. Widen Pearces Rd and add turn lanes to accommodate the increased # of cars trying to get in and out of
Sheetz.

4. Limit the hours of operation, particularly for the food pick up window.

1
163



We need as many residents as possible to show up on Thursday and make our voices heard!

If you have more questions or did not receive the notice, please let me know. I hope to see everyone at the
meeting Thursday evening.

Sincerely,

Domenick

Hey Domenick!

| am unable to make the meeting since | am out of state BUT | wanted to add a suggestion to your
list, expanding on some of your ideas.

They would DEFINITELY need to close off the entrance to Pearce's Rd. or only make it accessible for
vehicles coming toward Arendell (like an entrance for cars that are turning right only but requiring
them to exit at a new stop light, SPECIFICALLY to enter and exit Sheetz. They could make their new
stop light further down the road and mimic the one down in Nashville with turning lanes and a longer
driveway.

That's all | can think of at the moment.. This has got my brain scrambled! | love your ideas and
appreciate you fighting for our little community!

Thanks so much!

| cannot make it tonight, but | cosign the suggestions above. Please keep those of us unable to attend
informed on how it goes! Thank you for representing community interests.

Best,

Courtney

164



INFORMATION PACKET FOR
NEIGHBORHOOD MEETINGS

SUMMARY OF DISCUSSION FROM THE NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING

This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s website or disclosed to third
parties.

Project Name: 416 SHEETZ ZEBULON

Meeting Address: ZEBULON COMMUNITY CENTER; 301 S ARENDELL AVE, ZEBULON, NC 27597
Date of Meeting: _ THURSDAY, APRIL 17, 2025 Time of Meeting: 6:00 - 8:00 PM
Property Owner(s) Names: OLDE HERITAGE PROPERTIES LLC

Applicants: _ KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. ON BEHALF OF SHEETZ, INC.

Please summarize the questions/comments and your response from the Neighborhood Meeting in the spaces below (attach
additional sheets, if necessary). Please state if/how the project has been modified in response to any concerns. The response
should not be “Noted” or “No Response”. There has to be documentation of what consideration the neighbor’s concern was
given and justification for why no change was deemed warranted.

Question/ Concern #1 NOISE

Applicant Response:

SHEETZ WILL IMPLEMENT A NOISE BARRIER FENCE ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE THAT IS ADJACENT TO THE
NEIGHBORHOOD. SHEETZ WILL ALSO RELOCATE ONE OF THE AIR MACHINES TO THE OPPOSITE SIDE OF THE
SITE AS WELL AS THEIR DUMPSTER. THE ABC DUMPSTER MUST REMAIN AS-IS DUE TO DELIVERIES (ONCE A
MONTH). THE PICK-UP WINDOW WILL NOT HAVE ANY SPEAKERS.

Question/ Concern #2 _ CUT THROUGH - THE NEIGHBORS ARE CONCERNED WITH PEOPLE WALKING
THROUGH THE NEIGHBORHOOD TO GO TO SHEETZ.

Applicant Response:

THE NOISE BARRIER FENCE WILL ALSO HELP LIMIT PEOPLE CUTTING THROUGH THE NEIGHBORHOOD TO GO
TO SHEETZ.

TRAFFIC - THE NEIGHBORS ARE CONCERNED WITH VEHICLES BLOCKING THEIR
Question/ Concern #3 ACCESS POINT, SHEETZ CUSTOMERS COMING INTO THEIR NEIGHBORHOOD TO
TURNAROUND SO THEY CAN MAKE A RIGHT INTO THE SHEETZ, AND ONLY 1 LEFT
TURN LANE AT THE INTERSECTION.

Applicant Response:

SHEETZ UNDERSTANDS THAT THE TOWN HAS PLANS TO IMPROVE THE ROAD ADJACENT TO THE SITE. THE NEIGHBORS HAVE BEEN
AWARE OF THESE FUTURE PLANS. RECENT SIGNAL TIMING UPDATES HAVE BEEN IMPLEMENTED PER NCDOT CONFIRMATION WHICH
WILL HELP THE CONGESTION. SHEETZ IS PROPOSING TO ADD A "DO NOT BLOCK INTERSECTION" SIGN. KIMLEY-HORN HAS CONFIRMED
WITH NCDOT THAT THE EXISITNG MEDIAN ALONG NC 96 CANNOT BE CUT TO ALLOW VEHICLES TO MAKE A LEFT INTO THE SHEETZ
FROM NC 96.

Question/ Concern #4 FUEL DISPENSER LOCATION AND UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS

Applicant Response:

THE NEW ORIENTATION OF THE BUILDING AND FUEL PUMPS ARE TO COMPLY WITH CURRENT CODE, UDO
4.3.5.0.A "PUMP ISLANDS MAY NOT BE LOCATED BETWEEN A BUILDING AND ANY ADJACENT STREET
RIGHTS-OF-WAY." SHEETZ WILL USE THEIR NEWEST TECHNOLOGY AND STANDARDS OF UNDERGROUND
STORAGE TANKS. THE APOR RECOVERY SYSTEMS WILL BE IMPLEMENTED WHICH WILL HELP LIMIT ANY
POTENTIAL SMELL FROM THE FUEL.

165
Page 7 of 8


Heather.Timothy
Text Box
416 SHEETZ ZEBULON

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
ZEBULON COMMUNITY CENTER; 301 S ARENDELL AVE, ZEBULON, NC 27597

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
THURSDAY, APRIL 17, 2025

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
6:00 - 8:00 PM

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
OLDE HERITAGE PROPERTIES LLC

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. ON BEHALF OF SHEETZ, INC.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
NOISE

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
SHEETZ WILL IMPLEMENT A NOISE BARRIER FENCE ALONG THE PROPERTY LINE THAT IS ADJACENT TO THE NEIGHBORHOOD. SHEETZ WILL ALSO RELOCATE ONE OF THE AIR MACHINES TO THE OPPOSITE SIDE OF THE SITE AS WELL AS THEIR DUMPSTER. THE ABC DUMPSTER MUST REMAIN AS-IS DUE TO DELIVERIES (ONCE A MONTH). THE PICK-UP WINDOW WILL NOT HAVE ANY SPEAKERS.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
TRAFFIC - THE NEIGHBORS ARE CONCERNED WITH VEHICLES BLOCKING THEIR ACCESS POINT, SHEETZ CUSTOMERS COMING INTO THEIR NEIGHBORHOOD TO TURNAROUND SO THEY CAN MAKE A RIGHT INTO THE SHEETZ, AND ONLY 1 LEFT TURN LANE AT THE INTERSECTION.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
SHEETZ UNDERSTANDS THAT THE TOWN HAS PLANS TO IMPROVE THE ROAD ADJACENT TO THE SITE. THE NEIGHBORS HAVE BEEN AWARE OF THESE FUTURE PLANS. RECENT SIGNAL TIMING UPDATES HAVE BEEN IMPLEMENTED PER NCDOT CONFIRMATION WHICH WILL HELP THE CONGESTION. SHEETZ IS PROPOSING TO ADD A "DO NOT BLOCK INTERSECTION" SIGN. KIMLEY-HORN HAS CONFIRMED WITH NCDOT THAT THE EXISITNG MEDIAN ALONG NC 96 CANNOT BE CUT TO ALLOW VEHICLES TO MAKE A LEFT INTO THE SHEETZ FROM NC 96.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
FUEL DISPENSER LOCATION AND UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
THE NEW ORIENTATION OF THE BUILDING AND FUEL PUMPS ARE TO COMPLY WITH CURRENT CODE, UDO 4.3.5.O.A "PUMP ISLANDS MAY NOT BE LOCATED BETWEEN A BUILDING AND ANY ADJACENT STREET RIGHTS-OF-WAY." SHEETZ WILL USE THEIR NEWEST TECHNOLOGY AND STANDARDS OF UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS. THE APOR RECOVERY SYSTEMS WILL BE IMPLEMENTED WHICH WILL HELP LIMIT ANY POTENTIAL SMELL FROM THE FUEL.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
CUT THROUGH - THE NEIGHBORS ARE CONCERNED WITH PEOPLE WALKING THROUGH THE NEIGHBORHOOD TO GO TO SHEETZ.

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
THE NOISE BARRIER FENCE WILL ALSO HELP LIMIT PEOPLE CUTTING THROUGH THE NEIGHBORHOOD TO GO TO SHEETZ.


QUESTION/CONCERN #5:
LIGHTING

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

SHEETZ IS IMPLEMENTING THEIR NEWEST TECHNOLOGY AND STANDARDS OF LIGHTING
DESIGN WHICH WILL HELP LIGHT POLLUTION AND LIMIT LIGHTING TO JUST THE SHEETZ
SITE.

QUESTION/CONCERN #6:
CONSTRUCTION

APPLICANT RESPONSE:
SHEETZ HAS COMPLETED SEVERAL SIMILAR REBUILD PROJECTS. THEY LOOK TO
SHORTEN THE CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE.

QUESTION/CONCERN #7:
PICK-UP WINDOW

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

THE PICK-UP WINDOW WILL OPERATE 24/7 PER SHEETZ STANDARDS WITH PROVIDING
CONVENIENCE FOR THE CUSTOMERS. THERE WILL BE NO SPEAKER ASSOCIATED WITH
THE PICK-UP WINDOW.

166


Heather.Timothy
Text Box
QUESTION/CONCERN #5:
LIGHTING

APPLICANT RESPONSE:
SHEETZ IS IMPLEMENTING THEIR NEWEST TECHNOLOGY AND STANDARDS OF LIGHTING DESIGN WHICH WILL HELP LIGHT POLLUTION AND LIMIT LIGHTING TO JUST THE SHEETZ SITE.



QUESTION/CONCERN #6:
CONSTRUCTION

APPLICANT RESPONSE:
SHEETZ HAS COMPLETED SEVERAL SIMILAR REBUILD PROJECTS. THEY LOOK TO SHORTEN THE CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE.



QUESTION/CONCERN #7:
PICK-UP WINDOW

APPLICANT RESPONSE:
THE PICK-UP WINDOW WILL OPERATE 24/7 PER SHEETZ STANDARDS WITH PROVIDING CONVENIENCE FOR THE CUSTOMERS. THERE WILL BE NO SPEAKER ASSOCIATED WITH THE PICK-UP WINDOW.


167



and Associa

and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley—Horn

and adaptation by Kimley-Horn

intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization

cepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is

This document, together with the con:

PEARCES RD

SHEETZ
REBUILD PROJECT /

___/

NOSTALGIA LN

N
S
N
I
&
&
\¢

%

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET
/‘ 0 100 200 4(|)O

N

Kimley»Horn

©2025 KIMLEY—HORN AND ASSOCIATES
421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET, SUITE 600, RALEIGH, NC 27601
PHONE: 919-677-2000
WWW.KIMLEY—HORN.COM

VICINITY MAP

SHEETZ
1406 N ARENDELL AVE

KHA PROJECT
110529004

DATE
04/03/2025

SCALE AS SHOWN

DESIGNED BY RND

DRAWN BY RND

CHECKED BY HRT




and Associa

and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley—Horn

and adaptation by Kimley-Horn

intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization

cepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is

This document, together with the con:

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

16|O

/‘ 0 40 80

N

Kimley»Horn

©2025 KIMLEY—HORN AND ASSOCIATES
421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET, SUITE 600, RALEIGH, NC 27601
PHONE: 919-677-2000
WWW.KIMLEY—HORN.COM

VICINITY MAP

SHEETZ
1406 N ARENDELL AVE

KHA PROJECT
110529004

DATE
04/03/2025

SCALE AS SHOWN

DESIGNED BY RND

DRAWN BY RND

CHECKED BY HRT

400
109




it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc.

K: \RIC_CIVN\113020 — Sheetz\ 05 REMODEL SITES\110529004 — 416 — 1406 N Arendell Ave — Zebulon — NC\CAD\PlanSheets\SITE PLAN.dwg

01:57:49pm

April 14, 2025

Layout: SITE PLAN
as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which

Sheet Set: COSTCO HARRISBURG FUEL EXPANSION

Ryan
This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein,

Plotted By:Dieudonne,

>_
m
SITE LEGEND
e %% 0 5| HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE -
“ ()]
STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE
HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT
- A RSRQOOE > |RD BRICK PAVERS
60" PUBLIC R/W %
=
STANDARD 6" CURB =
=
TRANSITION TO FLUSH CURB L
. a0 aon LoD LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE (# 70,790 SF)
LOD
ﬁ SITE NOTES
S PROPOSED "STOP" 1. CONTRACTOR TO CHAMFER CORNERS AT CONCRETE
24 SIGN (MUTCD R1-1, AND ASPHALT TRANSITIONS. ,
— (e e— — — — — o— 30")(30“) - ————— — — —— — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —\ e e e o et e i e e . e . | e s ) | st . e | e e e ]
e, 40.61" 7 =
‘ f \ DUMPSTER | I FLAG POLE / =
| PROPOSED > > ENCLOSURE . 9 v LIGHT y : N
o v ~ v A o [Q\]
| STOP BAR (TYP.) PROPOSED €= Z X 2 . S =7 12 / :
PICK-UP SRR LT _/g' — n<
LANE ~ - : PROPOSED ¢ O e
4 N 8 = ) ~i H o <
‘ SOOI ALY S e N TRl FeacPoLe o, =
v v N < PR v 4.v v 4 v v v v v . 4 4 4 ) . 4 / 3
< 2N NEEA BT R e I 3 . LGN PROPOSED / I Eﬁ&c;%
' S OOEERNNE [ T ® v T T T T T T 1= R < N1 MONUMENT oS3
a Q < =z
| N 5 e sl B SR NS LI : D) LOD SIGN Q Z°85%
: I 1 I 1 . ~ g CIO :IE
) N X 2o >
| o N / 1
. | o / > g E
Sal  Lo0o |! — m drgs
| S : | N N . =0, T=
PROPOSED — TYP. | > G cw® =
CONCRETE PAD FOR o | o N - R
TRANSFORMER 01 | PROPOSED SHEETZ STORE N < / SO
5 71.43 75.00"
| +6139 SF = / y— 5
’ o | o PROPOSED o0 ¥ <
| oRESTIOW e BN
PAVEMENT \¢ 1 = ( %[T—o“ N \Q ‘ o
| ARROWS (TYP.) = ; ) | y
_ PROPOSED R7-8 ACCESSIBLE — e - PROPOSED R7-8 & /
o SIGN WITH POST = <| ACCESSIBLE SIGN =
T PROPOSED OUTDOOR T e L T L ] | SN WITH POST S
SEATING (TYP.) 7 i . L 4L -L_L_ B~ | ™ \=PROPOSED e
PROPOSED ' N Sl o ————— | ACCESSIBLE | :
I APROPOSED —~—__ ] T S \—— — - g? L —— SYMBOL Y N / DRAFT
| I_E PROPOSED BIKE e S > S / ,
RACK (TYP. o ' - S
(Ye) 6 | 78¢ 8 | 9 11 12 |13 | 14 15 | 16 . S
RE o >
O ¥ ~ : /
| PROPOSED A / 2EIEE
© o
| E-STOP N a s S<| W|S|E|E|T
3 5 o 5 wol| NI
: 5 SS18[7 1.
& QT2 | &
/ T2l Yulsa|zl¥
N / X o— Sl = I -
| \ = g O | W | x| I
k a < = 4_ - L B < - : b B e
' 38.78' Slao ¥ Y‘V4 v, va Ny v“. .V ~<\V4 < T v . ‘:4 - v “a ovo Ta N :4" N W
3 IR = SR c: . 3 @ < me e 0o
U = H < b < v~ \ < | v v v ~ a v
v 6_9o'v < <‘O o__ov 4 v v o % v v B oo < ~14a oo 4 < on //—-
: S = 4 - BE ~ H- . LOD /
v @ ~ Yoy O A v v - < ¥ "= qu\ N . @ % T ma 63.81' / <</
21.00' . %] < R - « <K R\
a o L] a D.q L] <4 o o ~\ o o
' PROPOSED \:\ . < < 7 ‘;‘ < Y < a ~¥ v v v < g v < \(\v v v - v v < v v 4 ¥ < 4 v V\
| AIR MACHINE S } s - . ) - i s O 7
~1 ) ~
< Ya A Va N - v - v v M N/ Q>§
) - . o . . / Q& o <
v v v P v-oa v V.2 AT / L \Q
PROPOSED UST o = L . - § AN Po -
Q
I VENT STACK 4 _ % %@%Q@ al
< " -, 82.00' ‘ i S QLQ S
l N = A PR N o v AR T 0 V\ \QQ Q§
- of ¥ . : = / N LI
L qv 9 O v s STANDARD v < \(‘v <N / % P
. “@ 5o " UST FIELD - R J
. . - 10.00' =~ -
5 T et S TYP T T 3 m
O s . « : ‘ T )
| < < | Lo A
I " Sa
39 | 20/ | 41 | S| 43 | 44 | 45
S - 29.33'
37.45 Q [ EXIST. |
_ L —EXIST. ' p— —— LD 0D %‘)7 —
ob Il =
=
PROPOSED GUTTER TO > ]
DIRECT DRAINAGE < <
<
PROPOSED "STOP" SIGN O
(MUTCD R1-1, 30" X 30") WITH | -
"RIGHT TURN ONLY" SIGN © %
(MUTCD R3-5R, 30" X 36") -~ — o
MOUNTED BELOW <t LL] =
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET m LL]
0 10 20 40 m
O z
| <L S
—
N = D
[
N
O© 5
O
- _
< =
O
F |_
]
Kno(v; wrlats below. SEET NUVBER
all before you dig. C301

170




K: \RIC_CIV\113020 — Sheetz\_ 05 REMODEL SITES\110529004 — 416 — 1406 N Arendell Ave — Zebulon — NC\CAD\PlanSheets\SITE PLAN.dwg

11:58: 3Tam

October 20, 2025
as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which

Layout: SITE PLAN

Sheet Set: COSTCO HARRISBURG FUEL EXPANSION

Plotted By: Timothy, Heather

it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc.

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein,

SR 1001
60" PUBLIC R/W
PROPOSED "DO NOT BLOCK
INTERSECTION" SIGN
(MUTCD R10-7, 24" X 30") Lob EXISTING RETAINING
LOD WALL TO REMAIN
«— LOD PROPOSED AND BE PROTECTED
STOP BAR (TYP.) PROPOSED "STOP" SIGN LOD LOD LOD LOD
(MUTCD R1-1, 30" X 30") Lop
_ e swotzw_saso _ S
' PROPOSED
470 , 10' BUILDING SETBACK = FLAG POLE
‘ @1f = — — —— —— LIGHT y
< ~ <
| PROPOSED ACCESSIBLE - S ¢ / /
| PROPOSED 1' i < STRIPING (TYP.) R PROPOSED o
WIDE, 225' LONG, % ) S TRASH PROPOSED
, o PROPOSED ACCESSIBLE S ENCLOSURE Ox
8' HEIGHT o 3 25.0' . x MONUMENT
SCREENING/NOISE - SYMBOL (TYP.) _ : : | N S ‘% sieN
FENCE (TO BE = 10.0 PROPOSED R7.8 ACCESSBLE [~ FITT 7] - (] zf‘ 5 LI, 0, y
FIELD LOCATED) PROPOSEDFl)\flc(;)ElLl]E < I(TYP.) | SIGN WITH POST ’I_ o | _, o)} K . s . / /
|- | | TAYMT (7 WL/ YNY BE - T 2 PROPOSED
S CLEARANCE SIGN aNo™ S /o/ o ﬂ o XN FLAG POLE
o PROPOSED ‘ =7/ 3 “ C e ] 452 300
| | | Pick-UP A I e L S VI el T > i 5
' ) LANE « e, N - . . N S /
PROPOSED et < \% = a a a a a ‘ a a o V & ] o o 00 < A | v \(\Vq 809' o) GO_I /
CONCRETE PAD FOR ak.® / D | sy e [ e 3 e e = N N B .
TRANSFORMER o oo Al == S =E= === L SR 28.0' _ PROPOSED
> 12.3' 2.9 AT IE=HE DA E=EsE=E=E H I - N
' 5 ) — ¥ I I 71] N~ “@ . ° ° 4 - I (@)} LIGHT POLE
« = — < < v T3 v 3 o . vy Y X (TYP)
N HH e a a 1 < B N N / /
! 2 E 12007 (TYP.) 4 26.6' T T B T I N PROPOSED UST /
= / 3 ‘j — . . T . “l. “ < = VENT STACK
i 5 /4 < i E‘ ‘ ‘:I © g & Z v - v N 3 & v :‘v < ay )
il E L == A e . . : : . 9
' PROPOSED 4 1 / : ) < ﬁﬂj‘ﬂ o v . = « v v L - Vva v “« T | é Q}vc_)
DIRECTIONAL | | ) [iﬂ - 2 - el 18 & /
I g 7 SRR % ’
a4 :7 | ° < 2 N q < N
Tyr) [\ = % Lo [%H‘q ] hl oot o™ T e Lt I STANDARD S 3\9
IR PROPOSED SHEETZ STORE ) H 63.0 s e, T.g| ., USTFIELD —— “E“ N
N R FOOTPRINT AREA: +6,139 SF | HL-I1 1+ L e . o D e > /
o1 va . APPROXIMATE FFE: 338.0' | |} !l © B c = - 2 A e B DI =
5 8 (\ / :7J . a4 < ~ “ - « /_\| N « /
o 9 PROPOSED / ks * 1 T [ R =l N
= AIRMACHINE =] e s ‘o : S B
' a a 2 < T O
. / g PROPOSED e T T e e e e T e 20.0' (TYP) o
:OO < . AN E_STOP ~1 = - 4 . a < |(J~] /
:l 8 / < g v b ~ v < v\(\ v o .o v
S X i / g : = p e s & /
N~ O o < b v < v v v \A N
n < L e T : ~ /
S ) e | — ‘ /
_ 7 o / PROPOSED STy o
5 Q = BUILDING - NMRSIR / /
H E al (= e CANOPY (TYP) || = & |~ ,
l 9 - @ /76 * b W
D Ll v g = - < < m
| 2 L / PROPOSED - o —
o = . 4.3 50 ARTIST-DESIGN o e, 7 El S
& 18 d BIKE RACK AR / N
a ‘ (TYP.) - /
| a9 v v <
W
. 7 ® A
| PROPOSED
PASSIVE : by -
OPEN _ /
- * 1 o \ ACCESSIBLE [« O
SPACE o)
S =ITRI SIGN WITH N / ~ O
Q POST A O 29
° PROPOSED CANOPY ¢ "~ PROPOSED QR o
| INCLUDING FIXED SIDEWALK %% &
PERMANENT SEATING % FONS
I PROPOSED BOLLARD WITH "STOP" - Q° S
| SIGN (MUTCD R1-1, 30" X 30") AND PROPOSED PERMANENT o SFP
30" X 30") MOUNTED BACK TO BACK > o) / * /4 %
> 10.0 10.0 3 ®
[ n! (TYP), (TYP.). N A
o ~—\ Y s
s) a o /
) & /
|_
N E 39 | 40 | 41| 42 | 43 | 14 | 45]|S — /
| 5' BUILDING SETBACK & EXIST, /
[ o ] 3 - A
/\.
— — —9 I l3PERIMETER BUFFER Hf/ — =L 0l ————— = g X v‘f@
L aon N 19°04'22" E 33428 TCIO‘I 7/\ C
PROPOSED GUTTERTO ©»

‘ 1 DIRECT DRAINAGE

PROPOSED "STOP" SIGN
(MUTCD R1-1, 30" X 30") WITH
"RIGHT TURN ONLY" SIGN
(MUTCD R83-5R, 30" X 36")
MOUNTED BELOW

SITE LEGEND

e
Q

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

LOD

3
m @ Y o

SITE NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO THE SHEETZ
ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR THE EXACT LOCATION OF
UTILITY ENTRANCES, BUILDING DIMENSIONS, ROOF
LEADERS, EXIT DOORS, EXIT RAMPS AND PORCHES.

2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO BUILDING FACE, FACE OF
CURB, OR EDGE OF SIDEWALK UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE. ALL ANGLES ARE 90 DEGREES UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL LABOR AND
MATERIALS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF TRAFFIC
SIGNAGE AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS AS SHOWN ON
THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS.

4. ALL NON-LANDSCAPED ISLANDS SHALL BE PAINTED
WITH STRIPES 4" WIDE, AT 45° AND 2 FEET O.C.

5. ALL STRIPING SHALL BE 4" WIDE UNLESS NOTED

OTHERWISE.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE FINAL LOCATION
OF THE SHEETZ MAIN FREESTANDING SIGN WITH THE
SHEETZ CONSTRUCTION MANAGER.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO OTHER PLANS WITHIN
THIS CONSTRUCTION SET FOR OTHER PERTINENT

INFORMATION.

8. ALL DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN SHALL BE
FIELD VERIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY
SHEETZ REPRESENTATIVE AND DESIGN ENGINEER OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE PLAN AND FIELD
CONDITIONS. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS AT THE PROJECT SITE.

9. SEE DETAIL SHEETS FOR ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION

INFORMATION.

10. CONTRACTOR SHALL NEATLY SAW-CUT ALL JOINTS
WHERE THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION MEET
EXISTING PAVEMENT AND CONCRETE.

BY

PROPERTY LINE

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE (SHEETZ

DATE

STANDARD)

STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE (SHEETZ
STANDARD)

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT (SHEETZ
STANDARD)

BRICK PAVERS (SHEETZ STANDARD)

MILL AND OVERLAY ASPHALT (NCDOT)

STANDARD 6" CURB AND GUTTER
TRANSITION TO FLUSH CURB

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE (+ 81,705 SF)

REVISIONS

LIGHT POLE

No.

STORM STRUCTURE

PHONE: 919-835-1494
WWW.KIMLEY—HORN.COM

Kimley»Horn

421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET, SUITE 600, RALEIGH, NC 27601

‘ NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

DATE

AS SHOWN
RND
RND

KHA PROJECT
110529004
10/20 /2025

SCALE
DESIGNED BY
DRAWN BY

HRT

CHECKED BY

ZONING TABULATIONS

MINIMUM LOT AREA

6,000 SF

MINIMUM LOT WIDTH 50'

MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE

80%

MAXIMUM BUILDING
HEIGHT

50'

MAXIMUM INDIVIDUAL
BUILDING SIZE

10,000 SF

FLOOR AREA RATIO

0.10 MAXIMUM

OPEN SPACE 3%

SITE PLAN

3.6% PROVIDED

BUILDING SETBACKS

FRONT (N ARENDELL AVE) 30'

FRONT (PEARCES RD) 10'

REAR (PIN 2706012606) 25'

SIDE (PIN 1796919353) 5'

LANDSCAPE BUFFERS

FRONT (N ARENDELL AVE
AND PEARCES RD)

Ol

REAR (PIN 2706012606) 30'

SIDE (PIN 1796919353) 3'

20 4|O

STORE #416
1406 N ARENDELL AVE

NORH CAROLINA

TOWN OF ZEBULON

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

SHEET NUMBER

C-200

171




it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc.

K: \RIC_CIV\113020 — Sheetz\_ 05 REMODEL SITES\110529004 — 416 — 1406 N Arendell Ave — Zebulon — NC\CAD\PlanSheets\SITE PLAN.dwg

11:58: 3Tam

October 20, 2025
as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which

Layout: SITE PLAN

Sheet Set: COSTCO HARRISBURG FUEL EXPANSION

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein,

Plotted By: Timothy, Heather

>_
SITE LEGEND -
L
———— — — ———— PROPERTYLINE =
()
T = . . =] HEAVYDUTY CONCRETE (SHEETZ
® 8 v >'a-% STANDARD)
STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE (SHEETZ
STANDARD)
PEARCES RD HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT (SHEETZ
60’ PSURBﬂwgo;e/w STANDARD)
)
| BRICK PAVERS (SHEETZ STANDARD) o
I Y e e Y e B N e M W ¢ (77
PROPOSED "DO NOT BLOCK 2
INTERSECTION" SIGN MILL AND OVERLAY ASPHALT (NCDOT) o
(MUTCD R10-7, 24" X 30") EXISTING RETAINING
LOD LOD LOD WALL TO REMAIN
N PROPOSED AND BE PROTECTED STANDARD 6" CURB AND GUTTER
PROPOSED AIR MACHINE \ IN PLACE
STOP BAR (TYP.) PROPOSED "STOP" SIGN LOD LOD LOD LOD TRANSITION TO FLUSH CURB
(MUTCD R1-1, 30" X 30") Lop
L s eoezw Samer N _______x________ LoD LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE (+ 81,705 SF) .
PROPOSED oy LIGHT POLE =
47.0' , 10' BUILDING SETBACK - FLAG POLE
< — — — i — T o  STORM STRUCTURE ~
— o 7 — ! , ¥ -
| PROPOSED ACCESSIBLE — 5 v / : S
PR < STRIPING (TYP.) R PROPOSED o o
| _ % o N TRASH PROPOSED SITE NOTES o~ z
o PROPOSED ACCESSIBLE S ' ENCLOSURE N 0, MONUMENT 9.
S ORED N SYMBOL (TYP.) “ | 25.0 | « : ~ 4 T
SCRE 3INOISE —p _ . N ) S SIGN 1. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO THE SHEETZ <O
FENCE (TO BE & 10.0' PROPOSED R7-8 ACCESSIBLE [0 ~— T T = R TR S 0, / ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR THE EXACT LOCATION OF S 2
FIELD LOCATED) PROPOSED MOBILE o (TYP.) | > UTILITY ENTRANCES, BUILDING DIMENSIONS, ROOF Qr<s
: , SIGN WITH POST | L. ] L e / nrgz
| PICK-UP e < S “ LEADERS, EXIT DOORS, EXIT RAMPS AND PORCHES. <590
'5 CLEARANCE SIGN AVM" . v (=R == I R . . Efig S(SDEE A, ° S
htl v . 9y v [¢e]
ISH I ANO . - 2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO BUILDING FACE, FACE OF A .88
2 PROPOSED — ‘ ¢z | zz | e e e ] 45.2' 300 CURB, OR EDGE OF SIDEWALK UNLESS NOTED ) ZEVT
| & PICK-UP v | Ve < 4 — 5 y OTHERWISE. ALL ANGLES ARE 90 DEGREES UNLESS SN2
F)IROPOSED LANE o e, - « - N 4o S , OTHERWISE NOTED. T2
_\\‘ < o o o o o o o o & o o o ~v V4 v % 809' ()-l N =
9 g _ A I il Ll w X
CONCRETE PAD FOR Ak " / \<‘ ) el e e i . ) » 3. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL LABOR AND m JEZ =
TRANSFORMER o § 12,3 2.0 AT V=1l & o QHv. . | 28.0' NS — PROPOSED MATERIALS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF TRAFFIC — @ V7=
| A AT O ™~ - " GR— _ 0> E/ '(-T'$ET) POLE SIGNAGE AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS AS SHOWN ON E e
| , e s Ty e e D [= . : . THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS. o=
£ ) Y ' ' a h < ak 1 ~ : “ N / / N |_',__|
- 200 (TYP) / 26.6 Lot e T e e et N PROPOSED UST / 4. ALL NON-LANDSCAPED ISLANDS SHALL BE PAINTED ©
5 3 B N “ - 2 " — >
.~ < < @ <. , 5 .C. <
S A : b VENT STACK WITH STRIPES 4" WIDE, AT 45° AND 2 FEET O.C
O / a @ g & Z v ~:1\ v <“7 YY S v :‘v ~ v N <
1l E Lt o - ) . : . e & 5. ALL STRIPING SHALL BE 4" WIDE UNLESS NOTED S
I PROPOSED 4 f / s " . e T et o O & OTHERWISE. N
DIRECTIONAL \ / Yo 0 . > < et N © & /
PAVEMENT I - » | AR, B B T LR R 2 / 6. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE FINAL LOCATION
ARROWS |20 7 . I . < | - 4 S OF THE SHEETZ MAIN FREESTANDING SIGN WITH THE
(mvp) (7 / ) hl oo ot v T sTanpAaRD D N SHEETZ CONSTRUCTION MANAGER.
y | e . . : 5 : S
s 63.0 . < Q ET
77 PROPOSED SHEETZ STORE [‘—U‘j , = . v e TRy USTFELD —— |8 %67 7. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO OTHER PLANS WITHIN
"ol / v FOOTPRINT AREA: 6,139 SF i ) L Do . . S e / THIS CONSTRUCTION SET FOR OTHER PERTINENT NOT FOR
1= < APPROXIMATE FFE: 338.0' dir =18 IR c: ) == [z 2 R T S I TR M INFORMATION.
s <V % il < . 12T = / CONSTRUCTION
h S5  PROPOSED / * 1 B T | 2 =1 O / 8. ALL DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN SHALL BE
= AIRMACHINE - . em R BN FIELD VERIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO
" / : PROPOSED e s s e e e 200 (TYP) S CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY
. ¢ - E.STOP B > « . . e SHEETZ REPRESENTATIVE AND DESIGN ENGINEER OF
] a / - P I R A R / ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE PLAN AND FIELD ) e R
5 y v 9 // ’ - S o / CONDITIONS. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FORALL | nlS|Z|Z|x
- S L . RS ek FE ‘13;4 / DIMENSIONS AT THE PROJECT SITE. ol 9%
v m L g a e * ) i 8 Ol N v
B @ / PRt e | - / 9. SEE DETAIL SHEETS FOR ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION |& Q|2 3 2 | & |, | %
- @ i / PROPOSED . ‘ol < & INFORMATION. - 0[5 & NG
~\ N <
9 2 E BUILDING RPN N / / T2 Dl4|&| 2|3
| a a = / : CANOPY (TYP.) ) ﬂq / / 10. CONTRACTOR SHALL NEATLY SAW-CUT ALL JOINTS x—| 2|29z |y
S = x f . o WHERE THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION MEET »|&|5|5
= o PROPOSED v e e - ® —
| @ & /  xa " 5 EXISTING PAVEMENT AND CONCRETE.
o > , 343 5.0 ARTIST-DESIGN o = 7 B ©
© ' “ BIKE RACK AR A / <
3 “ (TYP.) “a g > /
= ¢ B e o » ZONING TABULATIONS
i 0
I PASSIVE / PROPOSED — $ MINIMUM LOT AREA 6,000 SF
/ R7-8 -/
'S sPAc \MiAAR. A0 00 ACCESSIBLE [« © MINIMUM LOT WIDTH 50" —
cl / SION WITH &, % & Qi\i MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE 80 <
» (o]
9 PROPOSED CANOPY ¢ \— PROPOSED N 59
INCLUDING FIXED SIDEWALK _ 2 & MAXIMUM BUILDING 50
PERMANENT SEATING & ' N
| PROPOSED BOLLARD WITH "STOP" PROPOSED PERMANENT = &Q S HEIGHT
SIGN (MUTCD R1-1, 30" X 30") AND ¥ & &
! ‘DO NOT ENTER" SIGN (MUTCD R5-1, ABLES WITH SHADE COVER ™~ /4 V% S MAXIMUM INDIVIDUAL 10,000 SF LL
30" X 30") MOUNTED BACK TO BACK -> 0 / \ 3, > BUILDING SIZE |_
(TYP.), (TYP.). A N
- j _ — w % OPEN SPACE 3%
IS4 | o / 3.6% PROVIDED
0 - /
L= | 39 | 40 | 41| 42| 43 | p4 | 45||C vy y BUILDING SETBACKS
| 5' BUILDING SETBACK & EXIST. / FRONT (N ARENDELL AVE) 30
| E— > 4 '
S IT3 PERIMETER BUFFER (7 dol dol w— N FRONT (PEARCES RD) 10
- T T il I T N N & REAR (PIN 2706012606) 25'
- aot N 19°04'22" E 334.28 e ( % LL] -
PROPOSED GUTTERTO ©» SIDE (PIN 1796919353) 5' =
‘ 1 PIRECT DRAINAGE LANDSCAPE BUFFERS > S
o
< <
ROPOSED *STOP SIch FRONT (N ARENDELL AVE o S
(MUTCD R1-1, 30" X 30") WITH AND PEARCES RD) o) | T
"RIGHT TURN ONLY" SIGN REAR (PIN 2706012606) 30’ ~— — O
(MUTCD R3-5R, 30" X 36") LLI z
MOUNTED BELOW SIDE (PIN 1796919353) 3' AN}
oOX .
| < 39
1
D
[
/) NZz &
O© 5
\ ©
(@ I
g =
GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET ) w it
0O 10 20 40 '
, Kno(v; wﬁat sbelow. SEET NUVBER
all before you dig. C-200

172



Heather.Timothy
Cloud

Heather.Timothy
Cloud

Heather.Timothy
Cloud

Heather.Timothy
Cloud


‘ D TOP OF CUPOLA
29I - 6"

TOP OF PARAPET (HIGH)

22'-9 3/4"

TOP OF PARAPET (LOW)

21'-3"

BOT OF ENTRY CANOPIES

EQ

EQ

11'-47/8"

TOP OF SLAB
OI_OII

35
TYP

4 5|_9||

S~

24 6 13 22 13 517
TYP

FRONT ELEVATION

EQ

TYP
15

TYP TYP TYP TYP
17 16 8 39

19

25

18 22 18
TYP

23 18

6-1" L

13

36

31

1/ "_ 1l_0|l

TYPICAL EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES:

ALL LIGHTS SHOWN ABOVE AND/OR BELOW DOORS OR WINDOWS ARE
TO BE CENTERED ON THE DOOR OR WINDOW UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE.

FIXTURES/EQUIPMENT BETWEEN TWO DOORS OR WINDOWS ARE TO BE
CENTERED EQUALLY.

EXTERIOR SEALANT FOR STONE SHALL COMPLY WITH SECTION 07 9005
JOINT SEALANTS, GENERAL BUILDING FASCADE WEATHER SEALANT
AND SHALL MATCH THE COLOR OF THE STORE.

EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEYNOTES:

OO,

HROEE®®HHE®E®RHBEE®O®®OERO®®EHREGE®E®EEE @@ @ E©

BRICK VENEER, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK COMPANY. SEE
MASONRY SPEC

CAST STONE SILL, COLOR: CRAB ORCHARD. SEE MASONRY SPEC

ANCHORED CAST STONE MASONRY VENEER, COLOR: CRAB ORCHARD.

SEE MASONRY SPEC
EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

ARCHITECTURAL CANOPY, COLOR: REGAL RED, PREMIUM TWO-COAT
KYNAR FINISH

BRICK PAVER WALKWAY

LIGHTED CURVED FASCIA CANOPY ATTACHMENT

METAL COPING, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

WALL MOUNTED BUILDING SIGN, SEE SHEET A200.

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF, COLOR: BRITE RED

NOT USED

GUTTER, COLOR TO MATCH CUPOLA COLOR

DOWNSPOUT, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

PICK UP WINDOW (IF APPLICABLE)

METAL STANDING SEAM SHED STYLE AWNING AND FRAME ASSEMBLY,
ROOF COLOR: BRITE RED, FRAME COLOR: DARK BRONZE

BRICK SOLDIER COURSE, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK
COMPANY. SEE MASONRY SPEC

BRICK ROWLOCK COURSE, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK
COMPANY. SEE MASONRY SPEC

CONTROL JOINT, SEE MASONRY SPEC

STEEL ROOF LADDER DOCK AND CRANKY POST, COLOR: DARK
BRONZE

STANDARD THROUGH WALL SCUPPER WITH CONDUCTOR HEAD &
DOWNSPOUT, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

OVERFLOW SCUPPER

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT SYSTEM, SEE A600

EXTERIOR HOSE BIB, REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS

OUTDOOR FURNITURE

ELECTRICAL RECEPTACLE, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

HM DOOR AND FRAME, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

EMERGENCY WATER CONNECTION, REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS

SEAMLESS ALUM PANEL SYSTEM WITH EXPOSED FASTENERS, COLOR:
DARK BRONZE

PROPANE LOCKER

ICE MERCHANDISER

RTI FILLPORT

STEEL BOLLARD, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

CO2 FILLPORT

DECORATIVE ALUMINUM FENCE, COLOR DARK BRONZE

AUTOMATIC DOOR PUSH PLATE AND BOLLARD, BOLLARD COLOR:
DARK BRONZE

GAS METER AND RISER, REFER TO CIVIL UTILITY PLAN, COLOR: DARK
BRONZE

NOT USED

LIGHT CHANNEL AT PARAPET COPING. SEE ARCHITECTURAL AND
ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

NOT USED

FAUX WINDOWS WITH INTERNAL GRAPHIC

E-STOP & SIGN, REFER TO UST DRAWINGS

ALUMINUM PRIVACY FENCE (COLOR = DARK BRONZE)

GLAZING CALCULATION FRONT ELEVATION =2199.82 SQ FT

DESCRIPTION

40% OF COVERAGE REQ PROVIDED

TRANSPARENT GLAZING

879.92 SQ T 590.61 SQ FT

FAUX WINDOW GLAZING

879.92 SQ FT 120.61 SQ FT

TOTAL GLAZING

879.92 SQ FT 711.22 SQ FT

TOP OF CUPOLA

29! _ 6"

TOP OF PARAPET (HIGH)

TYP TYP TYP TYP

22'-93/4"
TOP OF PARAPET (LOW)

21! Eu

BOT OF ENTRY CANOPIES

1 -27/8"
BOT OF DT CANOPY

10! _ 8"

TOP OF SLAB

— 17 16 8 39

13 3 9

EQ

6'-0" /-

BTSRRIy £ e Y N T [ T PR 3= ETRY | =

OI_O"

eTOP OF DT LANE/

Ol _ 6"

2

GLAZING CALCULATION FRONT ELEVATION =1275.16 SQ FT

DESCRIPTION

30% OF COVERAGE REQ PROVIDED

TRANSPARENT GLAZING

383 SQ FT 392.2 SQ T

FAUX WINDOW GLAZING

N/A N/A

TOTAL GLAZING

383 SQ FT 392.2 5Q FT

25 27 13 5 22 13 25 23

LEFT ELEVATION

EQ

Ul

35 13 6
TYP

10 12

EQ @

59" L

4" HIGH MIN, VINYL ADDRESS NUMBER
IDENTIFICATION CHARACTERS FOR GLASS
APPLICATION. IN COMPLIANCE WITH IBC 501.2,
VERIFY ADDRESS NUMBER BEFORE INSTALLATION

gl_ou L

1'-10"

SHEETZ

OUTLINE AREA = 14.84 SQ.FT.
BOX AREA = 16.52 SQ.FT.
TYPICAL OF FOUR
PROJECTS 7" OFF FACE OF BUILDING

A WALL MOUNTED "SHEETZ" BUILDING SIGN

1/2" = 1-0"

convenience . rchitecture
and Design P.C.
351 Sheetz Way, Claysburg, PA 16625

phone (814) 239-6013
email tcolumbu@sheetz.com
web site www.sheetz.com

PROJECT NAME:

NEW SHEETZ STORE
STORE #416R

ZEBULON
ARENDALL AVE.

Int. of North Arendall Avenue
and Pearces Road
Zebulon, NC 27597-8734

OWNER:
SHEETZ, INC.

5700 SIXTH AVE.
ALTOONA, PA 16602

CONSULTANT

PROFESSIONAL

A

KEYPLAN

MARK]| DATE | DESCRIPTION

ISSUE: 09.10.2025

SITE ID NO: 416R

AUTHOR BY: RJK / AMM

REVIEW BY: TMC / RJH

VERSION: 6139_v1.8

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

PRELIMINARY ELEVATIONS

A200

173



AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
879.92 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
590.61 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAUX WINDOW GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
879.92 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
120.61 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
879.92 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
711.22 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
383 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
392.2 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAUX WINDOW GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
383 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
392.2 SQ FT


TOP OF CUPOLA Convenience . rchitecture
296 and Design P.C.
13 351 Sheetz Way, Claysburg, PA 16625

29 10
12 phone (814) 239-6013
email tcolumbu@sheetz.com

TYP TYP TYP TYP TYP TYP TYP web site www.sheetz.com
19 15 17 16 8 39 15 15 TOP OF PARAPET (HIGH)

22'-93/4"

15 - - -

TOﬁOF PARAPEL(LOW)
21-3 PROJECT NAME:

| NEW SHEETZ STORE
) STORE #416R

k /EBULON
D seroremveens ARENDALL AVE.

_BOT OF DT CANOPY

= @ “107-8"
Int. of North Arendall Avenue

/N and Pearces Road

Zebulon, NC 27597-8734

L 6-1"

j W 7 T - g - — 5 7 ~ - = . " ; - il NN p T o 5 = G ;i e . o . — M e : oy e = BT T R : o TORGY ~ A T " - 5 o

OWNER:

s —— ?
/ / ' SHEETZ, INC.
: TOP OF SLAB

{ / 0'-0"

& T oY @ > CX(GINOX/CT A v A %) o o e o \eeoee | smsxm

VP TvP VP ALTOONA, PA 16602

3 REAR ELEVATION

1/ "_ 1I_Oll

TYPICAL EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES:

e ALL LIGHTS SHOWN ABOVE AND/OR BELOW DOORS OR WINDOWS ARE
TO BE CENTERED ON THE DOOR OR WINDOW UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE. CONSULTANT

e FIXTURES/EQUIPMENT BETWEEN TWO DOORS OR WINDOWS ARE TO BE
CENTERED EQUALLY.

e EXTERIOR SEALANT FOR STONE SHALL COMPLY WITH SECTION 07 9005 TOP OF CUPOLA
JOINT SEALANTS, GENERAL BUILDING FASCADE WEATHER SEALANT - - - - - — - — - — - - — - — - — - — 55
AND SHALL MATCH THE COLOR OF THE STORE.

EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEYNOTES:

BRICK VENEER, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK COMPANY. SEE
MASONRY SPEC 12 10 29 13 9 57

39

CAST STONE SILL, COLOR: CRAB ORCHARD. SEE MASONRY SPEC

OO,

ANCHORED CAST STONE MASONRY VENEER, COLOR: CRAB ORCHARD.
' TYP TYP  TYP TYP  TYP
SEE MASONRY SPEC _ TOP OF PARAPET (HIGH)

15 17 16 8 39 19 4 -
EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

9 22'-93/4"

TOP OF PARAPET (LOW) PROFESSIONAL
21-3"

ARCHITECTURAL CANOPY, COLOR: REGAL RED, PREMIUM TWO-COAT

EQ
|

KYNAR FINISH

BRICK PAVER WALKWAY EQ EQ ‘ ‘ ] N

LIGHTED CURVED FASCIA CANOPY ATTACHMENT

— . I
METAL COPING, COLOR: DARK BRONZE 15 | — I

WALL MOUNTED BUILDING SIGN, SEE SHEET A200. S A/

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF, COLOR: BRITE RED T

NOT USED KEYPLAN

L 5-9" BOT OF DT cwo%
10'- 8"

GUTTER, COLOR TO MATCH CUPOLA COLOR 7

DOWNSPOUT, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

PICK UP WINDOW (IF APPLICABLE)

METAL STANDING SEAM SHED STYLE AWNING AND FRAME ASSEMBLY,
ROOF COLOR: BRITE RED, FRAME COLOR: DARK BRONZE

BRICK SOLDIER COURSE, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK
COMPANY. SEE MASONRY SPEC

BRICK ROWLOCK COURSE, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK
COMPANY. SEE MASONRY SPEC

L]
PRI K TTHNT A ST ST

AT

STEEL ROOF LADDER DOCK AND CRANKY POST, COLOR: DARK
BRONZE This customer entrance meets the requirements of
STANDARD THROUGH WALL SCUPPER WITH CONDUCTOR HEAD & 41 a primary building entrance by meeting the 22 (3 36)— (18) (41) (33) (30 (a1~ (30) (18) (34) (27 (28) @—
. following requirements of UDO section 5.3.1.F.2.b:
DOWNSPOUT, COLOR: DARK BRONZE TYP . . . TYP TYP BEYOND BEYOND
a) Changes in building material or color
OVERFLOW SCUPPER b) A canopy that extends outwards from the
building wall by at least five feet

c) Architectural detailing around the entryway

4 RIGHT ELEVATION

1/4" = 1'-0"

CONTROL JOINT, SEE MASONRY SPEC /

____TOPOFSLAB e
0'_0“
\[OP OF DT LANE @

_ 0| _ 6"

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT SYSTEM, SEE A600

EXTERIOR HOSE BIB, REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS

OUTDOOR FURNITURE GLAZING CALCULATION RIGHT ELEVATION = 1.257 SQ FT

ELECTRICAL RECEPTACLE, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS DESCRIPTION 20% OF COVERAGEREG | PROVIDED

TRANSPARENT GLAZING 57710 75.54
FAUX WINDOW GLAZING 577.10 239.96
TOTAL GLAZING 377.10 313.3

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

HM DOOR AND FRAME, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

EMERGENCY WATER CONNECTION, REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS

SEAMLESS ALUM PANEL SYSTEM WITH EXPOSED FASTENERS, COLOR:
DARK BRONZE

eT_OP OF CUPOLA
PROPANE LOCKER 29'- 6"

ICE MERCHANDISER

__ TOP OF CUPOLA
29' 6"

RTI FILLPORT

MARK]| DATE | DESCRIPTION

PRELIMINARY ELEVATIONS

STEEL BOLLARD, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

ISSUE: 09.10.2025

SITE ID NO: 416R

TOP OF PARA1P7ITZ'_I' %?\//g" AUTHOR BY: RJK/ AMM
REVIEW BY: TMC / RJH

VERSION: 6139_v1.8

CO2 FILLPORT

TOP OF PARAPET (LOW

DECORATIVE ALUMINUM FENCE, COLOR DARK BRONZE 17'-10 1/8"

AUTOMATIC DOOR PUSH PLATE AND BOLLARD, BOLLARD COLOR:
DARK BRONZE

GAS METER AND RISER, REFER TO CIVIL UTILITY PLAN, COLOR: DARK @_/
BRONZE

T\ ewe

NOT USED EXTERIOR

LIGHT CHANNEL AT PARAPET COPING. SEE ARCHITECTURAL AND E LEVAT| ON S
ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

NOT USED

FAUX WINDOWS WITH INTERNAL GRAPHIC 5 CUPOLA ELEVATION FROM ROOF 6 CUPOLA ELEVATION FROM ROOF

1/ "_ 1I_Oll 1/4" = 1|_0l|

E-STOP & SIGN, REFER TO UST DRAWINGS B 2 1
ALUMINUM PRIVACY FENCE (COLOR = DARK BRONZE)

HROEE®®HHE®E®ERHOE®O®®IERO®BHEHREGE®®EEE @ E @ @ E®

174



AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAUX WINDOW GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
239.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
313.3


C-100

175



K:\RIC_CIV\113020 — Sheetz\_05 REMODEL SITES\110529004 — 416 — 1406 N Arendell Ave — Zebulon — NC\CAD\PlanSheets\DEMO PLAN.dwg
it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written cuthorization and adaptation by Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc.

September 12, 2025 01:05: 31pm

Layout: EXISTING CONDITIONS AND DEMOLITION PLAN

Sheet Set: COSTCO HARRISBURG FUEL EXPANSION
This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which

Plotted By:Jang, Soojin

BY

DEMO LEGEND

DATE

REVISIONS

EXISTING IRRIGATION WATER METER TO REMAIN.
EXISTING IRRIGATION CONTROL VALVE,
IRRIGATION BACKFLOW PREVENTOR, AND
IRRIGATION WATER LINE TO BE REMOVED.

LOD LOD

REMOVED

EXISTING CAR WASH WATER METER, CAR
WASH VALVE, CAR WASH BACKFLOW A CURB AND GUTTER TO BE REMOVED
PREVENTOR, AND CAR WASH WATER LINE 6"y IN(NW)—330.75 Ex_ TREE TO BE REMOVED
TO BE REMOVED. 6”"PVC QUT(SE)—330.62 '
EXISTING DOMESTIC WATER METER TO REMAIN. LoD LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE (+81,705 SF)
EXISTING DOMESTIC WATER VALVE, DOMESTIC
BACKFLOW PREVENTOR, AND DOMESTIC WATER EX. BUILDING AND ITS ASSOCIATED
LINE TO BE REMOVED. _IJI_IJI_IJI_IJI_IJI_IJr PAVEMENTS AND FOUNDATIONS TO
BE DEMOLISHED
EXISTING WATER SAMPLING PEA @R(%E S IRD
STATION TO REMAIN 60 Poet Ok | EX. BRICK PAVERS TO BE REMOVED
EX. WATER LINE TO REMAIN
EXISTING EXISTING RETAINING
|é|§g'é'\|;8\|_/ggo WALL TO REMAIN w EX. WATER LINE TO BE REMOVED
AND BE PROTECTED
/ IN PLAGE ———r———s———s——-s— EX. IRRIGATION LINE TO REMAIN

EXISTING EXISTING

LIGHT POLE TO LIGHT POLE TO

BE REMOVED BE REMOVED
EOD

LOD LOD —LCR

\ EX. IRRIGATION LINE TO BE

LOD ,

O EX. SANITARY LINE TO REMAIN

_ _a—22uS 19704227 W 441 60" 1—==w=——a- SN t—

U= T — — e — == o T T e
Ve s el /N - Ml N TN T N N N o — 8 — e e—— — — — —

No.

- —\ . - = — — —= = < = Ty SS EX. SANITARY LINE TO BE REMOVED
N 0[] V% ) ) K7 aVa % AVA 7 a : = EXISTING FLAG
N 4 & g (Gpras 3 N \*‘ ‘44 g XY ¢ R AN ,3 g G RN S AN LAY AR - \ <
\\ I <o f g PV OO OB ORI L A r-{tw"-:%iﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁgﬁiﬁ;%’i&'ﬁg‘glzﬁA@,él%&Eﬁéi%%%lﬁfa;:ﬁM RSN : J \ POLE AND LIGHT EX. STORM DRAIN TO REMAIN
; 5 :

K/
T : . X e IR & TO BE REMOVED /

B! S
3 — @ s « as — . —
& ¢ \\. = o as 30" POWER LINE

N — D FASEMENT
———

o

— SD —— EX. STORM DRAIN TO BE REMOVED

‘v .
£1) 9 EXISTING
X5) & MONUMENT SIGN EX. ELECTRIC LINE TO REMAIN
WO HHI) ¥ TO BE REMOVED
AIRIRIRY o? E EX. ELECTRIC LINE TO BE REMOVED
5

DB 1739 PG 25I\}§L 2 /
BM 2007 PG 1039¢g @S — g " /@{

i

—

LOD

aon

CONCRETE

GAS ————— EX. GAS LINE TO BE REMOVED
_-' gS
SAN SEWER MH S ——

RIM—337.61 S _— S

LOD

— P EX. TELECOM LINE TO REMAIN

EX. TELECOM LINE TO BE REMOVED

\ CONCRETE

8"PVC IN(W)—332.50
6"PVC OUT(S)—333.31 g5

0 (=0

\m

S

] EX. CABLE LINE TO REMAIN

\

PHONE: 919-835-1494
WWW.KIMLEY—HORN.COM

CATVFO

EX. CABLE LINE TO BE REMOVED

TO BE REMOVED LIGHT POLE TO
BE REMOVED

oo Q

EXISTING | SS w)
TRANSFORMER ( = @ EXISTING —<

© 2025 KIMLEY—HORN AND ASSOCIATES

421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET, SUITE 600, RALEIGH, NC 27601

; DEMOLITION NOTES

1. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING
AND/OR VERIFYING ALL LOCAL AND STATE PERMITS
REQUIRED FOR DEMOLITION WORK HAVE BEEN
OBTAINED.

e =T

' T T T e e e e T s T
i T Il T T T T T

aon

Kimley»Horn

=E=EIEIEETEEEEEEEEIEES <

- >

LOD
)

o T~
— | | 7]
T g’ﬁ!

| A ]

IS EXISTING
> LIGHT POLE TO >
BE REMOVED

441:,
=]

/ 2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD
HARMLESS THE OWNER AND/OR ENGINEER FOR ANY
AND ALL INJURIES AND/OR DAMAGES TO PERSONNEL,
EQUIPMENT AND/OR EXISTING FACILITIES IN THE
DEMOLITION AND CONSTRUCTION DESCRIBED IN THE
7/ PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS. ‘ NOT FOR

|
!
B
I

| Iﬁ@ﬁ |
=i
— ]
=l
L=l
0

JE=lES

==

=iz g

()

— 4L0D

O
O

CREASE TRAP

5
A
A.%

NN

LOD

aon

8

oo

o

LIDS
O

CONSTRUCTION

— 3
\\ T\ ; 0 /
fu _— EXISTING CABLE AND <S — \K/ EX. GAS LINE TO REMAIN
I Ll P e TELEPHONE LINE TO - —— « /
i BE REMOVED o _
1 S S

|

I =\ /H

|

T A

L

|

|

|

T

|

|

i

|

|

T

|

|

:

!

T

|

|

i

|

|

T

|

3%

— |
D /‘
D

EXISTING GREASE

TRAP TO BE N
REMOVED | “J

as — d

261.10°

&

3. EXISTING CONDITIONS AS DEPICTED ON THESE PLANS
ARE GENERAL AND ILLUSTRATIVE IN NATURE AND DO
NOT INCLUDE MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL AND
MISCELLANEOUS STRUCTURES. IT IS THE

&L
@
)
FUEL TANK

LOD

Ll

+— as

CONCRETE
=
]
-
—]
£

o
O ol
EXISTING It RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO EXAMINE THE

\ LIGHT POLE TO AVEVIVEN SITE AND BE FAMILIAR WITH EXISTING CONDITIONS

BE REMOVED PRIOR TO BIDDING ON THE DEMOLITION WORK FOR THIS
PROJECT. IF CONDITIONS ENCOUNTERED DURING
EXAMINATION ARE SIGNIFICANTLY DIFFERENT THAN
THOSE SHOWN, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE
) ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY.

2
™~
~r
2|
EXISTING HEALTHY TREES TO L
REMAIN AND PROTECT IN PLACE |
OVERGROWN UNDERSTORY
VEGETATION WITHIN THE LIMITS
OF THE EXISTING DRY POND
AREA TO BE CLEARED N\ \
|

el
v

el

ND

LO D\

R
RND
HRT

2
EAS

AS SHOWN

0

DATE
9/12 /2025

KHA PROJECT
110529004

DESIGNED BY
CHECKED BY

DRAWN BY

SCALE

ALL EXISTING ABOVE AND BELOW GROUND STRUCTURES

'g - WITHIN THE LIMITS OF NEW CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE
RAZED UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE WITHIN THIS
CONSTRUCTION SET, ARCHITECTURAL PLANS AND/OR

I 7~ u)
EXISTING TRASH E%
EXISTING = ENCLOSURE TO . . EXISTING TREE TO
BE PROTECTED PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS. THIS INCLUDES FOUNDATION
LIGHT POLE TO BE REMOVED . q o y
BE REMOVED L
L c b EXISTING [ iV
3

)D

FUEL ISLANDS AND CANOPY
CONCRETE
N\
N

CONCRETE
CONCRETE

LIGHT POLE TO 5. ALL DEMOLITION WASTE AND CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS
BE REMOVED v SHALL BE REMOVED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND
<Q DISPOSED OF IN A STATE APPROVED WASTE SITE AND IN
L Q> ACCORDANCE WITH ALL LOCAL AND STATE CODES AND
\§ PERMIT REQUIREMENTS.

SLABS, WALLS, AND FOOTINGS.
[ ]
| :

I 1 77,

CONCRETE

T

I
I
EXISTING — W
LIGHT POLE TO
I
I
I
I

aon

LOD

O 6. ALL UTILITY REMOVAL, RELOCATION, CUTTING, CAPPING
% < &Q AND/OR ABANDONMENT SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH
WOQ THE APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANY.

CONCRETE

BE REMOVED

EXISTING &

L] L] [] L]
LIGHT POLE TO S
VEGETATION TO BE O

| o ¥ " BE REMOVED
CLEARED WITHIN L SAD GREASE TRAP | __— / e 7. THE BURNING OF CLEARED MATERIAL AND DEBRIS SHALL
NOT BE ALLOWED UNLE NTRACTOR GETS WRITTEN
VICINITY OF PROPOSED : 3 2 / / > 0 OWED UNLESS CONTRACTOR GETS

yA

NOISE WALL ~7 AUTHORIZATION FROM THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES.

] M M <

~_ 3 EXISTING % 8. UTILITY CONTACTS ARE LISTED ON SHEET C-000.
3 /3 ——— = 3 _——— LIGHTPOLETO

EXISTING GREASE TRAP BE REMOVED % 9. EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION (E&S) CONTROL

TO BE REMOVED » / MEASURES AROUND AREAS OF DEMOLITION SHALL BE

/ INSTALLED PRIOR TO INITIATION OF DEMOLITION
ACTIVITIES. REFER TO THE E&S PLAN FOR DETAILS.

PROPOSED TREES AND

CONCRET

EXISTING

aon

LOD

DEMOLITION PLAN

v
o ] aoT ao N\ / 10. ASBESTOS OR HAZARDOUS MATERIALS, IF FOUND ON
-0 9o - _ _ —— 301 ——————— 001 ———— — —
SRR , & SITE, SHALL BE REMOVED BY A LICENSED HAZARDOUS
L ao1l — N 19°04 22 E 554.28 '

ao | EXISTING "NO LEFT C & MATERIALS CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY
TURN" SIGN TO BE SHEETZ IMMEDIATELY IF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ARE
REMOVED \(\// ENCOUNTERED.
11. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL CORNER PINS,
MONUMENTS, PROPERTY CORNERS, AND BENCHMARKS
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE DURING DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES. IF DISTURBED,
TO BE RELOCATED BY CONTRACTOR SHALL HAVE DISTURBED ITEMS RESET BY

OTHERS A LICENSED SURVEYOR AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE
OWNER.

NORH CAROLINA

12. CONTRACTOR SHALL ADHERE TO ALL LOCAL, STATE,
FEDERAL, AND OSHA REGULATIONS WHEN OPERATING
DEMOLITION EQUIPMENT AROUND UTILITIES.

STORE #416

(e
Q

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

1406 N ARENDELL AVE| CONDITIONS AND

TOWN OF ZEBULON

0 10 20 40 Know what's below. SEET NUNBER

Call before you dig. C-110

176




K: \RIC_CIV\113020 — Sheetz\_05 REMODEL SITES\110529004 — 416 — 1406 N Arendell Ave — Zebulon — NC\CAD\PlanSheets\SITE PLAN.dwg

01:05:417pm

September 12, 2025

Layout: SITE PLAN
This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which

Sheet Set: COSTCO HARRISBURG FUEL EXPANSION

Plotted By:Jang, Soojin

it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written cuthorization and adaptation by Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc.

PROPOSED "DO NOT BLOCK

INTERSECTION" SIGN
(MUTCD R10-7, 24" X 30")

LOD

LOD

LOD

PROPOSED

PROPOSED "STOP" SIGN

"LARCES RD

SR 1001
60" PUBLIC R/W

EXISTING RETAINING
WALL TO REMAIN
AND BE PROTECTED

STOP BAR (TYP.) LOD LOD LOD L IN PLACE —
(MUTCD R1-1, 30" X 30") Lop
_ o swowmw  _ae0 TS
, PROPOSED
‘ @ff > — . e — LIGHT /
a LN a o
| PROPOSED ACCESSIBLE o Y _ g y / ,
| PROPOSED 1' N - STRIPING (TYP.) R PROPOSED K S
WIDE, 225' LONG, s - < TRASH
& HEIGHT o PROPOSED ACCESSIBLE 2 = ' ENCLOSURE =~ ) 0y PROPOSED
(q\] SYMBOL (TYP ) (42] I 250 | <. X FE >t ~ < MONUMENT
SCREENING/NOISE - - . T =K S % siGN
FENCE (TO BE i 10.0 PROPOSED R7-8 ACCESSIBLE [ (L 17 - LS SRR 0, /
FIELD LOCATED) PROPOSEDFL\fI((:)KBILI]E o (TYP.). SIGN WITH POST U]y BE R / y
I | CLEARANGE SIGN NY IR == ) e PROPOSED
o) RS S AR — FLAG POLE
1S LT T R /] -+
D . ) B L B Cd C I
: . . b .e : :
o PROPOSED - " - e e 9 s 45.2' \\_—____30.0’ 1700 ! /
| ——F PICK-UP AN v e T o /
. 2R < et T N )
PROPOSED —— [ |+ HANE e 0 A e 80.9 o aon /
CONCRETE PAD FOR v N — PRI
0O . 4 .4 . A co
TRANSFORMER o H T = o | 28.0' o — PROPOSED /
| o s I~ o B o oN /| LIGHT POLE
= N - - (TYP)
: o 7 20.0'(TYP.) 26.6' EPRE R IR R > e o vt s TN PROPOSED UST /
5 /, | ~ R PRI DU VENT STACK
O 8 / \Lg [g & Z. :v. \? . - : - q.. | .. :\Y .V. qvn - {g
3 ) -k : S e S R . o S
l PROPOSED 1 / . ~ . . om0 ! . et e 9 < <« T 6 YC')
- g JE . . 4. <. - . .. %
' DIRECTIONAL I / e 2 B | PR I S L © T o‘)‘//\ /
PAVEMENT I A U oo 1 . R o /
opf R Y| R SR
ARROWS 29 AN < U T | I B N I I @Y Q
(TYP.) % Lo — T T T . FN STANDARD @) §’
) PROPOSED SHEETZ STORE 63.0 S . U S| . USTFIELD “Eﬂ N
N | 7)o« ||| | FOOTPRINT AREA: 16,139 SF " L e T s D E ,
15 i 2 APPROXIMATE FFE: 338.0' B IREI N =2 [ o N S RN PR TR I =-
'8 7 A i ERT I R T ,
o [m) / N :.<~ ) - : . < . : 4.‘. \qv 4.; -<O ."V\.v..u
9 ' | / 3 = ~ v R Y - 4 LU o N
PROPOSED — ‘N CLoe LT . T EEEP R BEPE
A T T S ' S
" AIR MACHINE / o = PROPOSED IR AL DR Y A |t T T 1200 (TYP) O
:Egl l | ] . - E_STOP v\ ,.4,.:0,. - < V\< ., . g. = 4|€N /
7 aQ P B T | T . LU L AR S
i O / - . . ‘7 o 4 . °. ’ . S N < . : . /
v é % 9 | va ~<\‘7 o ST - - - <-|> /
~ 2 ‘A T S
L 7 . v . % e - | —I
: 7) o ? S o PROPOSED T Mg of 814/
o e = . BUILDING o &) S / /
H ER ZB ) | 7 ,
= i ) T \
- - L o o < v il T 1 < (@)}
| 2 L ) PROPOSED e o Iy
ol |a 34.3 50 / aRTISTDESIGN | JENEE 7 B ©
N @ ' I BIKE RACK AT S / o
2 Iz NG g ,
__I d 4 V Do .V N v v
e R . & &
I o / bile PROPOSED  — —
I PROPOSED / g R7-8 f N
_ AIR MACHINE _ ‘ f A (£ ACCESSIBLE O
S a5 /A _de. SIGN WITH S / ~ Dy
9 prpey POST A Q @
J PROPOSED CANOPY  —PROPOSED QN o5 0
INCLUDING FIXED SIDEWALK %% S
| PERMANENT SEATING (5 K¢
=) PROPOSED PERMANENT - Sy
| S TABLES WITH SHADE COVER N RGNS @
PASSIVE o >
OPEN @j 10.0 10.0
SPACE f (TYP.) (TYP.)
E —)
a o
S -
' - 39 | 40 | 41 | 42 | 453 | 44 | 45 || \
5 29.3
| 5' BUILDING SETBACK S EXIST.
|
[ Q /
- 9 --3'PERIMETERBUFFER|"// —— 401 ————— 30T ———— — /ﬁ_ —
' aot —/ N 19°04'22" E 334.28 TCIO'I 7/\

o
PROPOSED GUTTERTO ©>
DIRECT DRAINAGE

PROPOSED "STOP" SIGN

(MUTCD R1-1, 30" X 30") WITH
"RIGHT TURN ONLY" SIGN
(MUTCD RB3-5R, 30" X 36")
MOUNTED BELOW

0

SITE LEGEND

(e
Q

LOD

3
m® Y °

SITE NOTES

PROPERTY LINE

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE (SHEETZ

STANDARD)

STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE (SHEETZ

STANDARD)

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT (SHEETZ

STANDARD)

BRICK PAVERS (SHEETZ STANDARD)

MILL AND OVERLAY ASPHALT (NCDOT)

STANDARD 6" CURB AND GUTTER

TRANSITION TO FLUSH CURB

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE (+ 81,705 SF)

LIGHT POLE

STORM STRUCTURE

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO THE SHEETZ

ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR THE EXACT LOCATION OF

UTILITY ENTRANCES, BUILDING DIMENSIONS, ROOF
LEADERS, EXIT DOORS, EXIT RAMPS AND PORCHES.

2.  ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO BUILDING FACE, FACE OF
CURB, OR EDGE OF SIDEWALK UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE. ALL ANGLES ARE 90 DEGREES UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL LABOR AND
MATERIALS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF TRAFFIC
SIGNAGE AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS AS SHOWN ON
THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS.

4. ALL NON-LANDSCAPED ISLANDS SHALL BE PAINTED
WITH STRIPES 4" WIDE, AT 45° AND 2 FEET O.C.

5. ALL STRIPING SHALL BE 4" WIDE UNLESS NOTED

OTHERWISE.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE FINAL LOCATION
OF THE SHEETZ MAIN FREESTANDING SIGN WITH THE
SHEETZ CONSTRUCTION MANAGER.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO OTHER PLANS WITHIN
THIS CONSTRUCTION SET FOR OTHER PERTINENT

INFORMATION.

8. ALL DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN SHALL BE
FIELD VERIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO
CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY
SHEETZ REPRESENTATIVE AND DESIGN ENGINEER OF
ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE PLAN AND FIELD
CONDITIONS. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
DIMENSIONS AT THE PROJECT SITE.

9. SEE DETAIL SHEETS FOR ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION

INFORMATION.

10. CONTRACTOR SHALL NEATLY SAW-CUT ALL JOINTS
WHERE THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION MEET
EXISTING PAVEMENT AND CONCRETE.

ZONING TABULATIONS
MINIMUM LOT AREA 6,000 SF
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH 50"

MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE 80°%
MAXIMUM BUILDING 50
HEIGHT
MAXIMUM INDIVIDUAL
BUILDING SIZE 10,000 5F
FLOOR AREA RATIO 0.10 MAXIMUM
OPEN SPACE 3%

3.6% PROVIDED

BUILDING SETBACKS

FRONT (N ARENDELL AVE) 30'
FRONT (PEARCES RD) 10'
REAR (PIN 2706012606) 25'
SIDE (PIN 1796919353) 5'

LANDSCAPE BUFFERS

FRONT (N ARENDELL AVE o

AND PEARCES RD)
REAR (PIN 2706012606) 30'
SIDE (PIN 1796919353) 3'

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

10

20 4|O

Know what's below.

Call

before you dig.

BY

DATE

REVISIONS

No.

Kimley»Horn

421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET, SUITE 600, RALEIGH, NC 27601

PHONE: 919-835-1494
WWW.KIMLEY—HORN.COM

NOT FOR

CONSTRUCTION

KHA PROJECT
110529004

DATE
9/W2/2025
SCALE  AS SHOWN
DESIGNED BY  RND
DRAWN BY RND

HRT

CHECKED BY

SITE PLAN

STORE #416
1406 N ARENDELL AVE

NORH CAROLINA

TOWN OF ZEBULON

SHEET NUMBER

C-200

177




it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc.

K:\RIC_CIVA\113020 — Sheetz\_05 REMODEL SITES\110529004 — 416 — 1406 N Arendell Ave — Zebulon — NC\CAD\PlanSheets\GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN.dwg

01:46:02pm

September 12, 2025

Layout: 24x36
as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which

Sheet Set: COSTCO HARRISBURG FUEL EXPANSION

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein,

Plotted By:Jang, Soojin

BY

GRADING LEGEND

100 PROPOSED CONTOUR

DATE

EXISTING CONTOUR

1000
TC TOP OF CURB ELEVATION

1000

¥

BOTTOM OF CURB ELEVATION

"L ARCES [RD

SR 1001 1000

60" PUBLIC R/W

-
-n
m

FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION

_|—|_\
n|o
o
o

FINISHED SURFACE ELEVATION

REVISIONS

1000

j

LOD LOD PAVEMENT ELEVATION

LOD

1000

j

FOD LOD LOD LOD EOD LOD 1000 GROUND ELEVATION

'

o

|

o Sy

|

I

|

I

|

I

I

I

I

I

|
ol
8‘

I

I

I

I

|

I

Y
\j/

I

|

I

I

|

|

_|
j

No

3

TOP OF WALL ELEVATION
/ 1000

BOTTOM OF WALL ELEVATION
7 1000

Avane el JLES S N A A BES DN B e e e B

' \ < 337 /] )"Oi

\ TC A5 338
@ ) \= e SN hd 337 =

N
T
0

HIGH POINT

5
O <0
% MATCH EXISTING
O7§/ /
Y STANDARD 6" CURB AND GUTTER

TRANSITION TO FLUSH CURB

GRADING NOTES

/ 1. ALL SITE WORK SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE PLANS PREPARED BY KIMLEY-HORN, THE CURRENT
. . / REQUIREMENTS OF THE TOWN OF ZEBULON AND THE

339

:

LOD
v
— S0
/
N
o°

Q .
S| 338.20 /s ‘
s 337.91
FS O 338 337.99 FS
\ 1 o, —) ome L L. .

| ) I N N — —
(] ?&)‘ | | _l eundonl_ —[
5 g S R Ya

—r

. - TC 336.77
[ JZE \
‘; = 336.81 C_\

PHONE: 919-835-1494
WWW.KIMLEY—HORN.COM

CITY OF RALEIGH, THE APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE
NCDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROADWAY
\ / CONSTRUCTION, AND ALL OTHER PERTINENT FEDERAL

© 2025 KIMLEY—HORN AND ASSOCIATES
421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET, SUITE 600, RALEIGH, NC 27601

-1.50% AND STATE LAWS.

LC

Kimley»Horn

8¢

APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL LAWS,
PROVISIONS, AND POLICIES GOVERNING SAFETY AND
HEALTH.

\ 2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY AT ALL TIMES WITH

338.00

|t -

\ .Hﬂ
t
.Hﬂ

Qo

6¢

4 -1.50% / 3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
EXAMINING THE AREAS AND CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH
THE PROJECT IS TO BE CONSTRUCTED PRIOR TO THE
SUBMISSION OF A BID. SUBMISSION OF A BID SHALL BE
CONSTRUED TO MEAN THE CONTRACTOR HAS

:@:‘ = / REVIEWED THE SITE AND IS FAMILIAR WITH CONDITIONS‘

338.00
% TC

aon
LOD
pOD — 7 .
[T
N
O
° —J1°

0¢

337

537.96 1| | PROPOSED SHEETZ STORE
338.00 FOOTPRINT AREA: +6.139 SF | |

UST FIELD IIEw []

NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION

XS

/ AND CONSTRAINTS OF THE SITE. IF DISCREPANCIES

L R BETWEEN FIELD CONDITIONS AND DESIGN PLANS ARE
* 1 N DISCOVERED, CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY OWNER AND
ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY.

aon
=
2

261.10°

aot

¢e

P~ T
TYPE A RIPRAP STONE :
MIN. THICKNESS = 12"
ENTRY WIDTH = 3.75'
LENGTH = 5'
WIDTH = 6.25'

/ 4. BEFORE EXCAVATION, ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
SHALL BE LOCATED IN THE FIELD BY THE PROPER
AUTHORITIES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY 811
"CALL BEFORE YOU DIG." THE LOCATION OF ALL
4 UTILITIES AND UNDERGROUND STRUCTURES ARE
APPROXIMATE AND MAY NOT ALL BE SHOWN. IT IS THE
7/ RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO DETERMINE
THE EXISTENCE AND EXACT LOCATION OF ALL UTILITIES
/ AND UNDERGROUND STRUCTURES.

RT

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
-
| STANDARD
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

%
y‘ 538.02 || TC RIDGE APPROXIMATE FFE: 338.0' o
N

336
N
RND
RND

H

2 co)

143

S 70°47'38" E

—1.27% _|

AS SHOWN

G¢

KHA PROJECT
110529004
DATE
9/12 /2025

aon

SCALE
DESIGNED BY
DRAWN BY
CHECKED BY

LoD

5. ALL EXISTING TREES, VEGETATION, PAVEMENTS,
CONCRETE FOUNDATIONS, STRUCTURES AND ORGANIC
TOPSOIL SHALL BE STRIPPED AND REMOVED FROM
NEW CONSTRUCTION AREAS UNLESS NOTED

ig OTHERWISE.

V\ 6. ALL SLOPES SHALL BE 2:1 (HORIZONTAL: VERTICAL)
© MAXIMUM UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. ALL SLOPES 3:1
Y Oy N OR GREATER SHALL BE PERMANENTLY STABILIZED
Q/\ AP WITH VEGETATION.

337.92

LOD

338.10

335.16
TC

I

|

|

|

|

| | :
a 7- S

’ g 338.06
—

|

|

|

|

|

|

335.00
TC

aot

LOD

5
L0
Q & @QQ 7. AN AS-BUILT DRAWING OF NEW UTILITY SERVICES MUST
5 % QQA BE PREPARED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND SUBMITTED
<Z‘ Q N TO THE OWNER UPON COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT.
S

TYPE A RIPRAP STONE
MIN. THICKNESS = 12"
ENTRY WIDTH = 3.75'
LENGTH = &'

WIDTH = 6.25'

V% o 8. ALL AREAS NOT PAVED SHALL BE TOP SOILED, SEEDED,
% SODDED, MULCHED AND/OR LANDSCAPED UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED IN THE CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS,

SITE SPECIFICATIONS OR INSTRUCTED BY THE OWNER.

9. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO THE GEOTECHNICAL
REPORT PREPARED BY THE GEOTECH ENGINEER PRIOR
TO INITIATION OF ANY EARTHWORK ACTIVITY.

|
1S

—PROPOSED 2' WIDE
. CONCRETE SWALE

(@] | B
—
TC 354.47 >
2 335.17 i 335.28
33635\ N TC o= T 335.61 335.88
333.92 334.27 = ! C ¢ |

GRADING AND
DRAINAGE PLAN

10. ALL ELEVATIONS SHOWN ARE REFERENCED TO
BENCHMARKS ON THE PROJECT SURVEY AND SHALL BE
FIELD VERIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR AT
GROUNDBREAKING.

TC/ME
___—'v_\'___3?4.2_5' -~ - - = == 335.35

TC
- TC /ME ‘04’227 /
/ N 190422 E 334.28 TC/ME =

O b=
40335.61
TC
> 11. ALL SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE REFERENCED TO THE
‘ f EIRROEPC?SE')EFE’A?NU/I gEER TO p FINISHED GROUND SURFACE UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE.

12. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFERENCE DETAILED BUILDING
PLANS FOR EXACT BUILDING DIMENSIONS, ELEVATIONS,
AND UTILITY CONNECTION POINTS.

NORH CAROLINA

13. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO OTHER PLANS WITHIN
THIS CONSTRUCTION SET FOR OTHER PERTINENT
INFORMATION.

e
Q

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET
0 10 20 4|O

STORE #416
1406 N ARENDELL AVE

TOWN OF ZEBULON

Know what's bEIOW. SHEET NUMBER

Call before you dig. C-300

178




179

Ag 31va SNOISIAFY 'ON ‘ Z LYH A8 @3¥03HD VYNITONYD HYON NOTNg3Z 40 NMOL
INOOD ' NHOH—=ATTANIM MMM m aNy A8 NMYHd o
$6%1—-G£8—616 INOHJ = 5O
10922 ON ‘HOIFIVY ‘009 3LINS ‘13IHYLS ITIAILLIAVS LZ¥ o0 ANY A8 Q3IN9ISIC m> I_I_MD Zm Z @O.V—\ =N
S3ILVYIDOSSY ANV NYOH—ATTNIM GZ0Z ® { m { )
- wors sv s | ST JOHd ADVNIVEA Z
T T — 1
g9 | OL¥# IHOLS /0
C!—O AAA m E— Z Z A Z
- (o) 7006¢S01L 1L
(&) 103r0dd YHM
k=2
. )
= 3
o >
o 2
o o
»w o
w2
hI
= (O
=
oC
o
o o o o o o o K
X X X X X X X
0 o) o) o) o o o
N N N N 0 0 0
o o o o o o o
® ® ® ® ® ® ®
[9V] ~ N o o o [(e]
(e} D «© Te] -~ -~ Te]
- = o o < o N
— 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
=2 = = = = = = =
@) > = = = = = =
%) (@) O O O O (@) O
L > > > > > > >
o z z z z z z z
o o o o o o o o
(@] QO QO QO QO (@] (@)
n'd e e e e n'd e
- o o3 < < o o
< < <C < m m m
o) o) o) o) o) o) o)
= [ [ [ [ = [
2 2 2 2 ) ° °
Yo} Yo} Te] Te] o o o
N~ N~ N~ N~ Te] Te] Yo}
S S S S o o S
® ® ® ® ® ® ®
o N ~ N N~ o o
0 N~ o N~ o ~ ~—
- - I\ o - -— N
o o o o o o o
w | = «© «© « « « « «
i 2 - P z z z z P
Q |y > > > > > > >
< |w| 2 z z z z z z
= la o o a a a a o
L o (@] (@] O O O O O
R [n'd [n'd e e e e v
- < < A - e A A
C (9] (42} <t 0 (V] ™ <
< < <C <C m m m
- s s s s s s s
0l o) o) ) ) ) ) o)
|- n'd [n'd e e e e n'd
S L L L L L L L
=) =)
(o] o
© ¥
=) < < < © =) O
X ® ® K5 X i
m.\u. Z Z Z Z W Z Ll
2 S S S 93 9 5
< ) i =) — | u ~| DD = M= o | WS ollhy «
— ol JC|lz2m 210 8|2 =0 200 LS00 oo |l2w €
] wlIH S~ ZEH oS|I ~S1ZH .9 c|lZdeo <S5 |ZH . . =SZ20 9§
m) N | Z YNC® OAO | ZLa ™ D ® (o2 OB | Z V%A ® —© &
Con | T | Eu g | Z9xn 1| &ww™ Vo |lbueEYSn | Sl | S0
DM | SOQ®E OO N &K S 9O OO N~ K AN | OO0ODm ™= SO ©®E O D wK
™z mw&wo Dmﬁwo <°Zo Dmﬁo ™z DWNﬁmo MWﬁmo 0z“0o
B==|23=2=2=|R3=2==2|2=2=2=2|R3=2=|0=2=|838=>>|cg=2=2 |28
L2 |sFZ2Z2|QAFeZZ2|vZ22|QFrel2 |2 |8FSeZ2l2|lvsrkrarZ2Z2|Q=xeZ
o
=
<
pd
i
S| < Dy 2 3 P2 o o @ 2
T
O
-
@
T
n
o O (9V] [e0]
<t (ap] (9] AN o)
(4] (4] (9] (9] -
(€9 01) 95°2€€ :1NO ANI +
96'9¢€ :INIY M
(0£€-0 133HS 33S) LNONS/M
< 137INI dOYa £XT . o
@ 90°€0+€ V1S AN w
6'¢ee | &
2
o
Vo)
o
®
o
(@)
Y
2 3 > S "
[N
™ %) %) ) ROQ S
(yV OL) €5°€€E :1NO ANI + W
€G'/2€€ INIY o\, -
¥€# NO1Ng3Z 40 NMOL @
o 137INI dOYa £X2
< ov'/€+Z V1S
(zg 0l1) 0L'2€€ :1NO ANI
(#9 INOYH) 0L°ZEE ‘NI ANI
€1'9€¢ IINIY
Ov# NO1Ng3Z 40 NMOL
- JTOHNVI VI ¥
@ GOl I+Z V1S
. (@]
o GL9ce | O
m/w 06'LCS nﬂ 2°9¢¢ m_/u_
= 1'9¢¢
o N
®
o
O =
iy =
1 N
2.e || o
2z || & -
=g " < £
O M | g
RoZ 5 o & T
> o O
~NZh - Z 0z%
n_ﬂV W N ﬂ_
~ 7 REC
122 n r N
| - - Y
= 35
(eV OL) Zo'zes :1NO ANI R n” @
(GV INO¥H) 22°ZEE NI ANI m
09'65€ :NIY _.\\ 2 -
®m_._o_._z<_>_ vId.b b T 2 ©
81 0E€+) VLS Q o: o o
w NN ®
7 Y 0 (o 8
= S
= L % 5
ﬂ | < -—
w <C (04 w
ADn w o % (0] o)
=) =X @) L . O
5 2 2 eec|o & 3 3 Tee |
w B I_I n o ~—
n O ©) AR g
o z o B+ x
W 5 O _— o
2 . o
a0 o
(1N
> 2
Y N
b o
®
S
(v Ol) LB'LEE :1NO ANI ¥
(PV INOY4) LOZEE NI ANI o)
61°LE€ JINIY T
ve# NOTNg3Z 40 NMOL o ©
RN 137INI dOYA £X2 Lo~ 3
< g T o .
<) 8v'6v+0 VLS S ® o
\ S @
(@) o
(1V O1) 29'L€€ LNO ANI —T o (18 0L1) €1°1€€E 1 LNO ANI <
(EV WO¥H) ZZ'LEE NI ANI 0 (€9 WO¥H) €L°LEE NI ANI :
Z0'9€€ NIy w Ov'€EE INIY o
Ov# NO1Ng3Z 40 NMOL o (0€£€-0 133HS 33S) LNONS/M L
N JTOHNVI VI ¥ — - ¥€# NO1Ng3Z 40 NMOL :|\ w
-/ 18°€2+0 V1S —— 2 ~ 137INI dO¥A €X2 3
m T T —
v Z1+0 V1S
(2¥ INOY4) 0S°LEE NI ANI (zg NOY4) L0°LEE NI ANI —
Z0'€EE NS 6S°2EE (NIY
= s34 @ s34
< J¥€80+0 V1S @ J7G0+0 V1S o
o : ©
o L'lee |+
g'1e¢ m S
> +
5 $ 2 S S T
o © N o) o
< 1) ) N _ ™ ™ © ™
(4] (4] o (4]
‘DUl ‘S8}PID0SSY PUD UJOH—AS|WIy 0} A3IIgDI| }NOYIIM =d ||IPYS "OU| ‘S2}DID0SSY PUD UJOH—A3|wiy AQ Uo}D}IdDPD PUD UOIIDZIJOYIND US331UM INOY}IM JUSWUNOOP SIy} uo aoupljed Jodoudwil pup jo osnay ‘pedpdedd som 31 yoiym Joj jusio pup osodund oj10eds oy} Jo) A|UO pepusiul S| “9DIAJSS JO JUSLINJISUl UD SD ‘uleday poajussald subisep pup s}deouod oy} Yim Jayiebol ‘jusuwinoop syl
bmp S371404d >F]ED/B@@;wcoi/g<o/oz — uongeyz — °AY [PpuUsdyY N 90|l — 9lv — %oomwmoi/wmtw T3dONTY mo\/ﬁmwgw — ONOMZ/ZQ\Q&/HK wdey :GG L0 GeO¢ ‘¢l 4eguweidss  SIH40dd JOVNIVEJAN0ADT  NOISNVAX3 13Nd 92NgSiddvH 001S00 18S 1884s ufoos ‘bupp:Ag pe11o|d



A9 | 3Lva SNOISIATY "ON > 18H A8 @3MO3HO VYNITOHMVYD HYON NOTNg3Z 40 NMOL
NOD NYOH—ATTAIA MMM m aNy A8 NMYYQ -
109/Z ON hIo@ém@m@%%?ﬂ@,Hmz%m&jEimit kA M_rlv ANY A8 Q3IN9ISIA M %
S3LVIOOSSY ANV NYOH—ATTAIM SZ0T ® ”_DUIn WMOHS Sy T1vos ml__<l_|ma mmu<z_<ma m>< I_I_mozmm< Z @O.V—\ W Q_u
WIOH« Ay | (28 |- 9IV#IUOLS RO
- (o] 7006CG01L1L
(&) 103r0Yd VHM
=y
o
8
o o
2 S
»w o
B O
I e
= (O
WC
~Z

'OU| ‘S91D|D0SSY PUD UJOH—AS[WIiy 0} A}I[IgD]| INOYYM g |[DYS 'OU| ‘S9}DIDOSSY PpuD UJOH—A2|WIY AQ U0|ID}dDPD pup UOIIDZIIOYIND USI}IIM }INOYIIM JUSWNDOP SIY} uo ooupljed Jodoudw| pup jo ssney "padodeoud som 3l yoiym JoJ jusl|d> pup osodind oy1oeds oy} Joj AjUo popusiul S| ‘©0IAJSS JO }jUSWINJISUl UD SD ‘Uleday pojussaud subjsep pup sydedouod ayy yYim Jsyieboy ‘1uswWINOOp SIy|

180

Bmp SIvL3d FOVNIVHA\SI22USUDI\AVO\ON — Uongsz — oAy [[2puady N 90%1 — 9Ly — $0062SOLL\SILIS T3AON3Y SO~ \Z122US — QZOCLINAID O1d\ wd/z 90110 G¢0¢ ‘¢l J4equweydes  STIVLI3d FOVNIVEA AN0ADT  NOISNVAXT 13N4 94NgSIddvH 00LS00 32S 1e2ys  ulfoog 'bupphg peiiold



K: \RIC_CIV\113020 — Sheetz\_05 REMODEL SITES\110529004 — 416 — 1406 N Arendell Ave — Zebulon — NC\CAD\PlanSheets\UTILITY PLAN.dwg

01: 06: 38pm

it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written cuthorization and adaptation by Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc.

261.10°

E

70747 38"

S

ao’ _‘ /

GO_'I_ __GO'I — aol - -

aon

=y

LOD

LOD

LOD

LOD

LOD

September 12, 2025

Layout: UTILITY PLAN

Sheet Set: COSTCO HARRISBURG FUEL EXPANSION

Plotted By:Jang, Soojin

is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which

as an instrument of service,

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein,

aon

— ao1 — —

LOD

}
CITY OF RALEIGH UTILITY NOTES UTILITY LEGEND -
1. All materials & construction methods shall be in accordance with LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE L
City of Raleigh design standards, details & LOD (81,705 SF) =
specifications (reference: CORPUD Handbook, current edition) =
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER
2. Utility separation requirements: LINE
a) A distance of 100’ shall be maintained between sanitary
sewer & any private or public water supply source such as an EXISTING WATER LINE
impounded reservoir used as a source of drinking water. If
adequate lateral separation cannot be achieved, ferrous PROPOSED SANITARY
P E A R C E S R D sanitary sewer pipe shall be specified & installed to waterline S SEWER LINE
60 SURB[@%/W specifications. However, the minimum separation shall not be
STA: 10+14.50 less than 25’ from a private well or 50’ from a publicwell. W PROPOSED WATER LINE %
STA T0+09.48 b) When installing water &/or sewer mains, the horizontal %
1 - DOMESTIC WATER VALVE TAP.2" DoMESTIC LINE) separation between utilities shall be 10’. If this separation e e e e e @m PROPOSED STORM DRAIN =
1 - EX. DOMESTIC WATER METER cannot be maintained due to existing conditions, the variation L
1 - BACKFLOW PREVENTER allowed is the water main in a separate trench with the
o LOD elevation of the water main at least 18” above the top of the SHEETZ UTILITY NOTES
LOD LOD X g ’) sewer & must be approved by the Public Utilities Director. All
< distances are measured from outside diameter to outside 1.  ALL SITE WORK SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE
/ 2&%}(5:;%\;\(/ F\;\IIQAI\ETVEEI;I-II\;IEEBI'I;IS MATCH ( RIM: 339'\_/|7H1L 3 diameter. WITH THE PLANS PREPARED BY KIMLEY-HORN, THE
©Db LUU LOD LOD EOD INV IN: 330.45 & Lo c) Where it isimpossible to obtain properseparation, or CURRENT REQUIREMENTS OF THE TOWN OF ZEBULON
NEW IRRIGATION SYSTEM TO BE LINV OUT: 33045 (o) anytime a sanitary sewer passes over a watermain, DIP AND THE CITY OF RALEIGH, THE APPLICABLE
_ PROPOSED. DESIGNED BY OTHERS. _ oo S 19704227 W _ 441,60’ - SS_- — N_ o~~~ OJNMFT " TSy o | Sy materials or steel encasement extended 10’ on each side of SECTIONS OF THE NCDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS S
6" PVC SANITARY LINE 1-6" CLEANOUT crossing must be specified & installed to waterline FOR ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION, AND ALL OTHER =
RIM: 332.51 L 6"PVC spemf,capqns. _ o _ PERTINENT FEDERAL AND STATE LAWS.
INV IN: 331.97 ﬁ ﬁ SANITARY d) 5.0’ minimum horizontal separation is required between all
‘ INV OUT: 331.97 11+00 12+00 LINE sanitary sewer & storm sewer facilities, unless DIP material is 2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY AT ALL TIMES WITH S
S G S s S S — s S -} 6 % specified for sanitary sewer. APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL LAWS, : °
3 < VI O 9 e) Maintain 18” min. vertical separation at all watermain & PROVISIONS, AND POLICIES GOVERNING SAFETY AND o
2" COPPER TYPE K WATER LINE RIM: 357 98 ) MH p .’ RCP storm drain crossings; maintain 18” min. vertical HEALTH. h <
S \* INV IN: 332 19 6" PVC SANITARY LINE RIM: 336.46 0, separation at all sanitary sewer & RCP storm drain crossings. R
| 1 INV OUT' 3'32 19 INV IN: 330.65 I Where adequate separations cannot be achieved, specify 3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR o g 5
11489 p : . INV OUT: 330.65 ) o, DIP materials & a concrete cradle having 6” min. clearance EXAI(\:/IINING TH%ARCI;EASSA’\(I)D COCr;\lgI'I;ONSCUNDER o Q ;{J
— S 4 " (per CORPUD details W- 41 & S-49). WHICH THE PROJECT IS TO BE CONSTRUCTED PRIOR 0T 4
1-6 SIH\IAEA%(;L(J)Z | N / 6" PVC SANITARY LINE ] . / f) All other underground utilities shall cross water & sewer TO THE SUBMISSION OF A BID. I @ zg S
INV IN: 332 51 AYM ) / NYA B :@, ‘ facilities with 18” min. vertical separation required. A 0387z
INV OUT: 332 51 aNO @ ) 4. BEFORE EXCAVATION, ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES A Z N 0 x
8| ‘ S I/_ ( 3. Any necessary field revisions are subject to review & approval of SHALL BE LOCATED IN THE FIELD BY THE PROPER aN — O‘O I‘
_ <77 v |2€C | ¢¢ L 0c ol - an amended plan &/or profile by the City of Raleigh Public Utilities AUTHORITIES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY 811 20>
~ N 8 Department prior to construction. "CALL BEFORE YOU DIG." THE LOCATION OF ALL > T .o
—) A I B o . | 0 O aot UTILITIES AND UNDERGROUND STRUCTURES ARE S0 G é
a % T :i—| P it T i A 4. Developer shall provide 30 days advance written notice to owner APPROXIMATE AND MAY NOT ALL BE SHOWN. IT IS THE m - é 5=
9 & I 9 S | | Il o :@: N for any work required within an existing City of Raleigh Utility RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO DETERMINE o é nT §
E §'_>‘ §'_>Z 1 | N~ ° == (@) Easement traversing private property. THE EXISTENCE AND EXACT LOCATION OF ALL o4
|<j R BLDG CONNECTION sl || A J B UTILITIES AND UNDERGROUND STRUCTURES. S §
Z RIM: 334.38 = 7 ) / 5. Contractor shall maintain continuous water & sewer service to N
3:) E INV IN: 333.83 | ~ / existing residences & businesses throughout construction of project. 5. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO © -
&) INV OUT: 333.83 gl | Any necessary service interruptions shall be preceded by a 24-hour BID AND PERFORM ALL UTILITY WORK IN COMPLIANCE B Z
E ° STA: 10+87.63 ) | I © ) advance notice to the City of Raleigh Public Utilities Department. TO ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL AND STATE CODES AND ¥ W
N ‘ BLDG CONNECTION 1 I 00 REGULATIONS. 5
_ I | e :@: 5 6. SEWER BYPASS PUMPING — A bypass plan sealed by an NC <
1-4" CLEANOUT H S T S o S y Professional Engineer shall be provided to Raleigh Water prior to 6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL
RIM: 333.67 % [_| | — — © pumping operations for approval. The operations and equipment FEES ASSOCIATED WITH THE INSTALLATION,
o) INV'IN: 333.30 b - / shall comply with the Public Utilities Handbook. INSPECTING, TESTING AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE OF
S || \UNYV.OUT: 333.30 [% N - O ALL PROPOSED UTILITY CONSTRUCTION UNLESS
(GREASE TRAP OUT d 3 | . — STANDARD (@) 7. 3.0’ minimum cover is required on all water mains & sewer force OTHERWISE COORDINATED BEFOREHAND WITH
RIM: 333.71 PROPOSED SHEETZ STORE | UST FIELD “El Il mains. 4.0’ minimum cover is required on all reuse mains. SHEETZ.
INV IN: 333.34 FOOTPRINT AREA: +6,139 SF [):: I ™ O NOT FOR
INV OUT: 333.34 APPROXIMATE FFE: 338.0" I = B B — m- / 8. It is the developer’s responsibility to abandon or remove existing 7. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH THE ‘
}/ [J | T 7 water & sewer services not being used in redevelopment of a site APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANY ON THE ADDITION, CONSTRUCTION
2000-GAL. — ml . ~ Vam x unless otherwise directed by the City of Raleigh Public Utilities REMOVAL AND/OR RELOCATION OF UTILITIES AND
GREASE TRAP (g 10400 T A ‘ 1 N Department. This includes abandoning tap at main & removal of UTILITY POLES AND THE EXTENSION OF ALL
GREASE TRAP IN I [E: Il 5 service from ROW or easement per CORPUD Handbook procedure. PROPOSED UTILITIES TO THE SHEETZ PROJECT
RIM: 334.01 ! r BLDG CONNECTION o | = (N o ) _ _ STRUCTURES.
A INV IN: 333.64 |_ | RIM: 334.20 [ 2 . N 9. Install 2” copper water services with meters located at ROW or
Q INV OUT: 333.64 INV IN: 333.83 5 | . . within a 2'x2" Waterline Easement immediately adjacent. NOTE: it is 8. ALL UTILITIES SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE 22|21k
- INV OUT: 333.83 a o o :@: o the applicant’s responsibility to properly size the water service for WITH THE SPECIFICATIONS OF THE RESPECTIVE o< Q O|x|x| T
I " each connection to provide adequate flow & pressure. UTILITY COMPANY. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE |2 2| o] &
) a2 CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE ALL UTILITIES ARE g o | B Q w4 >
» o~ 10. Install 4" and 6" PVC sewer services as noted @ 1.0% minimum INSTALLED CORRECTLY TO MEET PROJECT o % et I A 2
. an 7 grade with cleanouts located at ROW or easement line & spaced REQUIREMENTS WHETHER PERFORMED BY THE <O U 2|
7 every 75 linear feet maximum. CONTRACTOR OR NOT. i = ol2|121218
& B85
. . o e o — 11. Pressure reducing valves are required on all water services 9. AN AS-BUILT DRAWING OF NEW UTILITY SERVICES
e . 00 T :@: 8 exceeding 80 psi; backwater valves are required on SHALL BE PREPARED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND
@ N all sanitary sewer services having building drains lower than 1.0’ SUBMITTED TO THE OWNER UPON COMPLETION OF
a vt |¥SAAV/ S - = = &= e T ~ above the next upstreammanhole. THE PROJECT.
/ j 2, 8; @ 12. All environmental permits applicable to the project must be 10. UTILITY COMPANIES AND CONTACTS ARE LISTED ON
;»EZ( 1 2 3 4 5 6 A obtained from NCDWQ, USACE &/or FEMA for any riparian buffer, SHEET C-000. Z
v wetland &/or floodplain impacts (respectively) prior to construction.
J * 1 / ‘% N :@: ( (Q _ _ 11. CONDUIT LOCATIONS TO FREESTANDING SIGNS AND <
E dO1S @ ° I i Y NV Q} S 13. NCPOT / Ra_llroad.Encroailchment Agreement§ are requn'.edl for SITE LIGHT POLES TO BE COORDINATED WITH SHEETZ
50 NOT ENTER — % /\ <;\L\ o any utility work (including main extensions & service taps) within CONSTRUCTION MANAGER. _l
| o state or railroad ROW prior to construction. D_
§ &Q&VQ@ 12. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE AND VERIFY WITH
% % o & 14. Grease Interceptor / Oil Water Separator sizing calculations & SHEETZ CONSTRUCTION MANAGER ON LOCATION AND
< % NI installation specifications shall be approved by the RW FOG SIZE OF THE STORE GREASE TRAP. GREASE TRAP >—
8 C) S Program Coordinator prior to issuance of a UC and/or Building SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH "T" PIPE IN OUTFLOW I_
- v% Permit. Contact (919) 996-4516 or fog@raleighnc.gov for more CHAMBER. ALL SANITARY SEWER PIPE SHALL BE —
= % information. SDR-35 PVC UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
&‘ﬁsl’i E —
[~ ml 15. Cross-connection control protection devices are required based 13. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH SHEETZ T
on the degree of health hazard involved as listed in Appendix B of CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AND SHEETZ IT I_
the Rules Governing Public Water Systems in North Carolina. DEPARTMENT ON THE CONDUIT ROUTE TO STORE D
FOR TELE/COMMUNICATION SERVICES.
39 40 41 49 43 | 44 | 45 16. The qewces shall meet the American Sometyl of Sgnltary
Engineering (SAAE) standards and be on the University of Southern 14. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO OTHER PLANS WITHIN
California approval list. THIS CONSTRUCTION SET FOR OTHER PERTINENT
o e oo a0 INFORMATION.
_ o W - - — _lr om0l 401 — 17. The device and installation shall mee the guidelines of Appendix
I~ IR 7 A — Guidelines and Requirements for the Cross Connection ATTENTION CONTRACTORS
' aot N 190422 E 554.28 Program in Raleigh’s Service Area. LIJ <
The Contractor responsible for the extension of water, sewer, =
18. The devices shall be installed and tested (both, initial and and/or reuse, as approved in these plans, is responsible for > 5
periodic testing thereafter) in accordance with the manufacturer’s contacting the Infrastructure Inspections Division and < o
recommendations or the local cross connection control program, schedule a Pre-construction meeting on the Development S
whichever is more stringent. Contact Portal prior to beginning any construction. Raleigh Water
Cross.connection@raleighnc.gov for more information. must be contacted at (919) 996-4540 at least twenty-four (o — L
hours prior to beginning any work activity around critical _l %
19. NOTICE for projects that involve an oversized main or urban water and sewer infrastructure. N~ LL] =z
main replacement. Any City reimbursement greater than ﬂ'
$250,000.00 must undergo the public bidding process. Failure to notify City Departments in advance of beginning :I:I: D
construction, will result in the issuance of monetary fines,
and require reinstallation of any water or sewer facilities not Z
inspected as a result of this notification failure. LIJ LIJ
Failure to call for Inspection, install a downstream plug, have m
permitted plans on the jobsite, or any other violation of City O m
of Raleigh Standards will result in a fine and possible < %
exclusion from future work in the City of Raleigh I— 3
W=z =
N
O© 5
O
N () _
<t =
O
< —
]
" Call before you dig. C-400

181




BY

STRUCTURE TABLE
STRUCTURE NAME: DETAILS: PIPES IN: PIPES OUT

DATE

GREASE TRAP IN
RIM: 334.01

n . o) " . 0,
Gl INV IN- 333,64 FROM S0., 4" PVC INV IN: 333.64 @ 1.00% TO GO, 4" PVC INV OUT: 333.64 @ 2.33%

PEARCES RD INV OUT: 333.64

. SR 1001
60" PUBLIC R/W GREASE TRAP OUT

STA: 10+14.50 RIM: 333.71 FROM GI, 4" PVC INV IN: 4@ 2.339 TO S1, 4" PVC INV OUT: 4 @ 1.009
STA 070048 J GO NV 1M, 333,34 OM G, c 1 333.34 @ 2.33% 081, C INV OUT: 333.34 @ 1.00%

1 - DOMESTIC WATER VALVE TAP 2" DOMESTIC LINE INV OUT: 333.34
1 - EX. DOMESTIC WATER METER P

1- BACKFLOW PREVENTER 40 S0 RIM: 334.20 TO GI., 4" PVC INV OUT: 333.83 @ 1.00%

REVISIONS

aon

LOD

aon

LOD

aon

261.10°

£
LOD

70°47 38"

S

it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written cuthorization and adaptation by Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc.

K:\RIC_CIV\113020 — Sheetz\_05 REMODEL SITES\110529004 — 416 — 1406 N Arendell Ave — Zebulon — NC\CAD\PlanSheets\UTILITY PROFILES.dwg

September 12, 2025 01:07: 00pm

Layout: UTILITY PROFILES

Sheet Set: COSTCO HARRISBURG FUEL EXPANSION
This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which

Plotted By:Jang, Soojin

=
LOD LOD = == INV OUT: 333.83

vl

BACKFLOW PREVENTER TO MATCH 1-4" CLEANOUT

WCN 4 L% SIZE OF EX. WATER METER. — 10D LOD EOD RIM: 333.67

TO BE PROPOSED. —

S1 FROM GO, 4" PVC INV IN: 333.30 @ 1.00% | TO S2, 4" PVC INV OUT: 333.30 @ 1.00%
—_ = 4\‘\7 O — . — NEW IRRIGATION SYSTEM . __ __ T 55190422 W 44160 ————ug—————oe———————e "~ . INV OUT: 333.30
4 DESIGNED BY OTHERS.

No.

INV IN: 333.30
\ 1-6" CLEANOUT

RIM: 333.05
& ] 11 « / S—

S2 FROM S1, 4" PVC INV IN: 332.51 @ 1.00% TO 83, 6" PVC INV OUT: 332.51 @ 1.00%
| _— 2" COPPER TYPE K WATER LINE

=

INV IN: 332.51
INV OUT: 332.51

12+007

Q 1

\ 6" PVC SANITARY LINE
<1

MH

RIM: 337.98

S3 INV IN: 332.19
INV IN: 332.19
INV OUT: 332.09

FROM S3.1, 6" PVC INV IN: 332.19 @ 5.02%
FROM S2, 6" PVC INV IN: 332.19 @ 1.00%

LOD

TO S4, 6" PVC INV OUT: 332.09 @ 0.63%

® = 6" PVC SANITARY LINE N
L '.:v"\é."." . .,‘
O i o s

BLDG CONNECTION
S3.1 RIM: 334.38 TO 83, 6" PVC INV OUT: 333.83 @ 5.02%

INV OUT: 333.83

1-6" CLEANOUT
sS4 m{\/”:|§_3§é511 o FROM S3, 6" PVC INV IN: 331.97 @ 0.63% | TO S5, 6" PVC INV OUT: 331.97 @ 0.63%

INV OUT: 331.97

\:;'.';r' [/

0

4" PVC SANITARY LINE\. 1

18
4

v

MH
RIM 33646 " . 0 " . o)
S5 INV IN: 330 65 FROM S84, 6" PVC INV IN: 330.65 @ 0.63% TO S6, 6" PVC INV OUT: 330.65 @ 0.63%

INV OUT: 330.65

PHONE: 919-835-1494
WWW.KIMLEY—HORN.COM

X

STA: 10+87.63 ) i A

BLDG CONNECTION MH

RIM: 339.71
S6 INV IN: 330.45
INV IN: 330.55

T 10+887T]
T
@ =i
17
N

N

FROM EX-1, 8" PVC INV IN: 330.45 @ 0.44%
FROM S5, 6" PVC INV IN: 330.55 @ 0.63%

Kimley»Horn

421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET, SUITE 600, RALEIGH, NC 27601

TO EX-2, 8" PVC INV OUT: 330.45 @ 0.44%

I:)
'y
a
LN
54
s
P
24
N
s 4
£
)
Ta PO
B SR
A4
N

r'y
2
r'y
£
4
aon

6¢

N

e iy | ’ ' E /- SRIN R R / INV OUT: 330.45
U e : T J SR "

=
14
:

0T

4
=

Y PROPOSED SHEETZ STORE — [ e e - USTFIELD |-
@ v FOOTPRINT AREA: 6,139 SF [ ﬁ! ’ S ‘ S 2 - :‘

9

-
-
~_ = -
IV GCENRERIT AN
15

13

A\

E] /{

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

0 10 20 4|O

o APPROXIMATE FFE: 338.0" i
2000-GAL. ——= : H

GREASE TRAP

CONSTRUCTION

A X~
LANS

‘ NOT FOR

aot

|
]
"

A
A
A
-y
A
RN
¢
N

RND
RND
HRT

|
i

10
H
A

4,4
A

K £
4

7
\

NRews

i/

[®)]
KHA PROJECT
110529004
DATE
9/12 /2025
AS SHOWN

SCALE
DESIGNED BY
DRAWN BY
CHECKED BY

9]
w

INV: 336.19
STA: 10+14.50 -
INV: 336.19

1 - DOMESTIC WATER VALVE
1 - EX. DOMESTIC WATER METER

3.1

INV OUT: 333.64 (TO GO) O
®
®

STA: 10+32.10
INV IN: 333.34 (FROM Gil)

INV OUT: 333.34
INV IN: 332.19 (FROM S3.1)

INV IN: 332.19 (FROM S2)

INV IN: 333.64 (FROM S0.)
INV OUT: 332.09

GREASE TRAP IN
GREASE TRAP OUT
RIM: 333.71

STA: 10+19.23
RIM: 334.01

STA: 11+47.02

MH
RIM: 337.98

®
N
INV IN: 332.51 (FROM S1)

INV OUT: 332}51

2)

1 - BACKFLOW PREVENTER

INV OUT: 330.65

RIM: 336.46
INV IN: 330.45 (FROM EX-1)

STA: 10+87.63 - BLDG CONNECTION
)]
STA: 12+61 ﬂ@
(é)]
INV IN: 330.65 (FROM S4)

STA: 12+77.96

MH

MH

344 344

7\
2
-_—

INV IN: 333.30 (FROM GO)

INV OUT: 333.30

»
o
1-6" CLEANQUT

STA: 11+15.4P
RIM: 333.05

(7))
~

344

— EXISTING GRADE |- 344

PROPOSED
9 GRADE

BLDG CONNECTION
RIM: 334.38
STA: 10+32.71 INV OUT: 333.83 (TO 83)

MH

STA: 10+00

PROPOSED GRADE
EXISTING GRADE 340

ROM S2)
b.56
STA—t6+3576

340

INYV IN: 330.55 (FROM S5)

INV OUT: 330.45
1-4" CLEANOUT
RIM: 333.67

RIM: 339.71
INV OUT: 333.83 (TO Gl.)

STA: 10+00
BLDG CONNECTION
RIM: 334.20

340

B 340 340 , 340

1-6" CLEANOUT
INV IN: 331,97 (FROM S3)
INV OUT: 331.97

RIM: 332.5

INV IN: 332.19 (
INV OUT: 332.09 (TO

\ STA: 10+5

EXISTING GRADE
PROPOSED GRADE 336

INV IN: 332.19 (HROM S3.1)

RIM: 337.98

336

=

—

422 ‘/ /D _STA: 10+09.48 - TAP 2" DOMESTIC LINE

336

CONTRACTOR TO TEST PIT
EXISTING WATERLINE AND
VERIFY ELEVATION PRIOR

336 336 336

3.36'

332 332

TO CONSTRUCTION
} 332

32 LF OF 6" PVC @ 1.00%

/|

332 332 | 332

6" PVC SAN — \
INV: 332.31
STA: 10+54.91

/

2" PVC WATER
INV: 334.58
STA: 11+34.95

CONTRACTOR TO TEST PIT
EXISTING SANITARY LINE
AND VERIFY ELEVATION
PRIOR TO CONSTRUGTION 304
80 LF OF 4" PVC @ 1.00%
4 LF OF 4" PVC @ 1.00%
1LF OF 4" PVC @ 1.00%
1LF OF 4' PVC @ 1.00%
10+00 10+00 11+00 12+00 L16 LF OF 4" PVC @ 1.00%

WATER SERVICE CONNECTION SANITARY LATERAL CONNECTION TO S6 2

SCALE: 1" = 40'H SCALE: 1" = 40'H
1"=4'V 1"=4'V

— [ L 328 328

\—209 LF OF 6" PVC @ 0.63%

20 LF OF 6" PVC @ 0.63%
12" RCP STORM
INV: 33288 328 328 L33 LF OF 6" PVC @ 5.02% 16 LF OF 6" PVC @ 0.63% 328

STA: 10+28.51
326 326 326 326 324

328

NORH CAROLINA

340.7
337.6
336.0
336.6

320

337.4
337.4

STORE #416
1406 N ARENDELL AVE| UTILITY PROFILES

10+00 11+00

SANITARY GREASE TRAP CONNECTION TO S3

SCALE: 1"=40'H
1"=4'V

TOWN OF ZEBULON

Know what's below. SHEET NUMBER

Call before you dig. C-410

182




K: \RIC_CIV\113020 — Sheetz\_05 REMODEL SITES\110529004 — 416 — 1406 N Arendell Ave — Zebulon — NC\CAD\PlanSheets\LANDSCAPE PLAN.dwg

01:07/:12pm

September 12, 2025

Layout: LANDSCAPE PLAN

Sheet Set: COSTCO HARRISBURG FUEL EXPANSION

Plotted By:Jang, Soojin

This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and adaptation by Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley—Horn and Associates, Inc.

LOD

Lop A\

"t ARCES [RD

SR 1001
60" PUBLIC R/W

LOD FLAG POLE

SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT

’ | ,
10' BUILDING SETBACK A umm@&g ‘
SN N\ U oo SNE ' '
) E=UIEN (o v'oooe C
| ’ N\ (49) AM (45)1S :¢ 8 { MONUMENT SIGN
| | : ¥(11)LW\ Ei;‘i_st 22 DUMPSTiER 07/
o,
i I’“‘% PP ADDITIONAL / \ / (33 ENCLOSURE {q
L g SHADE TREE / / ) (3) QP o3 0, ,
~——A) SAP—(7)AL N\ 740 CT (3) TB / O
1 ORI 51 ) NIRRT (740 (3)TB (47) IM 2 LS / /
|| AL g TR o | e | g
IS . ey N . »“Q \
S aﬁ 0 S~ ‘/ - | | o9 Y WS /
igﬁ\\o ~ L \ | X \ 5 /
SN N4 H-—TF B e e \(J~ ADDITIONAL
| o 9-!€“ | | | gl = \ o \{ SHADE TREES
| . }g | / \ £
| O e : . ADDITIONAL 4 /
- %2 E 3 EXISTING CANOPY E \ . : / \ SHADE TREES ! \, /
9 ~55 Ol TREES TO REMAIN AN il o ST vENT / .
1e CH8 S 1 LENONE N AN/
| R N | - = _ 86
N EX( (7) | — EXISTING HEALTHY TREES — - — ISR S /
(| TOREMAIN AND PROTECT . 50' RADIUS AROUND : /
. ¥ &) | INPLACE. OVERGROWN 8 | PARKING LOT CANOPY / o'
- 0 UNDERSTORY VEGETATION 3| TREE (TYP.) STANDARD i
' 3 WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE PROPOSED SHEETZ STORE | UST FIEL i AN
| - oyl EXISTING DRY POND AREA FOOTPRINT AREA: +6,139 SF L =
bl : =
15 éD N[ 1O PECHEARED: APPROXIMATE FFE: 338.0 | = / #
S [ =
§ g '\ PROPOSED AIR MACHINE | ’ \DDITIONAL £
LA | SHADE TREES e
@ 2 | / %
| dq‘g |_— PROPERTY LINE (TYP.) I {J S ) / &3
A L— 25' BUILDING SETBACK - [[l | ~ EXISTING 2
05».‘3 ‘ / | AN UNDERSTORY TREE "
) “\ / | ARENDELL AVE g
IP/S ‘aég ENHANCED LANDSCAPE ALV S : (TYP.) 2) LW TN
- q 7 = >
oK +X || BUFFER ALONG NORTH , 8
| S E PROPERTY LINE ‘—tkf:‘J [ | o= \ (29) A ? S /
“g ¥ X 10' RADIUS AROUND & /
- = =l LIGHT POLE (TYP) (a’.\ ) /
3= Q) [ 27)1 S &
=0 RO CNI~Ny 3% 7 X
' R | Y [~
I 21 S - e [~7] V@
o 5% - dOLS ~ v O
© o . *"’* DO NOT ENTER / \/ Q~\§O)
S < ~ @sheT - N FE
E’:"' \\ / §\§Q§Q®
A 2) LW 23)B 82 sf) CT S
I =245 / @) \\/ (23)BG ENHANCED LANDSCAPE (625 é@ B
| PEiNe (2)LB / NVIRELE BUFFER ALONG WEST e
* X / PROPERTY LINE N =
\ B
| S 'g’ ADDITIONAL -
I 9 N7 A SHADE TREES >
4 {"‘!“'z.' }
/ °‘$,::"‘. % -
\\ Qs | 5 BUILDING SETBACK /
— At ul e S e e =
__«&oF -d\PERIMETER BUFFE% g =2 i@*’e¥;®‘¥i§§f!¢§é‘g¥§5~ TQ_\__\T/ — 7
' H ao1 W’W’V &

NOTES

1.

SPECIFIED ACER SACCHARUM 'LEGACY' AND
QUERCUS PHELLOS SHADE TREES TO BE
COUNTED FOR UTILITY ALLOCATION POLICY: 3A
REQUIREMENT

BUFFER WIDTHS HAVE BEEN REDUCED PER
DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS.

/

L FLAG POLE LIGHT :

/

SYMBOL CODE BOTANICAL /COMMON NAME
CANOPY TREES
AL ACER SACCHARUM 'LEGACY'
LEGACY SUGAR MAPLE
QP QUERCUS PHELLOS
WILLOW OAK
7G ZELKOVA SERRATA "GREEN VASE®
GREEN VASE JAPANESE ZELKOVA
UNDERSTORY TREES
LAGERSTROEMIA INDICA 'BYER'S WONDERFUL
LB WHITE'

WONDERFUL WHITE CRAPE MYRTLE

LAGERSTROEMIA INDICA "WHIT V'
RED ROCKET® CRAPE MYRTLE

o
or

SHRUBS

AM ABELIA X GRANDIFLORA 'HOPLEYS'
MISS LEMON™ GLOSSY ABELIA

BG BUXUS X 'GREEN MOUNTAIN'
GREEN MOUNTAIN BOXWOOD

IN ILEX VOMITORIA 'NANA'
DWARF YAUPON HOLLY

IS ILEX GLABRA 'SHAMROCK'
SHAMROCK INKBERRY HOLLY

UM JUNIPERUS SCOPULORUM 'MEDORA'
MEDORA JUNIPER

THUJA OCCIDENTALIS 'BOBOZAM®
MR. BOWLING BALL® ARBORVITAE

()

GROUND COVERS

CYNODON DACTYLON 'TIF 419'
TIF 419 BERMUDAGRASS

(e
Q

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET

0 10 20 4|O

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

}
M
L
<C
(@R
)
=
o
%)
>
Lol
¥
o
=
5
C &
N
. - m%
o &
<O
O W
A %8})5
M O
2N iéii
> 2755
L2
D i
- gu‘”ﬁg
) 1
N -
o >
E N
or
. i
<C
N -
S
<~
‘ NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION
<22\
Eg g % ¥ || T
88 Eg i’ > >
e wn
e R R
T2 Nulalz|g
X v O < n <C L
18|58
8 J
J
Ll =
_
> -
e
< <
O
© j &
— :
ﬂ- LIJ
H O
w £
Y LL]
O X .
<L °
|_ e
D)
0N Z =
N
S -
< =
- 0
SHEET NUMBER

183




TOP OF CUPOLA
29| - 6"

T ——

" (HIGH) _

TOP OF PARAPET

22'-93/4"

MBS |

[Ty T W R |

P

1 B

(LOW)

TOP OF PARAPET
21| - 3"

e

S |

il
Al i)
T

BOT OF ENTRY CANOPIES

SHEETZ SHEETZ

FHEEH BT B R

L B e B B R e R R e e e ]

SHEETZ

A

TYP

/]

TYP

11'-47/8"

TOP OF SLAB

01_0"

FRONT ELEVATION

1/4" = 1'-0"

1

GLAZING CALCULATION FRONT ELEVATION =2199.82 SQ FT

40%

DESCRIPTION
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

FAUX WINDOW GLAZING

TOTAL GLAZING

TYPICAL EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES:

ALL LIGHTS SHOWN ABOVE AND/OR BELOW DOORS OR WINDOWS ARE
TO BE CENTERED ON THE DOOR OR WINDOW UNLESS NOTED

OTHERWISE.

FIXTURES/EQUIPMENT BETWEEN TWO DOORS OR WINDOWS ARE TO BE

CENTERED EQUALLY.

EXTERIOR SEALANT FOR STONE SHALL COMPLY WITH SECTION 07 9005
JOINT SEALANTS, GENERAL BUILDING FASCADE WEATHER SEALANT

AND SHALL MATCH THE COLOR OF THE STORE.

EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEYNOTES:

®

BRICK VENEER, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK COMPANY. SEE

MASONRY SPEC

@ CAST STONE SILL, COLOR: CRAB ORCHARD. SEE MASONRY SPEC

©

ANCHORED CAST STONE MASONRY VENEER, COLOR: CRAB ORCHARD.

SEE MASONRY SPEC

@ EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

()

ARCHITECTURAL CANOPY, COLOR: REGAL RED, PREMIUM TWO-COAT

KYNAR FINISH

@ BRICK PAVER WALKWAY

@ LIGHTED CURVED FASCIA CANOPY ATTACHMENT

METAL COPING, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

@ WALL MOUNTED BUILDING SIGN, SEE SHEET A200.

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF, COLOR: BRITE RED

@ GUTTER, COLOR TO MATCH CUPOLA COLOR

@ DOWNSPOUT, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

DRIVE-THRU WINDOW (IF APPLICABLE)

(19
)

N,
0
o
=
L
)
%)
<
L
=
<
o
w
(@)
=z
<
]
Z
p4
=
<
w
-
=
T
n
[m)
w
I
n
=
<
L
%)
O]
P
[m)]
Z
-
)
-
<
T
L
=

L
N
pd
o
4
om
X
14
<
a
&
o
-
o)
O
L
=
<
04
L
a
L
14
L
E
4
om
&
o
|
@)
O
L
O
o
(4

¢
Q
4
m
2
T
zZ
L
Z
T
Z
o
o
Y
m
o
(0]
©
14
o
-
Q
o
i}
2]
i4
>
Q
o
e
w
a
—
o)
(7]
¥
)
X
m

O
|
o
%)
>
1
=z
o
]
<
=
L
w
(92]
N
z
<
o
=
o
@)

X
)
(4
foa
—
<
T
z
i
z
T
z
o]
®)
>
o
o
o]
(o]
&
@)
—
o
@)
wi
%)
o
)
]
@)
X
@)
@)
=
=
o
1
X
@)
o
o

O
L
o
n
>
o
p4
O
D)
<
=
L
L
n
N
z
<
o
=
O
O

CONTROL JOINT, SEE MASONRY SPEC

STEEL ROOF LADDER AND CRANKY POST, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

STANDARD THROUGH WALL SCUPPER WITH CONDUCTOR HEAD &

DOWNSPOUT, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

@ OVERFLOW SCUPPER

@ ALUMINUM STOREFRONT SYSTEM, SEE A600

@ EXTERIOR HOSE BIB, REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS

OUTDOOR FURNITURE

GLAZING CALCULATION FRONT ELEVATION

DESCRIPTION
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

FAUX WINDOW GLAZING
TOTAL GLAZING

@ ELECTRICAL RECEPTACLE, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

@ HM DOOR AND FRAME, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

EMERGENCY WATER CONNECTION, REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS

SEAMLESS ALUM PANEL SYSTEM WITH EXPOSED FASTENERS, COLOR:

DARK BRONZE

PROPANE LOCKER

@ ICE MERCHANDISER

@ RTI FILLPORT

@ STEEL BOLLARD, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

CO2 FILLPORT

@ DECORATIVE ALUMINUM FENCE, COLOR DARK BRONZE

&)

AUTOMATIC DOOR PUSH PLATE AND BOLLARD, BOLLARD COLOR:

DARK BRONZE

GAS METER AND RISER, REFER TO CIVIL UTILITY PLAN, COLOR: DARK

BRONZE

NOT USED

LIGHT CHANNEL AT PARAPET COPING. SEE ARCHITECTURAL AND

ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

NOT USED

FAUX WINDOWS WITH INTERNAL GRAPHIC

ol W v SNOILVAI 13 AAdVNINITIEd
(. s\l -
> S LLl
2| & e O NOILdI¥Os3a | 3Lva [Muvw
% . < w. — V w A al
210 % e 7)) A c o)
S|e § 2fs N X : 2 3 2
; N
15 2 3 — © =z — = 0 S S INEEIE X =z O
|2 © w = ) — — © N~ © o Zl2]< O O
w5 Q25 LLI O T T o £ © “lelslolel T E 0
olQq 3 3% Wy _ S O K > aolel3|E[e] G
Slo 2 =8% | 4T A <& g g g Sl=[2|F|e] K< N
. — N E - C zZ T - pd
c|S 3 <O = € 8 Z - E< Z O e
0|® 9 o | e MM S 5 N @ XZ = % - sl i
P o,2|l = O 25 .F 53 - 2 : oilsl.| Yo
- — = L — N = w L @) - Ll I Z\x Z
ol © ©&¢8sg =Tl Ll o o3 TR~ 2 I S qlelslgle
e) cEQ @) — . T QO o Z O al|o o
N\ > > L o
=@ x N <C €59 =5 5z 9 0 F T mMEEE
o Z ) £ &N o w 1o < o o N 2 A= Sk
Dl |<|x|>
-
=z
o
o
©, » 53
Nnwe
<Owm
x40z
EGMH
SxEx
UFWnFV
Zypwuw
_ Tk
4 ¥oSw
m DAD.M
DRM
- <<Z2
- LHON
- YCCS
- Z=zZW
- >S0¢
il ZE50
-— =0k <
& SESL
| TEEE
> * 0
“, @ m“ @ Y0<>
- ,- %
L i
- i
! i
{ ]
! L]
] &) - =
iy
I HHEHHHHHE m.:_._ ity == el it S
j T g b e == LT
M R LR
Rulpdpludgly oot plodolytelotplydoly . = LT
AR = NG =t} i
‘ | | . , HH
- i
i
§ - 1§ - i -
il
AR S
A Ay
el aatlitads nfytefndsl nfyl
A il
ettt
i ] (®)
il ;
2l LA ©
IHHHAHEE L
T i ®
AR AR A A
e R H ® . ®
o i ©
1]
£5 i ®
=t —-——--m—
== ———————-——
=k !
= i
g il g ©
Hilid I . %)
sl ] ®
A HHHHHHH] ] )
| Pyttt i) 2 <
BH HHHH =2 o
. o oM
i 5 i
P m. & & L T mr_l W IZ
| g R iy KRS Aol ol < Mmouﬂn_.w —
__ N W TAly LLl
= oL L
_ . — iy <3 o
: - 7 253t -
i ,
- < x
o | il 28§ 0
. . = o =2
HAHHERHARH © O y : =
e sttty 4 < 2 N )
HHHHHHHHHHHA | S g | 3
z L zZl >
o= < = ol s g _/E Lol |= E =
2 Izlzlg 3 ol o > Z Z 2 gl —|:
BEEE mu. m m _Dm % M 5 m ANER -l M
o |218|= w_ MuA. M Wmo a 7} a S| e g | A I
Olw Olo o_y Ol¢+ Ol® (@] O n WOl W <
o D.-. D:-_ D.-_ T-_ _|-_ Dqu D:-. o
e il [ [l 14 N Fla o~ o< o ~|o 5| | A
pnit s B2 £ 2"z

184


AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
879.92 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
590.61 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAUX WINDOW GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
879.92 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
120.61 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
879.92 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
711.22 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
383 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
392.2 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAUX WINDOW GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
383 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
392.2 SQ FT


L SNOILVAI1d AdVNINIT13™d
< 10 Y -
— (9]
2 € e O W NOILdINOS3a | 3iva [savi
(@) A o T 1)
+— O & N ) A c To]
= 5 o £ o <t
O 5 55 0° N X z < =) N
52 283 o £ — I % S I EEle xZ .
N RS S0 ~— | © N~ © o <|X|S ONe)
%) O 2bh E O T O o (o) «— -~ || —
Ul Q NE® < A c O 0 W < | olo Y
o = < 2 LLI O O~ > BB ™ =
- T <o T H s Y . < <[22l W <C
Slo = =288 | 4T O <%9 ¢ <7 2 Sl|g|F|s| WIS N
—— N - zZ Ir . = pd
| ¥ soold D= £82 2 Ig = 5 < [
v @ Q — R B C & & N X Z - %) sl L
> b o= 3 W L] Z o 5 ¢ »n O 3 @ Z Ol2|a L
o 0 2€c0 3 LW |— ER © 3 z W S E = s o NN EEE
O ™ 2 - 2 Q O PN > W=7 U
5 © Z — Z A S 3 = T = o) v P f Slw|EIS|E
o £ U £ & N Sw 1< O o N X 2l |5a|S
Zini<|X|>
4 (@] o o < = (@] (@) <
3 I 5 o 3 O 3 I E ul 5
w| M o o~ & al o T N g = al o
o gl < = o o, O O 2l < a) ol ©
o n'd 14 e TN = o o 1’4 14 TR ~ o
o) < < =l O o o < < o o
o o
= W w g k > = W w e &
ol 5l 8 g S gl o g
o 5 ! o
(2]
L4
N s £ £
~ ~ ~
o | M@p | |
oce : ®OOE
| _
7 7 Q= e sle
UL ® IR =12
,..,mmuv HEH] _._.______“ _._ 0 b
I._____‘__,.__,___ ”.I,_,___,___,___,A__ O m1
~ T [a
THEAHH :_ _ O &
= ..“.n.m_n ] __m.__.__.. i __.n_m__ “ ® :
LH . HH | |
= jif 5
: e_ ® - L
m @)
O
@ @ Y
i >
& __““ m.____._m_“m““_ __. ® 5
== : _- Y
el -m _ .“_n (®) L
::= _. .:.. bt ! Z
A L HH _
_1:{§=_ .53?;1_ Q
iy L] .Nw - © > —
_%ﬁg%gg S
Ralateialal’ @ w
—
y@ I
<C
® e
Ols
als
1
ol
(2) ©
o
& = ____“ ®
_=:
,,__agm
HHH] (3%
® et T
& .
o
O m
Y
=
w O
Y
(®) T
E n :
m““¥= @ (® mw
__me <
(=)
o < =
C 0
B ® o
<
®
5 4 @ a2
0 { I
5 & >, U"4
Eow 2 2 OJ=
ESw _ ¢
O 28858 < 5
- 2zQFE8¢E =
83583 ¢? < I
sEOESt o 5 2
8Leof@c o g
£o035%523 S Sl
3£8352° Sl 512
228254 5 %
STESROE
ceEs2SLc Z
LE0O0<C2B<L
co5s2200
T
R AR <
;:%z::r:zﬁz::: =
~| L]
o -
______ O o
e |
Lz
Ol
i E
<
.
g | & [33rn
N R P

;___
=i

6!_1 "

n_“...m.___.n___..m_“ _.___.._.__

®

TYP

TYP TYP

TYP

CHoyexoy

Y

TYP

ANCHORED CAST STONE MASONRY VENEER, COLOR: CRAB ORCHARD.

BRICK VENEER, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK COMPANY. SEE
SEE MASONRY SPEC

FIXTURES/EQUIPMENT BETWEEN TWO DOORS OR WINDOWS ARE TO BE
MASONRY SPEC

CENTERED EQUALLY.
EXTERIOR SEALANT FOR STONE SHALL COMPLY WITH SECTION 07 9005

JOINT SEALANTS, GENERAL BUILDING FASCADE WEATHER SEALANT
AND SHALL MATCH THE COLOR OF THE STORE.

ALL LIGHTS SHOWN ABOVE AND/OR BELOW DOORS OR WINDOWS ARE
EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEYNOTES:

TO BE CENTERED ON THE DOOR OR WINDOW UNLESS NOTED

OTHERWISE.
@ EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

()

@ CAST STONE SILL, COLOR: CRAB ORCHARD. SEE MASONRY SPEC

)

TYPICAL EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES:

®

REAR ELEVATION

1/4" =1'-0"

3

COAT

ARCHITECTURAL CANOPY, COLOR: REGAL RED, PREMIUM TWO-

KYNAR FINISH

@ BRICK PAVER WALKWAY

@ LIGHTED CURVED FASCIA CANOPY ATTACHMENT

o
o
A
<
T
w
w
I
o
w
w
%
4
o
o
)
z
o
=
S
@D
a)
]
T
z
S
o
=
—
-
<
=

METAL COPING, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF, COLOR: BRITE RED

METAL STANDING SEAM SHED STYLE AWNING AND FRAME ASSEMBLY,

ROOF COLOR: BRITE RED, FRAME COLOR: DARK BRONZE
BRICK SOLDIER COURSE, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK

COMPANY. SEE MASONRY SPEC

@ GUTTER, COLOR TO MATCH CUPOLA COLOR
DRIVE-THRU WINDOW (IF APPLICABLE)

@ DOWNSPOUT, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

BRICK ROWLOCK COURSE, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK

COMPANY. SEE MASONRY SPEC

CONTROL JOINT, SEE MASONRY SPEC

(19
(16
)

1

30% OF COVERAGE REQ
57710
577.10
377.10

DESCRIPTION
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

GLAZING CALCULATION RIGHT ELEVATION

FAUX WINDOW GLAZING
TOTAL GLAZING

STANDARD THROUGH WALL SCUPPER WITH CONDUCTOR HEAD &

DOWNSPOUT, COLOR: DARK BRONZE
EMERGENCY WATER CONNECTION, REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS

(@)

@ HM DOOR AND FRAME, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

@ ELECTRICAL RECEPTACLE, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS
ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

@ EXTERIOR HOSE BIB, REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS

OUTDOOR FURNITURE

STEEL ROOF LADDER AND CRANKY POST, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

(@)

@ ALUMINUM STOREFRONT SYSTEM, SEE A600

@ OVERFLOW SCUPPER

SEAMLESS ALUM PANEL SYSTEM WITH EXPOSED FASTENERS, COLOR:

DARK BRONZE

GAS METER AND RISER, REFER TO CIVIL UTILITY PLAN, COLOR: DARK

BRONZE

NOT USED
()

AUTOMATIC DOOR PUSH PLATE AND BOLLARD, BOLLARD COLOR:

ICE MERCHANDISER
DARK BRONZE

L
N
Z
o
x
m
X
14
<
a
x
o
|
@)
@)
i)
@)
P
L
L
=
2
z
=
)
-
<
w
=
—
<
04
O
O
L
a

® &)

w
N
z
o
04
)
X
o
<
a
14
O
—
o
&)
a
14
<
-
—
O
@
—
m
w
—
"

T
o
©)
o
|
=
T
o
©)
@)

@ RTI FILLPORT

PROPANE LOCKER

LIGHT CHANNEL AT PARAPET COPING. SEE ARCHITECTURAL AND

ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

FAUX WINDOWS WITH INTERNAL GRAPHIC

NOT USED

185



AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAUX WINDOW GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
239.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
313.3


$ 21-11/4"
T.0. CANOPY

$ 16'-8 3/4"
BOTTOM OF CANOPY

RED ACM COLOR TO MATCH
PANTONE 201C

CANOPY TO RECEIVE RECESSED LIGHTING AND
CONCAVE AWNING W/ FASCIA LIGHTS

10" DARK BRONZE
A.C.M. COLUMN WRAP

STREET SIDE
N
TOP OF A.C.M. COLUMN WRAP
Y
R N
. &
i
¥
| | [ | B
>
[ \§&
ioB ST TN ¢ ﬂ& ] d R (. (. Al
; N ; ;
(_’Tb «T‘_) ! 21'-9"
I —— \
oo I S
ror or sLB —
J J
SIDE B ELEVATION
e SCALE: 3/16" =1"-©"
B o -
$ﬁ? .
BOTTOM OF CANOPY STORE SIDE iizrgig zceoléoﬁ TO MATCH CANOPY TO RECEIVE RECESSED LIGHTING AND
% % CONCAVE AWNING W/ FASCIA LIGHTS N N S
14'-0"
%’oﬁ.é?c’oﬁmﬁ;\: ''''''''''''''' 2_: 3 5 ._: > 3_: 1]@_: ‘uz_: = M_:
FUEL OFFERING FLAG
SIGN LOCATION (TYP.)
;
3 2
4 2 ®
| | | | | | © =
\™>
f M%’\" p ﬂa ) Al R Al R Al .
ra 5 ! 2-e"
QO 7 o \
oo’ i S
ror o sLam —
1) 1)
SIDE D ELEVATION
SCALE: 3/1e" =I'-©"
e moEmmgmmmeese SewwSEmEle s o evimmouLGHNG 1 luhlk
% = _RED ;@;@:@ ......................... o st I / I CAST STONE SILL
FANTONE 2010 191 13116" 191 130" FANTONE 2010 ! SELF DRILLING ! e 2-o"
L 1.0, TRUSS To. TRUSS _ o i SHEET METAL SCREW | i ; 34 :Ti: : 75 RBEIEENR;)#JOLSEK STONE BASE
R R s | |
L . N 1678 314" / | concave — BACKER | z -1
ﬁa CANOPY e ‘i¢_ E R | B.O. CANOPT_¢_ /// I_ FASCIA PANEL J: iﬁg:fl. ’ CZT\I%PDYO WN SPouT ACM. WRAP
4o | 23 102 I \__zr K I 23112 | B.0. TRUSS ‘\i B.O. TRUSS 2-312" | % 272" / | 2-3 112" —, ,/, t-—-—-
..................... 1 DARK BRONZE acM 1 = 14-0" - ~
_$T°' ACM. COLUMN WRAP STORE SIDE » el STREET SIDE I ISTREET SIDE - E%;%i@jﬁ;j&m T e = éTI?Ré sEEI' T 10 AcM colmN mRA_P¢_ / g V\\ 112" w ax
N . | \ - —
e e e & * \ , nis y ‘ y
FIRE MARSHALL DECAL: ZL\JGE: f;;EAil\:;i fas A al g)-l 0_ . ]
FIRE MARSHALL DECAL BACKER . |,|_l < &
CONCAVE BANEL I % o/0 o3 / N /
, .| rascia . L [T U
9N R - - Ny 3 e TS
T.0. STONE w M w s 6-o" o " ” 11/2" ANGLE (24") - = A | —
Rl : T — " e N g s
1 Ll N 3 L o ) s é
| | W z I Lo p
5 N N i N N noxsl4 ‘ = oz
oo " I I : e g L I ol % i PERMETER CECKING
P = 5 B BN oo e - — 2'-0" X 2'-0"STONE BASE \ o
—% ] T 'TZSLA?¢' BACKER PANEL TO MATCH STORE r-e” xi-
I 10" (BRONZE)
I I
1 1 Ll T
v ol
CONCAVE FASCIA MOUNTING DETAIL STONE COLUMN BASE DETAIL
130" SCALE 1/40 ____Il_eu SCALE l 4 —I 9
] e” -y -y r-) o 4
J J J 4 |
SIDE A LEFT SIDE ELEVATION SIDE C RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION l}
SCALE: 3/16" =I'-0" SCALE: 3/1&" =I'-0" |
|
|
|
|
|
i
|
f E-STOP
| B == |
18"% 10" 516" STEEL i
TUBE WRAPPED WITH I
DARK BRONZE A.C.M. |
| NEW SHEETZ STORE
Iu ) £
6l (>
: | 6133 5Q. FT.
2 .
R |
A | e i e B B
_ | | (| [ (| [ | ICE ICE
SHEETZ =
L e e e e

OUTLINE AREA =11.72 SQ. FT.

SIGN BOX AREA = 13.©8 SQ. FT.

PMS 202C AND PMS 440C
TYPICAL OF THREE

SIGN IS INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED
PIN-MOUNTED TO CURVED AWNING

CANOPY MOUNTED SHEETZ SIGN DETAIL

SCALE: 1/2" =1"-&"

]

12

] eu
—

AUTO
DIESEL

E

PANTONE 44©C

s AUTO HIGH
™~ eaay PANTONE 355C NS P ANTONE 355C
Q DIESEL
Q E
ML PANTONE 185C PANTONE 137C
el PANTONE 2935¢ SRl PANTONE 2935C

DISPENSER NUMBER AND FUEL OFFERING FLAG

VARIES PER SITE/PER DISPENSER
2 PER COLUMN ON STORE SIDE COLUMNS
.69 5Q. FT. PER FLAG

FUEL OFFERING FLAG SIGN ELEVATION AND DETAIL

SCALE: 1/2" =I'"-&"

I'-10"

DARK BRONZE ACM
TO MATCH
PANTONE 497C

STONE BASE TO MATCH

STONE ON STORE \

_ | -

COLUMN ELEVATION

SIGN LOCATION
(TYPICAL OF 14)

FUEL OFFERING FLAG

STORE SIDE

651_90

FUEL OFFERING FLAG

SIGN LOCATION
(TYPICAL OF 14)

|COPT|

TRUSS LENGTH

¥
)

o
)

"cory !
] 31_911

2 i‘lN

-l S

o
Y
Zz
3

=® % =l I'(Ijl :N

s Al S0 o
w
> 4
\\ }

S

£

o

SCALE: 1/2" =I'"-&"

STREET SIDE

,181_911

164'-0"

EDGE OF DECKING
164'-3"

PLAN VIEW FOR LOGO LOCATIONS

FASCIA

SIDE B

SIDE C

convenience . rchitecture

and Design P.C.
351 Sheetz Way, Claysburg, PA 16625

phone (814) 239-6013
email tcolumbu@sheetz.com
web site www.sheetz.com

PROJECT NAME:

SHEETZ STORE

#416 REBUILD
ZEBULON

1406 N. Arendell Avenue
Wake County

Zebulon

North Carolina

OWNER:
SHEETZ, INC.

5700 SIXTH AVE.
ALTOONA, PA 16602

CONSULTANT

PROFESSIONAL

KEYPLAN
Z
O
b
n'd
8
L
()]
L
<
()]
o
<C
S

ISSUE: 04-08-25

PROJECT NO:

AUTHORBY:  DNC

REVIEW BY:

SHEET TITLE

GAS AWNING
CONCAVE FASCIA

186




Planned Development Narrative

416 Sheetz Zebulon
1406 N Arendell Ave
Zebulon, North Carolina

PIN: 2706011220

Prepared for:
Town of Zebulon, North Carolina

Date: September 12, 2025

KHA Reference #: 110529004

© Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 2025
421 Fayetteville Street, Suite 600, Raleigh, NC 27601
Phone: 919-677-2000

187



416 SHEETZ ZEBULON
1406 N ARENDELL AVE
ZEBULON, NORTH CAROLINA

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT NARRATIVE

OWNER:
OLDE HERITAGE PROPERTIES LLC
806 N ARENDELL AVE, ZEBULON, NC, 27597

DEVELOPER:
SHEETZ, INC.
KELLEY BROWN - KBROWN@SHEETZ.COM
243 SHEETZ WAY, CLAYSBURG, PA 16625

ENGINEER:
KIMLEY-HORN
HEATHER TIMOTHY, PE - HEATHER.TIMOTHY @KIMLEY-HORN.COM
421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET, SUITE 600, RALEIGH, NC 27601

TRAFFIC ENGINEER:
MORGAN ROSAMOND, PE - MORGAN.ROSAMOND@KIMLEY-HORN.COM
KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET, SUITE 600, RALEIGH, NC 27601

SEPTEMBER 2025

KHA PROJECT NO. 110529004

188



This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the specific
purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization and

adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT NARRATIVE

189



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 INTRODUCTION ....oootiiiiieieniintetenieeteteste ettt ettt sttt et sttt sbesbe et s bt sbeestesbesbeesaenaesaeenenees
2.0 PERMITTED USES ..ottt ettt ettt st b e st a st ee e b nae s
3.0 ZONING REQUIREMENTS ..ottt
4.0 ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS ..ottt sttt ettt et
5.0 SIGINAGE ...ttt ettt st b et s bt bttt b e e bt etesbesatebesaeeaaentens
6.0 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT .......cccooiiiiiiiiiieicce ettt s
7.0 OPEN SPACE.......ooiiei e ettt e s st
8.0 UTILITIES ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt b e et e e saeeat et e sheese et e sbeeueensenne
9.0 TRANSPORATION IMPACT ANALYSIS ..ot
10.0  CONDITIONS ...ttt ettt st a e st a e st beshe e nesaeenn s

APPENDIX A: VICINITY MAP

APPENDIX B: BUILDING ELEVATIONS

APPENDIX C: TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS

190



1.0 INTRODUCTION

The proposed project is the redevelopment of the existing Sheetz site located at 1406 N Arendell Avenue
in Zebulon (PIN 2706011220). Maintaining the commercial use is consistent with the current Town of
Zebulon Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), as the property is designated General Commercial (GC).
As noted in the CLUP, the current Heavy Commercial (HC) zone is closely associated with GC. The GC
designation "is for properties in commercial retail, office and service uses, primarily along portions of
major roadway corridors within the community for high visibility and accessibility[.]" The primary land
use types in the GC designation include "automobile service related enterprises (e.g., gas stations)." This
application is consistent with CLUP and the proposed use directly aligns with the GC designation.

The building and site will be demolished and rebuilt to include a 6,139 SF building with a pick-up
window and one additional MPD (two additional fueling stations). The existing car wash will be
removed. The new pick-up window has triggered the Planned Development application process.

2.0 PERMITTED USES

This site is zoned Heavy Commercial (HC) per the Town of Zebulon Unified Development Ordinance
(UDO) amended April 17, 2025. The proposed principal use, convenience store (with gasoline sales), and
the proposed accessory use, drive through (pick-up window), are both permitted by-right in this zone.

The convenience store (with gasoline sales) principal use is subject to the specific standards from 4.3.5.Q:
1. Location of fuel pump islands
a. Pump islands may not be located between a building and any adjacent street right-of-
way. Applicant is proposing a condition related to this standard. See Section 10.0
Conditions.
b. Pump islands shall be at least 10 feet from any lot line and 12 feet from any principal
building. Canopies over the pump islands may be located within 10 feet of a lot line.
Project in compliance.
2. Location of fuel tanks
a. Gasoline and fuel storage tanks shall be located a minimum of 20 feet from any lot
line or building. Project in compliance.

The drive through (pick-up window) accessory use is subject to the specific standards from 4.4.7.1:

1. Outdoor speakers associated with a drive-through shall be at least 50 feet from any lot with a
residential zoning district designation. N/4 — no outdoor speakers associated with pick-up
window.

2. Drive-through windows, menus, or order boxes shall not be located on the front fagade of the
building they serve. Project in compliance.

3. Drive-through facilities shall be designed so as not to obstruct the movement of pedestrians
along sidewalks, through areas intended for public use, or between the building entrance and
customer parking spaces. Project in compliance.

4. Canopies or other features installed over a drive through window shall maintain common roof
lines and materials with the principal structure. Project in compliance.

5. New construction of drive-throughs shall conform to the mixed-use design standards in
section 5.3.2. N/A — per coordination with the Town, this project will use the Commercial
Design Standards as the basis of reference.

191



3.0 ZONING REQUIREMENTS

The site is subject to the following district dimensional standards of its existing zone, Heavy Commercial
(HC), per UDO Section 3.4.4:

e Minimum Lot Area: 6,000 SF

e  Minimum Lot Width: 50 FT

e Maximum Lot Coverage: 80%

e Maximum Building Height: 50FT

e  Minimum (Building) Street Setback 30 FT

o Applicant is proposing a condition related to this standard. See Section 10.0 Conditions
for Pearces Rd because of trash enclosure.
e  Minimum (Building) Side Setback: SFT
e  Minimum (Building) Rear Setback: 25 FT

The site is subject to the following perimeter and streetscape buffer requirements per UDO Sections
5.6.10 and 5.6.12:
e  Minimum Perimeter Buffer (PIN 2706012606) 30FT
e  Minimum Perimeter Buffer (PIN 1796919353) 10FT
o Applicant is proposing a condition related to this standard. See Section 10.0 Conditions
which notes 3 FT buffer proposed to maintain existing curb lines.
e Minimum Streetscape Buffer: I5FT
o Applicant is proposing a condition related to this standard. See Section 10.0 Conditions
which notes 0 FT buffer for Pearces Rd and N Arendell Ave to maintain existing curb
lines. Applicant is exempt from the streetscape buffer requirement since the primary
building facade is “visible from the arterial or collector street right-of-way (UDO
Section 5.6.12.C.1).”

The project proposes the following additional dimensional standards as required for Planned
Development (PD) District applications per UDO Section 3.5.6.B.6:

e Maximum Individual Building Size 10,000 SF
e Floor Area Ratio 0.10 MAXIMUM

The site has adequate parking per UDO Section 5.8.4. 45 spaces have been provided, meeting the required
standard of 1 space per 200 sf of a “Convenience Store (with gasoline sales)” which equates to 30 spaces.

4.0 ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS

The architecture of the proposed building will follow all Commercial Design Standards, except where
Applicant has proposed targeted conditions, as detailed in Section 10.0 Conditions. Appendix B provides
the proposed building elevations with fenestration calculations.

The front building facade is the primary building wall. There are two secondary building walls, both
adjacent to the front building facade. The pick-up window-side building wall is a tertiary wall.

5.0 SIGNAGE

Signage has been provided per UDO Section 5.11. There is one proposed wall mounted sign on each
building fagade. There is one proposed ground sign and one flag near the intersection of N Arendell

192



Avenue and Pearces Road. Additional wall mounted signage is provided on the ends of the fuel canopy
and on the order pickup clearance bar.

6.0 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

The proposed development will meet all applicable Town of Zebulon and North Carolina requirements
through the decrease of impervious surfaces. The stormwater controls in the existing condition are to
remain and be maintained by owner. The majority of the proposed site outfalls to the existing wet pond on
the north of the site which is then conveyed to the rock swale along N Arendell Avenue within the North
Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) right-of-way.

7.0 OPEN SPACE

This site shall comply with minimum open space set-aside requirements as defined in Section 5.7.4 where
commercial open space is required to be 3%. This site complies with the open space through the use of
the stormwater detention facility as passive open space which makes up 3.6% of the site area.

8.0 UTILITIES

Sheetz will demolish and replace the existing water, sanitary sewer, and storm laterals onsite.

e A proposed water lateral connects the proposed building to the main off of Pearces Road.

e A proposed sanitary lateral and sanitary lateral with a grease trap connects to the main off of
Pearces Road.

e There are multiple stormwater pipes proposed on site. All proposed stormwater pipes convey
water from the site via curb inlets to the existing wet pond north of the site. This water is then
conveyed to the rock swale along N Arendell Avenue which is consistent with existing drainage
patterns.

This project will meet the 60 points required for the Utility Allocation Policy by the following:
40 base points for single use retail

3 points for abatement of any existing non-conforming structures

2 points for enhanced buffer landscaping

10 points for installation of native shade tree species

1 point for deck/patio — more than 1000 square feet

2 points for canopy including fixed permanent seating

1 point for permanent tables with shade cover

1 point for artist-design bicycle racks

9.0 TRANSPORATION IMPACT ANALYSIS

A traffic impact analysis was completed by Kimley-Horn dated June 1, 2025 and is attached in Appendix
C.

NCDOT TIP project U-5118 FB proposes to construct an additional southbound through lane along NC
96 beginning approximately 830 feet north of the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road and ending at US
64-264 WB Ramps/Dogwood Drive. At the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road, the westbound right
lane is expected to be restriped to a shared left/right lane and the existing traffic signal is expected to be
modified to accommodate these improvements. While this project was considered for inclusion during
scoping discussions with the Town, it was ultimately excluded in order to provide a conservative analysis
of the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road.

193



All study intersections are expected to operate with acceptable levels-of service and, based on SimTraffic
observations, maximum queues are expected to increase minimally with the redevelopment of the Sheetz.
Therefore, no improvements are recommended with the proposed expansion.

10.0 CONDITIONS

This project is subject to the following conditions:

1.

The fuel pump canopy island shall be located between the proposed building and N. Arendell Avenue
(NC 96).

Summary of Proposed Condition: This condition is proposed following extensive review with staff
and Applicant's discussion with surrounding property owners. The subject property is unique insofar
as it not only sits at the intersection of Pearces Road and North Arendell Avenue — but also the
property boundary and intersection configuration creates an acute angle as North Arendell Avenue
runs southwest along the boundary line. This creates significant limitations on the location of the fuel
pump canopy island — with the proposed option as shown on the site plan being preferable to promote
(and not inhibit) site circulation. Additionally, it places a key activity center towards the intersection —
and away from the neighboring properties (including an adjacent townhome/residential property) in
an effort to minimize any effect of this redevelopment.

No more than sixty percent (60%) of off-street parking will be located between the proposed
structure's primary facade and North Arendell Avenue.

Summary of Proposed Condition: As reflected in the site plan, Applicant is proposing forty-five (45)
total parking spaces. Nineteen (19) of those spaces are located on/along the sides of the primary
structure with twenty-six (26) spaces located along the frontage of the building and to the right of the
fuel pump canopy. This total is actually 57.78% of the total parking and a slight increase above the
requirement in the ordinance of no more than fifty percent (50%) located between the primary facade
and the adjoining street.

This request is needed to focus site activity on the middle of the site and at the access points, which
will promote safe, effective, and efficient ingress and egress. It will minimize any impacts to the
adjoining properties — including the townhome/residential property adjoining this site. Additionally,
this parking configuration is necessary to avoid any conflicts with the proposed pick-up lane — which
significantly limits/restricts the rear area of the subject site for parking.

The proposed dumpster enclosure shall be located as shown on the site plan. The proposed dumpster
shall be fully screened and enclosed. The enclosure shall be built consistent with the elevations,
attached hereto and made a condition hereof. The enclosure shall be constructed with brick, concrete
masonry, and pressure treated wood (or reasonably similar quality materials) to ensure aesthetic
consistency with the primary structure.

Summary of Proposed Condition: Applicant consulted with the adjacent residential property owners
and property owners' association. In those discussions, the location of the proposed dumpster
enclosure was a focal point. The adjacent residential property owners specifically requested that the
dumpster enclosure be located/relocated away from the shared property boundary. In an effort to
address those concerns, Applicant has proposed this location as shown on the site plan — which will
be fully screened from view of any right-of-way and composed of masonry, brick, wood, or similar

194



materials (as shown in the elevation). These materials match the aesthetic of the proposed primary
structure.

The primary wall/facade (facing North Arendell Avenue) will be occupied by no less than twenty-
seven percent (27%) of visually transparent windows or doors. Applicant shall supplement with
additional false/opaque windows and/or articulated wall forms.

Summary of Proposed Condition: Applicant seeks a slight adjustment from Section 5.3.1.F.7(a) of the
Commercial Design Standards for fenestration for the primary facade facing North Arendell Avenue
As shown on the elevations and proposed designs for this site, Applicant provides significant
fenestration and transparent windows and doors along the primary fagade. The proposed percentage
in this condition is the maximum Applicant is able to reasonably provide, given that Applicant cannot
(for security and safety reasons) place transparent windows and doors where interior bathrooms or
storage areas are located. Applicant will supplement the primary facade with false/opaque windows
and/or articulated wall forms to meet the intent of the fenestration design standards.

The secondary wall/fagade (facing Pearces Road) will be occupied by no less than twenty-four (24%)
of visually transparent windows or doors, false or opaque windows, or articulated wall forms.

Summary of Proposed Condition: Applicant seeks a slight adjustment from Section 5.3.1.F.7(b) of the
Commercial Design Standards for fenestration for the secondary facade facing Pearces Road. As
shown on the elevations and proposed designs for this site, Applicant provides significant fenestration
and transparent windows and doors along the secondary fagade facing Pearces Road. The proposed
percentage in this condition is the maximum Applicant is able to reasonably provide, given that
Applicant cannot (for security and safety reasons) place transparent windows and doors where interior
bathrooms or storage areas are located. Where possible, Applicant will supplement the secondary
fagade with false/opaque windows and/or articulated wall forms to meet the intent of the fenestration
design standards.

The street setback for Pearces Road shall be ten (10) feet for the dumpster enclosure.

Summary of Proposed Condition: Applicant seeks a slight adjustment from the street setback
requirement for Pearces Road, as detailed in Section 3.4.4(C). Specifically, the requested street
setback for Pearces Road of ten (10) feet is primarily to facilitate the proposed location of the
dumpster enclosure. This is a narrow request, insofar as the structures, the fuel pumps, and parking
are all compliant with the thirty (30) foot street setback from Pearces Road.

The side perimeter buffer for the boundary adjoining the property located at 1420 North Arendell
Avenue (PIN: 1796919353) shall be three (3) feet.

Summary of Proposed Condition: Applicant requests a three-foot side perimeter buffer for the
boundary adjoining the property located at 1420 North Arendell Avenue (PIN: 1796919353).
Applicant will maintain a three-foot perimeter buffer at this location — which will supplement and
enhance existing buffering located on the adjoining commercial property. This request is appropriate
given site limitations for increased buffering along that boundary line — specifically, given the drive
access that connects the two sites and the need for an adequate drive aisle for ingress, egress, and
circulation. This proposed condition also aligns with the existing curb lines at the subject property.

The streetscape buffer along North Arendell Avenue and Pearces Road shall be zero (0) feet.

195



Summary of Proposed Condition: Applicant requests the elimination of the streetscape buffer
requirement along North Arendell Avenue and Pearces Road. Applicant is arguably exempt from that
requirement, pursuant to Section 5.6.12(C)(1), where the primary building facade "is visible from the
arterial or collector street right-of-way." Here, the primary facade is directly visible from the rights-
of-way for Pearces Road and North Arendell Avenue. Additionally, Applicant proposes this
condition, given the site layout and to ensure safe visibility to and from the site, and to maintain the
existing curb lines.

Additionally, Applicant proposes this condition because the proposed plantings and landscaping, as
shown on the landscape plan, is the maximum Applicant is reasonably able to provide, given the
location of rights-of-way, easements, and a retaining wall, all of which significantly constrain
Applicant's ability to include additional streetscape buffering beyond what is shown. Applicant is
planting additional trees and landscaping beyond what is required in other areas of the subject
property and is willing to consider further supplementation in those areas, as needed.

Parking spaces 11, 12, 13, and 14 (as shown on the site plan) shall be permitted to be further than fifty
(50) feet from the trunk of a canopy tree. Planters shall be located along the sidewalk at the storefront
to enhance landscaping for the parking area and for the parking spaces 11, 12, 13, and 14.

Summary of Proposed Condition: More than 90% of the proposed parking spaces will be within fifty
(50) feet of the trunk of a canopy tree, which complies with the landscape requirements of the Town's
ordinances. The parking spaces directly in front of the primary facade/entry for the subject property
are slightly beyond that fifty (50) foot distance and Applicant has reasonably located proposed
canopy trees as close to those spaces as reasonably practicable. To supplement the landscaping for the
parking area, Applicant shall locate planters along the walkway adjoining those front spaces
(including parking spaces 11, 12, 13, and 14).

196



APPENDIX A: VICINITY MAP

197



and As:

ociotes, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn

ond Asst

and adaptation by Kimley-Hom

intended only for the specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written authorization

cepts and designs presented herein, os an insirument of service, is

This document, together with the con;

-/

S
W,
O,? /04'
S
o)
%

PEARCES RD

SHEETZ
REBUILD PROJECT ,

L/

NOSTALGIA LN

N
9
N
o
%
&
\¢

%

GRAPHIC SCALE IN FEET
/‘ 0 100 200 4-CI)O

N

Kimley»Horn

©2025 KIMLEY—HORN AND ASSOCIATES
421 FAYETTEVILLE STREET, SUITE 600, RALEIGH, NC 27601
PHONE: 918-677-2000
WWW.KIMLEY—HORN.COM

VICINITY MAP

SHEETZ
1406 N ARENDELL AVE

KHA PROJECT
110529004

DATE
04,/03/2025

SCALE AS SHOWN

DESIGNED BY RND

DRAWN BY RND

CHECKED BY HRT

408
90




APPENDIX B: BUILDING ELEVATIONS

199



TOP OF CUPOLA
29| - 6"

T ——

" (HIGH) _

TOP OF PARAPET

22'-93/4"

MBS |

[Ty T W R |

P

1 B

(LOW)

TOP OF PARAPET
21| - 3"

e

S |

il
Al i)
T

BOT OF ENTRY CANOPIES

SHEETZ SHEETZ

FHEEH BT B R

L B e B B R e R R e e e ]

SHEETZ

A

TYP

/]

TYP

11'-47/8"

TOP OF SLAB

01_0"

FRONT ELEVATION

1/4" = 1'-0"

1

GLAZING CALCULATION FRONT ELEVATION =2199.82 SQ FT

40%

DESCRIPTION
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

FAUX WINDOW GLAZING

TOTAL GLAZING

TYPICAL EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES:

ALL LIGHTS SHOWN ABOVE AND/OR BELOW DOORS OR WINDOWS ARE
TO BE CENTERED ON THE DOOR OR WINDOW UNLESS NOTED

OTHERWISE.

FIXTURES/EQUIPMENT BETWEEN TWO DOORS OR WINDOWS ARE TO BE

CENTERED EQUALLY.

EXTERIOR SEALANT FOR STONE SHALL COMPLY WITH SECTION 07 9005
JOINT SEALANTS, GENERAL BUILDING FASCADE WEATHER SEALANT

AND SHALL MATCH THE COLOR OF THE STORE.

EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEYNOTES:

®

BRICK VENEER, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK COMPANY. SEE

MASONRY SPEC

@ CAST STONE SILL, COLOR: CRAB ORCHARD. SEE MASONRY SPEC

©

ANCHORED CAST STONE MASONRY VENEER, COLOR: CRAB ORCHARD.

SEE MASONRY SPEC

@ EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

()

ARCHITECTURAL CANOPY, COLOR: REGAL RED, PREMIUM TWO-COAT

KYNAR FINISH

@ BRICK PAVER WALKWAY

@ LIGHTED CURVED FASCIA CANOPY ATTACHMENT

METAL COPING, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

@ WALL MOUNTED BUILDING SIGN, SEE SHEET A200.

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF, COLOR: BRITE RED

@ GUTTER, COLOR TO MATCH CUPOLA COLOR

@ DOWNSPOUT, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

DRIVE-THRU WINDOW (IF APPLICABLE)

(19
)

N,
0
o
=
L
)
%)
<
L
=
<
o
w
(@)
=z
<
]
Z
p4
=
<
w
-
=
T
n
[m)
w
I
n
=
<
L
%)
O]
P
[m)]
Z
-
)
-
<
T
L
=

L
N
pd
o
4
om
X
14
<
a
&
o
-
o)
O
L
=
<
04
L
a
L
14
L
E
4
om
&
o
|
@)
O
L
O
o
(4

¢
Q
4
m
2
T
zZ
L
Z
T
Z
o
o
Y
m
o
(0]
©
14
o
-
Q
o
i}
2]
i4
>
Q
o
e
w
a
—
o)
(7]
¥
)
X
m

O
|
o
%)
>
1
=z
o
]
<
=
L
w
(92]
N
z
<
o
=
o
@)

X
)
(4
foa
—
<
T
z
i
z
T
z
o]
®)
>
o
o
o]
(o]
&
@)
—
o
@)
wi
%)
o
)
]
@)
X
@)
@)
=
=
o
1
X
@)
o
o

O
L
o
n
>
o
p4
O
D)
<
=
L
L
n
N
z
<
o
=
O
O

CONTROL JOINT, SEE MASONRY SPEC

STEEL ROOF LADDER AND CRANKY POST, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

STANDARD THROUGH WALL SCUPPER WITH CONDUCTOR HEAD &

DOWNSPOUT, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

@ OVERFLOW SCUPPER

@ ALUMINUM STOREFRONT SYSTEM, SEE A600

@ EXTERIOR HOSE BIB, REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS

OUTDOOR FURNITURE

GLAZING CALCULATION FRONT ELEVATION

DESCRIPTION
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

FAUX WINDOW GLAZING
TOTAL GLAZING

@ ELECTRICAL RECEPTACLE, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

@ HM DOOR AND FRAME, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

EMERGENCY WATER CONNECTION, REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS

SEAMLESS ALUM PANEL SYSTEM WITH EXPOSED FASTENERS, COLOR:

DARK BRONZE

PROPANE LOCKER

@ ICE MERCHANDISER

@ RTI FILLPORT

@ STEEL BOLLARD, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

CO2 FILLPORT

@ DECORATIVE ALUMINUM FENCE, COLOR DARK BRONZE

&)

AUTOMATIC DOOR PUSH PLATE AND BOLLARD, BOLLARD COLOR:

DARK BRONZE

GAS METER AND RISER, REFER TO CIVIL UTILITY PLAN, COLOR: DARK

BRONZE

NOT USED

LIGHT CHANNEL AT PARAPET COPING. SEE ARCHITECTURAL AND

ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

NOT USED

FAUX WINDOWS WITH INTERNAL GRAPHIC

ol W v SNOILVAI 13 AAdVNINITIEd
(. s\l -
> S LLl
2| & e O NOILdI¥Os3a | 3Lva [Muvw
% . < w. — V w A al
210 % e 7)) A c o)
S|e § 2fs N X : 2 3 2
; N
15 2 3 — © =z — = 0 S S INEEIE X =z O
|2 © w = ) — — © N~ © o Zl2]< O O
w5 Q25 LLI O T T o £ © “lelslolel T E 0
olQq 3 3% Wy _ S O K > aolel3|E[e] G
Slo 2 =8% | 4T A <& g g g Sl=[2|F|e] K< N
. — N E - C zZ T - pd
c|S 3 <O = € 8 Z - E< Z O e
0|® 9 o | e MM S 5 N @ XZ = % - sl i
P o,2|l = O 25 .F 53 - 2 : oilsl.| Yo
- — = L — N = w L @) - Ll I Z\x Z
ol © ©&¢8sg =Tl Ll o o3 TR~ 2 I S qlelslgle
e) cEQ @) — . T QO o Z O al|o o
N\ > > L o
=@ x N <C €59 =5 5z 9 0 F T mMEEE
o Z ) £ &N o w 1o < o o N 2 A= Sk
Dl |<|x|>
-
=z
o
o
©, » 53
Nnwe
<Owm
x40z
EGMH
SxEx
UFWnFV
Zypwuw
_ Tk
4 ¥oSw
m DAD.M
DRM
- <<Z2
- LHON
- YCCS
- Z=zZW
- >S0¢
il ZE50
-— =0k <
& SESL
| TEEE
> * 0
“, @ m“ @ Y0<>
- ,- %
L i
- i
! i
{ ]
! L]
] &) - =
iy
I HHEHHHHHE m.:_._ ity == el it S
j T g b e == LT
M R LR
Rulpdpludgly oot plodolytelotplydoly . = LT
AR = NG =t} i
‘ | | . , HH
- i
i
§ - 1§ - i -
il
AR S
A Ay
el aatlitads nfytefndsl nfyl
A il
ettt
i ] (®)
il ;
2l LA ©
IHHHAHEE L
T i ®
AR AR A A
e R H ® . ®
o i ©
1]
£5 i ®
=t —-——--m—
== ———————-——
=k !
= i
g il g ©
Hilid I . %)
sl ] ®
A HHHHHHH] ] )
| Pyttt i) 2 <
BH HHHH =2 o
. o oM
i 5 i
P m. & & L T mr_l W IZ
| g R iy KRS Aol ol < Mmouﬂn_.w —
__ N W TAly LLl
= oL L
_ . — iy <3 o
: - 7 253t -
i ,
- < x
o | il 28§ 0
. . = o =2
HAHHERHARH © O y : =
e sttty 4 < 2 N )
HHHHHHHHHHHA | S g | 3
z L zZl >
o= < = ol s g _/E Lol |= E =
2 Izlzlg 3 ol o > Z Z 2 gl —|:
BEEE mu. m m _Dm % M 5 m ANER -l M
o |218|= w_ MuA. M Wmo a 7} a S| e g | A I
Olw Olo o_y Ol¢+ Ol® (@] O n WOl W <
o D.-. D:-_ D.-_ T-_ _|-_ Dqu D:-. o
e il [ [l 14 N Fla o~ o< o ~|o 5| | A
pnit s B2 £ 2"z

200


AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
879.92 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
590.61 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAUX WINDOW GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
879.92 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
120.61 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
879.92 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
711.22 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
383 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
392.2 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAUX WINDOW GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
383 SQ FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
392.2 SQ FT


L SNOILVAI1d AdVNINIT13™d
< 10 Y -
— (9]
2 € e O W NOILdINOS3a | 3iva [savi
(@) A o T 1)
+— O & N ) A c To]
= 5 o £ o <t
O 5 55 0° N X z < =) N
52 283 o £ — I % S I EEle xZ .
N RS S0 ~— | © N~ © o <|X|S ONe)
%) O 2bh E O T O o (o) «— -~ || —
Ul Q NE® < A c O 0 W < | olo Y
o = < 2 LLI O O~ > BB ™ =
- T <o T H s Y . < <[22l W <C
Slo = =288 | 4T O <%9 ¢ <7 2 Sl|g|F|s| WIS N
—— N - zZ Ir . = pd
| ¥ soold D= £82 2 Ig = 5 < [
v @ Q — R B C & & N X Z - %) sl L
> b o= 3 W L] Z o 5 ¢ »n O 3 @ Z Ol2|a L
o 0 2€c0 3 LW |— ER © 3 z W S E = s o NN EEE
O ™ 2 - 2 Q O PN > W=7 U
5 © Z — Z A S 3 = T = o) v P f Slw|EIS|E
o £ U £ & N Sw 1< O o N X 2l |5a|S
Zini<|X|>
4 (@] o o < = (@] (@) <
3 I 5 o 3 O 3 I E ul 5
w| M o o~ & al o T N g = al o
o gl < = o o, O O 2l < a) ol ©
o n'd 14 e TN = o o 1’4 14 TR ~ o
o) < < =l O o o < < o o
o o
= W w g k > = W w e &
ol 5l 8 g S gl o g
o 5 ! o
(2]
L4
N s £ £
~ ~ ~
o | M@p | |
oce : ®OOE
| _
7 7 Q= e sle
UL ® IR =12
,..,mmuv HEH] _._.______“ _._ 0 b
I._____‘__,.__,___ ”.I,_,___,___,___,A__ O m1
~ T [a
THEAHH :_ _ O &
= ..“.n.m_n ] __m.__.__.. i __.n_m__ “ ® :
LH . HH | |
= jif 5
: e_ ® - L
m @)
O
@ @ Y
i >
& __““ m.____._m_“m““_ __. ® 5
== : _- Y
el -m _ .“_n (®) L
::= _. .:.. bt ! Z
A L HH _
_1:{§=_ .53?;1_ Q
iy L] .Nw - © > —
_%ﬁg%gg S
Ralateialal’ @ w
—
y@ I
<C
® e
Ols
als
1
ol
(2) ©
o
& = ____“ ®
_=:
,,__agm
HHH] (3%
® et T
& .
o
O m
Y
=
w O
Y
(®) T
E n :
m““¥= @ (® mw
__me <
(=)
o < =
C 0
B ® o
<
®
5 4 @ a2
0 { I
5 & >, U"4
Eow 2 2 OJ=
ESw _ ¢
O 28858 < 5
- 2zQFE8¢E =
83583 ¢? < I
sEOESt o 5 2
8Leof@c o g
£o035%523 S Sl
3£8352° Sl 512
228254 5 %
STESROE
ceEs2SLc Z
LE0O0<C2B<L
co5s2200
T
R AR <
;:%z::r:zﬁz::: =
~| L]
o -
______ O o
e |
Lz
Ol
i E
<
.
g | & [33rn
N R P

;___
=i

6!_1 "

n_“...m.___.n___..m_“ _.___.._.__

®

TYP

TYP TYP

TYP

CHoyexoy

Y

TYP

ANCHORED CAST STONE MASONRY VENEER, COLOR: CRAB ORCHARD.

BRICK VENEER, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK COMPANY. SEE
SEE MASONRY SPEC

FIXTURES/EQUIPMENT BETWEEN TWO DOORS OR WINDOWS ARE TO BE
MASONRY SPEC

CENTERED EQUALLY.
EXTERIOR SEALANT FOR STONE SHALL COMPLY WITH SECTION 07 9005

JOINT SEALANTS, GENERAL BUILDING FASCADE WEATHER SEALANT
AND SHALL MATCH THE COLOR OF THE STORE.

ALL LIGHTS SHOWN ABOVE AND/OR BELOW DOORS OR WINDOWS ARE
EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEYNOTES:

TO BE CENTERED ON THE DOOR OR WINDOW UNLESS NOTED

OTHERWISE.
@ EXTERIOR LIGHT FIXTURE, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

()

@ CAST STONE SILL, COLOR: CRAB ORCHARD. SEE MASONRY SPEC

)

TYPICAL EXTERIOR ELEVATION NOTES:

®

REAR ELEVATION

1/4" =1'-0"

3

COAT

ARCHITECTURAL CANOPY, COLOR: REGAL RED, PREMIUM TWO-

KYNAR FINISH

@ BRICK PAVER WALKWAY

@ LIGHTED CURVED FASCIA CANOPY ATTACHMENT

o
o
A
<
T
w
w
I
o
w
w
%
4
o
o
)
z
o
=
S
@D
a)
]
T
z
S
o
=
—
-
<
=

METAL COPING, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF, COLOR: BRITE RED

METAL STANDING SEAM SHED STYLE AWNING AND FRAME ASSEMBLY,

ROOF COLOR: BRITE RED, FRAME COLOR: DARK BRONZE
BRICK SOLDIER COURSE, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK

COMPANY. SEE MASONRY SPEC

@ GUTTER, COLOR TO MATCH CUPOLA COLOR
DRIVE-THRU WINDOW (IF APPLICABLE)

@ DOWNSPOUT, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

BRICK ROWLOCK COURSE, COLOR: 680 BY CONTINENTAL BRICK

COMPANY. SEE MASONRY SPEC

CONTROL JOINT, SEE MASONRY SPEC

(19
(16
)

1

30% OF COVERAGE REQ
57710
577.10
377.10

DESCRIPTION
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

GLAZING CALCULATION RIGHT ELEVATION

FAUX WINDOW GLAZING
TOTAL GLAZING

STANDARD THROUGH WALL SCUPPER WITH CONDUCTOR HEAD &

DOWNSPOUT, COLOR: DARK BRONZE
EMERGENCY WATER CONNECTION, REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS

(@)

@ HM DOOR AND FRAME, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

@ ELECTRICAL RECEPTACLE, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS
ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

@ EXTERIOR HOSE BIB, REFER TO PLUMBING DRAWINGS

OUTDOOR FURNITURE

STEEL ROOF LADDER AND CRANKY POST, COLOR: DARK BRONZE

(@)

@ ALUMINUM STOREFRONT SYSTEM, SEE A600

@ OVERFLOW SCUPPER

SEAMLESS ALUM PANEL SYSTEM WITH EXPOSED FASTENERS, COLOR:

DARK BRONZE

GAS METER AND RISER, REFER TO CIVIL UTILITY PLAN, COLOR: DARK

BRONZE

NOT USED
()

AUTOMATIC DOOR PUSH PLATE AND BOLLARD, BOLLARD COLOR:

ICE MERCHANDISER
DARK BRONZE

L
N
Z
o
x
m
X
14
<
a
x
o
|
@)
@)
i)
@)
P
L
L
=
2
z
=
)
-
<
w
=
—
<
04
O
O
L
a

® &)

w
N
z
o
04
)
X
o
<
a
14
O
—
o
&)
a
14
<
-
—
O
@
—
m
w
—
"

T
o
©)
o
|
=
T
o
©)
@)

@ RTI FILLPORT

PROPANE LOCKER

LIGHT CHANNEL AT PARAPET COPING. SEE ARCHITECTURAL AND

ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR MORE INFORMATION.

FAUX WINDOWS WITH INTERNAL GRAPHIC

NOT USED

201



AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSPARENT GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
73.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAUX WINDOW GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
239.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL GLAZING

AutoCAD SHX Text
377.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
313.3


APPENDIX C: TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS

202



Traffic Impact Analysis

Zebulon Sheetz Development
Zebulon, NC

Prepared for:

Sheetz, Inc.

203 © Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 2025



Traffic Impact Analysis for

Zebulon Sheetz Development
Zebulon, North Carolina

Prepared for:

Sheetz, Inc.

Prepared by:

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
NC License #F-0102
421 Fayetteville Street, Suite 600
Raleigh, NC 27601
(919) 677-2000

DocuSigned by:

WW&

E159C30342BF416...
6/1/2025

June 2025
110529004

204



This document, together with the concepts and designs presented herein, as an instrument of service, is intended only for the
specific purpose and client for which it was prepared. Reuse of and improper reliance on this document without written
authorization and adaptation by Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. shall be without liability to Kimley-Horn and Associates,

Inc.

205



Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

Executive Summary

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. has performed a Traffic Impact Analysis for the Zebulon Sheetz
redevelopment, located east of NC 96 and north of Pearces Road in Zebulon, NC. The existing Sheetz on
the property consists of a 5,000 square foot (s.f.) convenience store/gas station with 12 vehicle fueling
positions (vip). The development is proposing to demolish the existing store and build a new store with a
6,150 s.f. convenience store/gas station with 14 vfp. The site can currently be accessed via a right-in/right-
out only driveway along NC 96 and a full movement driveway along Pearces Road. No changes to site
access are proposed as part of this redevelopment. Build-out of the development is anticipated by 2026.

This report presents trip generation, distribution, traffic analyses, and recommendations for transportation
improvements required to meet anticipated traffic demands in conjunction with the development.

Per the Town of Zebulon (Town) Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), the future traffic conditions
were analyzed for the build-out year plus one year into the future after the development is completed (2027).
Therefore, the traffic conditions studied include the following:

e Existing (2025)
e Background (2027)
e Build-out (2027)

Trip Generation

The traffic generation potential of the proposed development was determined using the trip generation data
published in Trip Generation (Institute of Transportation Engineers, Eleventh Edition, 2021). As shown in
Table ES-1 located on the following page, compared to the existing Sheetz store on the site, the proposed
store is projected to generate approximately 196 additional new daily trips, 16 new AM peak hour trips,
and 16 new PM peak hour trips.

1206



Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

Table ES-1
ITE Traffic Generation (Vehicles)

Land Use Intensity Daily AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Total In Out | Total In Out | Total In Out

Convenience

945 | Store/Gas Station: 5,000 | s.f. | 3,502 | 1,751 | 1,751 283 142 141 273 137 136
9-15 vfp - Existing

Convenience

945 | Store/Gas Station: 6,150 | s.f. 4,308 | 2,154 | 2,154 348 174 174 335 168 167
9-15 vfp - Proposed

Pass-By Reductions - Existing 2,644 | 1,322 | ,322 215 108 107 205 103 102
Pass-By Reductions - Proposed 3,264 | 1,627 | 1,627 264 132 132 251 126 125
Difference in Pass-By Reductions 610 305 305 49 24 25 46 23 23

Total Net New External Trips - Existing 858 429 429 68 34 34 68 34 34

Total Net New External Trips - Proposed 1,054 527 527 84 42 42 84 42 42

Difference in Total Net New External Trips | 196 98 98 16 8 8 16 8 8

Capacity Analysis
Capacity analyses were performed using Synchro Version 12 software. Table ES-2 summarizes the
operation of the study intersections for the AM and PM peak hour traffic conditions.

V207




Table ES-2 - Level of Service Summary

Existing (2025) Background (2027) Build-out (2027)
Intersection and Approach/Movement Traffic Control Traffic Traffic Traffic
AM PM AM PM AM PM
NC 96 at Pearces Road C(21.8) B (15.1) C(26.4) B (17.5) C(26.9) B (17.9)
Eastbound Signalized B (16.6) B (11.6) C(21.9) B (15.3) C(22.2) B (15.6)
Westbound B (15.3) A (7.5) B (19.9) A (9.8) C(20.3) B (10.0)
Southbound D (42.3) D (50.4) D (43.8) D (48.4) D (44.4) D (48.7)
NC 96 at Site Driveway 1 Unsignalized -(-) -(-) -(-) -(-) -(-) -(-)
Southbound B (14.4) C (15.6) C(15.8) C(18.2) C(15.9) C (18.5)
Pearces Road at Site Driveway 2 - () -(9) -(-) -(-) -(-) - ()
Eastbound Unsignalized B (13.9) C(17.2) C(16.4) C(22.9) C(17.9) D (26.8)
Northbound Left A (8.5) A(8.2) A(8.9) A (8.5) A (9.0) A (8.6)

208



Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

Conclusions

NCDOT TIP project U-5118 FB proposes to construct an additional southbound through lane along NC 96
beginning approximately 830 feet north of the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road and ending at US 64-
264 WB Ramps/Dogwood Drive. At the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road the westbound right lane is
expected to be restriped to a shared left/right lane and the existing traffic signal is expected to be modified
to accommodate these laneage improvements. While this project was considered for inclusion during
scoping discussions with the Town, it was ultimately excluded in order to provide a conservative analysis
of the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road.

All study intersections are expected to operate with acceptable levels-of service and, based on SimTraffic
observations, maximum queues are expected to increase minimally with the redevelopment of the Sheetz.
Therefore, no improvements are recommended with the proposed expansion.

vizo9



1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page No.
INTRODUCGCTION ..oceeeeeeeneeceeeeereeeeessssssessesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 1
INVENTORY .uueeiiiieereeeenneeceeeesseesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 2
2.1 STUDY AREA.......ceeiiieeieeeeeeeeeee e e 2
2.2 EXISTING CONDITIONS......cc..oooeeeeeeeeee et 2
2.3 FUTURE ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS......ceeeeeeeee et 2
TRAFFIC GENERATION .....cootttttttucseeeeeereeresssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 6
SITE TRAFFIC DISTRIBUTION ...ceeeuueeieereeeeeeneeeessessseesssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssonns 7
PROJECTED TRAFFIC VOLUMES. ... cctttttttttceeeeereeeserssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssonss 11
5.1 EXISTING TRAFFIC........ueeeiie et 11
5.2 APPROVED DEVELOPMENT TRAFFIC.........ccccoeeieiieieeeeeeeeee e 11
5.3 HISTORIC GROWTH TRAFFIC ....cooeeeeeeeee et 12
5.4 SITE TRAFFIC ..ot 12
5.5 BUILD-OUT TRAFFIC .....eeeiie oot 12
CAPACITY ANALYSIS . uuueecieeeeereereneeesseeseresssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssosssssssssssssssssns 17
6.1 NC 96 AT PEARCES ROAD ... et 18
6.2 INC 96 AT SITE DRIVEWAY L ..cooooeeeieeeeeeeeeeee e 19
6.3 PEARCES ROAD AT SITE DRIVEWAY 2 c.covveeeeeeeeeeee e 20
CONCLUSITONS cuueticeeereeeeseesesscsssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss 21

vit1o



Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

APPENDICES

A.  APPROVED ASSUMPTIONS MEMORANDUM

B. TRIP GENERATION

C. TRAFFIC COUNT DATA

D. APPROVED DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION

E. INTERSECTION SPREADSHEETS

F. SYNCHRO OUTPUT: EXISTING (2025)

G. SYNCHRO OUTPUT: BACKGROUND (2027)

H. SYNCHRO OUTPUT: BUILD-OUT (2027)

L SIMTRAFFIC REPORTS

J. SIGNAL PLANS

LIST OF TABLES
Table No. Title Page No.
Table 2.1 Roadway NetWork SUMIMAIY ...........ccceirviiieiiiiiieeiirieeeerireeeesireeeeserreeeesereeesssnseeesses sressneesnes 2
Table 3.0  ITE Traffic Generation (VEhiCles) ........ccviiiiiiuiiieiiiiiieecciiiee ettt e e e e es oveeeveeens 6
Table 6.0 Level-of-Service Control Delay Thresholds..........ccuveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 17
Table 6.1 Level-of-Service: NC 96 at Pearces Road ...........cccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 18
Table 6.2  Level-of-Service: NC 96 at Site Driveway 1 ........cocvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 19
Table 6.3 Level-of-Service: Pearces Road at Site DIiveway 2 ......ccceeeeveiviieiiiiiiee e cereee e e 20
LIST OF FIGURES

Figure No. Title Page No.
FAgUIE 2.1 — Site LOCATION. .. .uvviiiiiieeeiiiiiieie e e e e e ettt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e esetbbaeeeeaeesesssebssasaeaeessssssssssaseaeeessnnnnes 3
Figure 2.2 — Conceptual Site PLan.............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiice ettt e e et e e e e e e e seearreaeeeeeeeennens 4
Figure 2.3 — ExXisting ROadWay LanCage ...........ccccuuiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiiiieee ettt ee e e e e etvveeee e e e e eeseenvaaeeeeeessnnnns 5
Figure 4.1 — Primary Site Traffic Distribution and Percent Assignment.............cccceeeeiviiieiiiiiiieeeniieeeeee, 8
Figure 4.2 — Pass-by Assignments AM Peak HOUT ..........oociiiiiiiiiiiii e 9
Figure 4.3 — Pass-by Assignments PM Peak HOUT..........oocoiiiiiiiiiiii e 10
Figure 5.1 — Existing (2025) and Projected (2027) AM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes.............cccceviieerrnnnne. 13
Figure 5.2 — Existing (2025) and Projected (2027) PM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes .............ccccoviieerrnnnne. 14
Figure 5.3 —Projected (2027) Build-Out AM Peak Hour Volumes.............cccceiiiiiiiiiiiiieiniee e, 15
Figure 5.4 — Build-Out (2027) Build-Out PM Peak Hour Traffic Volumes...........ccccooceeiiiniiiiiiiiien e, 16

13011



Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

1.0 Introduction

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. has performed a Traffic Impact Analysis for the Zebulon Sheetz
redevelopment, located east of NC 96 and north of Pearces Road in Zebulon, NC. The existing
Sheetz on the property consists of a 5,000 square foot (s.f.) convenience store/gas station with 12
vehicle fueling positions (vip). The development is proposing to demolish the existing store and
build a new store with a 6,150 s.f. convenience store/gas station with 14 vfp. The site can currently
be accessed via a right-in/right-out only driveway along NC 96 and a full movement driveway
along Pearces Road. No changes to site access are proposed as part of this redevelopment. Build-
out of the development is anticipated by 2026.

This report presents trip generation, distribution, traffic analyses, and recommendations for
transportation improvements required to meet anticipated traffic demands in conjunction with the
development.

Per the Town of Zebulon (Town) Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), the future traffic
conditions were analyzed for the build-out year plus one year into the future after the development
is completed (2027). Therefore, the traffic conditions studied include the following:

e Existing (2025)
e Background (2027)
e Build-out (2027)

Town planning staff provided background data and were consulted regarding the elements to be
covered in this analysis. The approved assumptions memorandum is included in the Appendix of
this report.

212



Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

2.0 Inventory

2.1 Study Area

The study area for this development includes the following intersections:

e NC 96 at Pearces Road
e NC 96 at Site Driveway 1
e Pearces Road at Site Driveway 2

Figure 2.1 shows the site location and driveway connections. The conceptual site plan is shown
on Figure 2.2.

2.2 Existing Conditions

The Zebulon Sheetz development is located east of NC 96 and north of Pearces Road in Zebulon,
NC. Roadways in the study area include NC 96 and Pearces Road. Roadway network elements
(speed limit, estimated average daily traffic volume, and existing configuration) of study area
roadways are summarized in Table 2.1. The existing roadway laneage is shown in Figure 2.3.

Table 2.1
Roadway Network Summary
Typical
Roadwa Speed Estimated EZZ tin
y Limit AADT Volume 1sting
Configuration
12,500 vpd west of
Pearces Road*; 2-Lane Undivided/
NC 96 35 mph 24,000 vpd east of 4-Lane Undivided
Pearces Road**

Pearces Road 35 mph 7,50(,)\1\(/;p;16rf:t h of 2-Lane Undivided

*2021 AADT from NCDOT.

**2023 AADT from NCDOT

*** ADT was calculated for this roadway using existing AM and PM traffic volumes, assuming the total of those
peak hours is 20% of the daily traffic volumes.

2.3 Future Roadway Improvements

NCDOT TIP project U-5118 FB proposes to construct an additional southbound through lane along
NC 96 beginning approximately 830 feet north of the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road and
ending at US 64-264 WB Ramps/Dogwood Drive. At the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road
the westbound right lane is expected to be restriped to a shared left/right lane and the existing traffic
signal is expected to be modified to accommodate these laneage improvements. While this project
was considered for inclusion during scoping discussions with the Town, it was ultimately excluded
in order to provide a conservative analysis of the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road.

213



"ONI “SALVIOOSSY ONV NYOH-ATININ OL ALMIGYI LNOHLM 38 TIVHS "ONI ‘SALVIOOSSY ONV NMOH—AFTAD AB NOLVLAVAY ONV NOLVZRIOHLNYV NALLIMM LNOHLM LN3WNOOQ SIHL NO 3ONVITRY
AIJONdNI ANV 4O 3ISNFY "QIRAVdI¥d SVM LI HOIHM ¥0J LN3MO ANV 3S0d¥Nd O3S 3HL 304 AINO GIANALNI S| “FONYIS 40 LNINNAULSNI NV SV ‘NIEYIH GALNISIUd SNOISIA ONV SLdIONOO 3HL HLM ¥3HL3OOL ‘LN3NNDOQ SIHL

L'z SISAIVNY  LOVANI D144Vl

J4N3l4

NOILVOOT 4l1IS

ON ‘NOTINg3z
Z133HS NO'INg3Z

WIOH « A3y

SITE

NOT TO SCALE

O STUDY INTERSECTION

LEGEND

214



X

SITE LEGEND

L " x'a *\| HEAvy puTY concreTE
[—

STANDARD CURE.

DATE

——————————  TRANSITION TOFLUSH CURB

[ W 8 8 oG REANNG wo LIMITS OF DISTURBANGE (: 8059 57)
5 VIALLTO REVAIN
13 AND BE PROTECTED SITE NOTES
PROPOSED "STOP" INPLACE 1. CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO THE SHEETZ
N SIGN MUTCOR1-. ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR THE EXACT LOCATION OF [
UTILITY ENTRANCES, BUILDING DIMENSIONS, ROOF 2

LEADERS, EXIT DOORS, EXIT RAMPS AND PORCHES.

AL DIMENSIONS ARE TO BUILDING FACE, FACE OF
‘GURB, OR EDGE OF SIDEWALK UNLESS NOTED
OTHERWISE. ALL ANGLES ARE 90 DEGREES UNLESS.
OTHERWISE NOTED.

EicH, Ne 27601

5 COMTRAGTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALLLABSRAND £

MATERIALS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF TRAFFIC 55
ONAGE AND PAVEMENT MARKNGS A5 SO ON E
THE CONSTRUGTION PLAS. 2353
4 ALLNON-LANDSCAPEDISLANDS SHALL BE PANTED Bt
WITH STRIPES 4" WIDE, AT 45" AND2 FEET OLC. uge
TRANSFORMER 1 | = Eao)
3 | | BN ~ 5. ALL STRIPING SHALL BE 4" WIDE UNLESS NOTED 2955
B | I 3 RWISE. e
s el Lges

| g3 wo |} - & N 6. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE FINAL LOCATIO B

N
‘OF THE SHEETZ MAIN FREESTANDING SIGN WITH THE
‘SHEETZ CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

o

‘CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO OTHER PLANS WITHIN
THIS CONSTRUCTION SET FOR OTHER PERTINENT
INFORMATION.

Kimley»Horn

AL DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN SHALL BE
FIELD VERIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO

L NOTIFY
‘SHEETZ REPRESENTATIVE AND DESIGN ENGINEER OF

ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE PLAN AND FIELD
‘CONDITIONS. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL.
DIVENSIONS AT THE PROVECT SITE.

FIGURE
2.2

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN

DRAFT

‘CONTRACTOR SHALL NEATLY SAW-CUT ALL JOINTS.
WHERE THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION MEET
EXISTING PAVEMENT AND CONCRETE.

EE L

SITE PLAN

RH CAROLINA

"RIGHT TURN ONLY" SIGN
(MUTCD R3-5R, 30" X 36)
MOUNTED BELOW

NO

£BULON

STORE #416
1406 N ARENDELL AVE|

\OF 7

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

SHEET NUMBER

215

IMPACT ANALYSIS

ZEBULON, NC

THIS DOCUMENT, TOGETHER WITH THE CONCEPTS AND DESIGNS PRESENTED HEREIN, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE AND CLIENT FOR WHICH IT WAS PREPARED. REUSE OF AND IMPROPER

ZEBULON SHEETZ
RELIANCE ON THIS DOCUMENT WITHOUT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION AND ADAPTATION BY KIMLEY—HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. SHALL BE WITHOUT LIABILTY TO KIMLEY—HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

Kimley»Horn




"ONI ‘SALVIOOSSY ONV NYOH-AFINIM OL ALMIEVIT LNOHLWM 38 TIVHS “ONI ‘SALVIJOSSV ONV NYOH—ATTNDI A8 NOLV1dVQV ONV NOWVZRIOHLNY NILLRM LNOHLM LNIANJOQ SIHL NO 3ONVIT
AIJOUJAI ANV 4O 3SNIY "QRIVAI¥d SVM LI HOIHM ¥0J LN3MO ONV 3S0d¥Nd OLI03dS 3HL ¥OJ AINO CEANALNI S| 30AM3S 40 LNINRILSNI NV SV ‘NIREH JILNISHd SNOISIA ANV SLJ3ONOO 3HL HLM MEHLIDOL “LNINNDOJ SIHL

. SISATYNY  LOVAINI Old4vdl
£¢ JOVINYT AVMAVOY ONILSIX3 ON ‘NOINg3z WOH «/Asjuny
ENTARIE Z133HS NOINg3Z
—
<
5 2
5 2 5 _ 9
n o 4 I o
w o L o O
z O < i Z2 =z
< = w o
g n 9 =
O O o w9 A;
zZ z 2 8 2 0
FE E FE F r x
w v v n o 4
55 5 8 b oz z

LEGEND

—_
XX
XX’
XXX
v

&—450’
4

DRIVEWAY 1

®.
_A

|
|
|
|
|
| SITE
|
|
|
|

NOT TO SCALE

.

|

|

|

|

|

|

|

L
NC 96

216



Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

3.0 Traffic Generation

The traffic generation potential of the proposed development was determined using the traffic
generation data published in Trip Generation (Institute of Transportation Engineers, Eleventh
Edition, 2021). As currently envisioned, the proposed redevelopment is planned to consist of 6,150
s.f. convenience store/gas station with 14 vfp. Table 3.0 summarizes the estimated traffic generation
for the proposed development.

Table 3.0
ITE Traffic Generation (Vehicles)

Land Use Intensity Daily AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Total In Out | Total In Out | Total In Out
Convenience
945 | Store/Gas Station: 5,000 | s.f. | 3,502 | 1,751 | 1,751 283 142 141 273 137 136
9-15 vfp - Existing
Convenience
945 | Store/Gas Station: 6,150 | s.f. | 4,308 | 2,154 | 2,154 348 174 174 335 168 167
9-15 vfp - Proposed
Pass-By Reductions - Existing 2,644 | 1,322 | ,322 215 108 107 205 103 102
Pass-By Reductions - Proposed 3,264 | 1,627 | 1,627 264 132 132 251 126 125
Difference in Pass-By Reductions 610 305 305 49 24 25 46 23 23
Total Net New External Trips - Existing 858 429 429 68 34 34 68 34 34
Total Net New External Trips - Proposed 1,054 527 527 84 42 42 84 42 42
Difference in Total Net New External Trips | 196 98 98 16 8 8 16 8 8

Table 3.0 shows that the proposed development has the potential to generate 6,894 new daily trips

in a typical weekday with 196 new daily trips, 16 new AM peak hour trips, and 16 new PM peak
hour trips.

217




Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

4.0 Site Traffic Distribution

The proposed site generated trips were assigned to the surrounding roadway network. The
directional distribution and assignment are based on existing travel patterns.

e 50% to/from the east via NC 96
e 30% to/from the west via NC 96
e 20% to/from the north via Peaces Road

The site traffic distribution and assignment are shown in Figure 4.1. The AM and PM pass-by trip
distribution and assignments are shown in Figure 4.2 and Figure 4.3, respectively.

218



"ONI ‘SALVIOOSSY ONV NYOH-AFINIM OL ALMIEVIT LNOHLWM 38 TIVHS “ONI ‘SALVIJOSSV ONV NYOH—ATTNDI A8 NOLV1dVQV ONV NOWVZRIOHLNY NILLRM LNOHLM LNIANJOQ SIHL NO 3ONVIT
AIJOUJAI ANV 4O 3SNIY "QRIVAI¥d SVM LI HOIHM ¥0J LN3MO ONV 3S0d¥Nd OLI03dS 3HL ¥OJ AINO CEANALNI S| 30AM3S 40 LNINRILSNI NV SV ‘NIREH JILNISHd SNOISIA ANV SLJ3ONOO 3HL HLM MEHLIDOL “LNINNDOJ SIHL

Ly INJFANOISSY INIONId ANV SISATVNY 1OVd] O3Vl wiop«chauy
Junowd | | NOILNERLSIa Ol4dval 3LiS I
Z133HS NOINE3Z
N
= 3
- g
g =
s =z
z 9
O 0
3 < NN
P 175} < PN
L. 55
Z
3 =z 3 J h
o &) o
= o L
©w oL o
[m)] o I J
4 2 3 \
< 5 © b
& 2 F 2
3 z o
D Ean
H®k ¢
O <X X
Ll > <
— —

NOT TO SCALE

SITE

DRIVEWAY 1 |(30%)

S
J
-~

30% —>

NC 96

307%

219



"ONI ‘SALVIOOSSY ONV NYOH-AFINIM OL ALMIEVIT LNOHLWM 38 TIVHS “ONI ‘SALVIJOSSV ONV NYOH—ATTNDI A8 NOLV1dVQV ONV NOWVZRIOHLNY NILLRM LNOHLM LNIANJOQ SIHL NO 3ONVIT
AIJOUJAI ANV 4O 3SNIY "QRIVAI¥d SVM LI HOIHM ¥0J LN3MO ONV 3S0d¥Nd OLI03dS 3HL ¥OJ AINO CEANALNI S| 30AM3S 40 LNINRILSNI NV SV ‘NIREH JILNISHd SNOISIA ANV SLJ3ONOO 3HL HLM MEHLIDOL “LNINNDOJ SIHL

SISAIVNY  LOVANAI D144Vl

s IN3 Nu‘:zoo_kmwfwm |_2m<m<a ON ‘NOINg3z :._o_._AAA>m_E_v_
34N9I4 Z133HS NOINg3z

10%

“
«— —10%

INBOUND PERCENT ASSIGNMENT

XX%
(XX%) OUTBOUND PERCENT ASSIGNMENT

—XX% PASS—BY DISTRIBUTION

LEGEND

SITE _

NOT TO SCALE

220



"ONI ‘SALVIOOSSY ONV NYOH-AFINIM OL ALMIEVIT LNOHLWM 38 TIVHS “ONI ‘SALVIJOSSV ONV NYOH—ATTNDI A8 NOLV1dVQV ONV NOWVZRIOHLNY NILLRM LNOHLM LNIANJOQ SIHL NO 3ONVIT
AIJOUJAI ANV 4O 3SNIY "QRIVAI¥d SVM LI HOIHM ¥0J LN3MO ONV 3S0d¥Nd OLI03dS 3HL ¥OJ AINO CEANALNI S| 30AM3S 40 LNINRILSNI NV SV ‘NIREH JILNISHd SNOISIA ANV SLJ3ONOO 3HL HLM MEHLIDOL “LNINNDOJ SIHL

SISAIVNY  LOVANAI D144Vl

£ INIAANONSSY A8 SSvd ON ‘NOTING3Z WOH «/Asjuny
34N914 Z133HS NONG3Z

10%

“
«— —10%

INBOUND PERCENT ASSIGNMENT

XX%
(XX%) OUTBOUND PERCENT ASSIGNMENT

—XX% PASS—BY DISTRIBUTION

LEGEND

SITE _

NOT TO SCALE

221



Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

5.0 Projected Traffic Volumes

5.1 Existing Traffic

AM peak hour (7:00 to 9:00 AM) and PM peak hour (4:00 to 6:00 PM) turning movement counts
were performed at the following study intersection on January 28, 2025 while area schools were in
session:

e NC 96 at Pearces Road

AM peak hour (7:00 to 9:00 AM) and PM peak hour (4:00 to 6:00 PM) turning movement counts
were performed at each of the following study intersections on March 26, 2025, while area schools
were in session:

e NC 96 at Site Driveway 1
e Pearces Road at Site Driveway 2

The existing AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes are shown on Figure 5.1 and Figure 5.2,
respectively, and the traffic count data are included in the Appendix.

5.2  Approved Development Traffic

Approved development traffic is generated by approved but not yet constructed projects in the
vicinity of the proposed project. Based on discussions with the Town and NCDOT, there were four
(4) approved developments in the study area that were identified for inclusion as background traffic.
These approved developments include 7-Eleven Convenience Store, Clifton Grove (formerly
Pearces Road Residential), Domino’s, and Weaver’s Ridge.

7-Eleven Convenience Store
e Location: East of NC 96 and north of US 64-264
e Land Uses: 4,714 s.f. convenience store with 16 vehicle fueling pumps and 3 truck fueling

pumps
e Data Source: Zebulon 7-Eleven Convenience Store TIA (Impact Designs, Inc., March 2023)

Clifton Grove (formerly Pearces Road Residential)

e Location: West of Pearces Road and south of Pippin Road
e Land Uses: 232 single family detached units
e Data Source: Pearces Road Residential Development TIA (Timmons Group, October 2020)

Zebulon Domino’s
e Location: North of Dogwood Drive and east of NC 96
e Land Uses: 1,632 s.f. Domino’s Restaurant
e Data Source: Zebulon Domino’s TIA (DRMP, Inc., November 2024)

Weaver’s Ridge
e Location: East of NC 96 across from Glory Road

e Land Uses: 124 townhomes and 58 single-family homes

11

222



Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

e Data Source: Weaver’s Ridge Traffic Study (Ramey Kemp & Associates, Inc., July 2019)

Approved development traffic volumes for the future year scenarios are shown on Figure 5.1 and
Figure 5.2 for the AM and PM peak hours, respectively.

5.3 Historic Growth Traffic

Historic growth traffic is the increase in traffic due to usage increases and non-specific growth
throughout the area. In addition to the approved development traffic and per Town requirements,
study intersections were grown to the 2027 build-out year using an annual growth rate of 2.5%.

Projected future year (2027) background AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes are shown on
Figure 5.1 and Figure 5.2, respectively. Background growth calculations are detailed on
intersection spreadsheets in the Appendix of this report.

5.4 Site Traffic

The proposed site traffic was generated and assigned to the adjacent roadway network according
to the distributions discussed previously in Section 4.0. The primary AM and PM peak hour site
traffic volumes are shown on Figure 5.3 and Figure 5.4, respectively. The pass-by AM and PM
peak hour site traffic volumes are shown on Figure 5.3 and Figure 5.4, respectively.

5.5 Build-Out Traffic

To obtain the projected (2027) build-out traffic volumes, the projected site traffic volumes were
added to the projected (2027) background traffic. Traffic volume calculations are detailed in
intersection spreadsheets in the Appendix of this report. Figure 5.3 and Figure 5.4 show the
projected (2027) AM and PM peak hour build-out traffic volumes, respectively.

12

223



"ONI “SALVIOOSSY ONV NYOH-AFININ OL ALMIGYI LNOHLM 38 TIVHS “ONI ‘SALVIOOSSY ONV NYOH—ATTADI A8 NOLLY1dVQV ONV NOLLVZRIOHLNY NILLRM LNOHLM LNIANJ0Q SIHL NO 3ONVITR
AIJOUJNI ANV 4O 3SNIY "QIRIVdI¥d SVM LI HOIHM 304 LN3MO ANV 3S0d¥Nd O3S 3HL 304 ANO GIANALNI S| ‘FDAYIS 40 LNINMRLSNI NV SV ‘NIMIH JALN3SIdd SNOISIA ONV SLJ3ONOO 3HL HLM A3HLIIOL LNINNJOA SIHL

Lo SINNTOA QI44vHL SISATYNY  LOVdINI Ol44vdl
¥NOH WV (£20Z) d3L03royd ON ‘NOINg3z WIOH « A3y
34N9I4 anv (520Z) ONILSIX3 Z133HS NOINE3Z
)
&
n AN
[ 2%
~ Y
- g
m N
cE 3
S S %
A g
< o B o
o P P
> 3 8 3 !
O
z 828 )
0 N
2 2 @ 2 ¥ 3
Lud m < m [T
(& — o
m — b — w@
> >
4 x 239 2 i
-V
s
&

- 25 (1) [26]

<— 642 (33) <45> [720]

DRIVEWAY 1

|

|

|

|

|
SITE _

7 [60] (3) ﬂld

|

|

|

NOT TO SCALE

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
L
NC 96

[738] <58> (33) 647 —»

224



"ONI “SALVIOOSSY ONV NYOH-AFININ OL ALMIGYI LNOHLM 38 TIVHS “ONI ‘SALVIOOSSY ONV NYOH—ATTADI A8 NOLLY1dVQV ONV NOLLVZRIOHLNY NILLRM LNOHLM LNIANJ0Q SIHL NO 3ONVITR
AIJOUJNI ANV 4O 3SNIY "QIRIVdI¥d SVM LI HOIHM 304 LN3MO ANV 3S0d¥Nd O3S 3HL 304 ANO GIANALNI S| ‘FDAYIS 40 LNINMRLSNI NV SV ‘NIMIH JALN3SIdd SNOISIA ONV SLJ3ONOO 3HL HLM A3HLIIOL LNINNJOA SIHL

zc SINNTOA Ol44vdL SISATYNY  LOVdINI Ol44vdl
¥NOH Wd (£20Z) Q3103r0¥d ON ‘NOINg3z WIOH « A3y
34N9I4 anv (5Z0Z) ONILSIX3 Z133HS NOINE3Z
3T
R
n a4
< Y
T NN
— 31
m N
-
S S g
A g
< o B o
o P P
> 3 8 3 !
< M
2 < & < 0%
Lud m < m S
[ 10
M — b — b/@
> >
4 x 2% X Ve
2
—©
B

- 60 (3) [63]

<— 661 (33) <72> [766]

DRIVEWAY 1

|

|

|

|

|
SITE _

7 [97) () 92—,

|

|

|

NOT TO SCALE

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
]
NC 96

[767] <65> (34) 668 —»

225



"ONI 'SALVIOOSSY NV NYOH—ATINIM OL ALNIGYM LNOHLM 38 TIVHS ONI ‘SALYIOOSSY ANV N¥OH—ATTAIN A8 NOLYLJVQV ONV NOLLVZRIOHLNY NIALLRM LNOHLWM LNIWNOOQ SIHL NO 3ONVITRY
A3JOUJNI ANV 40 3SNIY "qIRIVdI¥d SVM LI HOIHM 304 LN3MO ANV 3S0diNd OlI03dS JHL 304 ATNO GIANGELNI S| ‘FONEIS JO ININNULSNI NV SV ‘NIJEH GILN3SIdd SNOISIA ANV SLJ3ONOO 3HL HLM ¥3HLI90L ‘LNINNDOA SIHL

SINNTOA Dl44vdl dNOH

SISAIVNY LOVANI Jl44vdL

=5 MYad WY 1n0—a1ing ON ‘NOIN83Z WIOH «A9jwiny
ECIINIE (£202) Q3103rodd Z133HS NOINE3z
_
0 2F
a &,
= A Q
(@) o~
= o ~
M n . oy
S &L E 29
S o
RN g
@]
S 8 3
L& 2 & 3 3 51
m ~ £ = NN
o o X W > © ©
E > WA\ Vv _M_ «u\/ N
P ~o
AN
VI~
oV
O,
o
)
| B
RN
| | N
| | Vs
T2
| | R
| | J|
| SITE |
| DRIVEWAY 1 ]
Ll [71] <9> (2) mold ﬁ
< | .
2 1 | -
o - S
— _ S _ % )
— _ | N
O O
Z - - - - _ _ __ _J =z

226



“ONI “SALVIOOSSY ONV NNOH-ATININ OL ALMIBYIN LNOHLM 38 TIVHS "ONI ‘SALVIOOSSY ONV NOH—AFTAD AB NOLVLAVAY ONV NOLVZRIOHLNV NALLIMM LNOHLM LN3WNOOQ SIHL NO 3ONVITRY
A3JOUdANI ANV 40 3SNIY ‘QRIVdI¥d SVM LI HOIHM 30d LN3MO OGNV 3SORINd OI03dS 3HL 304 ATNO Q3ANALNI S| ‘30NY3S 4O LNINMRLSNI NV SV ‘NE¥3H QALN3S3dd SNOISIA ANV SLJ3ONOO 3HL HLM ¥3HLI90L ‘LNINNDOA SIHL

bc SINNTOA D144VdL ¥NOH SISAKIYNY  LOVAINI O144vdL
MVad Wd 1no—aling ON ‘NOINg3Z WIOH « A3y
34N3al4 (£z0Z) Q3103roydd Z133HS NO1Ng3z
3
0 SK,
a fut
= A&
m Ll YAY
L £ O —~——
<C wn L N N
E . v X o
r oo 8
2 < g N
S = —
AR .
O
W m E o o V Jq
~ o
QA
VT
ﬂ_<
_w_]
[e)]
N
)
-2
_ _ _m_>
2 6]
A
| | gV
<C
_ _ o
M O
_ _ o~
| SITE _
DRIVEWAY 1 | (071 <85 (2 q
ﬁ _ [107] <8> (2) mqld
v | — | S
_H_ —_—
6 —
- | (N | 5| 3
T —_
(] _ (@)
=z _ e =z

227



Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

6.0 Capacity Analysis

Capacity analyses (see Appendix) were performed for the AM and PM peak hours for the existing
traffic condition (2025) and the projected (2027) background and build-out traffic conditions using
Synchro/SimTraffic Version 12 software to determine the operating characteristics of the adjacent
road network and the impacts of the proposed project.

Capacity is defined as the maximum number of vehicles that can pass over a particular road segment
or through a particular intersection within a set time duration. Capacity is combined with Level-of-
Service (LOS) to describe the operating characteristics of a road segment or intersection. LOS is a
qualitative measure that describes operational conditions and motorist perceptions within a traffic
stream. The Highway Capacity Manual defines six levels of service, LOS A through LOS F, with
A representing the shortest average delays and F representing the longest average delays. LOS D
is the typically accepted standard for signalized intersections in urbanized areas. For signalized
intersections, LOS is defined for the overall intersection operation.

For unsignalized intersections, only the movements that must yield right-of-way experience control
delay. Therefore, LOS criteria for the overall intersection is not reported by Synchro/SimTraffic
Version 12 or computable using methodology published in the Highway Capacity Manual. 1t is
typical for stop sign controlled side streets and driveways intersecting major streets to experience
long delays during peak hours, while the majority of the traffic moving through the intersection on
the major street experiences little or no delay. Table 6.0 lists the LOS control delay thresholds
published in the Highway Capacity Manual for signalized and unsignalized intersections.

Table 6.0
Level-of-Service Control Delay Thresholds
Level-of- Signalized Intersections — | Unsignalized Intersections — Average
Servi Control Delay Per Vehicle Control Delay [sec/veh] & Qualitative
ervice . A
[sec/veh] Operational Description

A <10 <10

B >10-20 >10-15 Short Delays

C >20-35 >15-25

D >35-55 >25-35

E > 5580 =35 50 Moderate Delays

F > 80 > 50 Long Delays

Existing peak hour factors were used for existing (2025) traffic conditions. A peak hour factor of
0.9 was used for all future scenarios. To provide a conservative analysis, existing coordinated signal
timings were used in all future traffic conditions at the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road.

All capacity analyses are included in the Appendix and are briefly summarized in the following

sub-sections.

17

228



Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

6.1 NC 96 at Pearces Road

Analyses indicate that the signalized intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road currently operates at
LOS C in the AM peak hour and LOS B in the PM peak hour. The signalized intersection is
expected to continue to operate at LOS C in the AM peak hour and LOS B in the PM peak hour,
with or without the proposed redevelopment in place. With the increase in site traffic as part of the
Sheetz redevelopment, minimal increases in vehicular queues are expected from background to
build-out traffic conditions.

As site traffic is expected to have minimal impact on the operation of this intersection, no
improvements are recommended to accommodate projected site traffic.

Table 6.1 summarizes the operation of the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road for existing
(2025), background (2027), and build-out (2027) traffic conditions.

Table 6.1
NC 96 at Pearces Road (Signalized)
Condition AM Peak Hour | PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay) LOS (Delay)
Overall - C (21.8) Overall - B (15.1)
L . EB -B (16.6 EB-B(11.6
Existing (2025) Traffic o B‘( 1 5'3)) o A( . 5))
SB-D (42.3) SB - D (50.4)
Overall - C (26.4) | Overall- B (17.5)
Background (2027) Traffic \I/EVBB%((%%)) 5:/33_-8/4(252))
SB-D (43.8) SB-D (48.4)
Overall - C (26.9) | Overall- B (17.9)
Build-out (2027) Traffic VEVBB'_%((ZZ%?) VEVBB'_BB(A%%))
SB - D (44.4) SB-D (48.7)

18

229




Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

6.2 NC 96 at Site Driveway 1

Analyses indicate that the unsignalized intersection of NC 96 at Site Driveway 1 currently operates
with short delays in both peak hours for the minor-street approach (Site Driveway 1). The minor-
street approach of this intersection is expected to continue to operate with short delays in both peak
hours, with or without the proposed redevelopment in place. With the increase in site traffic as part
of the Sheetz redevelopment, minimal increases in vehicular queues are expected from background
to build-out traffic conditions.

As site traffic is expected to have minimal impact on the operation of this intersection, no
improvements are recommended to accommodate projected site traffic.

Table 6.2 summarizes the operation of the intersection of NC 96 at Site Driveway 1 for existing
(2025), background (2027), and build-out (2027) traffic conditions.

Table 6.2
NC 96 at Site Driveway 1 (Unsignalized)
Condition AM Peak Hour | PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay) LOS (Delay)
Existing (2025) Traffic SB - B (14.4) SB - C (15.6)
Background (2027) Traffic SB - C (15.8) SB-C(18.2)
Build-out (2027) Traffic SB - C (15.9) SB - C (18.5)

19

230



Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

6.3  Pearces Road at Site Driveway 2

Analyses indicate that the unsignalized intersection of Pearces Road at Site Driveway 2 currently
operates with short delays in both peak hours for the minor-street approach (Site Driveway 2). The
minor-street approach of this intersection is expected to continue to operate with short delays in
both peak hours under background (2027) traffic conditions. With the proposed redevelopment in
place, the minor-street approach is expected to operate with short delays in the AM peak hour and
moderate delays in the PM peak hour. With the increase in site traffic as part of the Sheetz
redevelopment, minimal increases in vehicular queues are expected from background to build-out
traffic conditions.

As site traffic is expected to have minimal impact on the operation of this intersection, no
improvements are recommended to accommodate projected site traffic.

Table 6.3 summarizes the operation of the intersection of Pearces Road at Site Driveway 2 for
existing (2025), background (2027), and build-out (2027) traffic conditions.

Table 6.3
Pearces Road at Site Driveway 2 (Unsignalized)
Condition AM Peak Hour | PM Peak Hour
LOS (Delay) LOS (Delay)

L . EB-B (13.9 EB-C (17.2
Existing (2025) Traffic oo A{ (8'5; oL A( (8_2;
Background (2027) Traffic EEL' Cﬁ(gg; EEL' 0;2(22;
Build-out (2027) Traffic - cggg; o Df(gg;

20

231




Zebulon Sheetz Development — Zebulon, NC

7.0 Conclusions

NCDOT TIP project U-5118 FB proposes to construct an additional southbound through lane along
NC 96 beginning approximately 830 feet north of the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road and
ending at US 64-264 WB Ramps/Dogwood Drive. At the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road
the westbound right lane is expected to be restriped to a shared left/right lane and the existing traffic
signal is expected to be modified to accommodate these laneage improvements. While this project
was considered for inclusion during scoping discussions with the Town, it was ultimately excluded
in order to provide a conservative analysis of the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road.

All study intersections are expected to operate with acceptable levels-of service and, based on
SimTraffic observations, maximum queues are expected to increase minimally with the
redevelopment of the Sheetz. Therefore, no improvements are recommended with the proposed
expansion.

21

232



Appendix

233



Appendix A:

Approved Assumptions Memorandum

234



6/1/2025

Preliminary Assumptions — Zebulon Sheetz - UPDATED
Traffic Impact Analysis
Zebulon, North Carolina

KHA will perform analyses for the Zebulon Sheetz development, a proposed commercial project
located along east of NC 96 and north of Pearces Road in Zebulon, North Carolina. The following
assumptions will be used in the analysis of the site:

Study Intersections
The study area will consist of the following intersections:
e NC 96 at Pearces Road
e NC 96 at Site Driveway 1 (right-in/right-out access)
e Pearces Road at Site Driveway 2 (full movement access)

Analysis Scenarios
Weekday AM and PM peak hour analyses will be performed for the following traffic conditions:

Existing (2025)

Background (2026 +1)*

Build-out (2026 +1)*

Build-out (2026 +1)* - with Improvements

*Per the Town of Zebulon Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), the future traffic conditions will be
analyzed for the build-out year plus one year into the future after the development is completed (2027).

Background Traffic Growth

Based on historical AADT data from NCDOT and nearby developments and Town of Zebulon
ordinances, an annual growth rate of 2.5% will be used to grow the existing traffic counts to the build-
out year.

Approved Developments
Additionally, based on the Town of Zebulon Development Activity Map, the following approved
developments were identified for inclusion in this analysis as background traffic:
e 7-Eleven
Zebulon Domino’s
Clifton Grove (Pearces Road Residential)
Weavers Ridge

Traffic for these approved developments will be obtained or developed from either site plans or traffic
studies attained from the Town of Zebulon.

Roadway Improvements by Others

State Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) project U-5118 FB proposes to construct access
management improvements north of Pearces Road to Dogwood Drive along NC 96. This project is
expected to begin construction in 2025. While this project was considered for inclusion during scoping
discussions with the Town, it will ultimately be excluded in order to provide a conservative analysis of
the intersection of NC 96 at Pearces Road.

Trip Distribution
The following overall distribution will be used for Zebulon Sheetz Development entering and exiting
traffic:

e 50% to/from the east on NC 96
e 30% to/from the west on NC 96

235



6/1/2025

e 20% to/from the north on Pearces Road

Trip Generation

The property is currently consists of a 5,000 square foot (SF) convenience store/gas station with 12
vehicle fueling positions (vfp). The development is proposing to expand the store to 6,150 SF with 14
vip. See attached for the existing and proposed trip generation of the Zebulon Sheetz development.

Other Study Assumptions

Existing peak hour factors (PHF) will be used in each traffic condition where those exceed the default
PHF of 0.90. For future traffic signals, inputs (right-turns on red, permitted + protected phasing) will
be obtained from the signal plans, and optimized signal timings will be used in each of the traffic
conditions.

236



Sheetz Zebulon

Table 1 - Trip Generation (11th Edition): 6150SF Store, 14 vfp

. Daily AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
Land Use Intensity
Total In Out Total In Out Total In Out
945 Convenience Store/Gas Station: 9-15 vfp. - Existing 5,000 s.f. 3,502 1,751 1,751 283 142 141 273 137 136
945 Convenience Store/Gas Station: 9-15 vfp. - Proposed 6,150 s.f. 4,308 2,154 2,154 348 174 174 335 168 167
Pass-By Capture AM PM

945 Convenience Store/Gas Station - Existing 76% 75% 2,644 1322 1,322 215 108 107 205 103 102
945 Convenience Store/Gas Station - Proposed 76% 75% 3,254 1627 1,627 264 132 132 251 126 125

Difference in Pass-By Trips 610 305 305 49 24 25 46 23 23

Total Net New External Trips: Proposed Site 1,054 527 527 84 42 42 84 42 42

Total Net New External Trips: Existing Site 858 429 429 68 34 34 68 34 34

Difference in Total Net New External Trips 196 98 98 16 8 8 16 8 8

237




Study Area and Site Distribution

LEGEND
Existing Study Intersection

Site Distribution

238



Appendix B:

Trip Generation

239



Sheetz Zebulon

Table 1 - Trip Generation (11th Edition): 6150SF Store, 14 vip

Daily
Land Use Intensity AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour
Total In Out Total In Out Total In Out
945 Convenience Store/Gas Station: 9-15 vfp. - Existing 5,000 s.f. 3,502 1,751 1,751 283 142 141 273 137 136
945 Convenience Store/Gas Station: 9-15 vfp. - Proposed 6,150 s.f. 4,308 2,154 2,154 348 174 174 335 168 167
Pass-By Capture AM PM

945 Convenience Store/Gas Station - Existing 76% 75% 2,644 1322 1,322 215 108 107 205 103 102
945 Convenience Store/Gas Station - Proposed 76% 75% 3,254 1627 1,627 264 132 132 251 126 125

Difference in Pass-By Trips 610 305 305 49 24 25 46 23 23

Total Net New External Trips: Proposed Site 1,054 527 527 84 42 42 84 42 42

Total Net New External Trips: Existing Site 858 429 429 68 34 34 68 34 34

Difference in Total Net New External Trips 196 98 98 16 8 8 16 8 8

240




Appendix C:
Traffic Count Data

241



ID: 25-160002-005

Prepared by National Data & Surveying Services
SR 96/N Arendell Ave & Pearces Rd/Five County Spay and Neuter Clinic Dwy

Peak Hour Turning Movement Count

SR 96/N Arendell Ave

Day: Tuesday

City: Zebulon SOUTHBOUND Date: 1/28/2025
® | 0745AM-08:45AM | am 7 589 45 0 739 Aam | 7:00 AM - 09:00 AM §
2 4
E NONE NOON QO 0 0 0 0 NOON NONE ;ﬁ
< z
& 05:00 PM - 06:00 PM PM 1 683 | 54 0 720 PM 4:00 PM - 06:00 PM §
% AM NOON PM 4-’ ‘ t} u ﬁ PM NOON AM E
(2]
- [1]
g S 14, 30 0 46 2
z a 18 0 1 <= = g
N > O4= 0 0 2 ~ 3
z = 7l
S el o 0o 0o Ho 1§ 2718 0 413 = L5
I o g
s Byl 3 o 3 Fo 0 0§ o o o HeW"?¢
g 2 NOON [ Pm C 5
: Wl o o 2 =i 0.98 = :
3 —> 471 0 273 =
" 9 0 5 o s
§ 0 0 1 1 ‘-:;
§ AM NOON PM @ n ﬁ 1 p PM NOON AM g
Cars (AM) PM 966 0 0 687|415 pm HT (AM)
| ~ § Q | NOON 0 0 0 0 0 NooON | o 2 « |
PRI N gy
32 t 44 av 1011 0 9 690 228 Awm 02 L2
Om «2 0= «0
9% €399 NORTHBOUND 0% €14
—_— o —_— ~
g SR 96/N Arendell Ave °S N
o o0
Cars (NOON) HT (NOON)
o o o & & Ped;strians (Crossv:lks) 2 4, 3 o 8
—_— o o — S 3 —_—
05" * "o Sote g dzlz iz v o -t Lo
Om «0 Q 2] O= «0
0y £0 ‘looo oool' 0y €0
—_— At s e N ad
oo o PM 0 0 PM oo o
NOON oV 4 0  nNoown
Cars (PM) #8— 8—:‘“": HT (PM)
. % e NOON 8 ) 1t 8 NOON ow
PM PM
—l ) W — —l 4 L
34 ¥ L30 Ao oo oool‘ 04 M L0
2mp «0 o 8 & Q Omp «0
5% €266 o wE2212 28 » O 0% €12
- te O o, S0 - te
oo b % & oON B
a O a W
R N

242




Prepared by National Data & Surveying Services

Sheetz Gasoline Station Dwy & N Arendell Ave/SR 96

Peak Hour Turning Movement Count

ID: 25-160015-002 Sheetz Gasoline Station Dwy Day: Wednesday
City: Zebulon SOUTHBOUND Date: 3/26/2025
@ 07:15 AM - 08:15 AM AM 57 0 0 0 27 AM 7:00 AM - 09:00 AM g
2 4
E NONE NOON 0 0 0 0 0 NOON NONE ;ﬁ
< x
& 04:30 PM - 05:30 PM PM 92 0 2 2 66 PM 4:00 PM - 06:00 PM §
AM NOON PM 4-’ ‘ u ﬁ PM NOON AM
U 14, 60 0 25
699 0 | 753 <=
o =] z
; > 1 4m G661 0 642 ﬁ >
D v B
i 8 0o 0 0 8o of o0 0 o E‘JI g
3 >
Bl 2 o 4 Bo 0 0@ o o o EeM 3
g 2 NOON| PM C g
z Inflle47 o 668 = 1 0.94 % P
=> 670 0 647
0 0 0 Yo o o o0 o
AM NOON PM @ n ﬁ f p PM NOON AM
Cars (AM) PM 0 0 0 0 0 ~epm HT (AM)
| h o o | NOON 0 0 0 0 0 NOON | 6 o o |
JI e JI 0
22 t21 AM 0 0 0 0 0 Am 02 t4
595= <« 605 52mp <« 37
0%y €0 NORTHBOUND 03 €0
© o o Sheetz Gasoline Station Dwy © oo
Cars (NOON) HT (NOON)
o o o & & Ped;strians (Crosswzalks) 2 4, 3 ? 8
—_— by f— O 9 —
05" * "o Sote g dzlz iz v o -t Lo
Om «0 Q 2] O= «0
0y €0 ‘looo oool' 0%y €0
oo o PM 0 0 PM oo o
NOON oV 4 0  nNoown
Cars (PM) #8— 8 Ay HT (PM)
o NOON 04 40 NOON
0 O « PM O O PM m O O
—l ) W — —l 4 L
32 ' 59 P © O o|o o o | % 18 M t1
632= «631 o & & Q 36mp «30
- te O o, S0 “te
o o o % & o o o

243




Prepared by National Data & Surveying Services

Pearces Rd/CR 1001 & Sheetz Gasoline Station Dwy

Peak Hour Turning Movement Count

Saoly3d INN0D

Am@ uone)s auijoses zjeays

ID: 25-160015-001 Pearces Rd/CR 1001 Day: Wednesday
City: Zebulon SOUTHBOUND Date: 3/26/2025
@ 07:30 AM - 08:30 AM AM 66 345 0 0 225 AM 7:00 AM - 09:00 AM
2
E NONE NOoON O 0 0 0 0 NOON NONE
<
& 05:00 PM - 06:00 PM PM 74 | 230 0 0 403 PM 4:00 PM - 06:00 PM
AM NOON PM 4-’ ‘ t} u ﬁ PM NOON AM
0o 1 0 0 o& o 0 o0
H 142 0 202 <=
= 2 CONTROL O4= 0 0 0 ﬁ
N D
o oM 0 0 0 9o No Control o o o o 4
£ [ vy
s B>l 25 o 61 2o 0 (952] o @G o o o el
o 2 NOON [ PM c
SEnfl o 0o 0 =1 0.97 =
2 = 0 0 0
86 0 117 "¥ 0 o 1 1 o
AM NOON PM @ n ﬁ 1 ' PM NOON AM
Cars (AM) PM 347 0 [ 128342 0 pm HT (AM)
o
|$ 5 o| NOON 0 0 0 0 0 NOON |<r " o
o I I R
252 to aM 431 0 76 200 0 Awm 02 t0
0= «0 (1N «0
819 €0 NORTHBOUND 5% €0
—_n — —_nter
35 Pearces Rd/CR 1001 w~N o
w
Cars (NOON) HT (NOON)
o o o & & Ped;strians (Crosswzalks) 2 4, 3 ? 8
—_— o o — S % —
057+ "o YRR HEEE RO 04 b
Om «0 Q 2] O= «0
0y €0 ‘looo oool' 0%y €0
—_—- t e — —_—t
oo o PM 0 0 PM oo o
NOON oV 4 0  nNoown
Cars (PM) #8— 8 Ay HT (PM)
~ = NOON ot 40 NOON
N NN O PM O O PM < O
—l ) W — —l 4 L
614 + Lo P O O O |0 O o | % 0s ¥ 40
Omp «0 o 8 8 Q Omp «0
- te O o, S0 “te
=) % & M N O
N W
> O

244




Appendix D:

Approved Development Information

245



TRAFFIC IMPACT
ANALYSIS

Zebulon 7-Eleven Convenience Store

ZEBULON, NORTH CAROLINA

,]1 & 2 Q 3, ) 4\:-....
5. @ "’fn:.\...s,wéu

REPORT PREPARED FOR:
C4 CStore Holdings II, LLC
121 West Trade Street, Suite 2550
Charlotte, NC 28202

REPORT PREPARED BY
Impact Designs, Inc.
PO Box 3728
Mooresville, NC 28117
nick@impactdesignsinc.com

246



]

2022 — 11:28am

QUALIFICATIONS

Drawing name: L:\7—Eleven\2022\C22—144 & C22—145 — 1055397 — Zebulon, NC (N Arendell Ave & Dogwood Dr)\01 Preliminary\Site Sketch\C22144 — N Arendell & Dogwood — CSP1.dwg Oct 28,

1

2.

3.

4.

. THIS SITE PLAN WAS PRODUCED WITH THE BEST

INFORMATION AVAILABLE AT DATE OF PRODUCTION.

NO ALTA/TOPO SURVEY, NO TITLE REPORT, NO EASEMENT
RESEARCH WAS AVAILABLE.

TRANSPORTATION, UTILITY, ARCHEOLOGICAL, HISTORICAL
RESEARCH WAS NOT PERFORMED.

NO ZONING REQUIREMENTS, SETBACKS, BUFFERS WERE
SUPPLIED AT THE DATE OF THIS PLAN. PROPOSED LAYOUT
MAY NEED TO BE ADJUSTED PENDING ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION.

WATER QUALITY/QUANTITY TREATMENT LOCATION AND SIZE
SUBJECT TO ENGINEERING CALCULATIONS AND AGENCY
REVIEW.

FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY: NOT FOR LEASING
DIMENSIONS OR CONSTRUCTION. ALL DIMENSIONS AND
LAYOUT SUBJECT TO CHANGE.

SITE PLAN WILL REQUIRE 7-ELEVEN AND CITY APPROVAL.

SITE SUMMARY
AREA 152,875 S.F.+
PARKING SPACES 4

J

GRAPHIC SCALE
20 0 10 20

1INCH = 20 FEET

—

—

—

——— 1 BUFFER

—

—

STORMWATER
MANAGMENT
AREA

[THESE PLANS ARE INSTRUMENTS OF PROFEGSIONAL |
SERVICE AND ARE PROTECTED BY COMMON LAW,
STATUTORY AND OTHER RESERVED RIGHTS
INCLUDING COPYRIGHT. THEY MAY NOT BE
REPRODUCED OR USED FOR ANY PURPOSE WITHOUT

THE WRITTI CON&ENTO THE DIMENSION OUP.
>
m
>0 > >
O] 0| O
SRR
5|5l 3
-O—L
gl e
g
5 S
'_ -
o &
% O
O
8 |
o 3
o
=z
o 2
D
= £l°
L O3
% o | —
N | ©
.| O
— | C
|2
|| <
N | Z
Sl
¢
“'Qﬁ'
00| <
419
IR
ol 8| o
Lol cC|l ol =
—= ~| oo
<C O
[m] 0,
o
[oN
<K<K
e
Ao
z o
< O
_
2 |3
L O
— oz
n 0_;
| °50
< T
- > 2
E <m
m 1l
—1 N
O L
P )
O Z
@) L
e
<
Z

SHEET

CSP1

247


AutoCAD SHX Text
30' STREET SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' STREET SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' STREET SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' STREETSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' STREETSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' STREETSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
project no.

AutoCAD SHX Text
date

AutoCAD SHX Text
dwg.

AutoCAD SHX Text
drawn by

AutoCAD SHX Text
designed by

AutoCAD SHX Text
approved by

AutoCAD SHX Text
C22-144

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE SUMMARY AREA     152,875 S.F.  152,875 S.F.±PARKING SPACES   4141


248



249



250



251



Pearces Road Residential
Development

Traffic Impact Analysis

Zebulon, North Carolina

October 2020

Prepared for:

DR Horton

Contact: Jeff Hochanadel, PE, PTOE

5410 Trinity Road, Suite 102 e Raleigh, NC 27607
282 (919) 866-4951 phone o (919) 859-5663 fax
www.timmons.com




Pearces Road Residential
Traffic Impact Analysis
Site Plan

Figure 2-1

253




4
(7) T (7)
(‘31) (;) = 1
«— 10 (7 «— 2 (3) — 1 (3)
Fal BN 2@ P O e )
@ Pippin Road @ @
b e~ C R B R e T N G
10 (35 "~V 31 9 3 (12) T 10 2 2 — 3 ] 3)
:(19) (3) () R @) ™
Site Driveway Greenridge
#Il View Lane
12 14 33 5 12
(38) l!T (22) (16) LT 10) g (]1)
(90)
_ " _ | Site Driveway |_ _ _ _{_ _l_.
o —22 s @ St
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT (52) 790 (48) TN | 24
(86)
Pearces
Road
17 24 4 70 5 | 2 @
17 13) (1| 4§ (25 6 4 (3) (40) (5) | «— 2
(13) (25) 3) (4)
— - L’.'_ Zebulon | * A Proctor JLL .{_ —
T e Roed ¢ o e 9 S
(22) - (13) (6) : (gg) (5)
24 46
LEGEND 24 (8) @2 & 4o 4o 10
—— Existing Road (18) (49)
--- 0 ng d “— | North Arendell o L’“_ .
roposed Roa N
XX 10 Avenue 0 @) Y
AM Peak Hour Volume (vph) 27) — (22)
(Xx) PM Peak Hour Volume (vph) NOT T0 SCALE
Pearces Road Residential
Traffic Impact Analysis Figure 4-2

2024 Trip Distribution Volumes

254




LT
50' storage |
— o | =
VA ¢ 100 -
@ Pippin Road j @
45 0 45 500 -
. S - |
I
1 25
Site Driveway Greenridge
#.1 View Lane
SCHOOL : l ‘ 1
' l J 100' storage |
25 — _ _ | Site Driveway |_ _ _ _ _ _ _ /
g P
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT T
45
—
Pearces
Road
100 s
— - % — _| Zebulon | *— A Proctor Sron ‘%— —
— 150 7}\/ 45 Road — — Street %, 4\T/> —
EGEND
Existing Road
= = = Proposed Road
Signalized Intersection 175"
A —
@ Unsignalized Intersection “— ['North Arendell J L» oy <
=y Existing Lane Configuration — Avenue 175" _/AM -
=) Improvements By Others -
Developer Improvements NOT TO SCALE
Pearces Road Residential
Traffic Impact Analysis Figure 6-1
2024 Proposed Lane Configuration
255




TRAFFIC IMPACT
ANALYSIS

FOR

ZEBULON DOMINO’S

LOCATED IN

ZEBULON, NORTH CAROLINA

Prepared For:
Rivers & Associates, Inc.
353 E Six Forks Road
Suite 230
Raleigh, NC

Prepared By:
DRMP, Inc.
License #F-1524

256




Planners
Surveyors

Engineers
Landscape Architects

SITE DATA TABLE

Since 1918

PROPERTY INFORMATION / SITE ADDRESSES -

NC PIN - 27-0600-6772

ADDRESS - 1000 HENDRICKS DR

ZEBULON, WAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 27597
TOWNSHIP - LITTLE RIVER (PER IMAPS)
OWNER/ DEVELOPER - JTSJ INC.

9107 S TRYON ST STE. F, CHARLOTTE, NC 28273
SITE AREA - 0.913 AC (PER SURVEY)
LAND USE -

EXISTING - VACANT / STORMWATER CONTROL MEASURE
PROPOSED - RESTAURANT, WALK-UP ONLY
ZONING - HC-HEA 'OMMERCITAL

SETBACKS - STREET - 30
SIDE - 0,5 IF PROVIDED
REAR - o

NG License: F-0334

& ASSOCIATES, INC.
com

i

R

riversandassociates
Six Forks Place Il Ste. 230
353 E. Six Forks Road
Raleigh, NC 27609
919.594.1626

BUFFERS -

15' STREETSCAPE BUFFER ALONG HENDRICKS DR & JONES ST
10' TYPE'A' PERIMETER BUFFER ALONG ADJACENT PROPERTIES

N.F. DORIS C. HICKS
\ DB 7276, PAGE 169
ZONED R2

1 SPACE / EMPLOYEE ON LARGEST SHIFT
1 SPACE / OUTDOOR SEATING LOCATION

4
D)

N.F. GAY FAMILY LTD. \ 7
PARTNERSHIP ! / e A AROVIDED
DB 016957, PAGE 00504 I ! \ / 7

ZONED HC | |

HANDICAP SPACES.

MINIMUM DIMENSIONS: 10' X 20
REQUIRED - 1 SPACE / 20 OFF-STREET AUTO PARKING SPACES
/ /// <20 SPACES ON SITE, NO BICYCLE PARKING

BICYCLE PARKING -
—RW—

—RW— :

REQUIRED
EX. SANITARY SEWER | \ / /// IMPERVIOUS SURFACE - EXISTING - N/A
MANHOLE (TYP) \® | | < / T AREA PROPOSED -  ASPHALT PAVEMENT -
<X / (INCLUDES C+G)
” CONCRETE -

+/-12,848 SF

+1-2,231 SF
+/-1,632 SF
+/-16,771 SF
(+/-0.385 AC)
+/-42.17%

- —— \ BUILDING -

f
HENDRICKS DRIVE ‘“ o
60" PUBLIC R/W W\
EX. SDEWAK & —T— = — o — - —— " - —— AWoL -~ ————— - —— - —— \K
RAMP ACCESS HANDICAP CURB RAMP, TYPE 36" VALLEY GUTTER - N

S
1 (SEE DETAIL) (TYP.) s =

EDGE OF PAVEMENT.

PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS PERCENTAGE -

=
3

STD. 30" CURB AND
GUTTER IN PUBLIC RW

~ \\ GENERAL NOTES:

ALLSITE WORK SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS PREPARED BY RIVERS =
AND ASSOCIATES, INC., THE CURRENT REQUIREMENTS OF THE TOWN OF ZEBULON, THE REVISIONS:

4

APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE NCDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROADWAY.

> EX. RW THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY AT ALL TIMES WITH APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE AND

N CONSTRUCTION, AND ALL OTHER PERTINENT FEDERAL STATE AND LOCAL LAWS

H o MWH— /

I (r }

Y

SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION (TYP.)

e 9 EX7"MAPLE ?;\‘
A

LOCAL LAWS, PROVISIONS, AND POLICIES GOVERNING SAFETY AND HEALTH, INCLUDING

\ THE FEDERAL CONSTRUCTION SAFETY ACT (PUBLIC LAW S1.54), FEDERAL REGISTER,
HANDICAP CURB RAMP, \\ CHAPTER XV, PART 1926 OF TITLE 29 REGULATIONS, OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND.

/WPES{WP\CAL SEE \ HEALTH REGULATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION, AND SUBSEQUENT PUBLICATIONS UPDATING
DETAIL) N\ THESE REGULATIONS.

212.66" -

REMOVE AND REPLACE EX. MH
CONE AND ADJUST RING AND
COVER TO BE FLUSH WITH
NEW SIDEWALK

6 ON-SITE HORIZONTAL TRANsmoN N
R7.0 BETWEEN 30' C8G IN PUBLIC RIW &
24" C&G ON-SITE (TYP)

06/28/24
05/22/24
01/19/24
12/07/23
11/07/23
06/01/23
DATE |BY

MONUMENT SIGN
(APPROXIMATE LOCATION. SIGN TO BE \T‘H\
PERMITTED SEPARATELY FROM SITE PLAN) ‘

Jj K
/ +/-R 10.0 - SAW CUT
//// EXISTING CURB, ONSITE, TO
PROVIDE SMOOTH RADIUS
C

EX. EOP - SAWCUT ONSITE TO PROVIDE
SMOOTH EDGE FOR NEW PAVEMENT TO

THE CONTRACTOR SHALLBE RESPONSIBLE FOR EXAVINING THE AREAS AND CONDITIONS
N\ UNDER WHICH THE PROJECT 5 T0 8E CONSTRUCTED PRIOR 0 THE SUBMISSION OF A
2 1D, SUBMISSION GF A BID SHALL B CONSTRUED 0 MEAN THE CONTRACTOR HAG
REVIEWED THESITEAND 5 FAVILIAR WITH CODITIONS AND CONSTRANTS OF THE SITE
BEFORE EXCAVATION, ALLUNDERGROUND UTILITIS SHALL BE LOCATED IN THE FIELD 8Y
THE PROPER AUTHORITIES, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY N.C. ONE CALL AT
11800-632-4945. THE LOCATION OF ALLUTILTIES AND UNDERGROUND STRUCTURES ARE
APPROXIVATE AND MAY NOT ALLBE SHOWN. T 1 THE RESPONSIBLIT OF THE
CONTRACTOR 10 DETERMINE THE EXITENCE AND EXACT LOCATION OF ALL UTILIIES
Y AND UNDERGROUND STRUCTURES
CONTRACTOR SHALLREFER TO THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT PRIOR TO INTIATION OF ANY
® \\\ EARTHWORK ACTIVITY.

CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY PUBLIC WORKS STREET MAINTENANCE DIVISION 48 HOURS

15 STHEETSCAPE BUFFER

|_— WHITE PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS e T T - ]‘

W\
\

5)( 8"MAPLE {

30' STREET SETBACK |
T "

N e e N

\ \
AN WHITE PAINTED POLE LIGHT, SEE I

/

— e —
2z
Z

R5.0

BE FLUSH WITH EX. SURFACE

SAW CUT EXISTING CURB,
ONSITE, TO PROVIDE SMOOTH
TRANSITION TO EX. C&G
o
I
LIGHT-DUTY CONCRETE AT HANDICAP
PARKING SPACES AND ACCESS AISLE

5' SIDE SETBACK

(2) PERMANENT CONCRETE PLANTERS,
SEE SHEET L1.02 FOR DETAIL.

(2) OUTDOOR BENCHES PERMANENTLY
ANCHORED TO SIDEWALK. SEE SHEET
C2.10 FOR DETAIL

R28.5'
6" VERTICAL
CURB TAPER

R1.0

CROSSWALK SHEET LP1 (TVP)
STRIPING (TYP.)

_

R1.0

GUTTER ON- SITE
DO NOT ENTER — (TYP, SEE DETAIL) “
SIGNS (TYP) \
2 R10. ' H

\

60.0'

‘
| ‘ \

STD. 24" CURB AND ‘\

RW

|
|
|
|
|
I
|

Z
7

PRIOR TO MAKING CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING STORM DRAINS LOCATED WITHIN PUBLIC
STORM DRAINAGE EASEMENTS OR R/W.

REFER TO C1.02 FOR SURVEY CONTROL INFORMATION.

CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO OTHER PLANS WITHIN THIS CONSTRUCTION SET FOR
‘OTHER PERTINENT INFORMATION,

PER FEMA FIRM MAP 3720466000L DATED 7/7/14, THIS PROJECT IS IN ZONE X AND
THEREFORE THERE IS NO REGULATORY FLOODPLAIN LOCATED ON THIS PROPERTY.
BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES OR OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, MATERIALS AND SURFACES,
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO PRINCIPLE AND ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND
ADDITIONS AND APPURTENANCES THERETO, SIGNAGE, FENCES, WALLS, MECHANICAL
EQUIPMENT, CANOP! TENNAS, MASTS, DEBRIS, SOLID WASTE COLLECTION
CONTAINERS, MAIL RECEPTACLES, AND IMPERVIOUS SURFACES SHALL NOT ENCROACH
WITHIN ANY DEDICATED EASEMENT WITHOUT PRIOR APPROVAL OF TOWN OF ZEBULON

DESCRIPTION

CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS SUBMITTAL #1

TRC REVIEW PLAN

4\ | CONSTRUCTION DRAWING SUBMITTAL #5

A CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS SUBMITTAL #4
é CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS SUBMITTAL #3

1\ | CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS SUBMITTAL #2

NO.

AM,,,A
\
AN

\
\
\
Il |

HC PARKING & CARSIDE DELIVERY SIGNS —— |

LAND-DISTURBING ACTIVITIES. PLEASE CONTACT MS. TRACY WHEELER, TELEPHONE (252)
LANDSCAPED/SODDED UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED IN THE CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS,
N.F. CHURCH OF JESUS LI NPROEHETS AL NPT HE W N 2

| CHRIST OF LATTER=-DAY 17 5 COECTONS4ALL € PROVED 1 PUATECONTRACTOR

E DB 2843, PAGE 659 CONSTRUCTION OF ROADWAY EXTENSION BY OTHERS

H ZONED R2

© — CARSIDE DELIVERY ‘ l . et ——205——=
SIGNS (5, TYP.) /r ,
\ / EXISTING ‘ I

\ \

‘ |
\ DUAL EV CHARGING STAT\ON \
|
CONCRETE WHEEL STOP AT EV
CHARGING PARKING SPACES (TYP.)

=

I\ spiLL curs
P

74223" W
87.00

N.F. EPARK LLC. HANDICAP VAN SPACE WITH ACCESS AISLE, X
DB 019219, PAGE  STRIPING AND SIGN. MAXIMUM 2.0% SLOPE IN
: HANDICAP SPACES AND ACCESS AISLE. (TYP,

01682 SEE DETAIL)

ZONED HC

“ 100 (TYP)

60" PUBLIC R/W

JONES STREET

[ 1,000 GALLON

GREASE TRAP 150
I~ (SEE SHEET EE
ca.10)

HC PARKING, EV CHARGING STATION & —_| ‘
‘CARSIDE DELIVERY SIGNS 7

PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK

NORTH CAROLINA

PROPOSED 5' PLANTING STRIP (TYP.)

SITE PLAN

|
| EX12"MAPLE

ACCESSIBLE DUAL EV CHARGING STATION —{
WITH 5 ACCESS AISLE AND BOLLARD

R28.0'
PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS —
ON-SITE (TYPICAL)

- EXRWOL-—-

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT NOTES:

ASPHALT PAVEMENT
(TYPICAL, SEE
R47.0 DETAIL)

1. EXISTING STORMWATER MANAGEMENT DETENTION BASIN

A. ON-SITE ALLOWABLE IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREA = 189 AC = 82,328 SF

B. SONIC IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREA =

C. CAPITAL BANK IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREA =
2. ALLOWABLE IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREA FOR SITE
3. PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS SURFAGE AREA FOR SITE = 045AC =
4. ALLOWABLE FUTURE IMPERVIOUS AREA = 21,344 SF - 16,771 SF = 4,573 SF

MOVEL3S 133HLS 08
4344n8 3dVOSI3IULS S

DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE -
/ ‘SEE DETAIL SHEET C2.11
. |

{— PROPOSED SIDEWALK EASEMENT SHALL BE
DEDICATED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF CO.

CONCRETE WHEEL STOP AT EV —
CHARGING PARKING SPACES (TYP.)

DO NOT
ENTER SIGN

STANDARD
S 24" CURB &
‘ « GUTTER (TYP.)

DUAL EV CHARGING STATION — ‘

7 EX. DRY POND TOP OF BANK. CONTRACTOR
SHALL REPAIR ANY DAMAGE TO EMBANKMENT
INCURRED BY VEGETATION REMOVAL AND
SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION (TYP.)

NOTE:

1. PAVEMENT MARKINGS WITHIN SITE CAN BE PAINTED. PAVEMENT MARKINGS
WITHIN RIGHT OF WAY SHALL BE THERMOPLASTIC AND SHALL BE INSTALLED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH NCDOT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS.

— -
L

2. EXISTING ON-SITE FIBER OPTIC LINES TO BE REROUTED BY CONTRACTOR.

BACK OF CURB

l

CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS

DOMINO'S ZEBULON

| HC RAMPS:
[ T, ALL HG RAWPS TO BE FIELD ADJUSTED WITH INPUT FROM THE
‘ ‘ "TOWN OF ZEBULON FIELD INSPECTOR PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.
|

2. POWER POLES WHICH CONFLICT WITH FIELD LOCATED HC
N.F. PURO DESCANSANDO PARTNERS II LP RAMPS ARE TO BE RELOCATED BY APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANY.
DESCANSANDO PARTNERS LP !

DB 119274, PAGE 02666 I J

ZONED HC

MIYM3aIs X3

TOWN OF ZEBULON

-

DATE:

®

DESIGNED BY: SF/MS

RUCTION DR

2

DRAWN BY: SF/MS

CALL BEFORE YOU DIG!

WWW.NCB11.0RG CHECKED BY: JSJ/PRM

N.C. ONE-CALL CENTER
TS THE LAW! PROJECT No 2023018

20230161GA0D,

DRAWING No. W-4081

\ ALL CONSTRUCTION TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TOWN OF 0 10" 20 SCALE AS SHOWN

\ ZEBULON, CITY OF RALEIGH PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPT., WAKE
\ COUNTY, NCDOT & NCDEQ STANDARDS, SPECIFICATIONS AND
\ DETAILS.

e SHEET o

SCALE 1inch = XA c2.01

257




15

9
Qo
(>
2|5
= \
-
E Jones (J;L)O‘r
Street i ﬂ f ﬁ
¥ 264
.~ S
;BO_{?________S_it_e___i i S
o Drive 2 i ; o)
© : :
|3 to . SITE | <t
Plo : ' e
Ol : PoAa
S o) 23 Hemmmsesssssmeessssessees
A 4 €9  Site Drive 1 |
J . .
(Existing)
e
:4 o S A 10 17 N
i - -
45 [ et NS | ¢ NS4 e \ o<
8| {J 8] 8l
2 iate s [ q4p F 14tp dih 38 T Qe
- 7 - ™ 4 = ™
¥ ¥ 3y
Westbound/
Off-Ramp
LEGEND
(O Unsignalized Intersection
E Signalized Intersection
Site Trip

_)Weekday PM Peak
Hour Site Trips

Zebulon Domino's
Zebulon, NC

Assignment

Scale: Not to Scale | Figure 7

258



31

V @09 O

}

L
Q1o
| >
ST
GC) a) \
T
E Jones *t)()é-
Street
+ | 4
264
v Q;_- _________ _S_it_e___i E -
o Drive 2 i ; o)
© : i
E b . SITE | ¢
Sl i ¢ g0
(OIS} ] ] e
& }_ e '
P . Site Drive 1 |
g (Existing)
b
A FULL a
A - < A
@ | oo T & | T 45 [T | Iy
§ Q 8 — §
1503 | & TWITLS | &y 225" TWLTL S 3508 T 4
v = o
v v S -
o
=2
Wes:cggund/ %
Off-Ramp O
S
LEGEND

Unsignalized Intersection
Signalized Intersection
Existing Lane

Improvement by Developer

Storage (In Feet)

Zebulon Domino's
Zebulon, NC

Recommended Lane
Configurations

Scale: Not to Scale | Figure 11

259



Attachment 3

July 25,2019
Mr. Meade Bradshaw
Assistant Planning Director
Town of Zebulon
1003 N. Arendell Avenue
Zebulon, NC 27597
Phone: (919) 269-7455
Email: mbradshaw@townofzebulon.org

Subject: Traffic Study
Weaver’s Ridge — Zebulon, North Carolina

Dear Mr. Bradshaw:

This letter provides the findings of the traffic study prepared by Ramey Kemp & Associates, Inc. (RKA) for the
proposed Weaver’s Ridge development located east of Zebulon Road (NC 96) across from Glory Road in
Zebulon, North Carolina. The purpose of the study is to determine how traffic generated by the proposed
development is expected to impact surrounding roadways and intersections.

The proposed residential development is assumed to consist of 124 townhomes and 58 single-family homes.
Refer to Figure 1 for the site location map. Site access will be provided via one (1) full movement site driveway
along Zebulon Road (NC 96) across from Glory Road and a connection to the Weaver’s Pond Development via
Golden Plum Lane.

Refer to Figure 2 for the preliminary site plan of the proposed development and Figure 3 for an illustration of
the existing lane configurations within the study area.

The study analyzes traffic conditions for the study intersections during the weekday AM and PM peak hours for
the following scenarios:

Existing (2019) Traffic Conditions

Background (2024 +1) Traffic Conditions

Combined (2024 +1) Traffic Conditions

Combined (2024 +1) Traffic Conditions with Improvements

Existing (2019) Peak Hour Conditions

Through coordination with the Town of Zebulon (Town) and the North Carolina Department of Transportation
(NCDOT), existing peak hour traffic volumes were determined based on previous and current traffic studies
conducted within the study area. The counts from the Weaver’s Pond Development were conducted by Ramey
Kemp & Associates, Inc. in August of 2017 and projected to the year 2019 for the existing (2019) volumes for
the following intersections:

e Zebulon Road (NC 96) and Pippin Road
e Pippin Road and Pearces Road

260



Weaver’s Ridge — Zebulon, North Carolina Page 2 of 10

Existing peak hour traffic volumes were determined based on traffic counts conducted at the study intersections
listed below, in April of 2019 by Ramey Kemp & Associates, Inc. during a typical weekday AM (7:00 AM —
9:00 AM) and PM (4:00 PM — 6:00 PM) peak periods:

e Zebulon Road (NC 96) and Glory Road

The volumes conducted in 2017 were grown to the year 2019 using an annual 3% growth rate and then the
volumes were balanced along Zebulon Road (NC 96) to account for any variance associated with the different
count dates. Volumes were not balanced along Pippin Road due to the reasonable imbalance in comparison to
the land uses between the intersections along Pippin Road. Refer to Figure 4 for existing weekday AM and PM
peak hour traffic volumes. A copy of the count data is attached to this report. Through coordination with the
Town and the NCDOT, it was determined that an annual growth rate of 3% would be used to generate projected
traffic volumes. Refer to Figure 5 for projected (2025) traffic. It should be noted that the balanced existing
(2019) traffic is not re-balanced after the growth rate is applied for the projected (2025) traffic volumes, which
can result in minor (1 vehicle) imbalances due to rounding.

Adjacent Developments

Through coordination with the Town, the following residential developments were identified to be included as
an adjacent development in this study:

e Weaver’s Pond
e Taryn Lake & Taryn Creek

Adjacent development trips are shown in Figure 6. Refer to the appendix in the attachments for the adjacent
development information.

Background (2025) Peak Hour Conditions

Background traffic is comprised of existing traffic growth within the study area and additional traffic created as
a result of adjacent approved developments. The background (2025) traffic volumes were determined by
projecting the existing (2019) peak hour traffic to the year 2025 and adding the adjacent development trips.
Refer to Figure 7 for background (2025) peak hour traffic.

Future Roadwayv Improvements

The Weaver’s Pond development has committed to improvements at the intersection of Zebulon Road (NC 96)
and Pippin Road. The improvements are expected to consist of a northbound right-turn lane with at least 100
feet of storage and appropriate decel and taper, a southbound left-turn lane with at least 150 feet of storage and
appropriate decel and taper, and signalization of the intersection.

Trip Generation

The proposed development is assumed to consist of 124 townhomes and 58 single-family homes. Average
weekday daily, AM peak hour, and PM peak hour trips for the proposed development were estimated using
methodology contained within the ITE Trip Generation Manual, 10™ Edition. Refer to Table 1 for a detailed
breakdown of the proposed site trip generation.

261



Weaver’s Ridge — Zebulon, North Carolina Page 3 of 10

Table 1: Trip Generation Summary

Daily AM Peak Hour | PM Peak Hour

Lo e Intensity | Traffic Trips (vph) Trips (vph)
(ITE Code)
(vpd) Enter Exit | Enter | Exit
Single-Family Detached Housing 58 units 630 11 35 38 2
(210)
Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise)
(Townhomes) 124 units 900 14 45 45 27
(220)
Total Trips 1,530 25 80 83 49

It is estimated that the proposed development will generate approximately 1,530 total site trips on the roadway
network during a typical 24-hour weekday period. Of the daily traffic volume, it is anticipated that 105 trips (25
entering and 80 exiting) will occur during the weekday AM peak hour and 132 trips (83 entering and 49 exiting)
will occur during the weekday PM peak hour.

Site Trip Distribution and Assignment

Trip distribution percentages used in assigning site traffic for this development were estimated based on a
combination of existing traffic patterns, population centers adjacent to the study area, and engineering
judgment. All trip distributions were approved by the Town and NCDOT during the scoping process. It is
estimated that trips will be regionally distributed as follows:

20% to/from the north via Pearces Road

5% to/from the south via Pearces Road

50% to/from the south via Zebulon Road (NC 96)
25% to/from the north via Zebulon Road (NC 96)

It should be noted that based on engineering judgement it was determined that 100% of site trips will exit the
site using the full movement site driveway located along Zebulon Road (NC 96). The site trip distribution is
shown in Figure 8. Refer to Figure 9 for the site trip assignment.

It is not expected that the traffic from the proposed development will utilize the Weaver’s Pond access;
however, it is expected that a portion of the Weaver’s Pond development will utilize the new site drive along
Zebulon Road (NC 96). Based on coordination with the NCDOT and Town, Phases 3A and 5 of the Weaver’s
Pond Master Plan are proposed to be rerouted from the Weaver’s Pond access on Pippin Road to the new
Zebulon Road (NC 96) site drive aligned with Glory Road. Phases 3A and 5 include 137 homes combined, or
approximately 19% of the total homes in the Weaver’s Pond development. 19% of the Weaver’s Pond site trips
were rerouted from Pippin Road to the proposed site drive. Figure 10 illustrates the anticipated rerouted
Weaver’s Pond development site trips through the proposed Weaver’s Ridge site.

262



Weaver’s Ridge — Zebulon, North Carolina Page 4 of 10

Combined (2025) Peak Hour Conditions

To estimate traffic conditions with the site fully built-out, the total site trips were added to the background
(2025) traffic volumes to determine the combined (2025) traffic volumes. Refer to Figure 11 for an illustration
of the combined (2025) peak hour traffic volumes with the proposed site fully developed.

Capacity Analysis

The existing (2019), background (2025), and combined (2025) weekday AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes
were analyzed to determine the current levels of service at the study intersections under existing roadway
conditions. The results of the analysis are presented in the following section of this report.

263



Weaver’s Ridge — Zebulon, North Carolina Page 5 of 10

Zebulon Road (NC 96) and Pippin Road

The existing intersection of Zebulon Road (NC 96) and Pippin Road was analyzed under existing (2019),
background (2025), and combined (2025) traffic conditions with the lane configurations and traffic control
shown in Table 2. It should be noted that this intersection was analyzed as a signalized intersection for the
background (2025) and combined (2025) scenarios. Refer to Table 2 for a summary of the analysis results. The
Synchro capacity analysis reports are included in the attached appendix.

Table 2: Analysis Summary of Zebulon Road (NC 96) and Pippin Road

1; WEEKDAY AM WEEKDAY PM
p PEAK HOUR PEAK HOUR
ANALYSIS R LANE LEVEL OF SERVICE LEVEL OF SERVICE
SCENARIO (0] CONFIGURATIONS
A Approach Overall Approach Overall
C PP (seconds) pp (seconds)
H
. WB 1 LT-RT C? D?
o T B 1 I 1 S I N A RV
SB 1 LT-TH Al Al
Background (2025) | wB 1 LT-RT C C D C
Conditions - NB 1 TH, 1 RT C C
Signalized SB | LT, ITH B (22) C (23)
Combined (2025) WB 1 LT-RT C C D C
Conditions - NB 1 TH, 1 RT C C
Signalized SB | LT, ITH B (21 C (26)

Improvements by Weaver’s Pond shown underlined.
1. Level of service for major-street left-turn movement.
2. Level of service for minor-street approach.

Capacity analysis of existing (2019) traffic conditions indicates the minor-street approach at Zebulon Road (NC
96) and Pippin Road operates at LOS C during the weekday AM peak hour and LOS D during the weekday PM
peak hour. The Weaver’s Pond development is committed to constructing a northbound right-turn lane, a
southbound left-turn lane and installing a signal at this intersection. These improvements were analyzed under
future (2025) traffic conditions. Because signal plans and timings have not yet been finalized, the signal timings
were optimized under background (2025) traffic conditions and the same timings were used to analyze
combined (2025) traffic conditions. Under background (2025) and combined (2025) traffic conditions, the
intersection is expected to operate at an overall LOS C or better.

It is anticipated that the improvements associated with the Weaver’s Pond development will accommodate the
proposed site traffic at this intersection.

264



Weaver’s Ridge — Zebulon, North Carolina Page 6 of 10

Pippin Road and Pearces Road

The existing unsignalized intersection of Pippin Road and Pearces Road was analyzed under existing (2019),
background (2025), and combined (2025) traffic conditions with the lane configurations and traffic control
shown in Table 3. Refer to Table 3 for a summary of the analysis results. The Synchro capacity analysis reports
are included in the attached appendix.

Table 3: Analysis Summary of Pippin Road and Pearces Road

A WEEKDAY AM WEEKDAY PM
g PEAK HOUR PEAK HOUR
ANALYSIS R LANE LEVEL OF SERVICE LEVEL OF SERVICE
SCENARIO (0) CONFIGURATIONS
A Overall Overall
C Approach (seconds) Approach (seconds)
H
EB 1 LT-TH-RT B2 B?
Existing (2019) WB 1 LT-TH-RT B? B?
Conditions NB 1 LT-TH-RT Al N/A Al N/A
SB 1 LT-TH-RT Al Al
EB 1 LT-TH-RT C? C?
Background (2025) | WB 1 LT-TH-RT C? C?
Conditions NB 1 LT-TH-RT Al N/A Al N/A
SB 1 LT-TH-RT Al Al
EB 1 LT-TH-RT C? C?
Combined (2025) WB 1 LT-TH-RT C? C?
Conditions NB 1 LT-TH-RT Al N/A Al N/A
SB 1 LT-TH-RT Al Al

1. Level of service for major-street left-turn movement.
2. Level of service for minor-street approach.

Capacity analysis of existing (2019), background (2025), and combined (2025) traffic conditions indicates the
minor-street approaches and major-street left-turn movements at Pippin Road and Pearces Road are expected to
operate at LOS C or better during both the weekday AM and PM peak hours.

265



Weaver’s Ridge — Zebulon, North Carolina Page 7 of 10

Zebulon Road (NC 96) and Glory Road/Site Drive

The existing unsignalized intersection of Zebulon Road and Glory Road/Site Drive was analyzed under existing
(2019), background (2025), and combined (2025) traffic conditions with the lane configurations and traffic
control shown in Table 4. Refer to Table 4 for a summary of the analysis results. The Synchro capacity analysis
reports are included in the attached appendix.

Table 4: Analysis Summary of Zebulon Road (NC 96) and Glory Road/Site Drive

A WEEKDAY AM WEEKDAY PM
g PEAK HOUR PEAK HOUR
ANALYSIS R LANE LEVEL OF SERVICE LEVEL OF SERVICE
SCENARIO (0} CONFIGURATIONS
A Overall Overall
C Approach (seconds) Approach (seconds)
H
. EB 1 LT-RT C? B2
EXéStElcﬁ t(izgw) NB | LT-TH Al N/A Al N/A
onditions SB | TH-RT - -
EB 1 LT-RT C? C?
BaCkCg;ggﬁ‘ilogsozs) NB 1 LT-TH Al N/A Al N/A
SB 1 TH-RT -- -
EB 1 LT-TH-RT D2 E?
Combined (2025) | WB 1LT,1 TH-RT F? F?
Conditions NB 1 LT-TH, 1 RT Al N/A Al N/A
SB 1 LT-TH-RT Al Al
Combined (2025) | EB | LT-THRT D D
Conditions — WB 1LT,1 TH-RT D B D B
Signalized to meet | NB 1 LT-TH, 1 RT B (17) A (11)
UDO SB 1 LT, 1 TH-RT B B

Improvements by Developer shown in bold.
1. Level of service for major-street left-turn movement.
2. Level of service for minor-street approach.

Capacity analysis of existing (2019) and background (2025) traffic conditions indicates the minor-street
approach and major-street left-turn movement at Pippin Road and Glory Road are expected to operate at LOS C
or better during both the weekday AM and PM peak hours. Under combined (2025) traffic conditions, the
proposed development is expected to add a 4™ leg to the intersection. With the addition of the 4™ leg, the
eastbound minor-street approach is expected to operate at LOS D during the weekday AM peak hour and LOS
E during the weekday PM peak hour, and the new westbound approach is expected to operate at LOS F during
both the weekday AM and PM peak hours.

Right and left-turn lanes were analyzed and recommended per the NCDOT Policy on Street and Driveway
Access to North Carolina Highways (Driveway Manual). A southbound left-turn lane with 50 feet of storage
and appropriate decel and taper is recommended, as well as a northbound right-turn lane with 100 feet of
storage and appropriate decel and taper.

266



Weaver’s Ridge — Zebulon, North Carolina Page 8 of 10

Per the Town’s UDQO, if a site access operates at LOS D or worse, additional site access points may need to be
considered. It should be noted that the proposed Weaver’s Ridge development is expected to have connectivity
to the Weaver’s Pond development, which has two site access points along Pippin Road. Drivers will likely use
an alternative site access if they experience significant delay at the more convenient site access.

In order to meet the Town’s UDO, improvements must be identified to improve the intersection to an acceptable
level-of-service. Signalization and/or additional capacity along Zebulon Road (NC 96) would be necessary for
significant improvement at the intersection. A traffic signal was considered at this intersection, and combined
(2025) traffic volumes were analyzed utilizing the criteria contained in the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control
Devices (MUTCD). A traffic signal was warranted during both weekday peak hours under combined (2025)
traffic conditions; however, due to the high volume of residential development, which typically generates trips
during two peak hours each day, it is anticipated that a 4- or 8-hour signal warrant would not be met.

A traffic signal was analyzed at the intersection to meet the Town’s UDO requirements. With a signal, the
intersection is expected to operate at LOS B with all approaches operating at LOS D or better.

267



Weaver’s Ridge — Zebulon, North Carolina Page 9 of 10

Conclusions

This traffic study was conducted to determine the potential traffic impacts for the proposed Weaver’s Ridge
residential development located east of Zebulon Road (NC 96) across from Glory Road in Zebulon, North
Carolina.

The proposed residential development is assumed to consist of 124 townhomes and 58 single-family homes.
The study analyzes traffic conditions during the weekday AM and PM peak hours for the following scenarios:

e Existing (2019) Traffic Conditions

e Background (2025) Traffic Conditions

e Combined (2025) Traffic Conditions

e Combined (2025) Traffic Conditions with Improvements

It is estimated that the proposed development will generate approximately 1,530 total site trips on the roadway
network during a typical 24-hour weekday period. Of the daily traffic volume, it is anticipated that 105 trips (25
entering and 80 exiting) will occur during the weekday AM peak hour and 132 trips (83 entering and 49 exiting)
will occur during the weekday PM peak hour.

Recommendations

Based on the findings of this study, specific geometric improvements have been identified and are
recommended to accommodate future traffic conditions. See a more detailed description of the recommended
improvements below. Refer to Figure 12 for an illustration of the recommended lane configuration for the
proposed development.

Committed Improvements by Weaver’s Pond

Zebulon Road (NC 96) and Pippin Road
e Provide designated northbound right-turn lane with at least 100 feet of storage and appropriate decel
and taper.
e Provide designated southbound left-turn lane with at least 150 feet of storage and appropriate decel
and taper.
o Install traffic signal at intersection when warranted.

Recommended Improvements by Developer

Zebulon Road (NC 96) and Glory Road / Site Drive 1

e Provide site access via westbound approach with one ingress lane and two egress lanes striped as one
left-turn lane and one shared through/right-turn lane.

e Provide designated northbound right-turn lane with at least 100 feet of storage and appropriate decel
and taper.

e Provide designated southbound left-turn lane with at least 50 feet of storage and appropriate decel
and taper.

e Monitor intersection for signalization.

268



269



)

SN

Nl
XLV HILSYW

VNITOYVI HIHON ALNNROI TNV WOTNGTZ
OdOL AVINIT78d - T90/H S.HINVIM

v£81-O=NT89

%
H
B
2

g
4
P
H
g

ONRIIINIDN3A

NOD"INIZINIINISHOOLS MM

98le-6sy (757) INOHd

20LL X08 ‘0°d

J

a.12//s107 00°0 - SFYIY Sv'LF
a12y//s)07 L9°G - SFYIV 95 VE+

$1071v101 - 281

( ©B%juo.] 1077 OPIM .05 WNWIU )
( 1 BS 0059 wnuwiuyy )

G3IHIVL3A - ATINV T19NIS - 85
GIHIVLLY - STWOHMOL - v2}

3IVdS N3d0 F18VISN Y L'L+
JIVdS N3d0 TV101 3V Z'LL+

0L-Y 0} ONINOZ3Y SG33N -ILON

NOLLYWHISINOD HO- 3avIn

agNvw3 IAVH IM U408 HAIN,

j
1a 4,

I

|

LI = Yorqies reey A
59 - yoeqies epis |
102 = Yyorqes juoid
65 = YIPIM 10T WnuuN

oe—1]

1l
il

008 0sZ 00T
oL,

001
B

0

e —

270

a0 os0au M
RELNID TIVO 3N
VNIMO¥YD HLEON

%m

TV
‘910 NOA 340438




LEGEND

(O Unsignalized Intersection
Signalized Intersection

X/Y =» Weekday AM / PM Peak Hour
Adjacent Development Trips

Glory ¢ 'F)
¥
8
2 g 23
S i = < s
158/105
")[8: Pippin (J’L)rf
9| Road 2 -
63/41
te a2l ate
Q ﬁ “
wn
X Sz
Q
% EJ &
. Peak Hour Adjacent
Weaver's Ridge Development Trips
Zebulon, NC
Scale: Not to Scale | Figure 6

271




LEGEND
Unsignalized Intersection

Signalized Intersection

@ce] O

=>  Existing Lane
Recommended Improvements by r—-——-—=-=-= = 1
—
Developer I |
l |
I |
* Monitor for Signalization - - -1 I
= - I Weaver's
e 1 | I
4% a : 1" Pond
Glory Y Site + STTE 1! |
Road _$’U 4 Drive In il I
1
.r) 1 : | I
S | '
— L ] I I
L —_ o
} Pippin ‘? A é.
Road _£) g 4')
3 Slg
©) =i
Z L[
) Recommended Lane
Weaver's Ridge Configuration
Zebulon, NC

Scale: Not to Scale

Figure 12

272




Appendix E:

Intersection Spreadsheets

273



INTERSECTION VOLUME DEVELOPMENT
INTERSECTION #1
NC 96 at -/Pearces Road

AM PEAK HOUR

= Pearces Road NC 96 NC 96
Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right
Observed 2025 Traffic Volumes 0 0 0 0 0 413 0 46 0 45 589 0 0 0 690 228
Count Balancing
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0
Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 2 0 2 49 0 0 0 70 20
Heavy Vehicle % 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 3% 2% 4% 2% 4% 8% 2% 2% 2% 10% 9%
Peak Hour Factor 0.96 0.96 0.96 0.96
Adjustment Factor 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
[Adjusted 2025 Volumes 0 0 0 0 0 413 0 46 0 45 589 0 0 0 690 228
Annual Growth Rate 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Growth Factor 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05
Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 21 0 2 0 2 30 0 0 0 35 12
New Road Adjustment
7-Eleven 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 8 8
Clifton Grove (Pearces Road Residential) 0 0 0 0 0 46 0 24 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 10
Zebulon Domino's 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Weaver's Ridge 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 40 0 0 0 13 1
Total Approved Development Trips 0 0 0 0 0 58 0 24 0 10 48 0 0 0 21 19
2027 No-Build Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 492 0 72 0 57 667 0 0 0 746 259
2027 No-Build Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0
Trip Distribution IN 30% 20% 30%
Trip Distribution OUT (50%)
Balancing Adjustment
Retail Trips 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 2
Total Primary Site Trips 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 2
Pass-By Distribution REDUCTION -30% -10%
Pass-By Distribution IN 30% 10%
Pass-By Distribution OUT (30%)
Balancing Adjustment -1
Pass-By Trips 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 7 -7 0 0 0 -2 2
[Total Vehicular Project Trips 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 9 -7 0 0 0 0 4
2027 Build Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 503 0 72 0 66 660 0 0 0 746 263
2027 Build Heavy Vehicle % 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 3% 2% 3% 2% 3% 8% 2% 2% 2% 10% 8%
2027 Build Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0

274




INTERSECTION VOLUME DEVELOPMENT
INTERSECTION #1
NC 96 at -/Pearces Road

PM PEAK HOUR

= Pearces Road NC 96 NC 96
Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right
Observed 2025 Traffic Volumes 0 0 0 0 0 278 0 30 0 54 683 0 0 0 687 415
Count Balancing
Pedestrians 0 0 0
Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0
Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 12 0 0 0 1 35 0 0 0 26 13
Heavy Vehicle % 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 4% 2% 2% 2% 2% 5% 2% 2% 2% 4% 3%
Peak Hour Factor 0.98 0.98 0.98 0.98
Adjustment Factor 1 1] 1] 1 1] 1] 1] 1 1] 1] 1] 1 1 1] 1 1
Adjusted 2025 Volumes o | [ 0o [ o o [ 2718 | o | 30 o [ s | e3 | o 0 o | 687 415
Annual Growth Rate 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Growth Factor 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05
Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 2 0 3 35 0 0 0 35 21
New Road Adjustment
7-Eleven 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 8 8
Clifton Grove (Pearces Road Residential) 0 0 0 0 0 22 0 18 0 27 0 0 0 0 0 49
Zebulon Domino's 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 5 3
Weaver's Ridge 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 0 41 4
Total Approved Development Trips 0 0 0 0 0 35 0 18 0 27 38 0 0 0 54 64
2027 No-Build Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 327 0 50 0 84 756 0 0 0 776 500
2027 No-Build Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0
Trip Distribution IN 30% 20% 30%
Trip Distribution OUT (50%)
Balancing Adjustment
Retail Trips 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 2
Total Primary Site Trips 0o 0o | 0o 0o ] 0 4 0 o ] 0 2 0 0 0 0 2 2
Pass-By Distribution REDUCTION -30% -10%
Pass-By Distribution IN 30% 10%
Pass-By Distribution OUT (30%)
Balancing Adjustment
Pass-By Trips 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 7 -7 0 0 0 -2 2
Total Vehicular Project Trips 0o 0o 0o 0o ] o [ 11 ] 0o ] o ] 0o ] 9 [ 7 0 0 0 [ 0 4
2027 Build Traffic 0o | 0o | 0o | 0 o [ 338 | o [ 50 o [ 93 [ 789 ] 0 0 o [ 776 504
2027 Build Heavy Vehicle % 2% | 2% | 2% | 2% 2% | 4% | 2% | 2% 2% | 2% | 5% | 2% 2% 2% | 4% 3%
2027 Build Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0

275




INTERSECTION VOLUME DEVELOPMENT
INTERSECTION #2
NC 96 at -/Site Driveway 1

AM PEAK HOUR

- Site Driveway 1 NC 96 NC 96
Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right
Observed 2025 Traffic Volumes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 57 0 0 647 0 0 0 642 25
Count Balancing
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0
Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 52 0 0 0 37 4
Heavy Vehicle % 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 11% 2% 2% 8% 2% 2% 2% 6% 16%
Peak Hour Factor 0.96 0.96 0.96 0.96
Adjustment Factor 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
[Adjusted 2025 Volumes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 57 0 0 647 0 0 0 642 25
Annual Growth Rate 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Growth Factor 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05
Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 33 0 0 0 33 1
New Road Adjustment
7-Eleven 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 8 0
Clifton Grove (Pearces Road Residential) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 24 0
Zebulon Domino's 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Weaver's Ridge 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40 0 0 0 13 0
Total Approved Development Trips 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 58 0 0 0 45 0
2027 No-Build Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 60 0 0 738 0 0 0 720 26
2027 No-Build Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0
Trip Distribution IN 30% 20%
Trip Distribution OUT (30%)
Balancing Adjustment
Retail Trips 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
Total Primary Site Trips 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
Pass-By Distribution REDUCTION -35%
Pass-By Distribution IN 25%
Pass-By Distribution OUT (35%)
Balancing Adjustment
Pass-By Trips 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 -8 6
[Total Vehicular Project Trips 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 0 0 2 0 0 0 -8 8
2027 Build Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 71 0 0 740 0 0 0 712 34
2027 Build Heavy Vehicle % 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 9% 2% 2% 7% 2% 2% 2% 5% 12%
2027 Build Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0

276




INTERSECTION VOLUME DEVELOPMENT
INTERSECTION #2
NC 96 at -/Site Driveway 1

PM PEAK HOUR

= Site Driveway 1 NC 96 NC 96
Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right
Observed 2025 Traffic Volumes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 92 0 0 668 0 0 0 661 60
Count Balancing
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0
Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 36 0 0 0 30 1
Heavy Vehicle % 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 3% 2% 2% 5% 2% 2% 2% 5% 2%
Peak Hour Factor 0.94 0.94 0.94 0.94
Adjustment Factor 1 1] 1] 1 1] 1] 1] 1 1] 1] 1] 1] 1] 1 1
Adjusted 2025 Volumes o | [ 0o [ o o [ o [ o | 9 o [ o | e8 | o o [ o | el 60
Annual Growth Rate 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Growth Factor 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05
Background Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 34 0 0 0 33 3
New Road Adjustment
7-Eleven 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 8 0
Clifton Grove (Pearces Road Residential) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 27 0 0 0 18 0
Zebulon Domino's 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 5 0
Weaver's Ridge 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25 0 0 0 41 0
Total Approved Development Trips 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 65 0 0 0 72 0
2027 No-Build Traffic 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 97 0 0 767 0 0 0 766 63
2027 No-Build Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0
Trip Distribution IN 30% 20%
Trip Distribution OUT (30%)
Balancing Adjustment
Retail Trips 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2
Total Primary Site Trips 0o 0o | 0o 0o ] 0 0 0 2] 0 0 2 o ] 0 0 0 2
Pass-By Distribution REDUCTION -35%
Pass-By Distribution IN 25%
Pass-By Distribution OUT (35%)
Balancing Adjustment
Pass-By Trips 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 -8 6
Total Vehicular Project Trips 0o 0o 0o 0o ] 0o ] 0 [ o [ 10 ] 0o ] 0 [ 2 [ o ] 0o ] 0 [ 8 8
2027 Build Traffic 0o | 0o | 0o | 0 0o | 0o o [ 107 0o | o [ 769 ] 0 0o o [ 758 7
2027 Build Heavy Vehicle % 2% | 2% | 2% | 2% 2% | 2% | 2% | 3% 2% | 2% | 5% | 2% 2% | 2% | 4% 2%
2027 Build Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0

277




INTERSECTION VOLUME DEVELOPMENT
INTERSECTION #3
Pearces Road at Site Driveway 2/-

AM PEAK HOUR

Pearces Road Pearces Road Site Driveway 2 -
Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right
Observed 2025 Traffic Volumes 0 76 200 0 0 0 345 66 0 25 0 86 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0
Heavy Vehicles 0 3 7 0 0 0 5 4 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0
Heavy Vehicle % 2% 4% 4% 2% 2% 2% 2% 6% 2% 2% 2% 6% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Peak Hour Factor 0.92 0.92 0.92 0.92
Adjustment Factor 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
[Adjusted 2025 Volumes 0 76 200 0 0 0 345 66 0 25 0 86 0 0 0 0
Annual Growth Rate 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Growth Factor 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05
Background Growth 0 4 10 0 0 0 17 3 0 1 0 4 0 0 0 0
New Road Adjustment
7-Eleven 0 0 8 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Clifton Grove (Pearces Road Residential) 0 0 20 0 0 0 70 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Zebulon Domino's 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Weaver's Ridge 0 0 1 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Approved Development Trips 0 0 29 0 0 0 82 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Traffic 0 80 239 0 0 0 444 69 0 26 0 90 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0
Trip Distribution IN 60% 20%
Trip Distribution OUT (20%) (50%)
Balancing Adjustment -1
Retail Trips 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 4 0 0 0 0
Total Primary Site Trips 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 4 0 0 0 0
Pass-By Distribution REDUCTION -15% -20%
Pass-By Distribution IN 55% 20%
Pass-By Distribution OUT (15%) (50%)
Balancing Adjustment -1
Pass-By Trips 0 13 -4 0 0 0 -5 5 0 4 0 12 0 0 0 0
[Total Vehicular Project Trips 0 17 -4 0 0 0 -5 7 0 6 0 16 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Traffic 0 97 235 0 0 0 439 76 0 32 0 106 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Heavy Vehicle % 2% 3% 3% 2% 2% 2% 2% 6% 2% 2% 2% 5% 2% 2% 2% 2%
2027 Build Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0

278




INTERSECTION VOLUME DEVELOPMENT
INTERSECTION #3
Pearces Road at Site Driveway 2/-

PM PEAK HOUR

Pearces Road Pearces Road Site Driveway 2 -
Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right U-Turn Left Through Right
Observed 2025 Traffic Volumes 0 128 342 0 0 0 230 74 0 61 0 117 0 0 0 0
Count Balancing
Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0
Heavy Vehicles 0 4 7 0 0 0 4 2 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0
Heavy Vehicle % 2% 3% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 3% 2% 2% 2% 4% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Peak Hour Factor 0.97 0.97 0.97 0.97
Adjustment Factor 1] 1] 1] 1] 1] 1] 1 1 1] 1 1 1 1] 1 1
Adjusted 2025 Volumes o [ 128 | 342 | o o [ o | 230 | 7 0 61 | 0 117 0 o [ o | o
Annual Growth Rate 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Growth Factor 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05
Background Growth 0 6 17 0 0 0 12 4 0 3 0 6 0 0 0 0
New Road Adjustment
7-Eleven 0 0 8 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Clifton Grove (Pearces Road Residential) 0 0 76 0 0 0 40 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Zebulon Domino's 0 0 3 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Weaver's Ridge 0 0 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Approved Development Trips 0 0 91 0 0 0 53 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Traffic 0 134 450 0 0 0 295 78 0 64 0 123 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 No-Build Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0
Trip Distribution IN 60% 20%
Trip Distribution OUT (20%) (50%)
Balancing Adjustment -1
Retail Trips 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 4 0 0 0 0
Total Primary Site Trips 0 4 0 o ] 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 4 0 0o | 0o 0
Pass-By Distribution REDUCTION -20% -15%
Pass-By Distribution IN 60% 15%
Pass-By Distribution OUT (20%) (40%)
Balancing Adjustment 1
Pass-By Trips 0 14 -5 0 0 0 -3 3 0 5 0 10 0 0 0 0
Total Vehicular Project Trips o [ 18 [ 5 ] o ] 0o ] 0 [ 3 5 0 7 [ 0 14 0 0o 0o 0
2027 Build Traffic o [ 152 [ a4 ] 0 0o | o [ 202 [ 8 0 71 ] 0 137 0 0o | 0o | 0
2027 Build Heavy Vehicle % 2% | 3% | 2% | 2% 2% | 2% | 2% | 3% 2% 2% | 2% 4% 2% 2% | 2% | 2%
2027 Build Pedestrians 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Conflicting Pedestrians 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Bicycles 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2027 Build Conflicting Bicycles 0 0 0 0

279




Appendix F:
Synchro Output: Existing (2025)

280



Zebulon Sheetz

Existing (2025) AM

1: NC 96 & Pearces Road 05/20/2025
P = AN

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR

Lane Configurations % 4 4 i i !

Traffic Volume (vph) 45 589 690 228 413 46

Future Volume (vph) 45 589 690 228 413 46

Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900

Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12

Grade (%) 1% 0% 1%

Storage Length (ft) 185 0 100 0

Storage Lanes 1 1 1 1

Taper Length (ft) 50 100

Satd. Flow (prot) 1727 1750 1727 1482 1744 1545

Flt Permitted 0.249 0.950

Satd. Flow (perm) 453 1750 1727 1482 1744 1545

Right Turn on Red No No

Satd. Flow (RTOR)

Link Speed (mph) 35 35 35

Link Distance (ft) 340 452 446

Travel Time (s) 6.6 8.8 8.7

Confl. Peds. (#/hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 096 09 09 09 096 0.96

Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%

Heavy Vehicles (%) 4% 8%  10% 9% 3% 4%

Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Parking (#/hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 47 614 719 238 430 48

Turn Type Perm NA NA pm+ov Prot Prot

Protected Phases 2 6 4 4 4

Permitted Phases 2 6

Detector Phase 2 2 6 4 4 4

Switch Phase

Minimum Initial (s) 100 100 100 7.0 7.0 7.0

Minimum Split (s) 180 180 170 150 150 150

Total Split (s) 570 570 570 430 430 430

Total Split (%) 57.0% 57.0% 57.0% 43.0% 43.0% 43.0%

Yellow Time (S) 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.0 3.0 3.0

All-Red Time (s) 2.3 2.3 1.8 3.3 3.3 3.3

Lost Time Adjust (s) -1.1 -1.1 -0.6 -1.3 -1.3 -1.3

Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0

Lead/Lag

Lead-Lag Optimize?

Recall Mode C-Max C-Max C-Max None None None

Act Effct Green (s) 59.7 59.7 59.7 1000 303 303

Actuated g/C Ratio 060 060 060 100 030 0.30

v/c Ratio 017 059 070 016 081 010

Control Delay (s/veh) 134 169 202 02 444 231

Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Delay (s/veh) 134 169 202 02 444 231

KARAL_TPTO\ Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2025).syn

Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

281



Zebulon Sheetz

Existing (2025) AM

1: NC 96 & Pearces Road 05/20/2025
P = AN

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR

LOS B B C A D C

Approach Delay (s/veh) 16.6  15.3 42.3

Approach LOS B B D

Queue Length 50th (ft) 13 229 298 0 251 22

Queue Length 95th (ft) 39 404 531 0 331 43

Internal Link Dist (ft) 260 372 366

Turn Bay Length (ft) 185 100

Base Capacity (vph) 270 1044 1030 1478 662 587

Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0

Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0

Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reduced v/c Ratio 017 059 070 016 065 0.08

Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Cycle Length: 100

Actuated Cycle Length: 100

Offset: 74 (74%), Referenced to phase 2:EBTL and 6:WBT, Start of Green

Natural Cycle: 60

Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.81

Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 21.8 Intersection LOS: C

Intersection Capacity Utilization 68.6% ICU Level of Service C

Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:  1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

KARAL_TPTO\ Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2025).syn

Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

282



Zebulon Sheetz

Existing (2025) AM

2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1 05/20/2025
P = AN

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR

Lane Configurations 4 4 i !

Traffic Volume (vph) 0 647 642 25 0 57

Future Volume (vph) 0 647 642 25 0 57

Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900

Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12

Grade (%) 1% 2% 0%

Storage Length (ft) 0 125 0 0

Storage Lanes 0 1 0 1

Taper Length (ft) 25 25

Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1750 1775 1378 0 1481

Flt Permitted

Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1750 1775 1378 0 1481

Link Speed (mph) 35 35 15

Link Distance (ft) 421 340 208

Travel Time (s) 8.2 6.6 95

Confl. Peds. (#/hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 096 09 09 09 096 0.96

Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%

Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 8% 6%  16% 2%  11%

Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Parking (#/hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 674 669 26 0 59

Sign Control Free  Free Stop

Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Control Type: Unsignalized

Intersection Capacity Utilization 44.0% ICU Level of Service A

Analysis Period (min) 15

KARAL_TPTO\ Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2025).syn

Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

283



Zebulon Sheetz Existing (2025) AM

2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1 05/20/2025
Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.6
Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations 4 4+ F o
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 647 642 25 0 57
Future Vol, veh/h 0 647 642 25 0 57
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - 125 - 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 1 2 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor % 9% 9% 9% 96 96
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 8 6 16 2 11
Mvmt Flow 0 674 669 26 0 59
Major/Minor Majorl Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All - 0 - 0 - 669
Stage 1 - - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy - - - - - 631

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - - -

Follow-up Hdwy - - - - -

Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - - - 0 442
Stage 1 0 - - - 0 -
Stage 2 0 - - - 0 -

Platoon blocked, % - - -

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - - - 442

Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - -
Stage 1 - - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - - -

Approach EB WB SB

HCM Control Delay, siv.=~ 0 0 144

HCM LOS B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBT WBT WBR SBLnl

Capacity (veh/h) - - - 442

HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - - 0.134

HCM Control Delay (s/veh) - - - 144

HCM Lane LOS - - - B

HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) - - - 05

KARAL_TPTO\ Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

284



Zebulon Sheetz

Existing (2025) AM

3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2 05/20/2025
2 N

Lane Group EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations W % 4 T

Traffic Volume (vph) 25 86 76 200 345 66

Future Volume (vph) 25 86 76 200 345 66

Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900

Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12

Grade (%) 0% 0% 1%

Storage Length (ft) 0 0 50 0

Storage Lanes 1 0 1 0

Taper Length (ft) 25 100

Satd. Flow (prot) 1600 0 1736 1827 1801 0

Flt Permitted 0.989 0.950

Satd. Flow (perm) 1600 0 1736 1827 1801 0

Link Speed (mph) 15 35 35

Link Distance (ft) 230 446 197

Travel Time () 10.5 8.7 3.8

Confl. Peds. (#/hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 092 09 09 092 092 092

Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%

Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 6% 4% 4% 2% 6%

Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Parking (#/hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 120 0 83 217 447 0

Sign Control Stop Free  Free

Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Control Type: Unsignalized

Intersection Capacity Utilization 43.1% ICU Level of Service A

Analysis Period (min) 15

KARAL_TPTO\ Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2025).syn

Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

285



Zebulon Sheetz Existing (2025) AM

3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2 05/20/2025
Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.7
Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations W LI I
Traffic Vol, veh/h 25 8 76 200 345 66
Future Vol, veh/h 25 8 76 200 345 66
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - 50 - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 1 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 6 4 4 2 6
Mvmt Flow 27 93 83 217 375 72
Major/Minor Minor2 Majorl Major2
Conflicting Flow All 794 411 447 0 - 0
Stage 1 411 - - - - -
Stage 2 383 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.26 4.14 - - -

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3518 3.354 2.236 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 357 632 1103 - - -

Stage 1 669 - - - - -

Stage 2 689 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 330 632 1103 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 330 - - - - -

Stage 1 619 - - - - -
Stage 2 689 - - - - -
Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, siv 13.9 2.3 0
HCM LOS B
Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBTEBLnl SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1103 - 524 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.075 - 023 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 8.5 - 139 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.2 - 09 - -

KARAL_TPTO\ Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

286



Zebulon Sheetz

Existing (2025) PM

1: NC 96 & Pearces Road 05/20/2025
P = AN

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR

Lane Configurations % 4 4 i i !

Traffic Volume (vph) 54 683 687 415 278 30

Future Volume (vph) 54 683 687 415 278 30

Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900

Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12

Grade (%) 1% 0% 1%

Storage Length (ft) 185 0 100 0

Storage Lanes 1 1 1 1

Taper Length (ft) 50 100

Satd. Flow (prot) 1761 1800 1827 1568 1727 1575

Flt Permitted 0.311 0.950

Satd. Flow (perm) 576 1800 1827 1568 1727 1575

Right Turn on Red No No

Satd. Flow (RTOR)

Link Speed (mph) 35 35 35

Link Distance (ft) 366 439 465

Travel Time (s) 7.1 8.6 9.1

Confl. Peds. (#/hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 098 098 098 098 098 098

Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%

Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 5% 4% 3% 4% 2%

Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Parking (#/hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 55 697 701 423 284 31

Turn Type Perm NA NA pm+ov Prot Prot

Protected Phases 2 6 4 4 4

Permitted Phases 2 6

Detector Phase 2 2 6 4 4 4

Switch Phase

Minimum Initial (s) 100 100 100 7.0 7.0 7.0

Minimum Split (s) 180 180 170 150 150 150

Total Split (s) 700 700 700 400 400 400

Total Split (%) 63.6% 63.6% 636% 36.4% 36.4% 36.4%

Yellow Time (S) 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.0 3.0 3.0

All-Red Time (s) 2.3 2.3 1.8 3.3 3.3 3.3

Lost Time Adjust (s) -1.1 -1.1 -0.6 -1.3 -1.3 -1.3

Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0

Lead/Lag

Lead-Lag Optimize?

Recall Mode C-Max C-Max C-Max None None None

Act Effct Green (s) 760 760 760 1100 240 240

Actuated g/C Ratio 069 069 069 100 022 022

v/c Ratio 014 05 05 027 075 0.09

Control Delay (s/veh) 84 119 118 04 524 320

Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total Delay (s/veh) 84 119 118 04 524 320

KARAL_TPTO\ Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2025).syn

Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

287



Zebulon Sheetz

Existing (2025) PM

1: NC 96 & Pearces Road 05/20/2025
P = AN

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR

LOS A B B A D C

Approach Delay (s/veh) 11.6 7.5 50.4

Approach LOS B A D

Queue Length 50th (ft) 12 221 221 0 189 18

Queue Length 95th (ft) 35 407 405 0 258 39

Internal Link Dist (ft) 286 359 385

Turn Bay Length (ft) 185 100

Base Capacity (vph) 397 1242 1261 1561 549 501

Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0

Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0

Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reduced v/c Ratio 014 056 056 027 052 0.06

Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Cycle Length: 110

Actuated Cycle Length: 110

Offset: 50 (45%), Referenced to phase 2:EBTL and 6:WBT, Start of Green

Natural Cycle: 55

Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated

Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.75

Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 15.1 Intersection LOS: B

Intersection Capacity Utilization 68.6% ICU Level of Service C

Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:  1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

KARAL_TPTO\ Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2025).syn

Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

288



Zebulon Sheetz

Existing (2025) PM

2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1 05/20/2025
P = AN

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR

Lane Configurations 4 4 i !

Traffic Volume (vph) 0 668 661 60 0 92

Future Volume (vph) 0 668 661 60 0 92

Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900

Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12

Grade (%) 1% 2% 0%

Storage Length (ft) 0 125 0 0

Storage Lanes 0 1 0 1

Taper Length (ft) 25 25

Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1800 1791 1568 0 1596

Flt Permitted

Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1800 1791 1568 0 1596

Link Speed (mph) 35 35 15

Link Distance (ft) 592 366 225

Travel Time (s) 11.5 7.1 10.2

Confl. Peds. (#/hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 094 09 09 094 094 0%4

Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%

Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 5% 5% 2% 2% 3%

Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Parking (#/hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 711 703 64 0 98

Sign Control Free  Free Stop

Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Control Type: Unsignalized

Intersection Capacity Utilization 47.2% ICU Level of Service A

Analysis Period (min) 15

KARAL_TPTO\ Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2025).syn

Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

289



Zebulon Sheetz Existing (2025) PM

2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1 05/20/2025
Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1
Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations 4 4+ F o
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 668 661 60 0 92
Future Vol, veh/h 0 668 661 60 0 92
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - 125 - 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 1 2 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 94 94 94 94 94 9%
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 5 5 2 2 3
Mvmt Flow 0 711 703 64 0 98
Major/Minor Majorl Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All - 0 - 0 - 703
Stage 1 - - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy - - - - - 623

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - = - -
Follow-up Hdwy - - - - - 3.327

Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - - - 0 436
Stage 1 0 - - - 0 -
Stage 2 0 - - - 0 -

Platoon blocked, % - - -

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - - - 436

Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - - -
Stage 1 - - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - - -

Approach EB WB SB

HCM Control Delay, siv.=~ 0 0 15.6

HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBT WBT WBR SBLnl

Capacity (veh/h) - - - 436

HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - - 0224

HCM Control Delay (s/veh) - - - 156

HCM Lane LOS - - - C

HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) - - - 089

KARAL_TPTO\ Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

290



Zebulon Sheetz

Existing (2025) PM

3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2 05/20/2025
2 N

Lane Group EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations W % 4 T

Traffic Volume (vph) 61 117 128 342 230 74

Future Volume (vph) 61 117 128 342 230 74

Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900

Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12

Grade (%) 0% 0% 1%

Storage Length (ft) 0 0 50 0

Storage Lanes 1 0 1 0

Taper Length (ft) 25 100

Satd. Flow (prot) 1647 0 1752 1863 1788 0

Flt Permitted 0.983 0.950

Satd. Flow (perm) 1647 0 1752 1863 1788 0

Link Speed (mph) 15 35 35

Link Distance (ft) 239 465 197

Travel Time () 10.9 9.1 3.8

Confl. Peds. (#/hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 097 097 097 097 097 097

Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%

Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 4% 3% 2% 2% 3%

Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Parking (#/hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 184 0 132 353 313 0

Sign Control Stop Free  Free

Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Control Type: Unsignalized

Intersection Capacity Utilization 44.3% ICU Level of Service A

Analysis Period (min) 15

KARAL_TPTO\ Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2025).syn

Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

291



Zebulon Sheetz Existing (2025) PM

3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2 05/20/2025
Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 4.3
Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations W LI I
Traffic Vol, veh/h 61 117 128 342 230 74
Future Vol, veh/h 61 117 128 342 230 74
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - 50 - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 1 -
Peak Hour Factor 97 97 97 97 97 97
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 4 3 2 2 3
Mvmt Flow 63 121 132 353 237 76
Major/Minor Minor2 Majorl Major2
Conflicting Flow All 892 275 313 0 - 0
Stage 1 275 - - - - -
Stage 2 617 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.24 4.13 - - -

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 5.42 - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3518 3.336 2.227 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 312 759 1242 - - -

Stage 1 771 - - - - -

Stage 2 538 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 279 759 1242 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 279 - - -

Stage 1 689 - - - - -

Stage 2 538 - - - - -
Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, siv 17.2 2.2 0
HCM LOS C
Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBTEBLnl SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1242 - 477 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.106 - 0.385 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 8.2 - 172 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 04 - 18 - -

KARAL_TPTO\ Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Existing (2025).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

292



Appendix G:
Synchro Output: Background (2027)

293



Zebulon Sheetz Background (2027) AM

1: NC 96 & Pearces Road 05/20/2025
Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations b 4 4 [l % if
Traffic Volume (vph) 57 667 746 259 492 72
Future Volume (vph) 57 667 746 259 492 72
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 1% 0% 1%

Storage Length (ft) 185 0 100 0
Storage Lanes 1 1 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 50 100

Satd. Flow (prot) 1727 1750 1727 1482 1744 1545
Flt Permitted 0.185 0.950

Satd. Flow (perm) 336 1750 1727 1482 1744 1545
Right Turn on Red No No
Satd. Flow (RTOR)

Link Speed (mph) 35 35 35

Link Distance (ft) 340 452 446

Travel Time (s) 6.6 8.8 8.7

Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 09 09 09 09 09 096
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 4% 8%  10% 9% 3% 4%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking (#/hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 59 695 777 270 513 75
Turn Type Perm NA NA pm+ov Prot Prot
Protected Phases 2 6 4 4 4
Permitted Phases 2 6

Detector Phase 2 2 6 4 4 4
Switch Phase

Minimum Initial (s) 10.0 100 10.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Minimum Split (s) 180 180 170 150 150 15.0
Total Split (s) 570 570 570 430 430 430
Total Split (%) 57.0% 57.0% 57.0% 43.0% 43.0% 43.0%
Yellow Time (s) 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.0 3.0 3.0
All-Red Time (s) 23 2.3 1.8 3.3 3.3 3.3
Lost Time Adjust (s) -1.1 -1.1 -0.6 -1.3 -1.3 -1.3
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag

Lead-Lag Optimize?

Recall Mode C-Max C-Max C-Max None None None
Act Effct Green (s) 562 562 562 1000 338 338
Actuated g/C Ratio 056 056 056 1.00 034 0.34
v/c Ratio 0.31 0.71 080 018 087 0.14
Control Delay (s/veh) 194 221 26.8 03 470 222
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 194 221 26.8 03 470 222

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2027).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

294



Zebulon Sheetz
1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Background (2027) AM
05/20/2025

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
LOS B C C A D C
Approach Delay (s/veh) 219 19.9 43.8
Approach LOS C B D
Queue Length 50th (ft) 20 316 388 0 295 32
Queue Length 95th (ft) 56 494 #664 0 #417 62
Internal Link Dist (ft) 260 372 366
Turn Bay Length (ft) 185 100
Base Capacity (vph) 188 982 970 1474 662 587
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 031 071 080 018 077 0.13

Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100

Offset: 74 (74%), Referenced to phase 2:EBTL and 6:WBT, Start of Green

Natural Cycle: 65

Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.87

Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 26.4
Intersection Capacity Utilization 83.0%
Analysis Period (min) 15

# 95th percentile volume exceeds capacity, queue may be longer.
Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.

Splits and Phases:  1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Intersection LOS: C
ICU Level of Service E

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn

295

Synchro 12 Report



Zebulon Sheetz
2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1

Background (2027) AM

05/20/2025

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations 4 4 [l if
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 738 720 26 0 60
Future Volume (vph) 0 738 720 26 0 60
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 1% 2% 0%

Storage Length (ft) 0 125 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 1 0 1
Taper Length (ft) 25 25

Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1750 1775 1378 0 1481
FIt Permitted

Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1750 1775 1378 0 1481
Link Speed (mph) 35 35 15

Link Distance (ft) 421 340 208

Travel Time (s) 8.2 6.6 95

Confl. Peds. (#hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 096 09 09% 09 096 0.96
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 8% 6% 16% 2% 1%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking (#hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 769 750 27 0 63
Sign Control Free  Free Stop
Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 48.3%
Analysis Period (min) 15

ICU Level of Service A

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn

296

Synchro 12 Report



Zebulon Sheetz Background (2027) AM

2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1 05/20/2025
Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.6
Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations + 4+ F if
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 738 720 26 0 60
Future Vol, veh/h 0 738 720 26 0 60
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - 125 - 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 1 2 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor % 9% 9% 9% 96 9%
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 8 6 16 2 1"
Mvmt Flow 0 769 750 27 0 63
Major/Minor Maijor1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All - 0 - 0 - 750
Stage 1 - - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy - - - - - 6.31

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - = 2 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - - - - 3.399

Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - - - 0 397
Stage 1 0 - - - 0 -
Stage 2 0 - - - 0 -

Platoon blocked, % - - -

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - - - 397

Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - -
Stage 1 - - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - - -

Approach EB WB SB

HCM Control Delay, siv 0 0 15.8

HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBT WBT WBR SBLnf1

Capacity (veh/h) - - - 397

HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - - 0157

HCM Control Delay (s/veh) - - - 158

HCM Lane LOS - - - C

HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) - - - 06

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2027).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

297



Zebulon Sheetz

3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2

Background (2027) AM

05/20/2025

Lane Group EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations L % 4 T

Traffic Volume (vph) 26 90 80 239 444 69
Future Volume (vph) 26 90 80 239 444 69
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 1%

Storage Length (ft) 0 0 50 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 100

Satd. Flow (prot) 1600 0 1736 1827 1811 0
Flt Permitted 0.989 0.950

Satd. Flow (perm) 1600 0 1736 1827 1811 0
Link Speed (mph) 15 35 35

Link Distance (ft) 230 446 197

Travel Time (s) 10.5 8.7 3.8

Confl. Peds. (#hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 092 092 092 092 092 092
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 6% 4% 4% 2% 6%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking (#hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 126 0 87 260 558 0
Sign Control Stop Free  Free
Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 49.0%
Analysis Period (min) 15

ICU Level of Service A

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn

298

Synchro 12 Report



Zebulon Sheetz Background (2027) AM

3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2 05/20/2025
Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.7
Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations * LI T S
Traffic Vol, veh/h 26 90 80 239 444 69
Future Vol, veh/h 26 90 80 239 444 69
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - 50 - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 1 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 6 4 4 2 6
Mvmt Flow 28 98 87 260 483 75
Major/Minor Minor2 Maijor1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 955 521 558 0 - 0
Stage 1 521 - - - - -
Stage 2 434 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.26 4.14 - - -

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 542 - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.354 2.236 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 287 548 1003 - - -
Stage 1 596 - - - - -
Stage 2 653 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 262 548 1003 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 262 -

Stage 1 544 - - - - -
Stage 2 653 - - - - -
Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, siv 16.4 2.2 0
HCM LOS C
Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBTEBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1003 - 440 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.087 - 0.287 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 8.9 - 164 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.3 - 12 - -

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2027).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

299



Zebulon Sheetz Background (2027) PM

1: NC 96 & Pearces Road 05/20/2025
Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations b 4 4 [l % if
Traffic Volume (vph) 84 756 776 500 327 50
Future Volume (vph) 84 756 776 500 327 50
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 1% 0% 1%

Storage Length (ft) 185 0 100 0
Storage Lanes 1 1 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 50 100

Satd. Flow (prot) 1761 1800 1827 1568 1727 1575
Flt Permitted 0.244 0.950

Satd. Flow (perm) 452 1800 1827 1568 1727 1575
Right Turn on Red No No
Satd. Flow (RTOR)

Link Speed (mph) 35 35 35

Link Distance (ft) 366 439 465

Travel Time (s) 71 8.6 91

Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 098 098 098 098 098 098
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 5% 4% 3% 4% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking (#/hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 86 771 792 510 334 51
Turn Type Perm NA NA pm+ov Prot Prot
Protected Phases 2 6 4 4 4
Permitted Phases 2 6

Detector Phase 2 2 6 4 4 4
Switch Phase

Minimum Initial (s) 10.0 100 10.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Minimum Split (s) 180 180 170 150 150 15.0
Total Split (s) 700 700 700 400 400 400
Total Split (%) 63.6% 63.6% 63.6% 36.4% 36.4% 36.4%
Yellow Time (s) 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.0 3.0 3.0
All-Red Time (s) 23 2.3 1.8 3.3 3.3 3.3
Lost Time Adjust (s) -1.1 -1.1 -0.6 -1.3 -1.3 -1.3
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag

Lead-Lag Optimize?

Recall Mode C-Max C-Max C-Max None None None
Act Effct Green (s) 728 728 728 1100 272 272
Actuated g/C Ratio 066 066 066 100 025 025
v/c Ratio 029 065 066 033 078 013
Control Delay (s/veh) 12.7 15.6 15.8 06 511 304
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 127 156 158 06 511 30.4

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2027).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

300



Zebulon Sheetz
1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Background (2027) PM
05/20/2025

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
LOS B B B A D C
Approach Delay (s/veh) 15.3 9.8 484
Approach LOS B A D
Queue Length 50th (ft) 24 299 31 0 219 28
Queue Length 95th (ft) 65 520 537 0 296 55
Internal Link Dist (ft) 286 359 385
Turn Bay Length (ft) 185 100
Base Capacity (vph) 298 1190 1208 1564 549 501
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 029 065 066 033 061 0.10

Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 110
Actuated Cycle Length: 110

Offset: 50 (45%), Referenced to phase 2:EBTL and 6:WBT, Start of Green

Natural Cycle: 55

Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.78

Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 17.5
Intersection Capacity Utilization 79.8%
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:  1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Intersection LOS: B
ICU Level of Service D

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn

301

Synchro 12 Report



Zebulon Sheetz
2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1

Background (2027) PM

05/20/2025

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations 4 4 [l if
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 767 766 63 0 97
Future Volume (vph) 0 767 766 63 0 97
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 1% 2% 0%

Storage Length (ft) 0 125 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 1 0 1
Taper Length (ft) 25 25

Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1800 1791 1568 0 1596
FIt Permitted

Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1800 1791 1568 0 1596
Link Speed (mph) 35 35 15

Link Distance (ft) 592 366 225

Travel Time (s) 11.5 71 10.2

Confl. Peds. (#hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 094 094 094 094 094 094
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 5% 5% 2% 2% 3%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking (#hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 816 815 67 0 103
Sign Control Free  Free Stop
Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 53.0%
Analysis Period (min) 15

ICU Level of Service A

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn

302

Synchro 12 Report



Zebulon Sheetz

2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 1
Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations + 4+ F if
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 767 766 63 0 97
Future Vol, veh/h 0 767 766 63 0 97
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - 125 - 0
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 1 2 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 94 94 94 94 94 94
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 5 5 2 2 3
Mvmt Flow 0 816 815 67 0 103
Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All 0 - 0 815
Stage 1 - - -
Stage 2 -
Critical Hdwy - - 6.23
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.327
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - - 0 376
Stage 1 0 0 -
Stage 2 0 - - 0 -
Platoon blocked, %
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 376
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver -
Stage 1 - - -
Stage 2
Approach EB WB SB
HCM Control Delay, siv 0 0 18.2
HCM LOS C
Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBT WBT WBR SBLnf1

Capacity (veh/h) - - 376
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - 0.274
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) - - 182
HCM Lane LOS - C
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) - - 14

Background (2027) PM

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

303



Zebulon Sheetz

3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2

Background (2027) PM

05/20/2025

Lane Group EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations L % 4 T

Traffic Volume (vph) 64 123 134 450 295 78
Future Volume (vph) 64 123 134 450 295 78
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 1%

Storage Length (ft) 0 0 50 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 100

Satd. Flow (prot) 1647 0 1752 1863 1798 0
Flt Permitted 0.983 0.950

Satd. Flow (perm) 1647 0 1752 1863 1798 0
Link Speed (mph) 15 35 35

Link Distance (ft) 239 465 197

Travel Time (s) 10.9 91 3.8

Confl. Peds. (#hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 097 097 097 097 097 097
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 4% 3% 2% 2% 3%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking (#hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 193 0 138 464 384 0
Sign Control Stop Free  Free
Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 48.8%
Analysis Period (min) 15

ICU Level of Service A

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn

304

Synchro 12 Report



Zebulon Sheetz
3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2

Background (2027) PM
05/20/2025

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 4.7
Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations * LI T S
Traffic Vol, veh/h 64 123 134 450 295 78
Future Vol, veh/h 64 123 134 450 295 78
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - 50 - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 1 -
Peak Hour Factor 97 97 97 97 97 97
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 4 3 2 2 3
Mvmt Flow 66 127 138 464 304 80
Major/Minor Minor2 Maijor1 Major2
Conflicting Flow Al 1084 344 384 0 - 0
Stage 1 344 - - - - -
Stage 2 740 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.24 4.13 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 542 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.336 2.227 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 240 694 1169 - - -
Stage 1 718 - - - - -
Stage 2 472 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 212 694 1169 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 212 - - - - -
Stage 1 633 - - - - -
Stage 2 472 - - - - -
Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v 22.9 1.9 0
HCM LOS C
Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBTEBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1169 - 390 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.118 - 0494 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 8.5 - 229 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 04 - 26 - -

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Background (2027).syn
Kimley-Horn

305

Synchro 12 Report



Appendix H:
Synchro Output: Build-Out (2027)

306



Zebulon Sheetz Build-Out (2027) AM

1: NC 96 & Pearces Road 05/20/2025
Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations b 4 4 [l % if
Traffic Volume (vph) 66 660 746 263 503 72
Future Volume (vph) 66 660 746 263 503 72
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 1% 0% 1%

Storage Length (ft) 185 0 100 0
Storage Lanes 1 1 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 50 100

Satd. Flow (prot) 1744 1750 1727 1495 1744 1560
Flt Permitted 0.180 0.950

Satd. Flow (perm) 330 1750 1727 1495 1744 1560
Right Turn on Red No No
Satd. Flow (RTOR)

Link Speed (mph) 35 35 35

Link Distance (ft) 340 452 446

Travel Time (s) 6.6 8.8 8.7

Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 09 09 09 09 09 096
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 3% 8%  10% 8% 3% 3%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking (#/hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 69 688 777 274 524 75
Turn Type Perm NA NA pm+ov Prot Prot
Protected Phases 2 6 4 4 4
Permitted Phases 2 6

Detector Phase 2 2 6 4 4 4
Switch Phase

Minimum Initial (s) 10.0 100 10.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Minimum Split (s) 180 180 170 150 150 15.0
Total Split (s) 570 570 570 430 430 430
Total Split (%) 57.0% 57.0% 57.0% 43.0% 43.0% 43.0%
Yellow Time (s) 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.0 3.0 3.0
All-Red Time (s) 23 2.3 1.8 3.3 3.3 3.3
Lost Time Adjust (s) -1.1 -1.1 -0.6 -1.3 -1.3 -1.3
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag

Lead-Lag Optimize?

Recall Mode C-Max C-Max C-Max None None None
Act Effct Green (s) 55.7 557 557 1000 343 343
Actuated g/C Ratio 056 056 056 1.00 034 0.34
v/c Ratio 038 0.71 0.81 018 088 0.14
Control Delay (s/veh) 218 222 273 03 476 220
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 218 222 273 03 476 220

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build-Out (2027).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

307



Zebulon Sheetz
1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Build-Out (2027) AM
05/20/2025

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
LOS C C C A D C
Approach Delay (s/veh) 222 203 444
Approach LOS C C D
Queue Length 50th (ft) 24 317 394 0 301 32
Queue Length 95th (ft) 68 485  #664 0 #442 62
Internal Link Dist (ft) 260 372 366
Turn Bay Length (ft) 185 100
Base Capacity (vph) 183 975 962 1485 662 592
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 038 071 081 018 079 0.13

Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 100
Actuated Cycle Length: 100

Offset: 74 (74%), Referenced to phase 2:EBTL and 6:WBT, Start of Green

Natural Cycle: 70

Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.88

Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 26.9
Intersection Capacity Utilization 88.0%
Analysis Period (min) 15

# 95th percentile volume exceeds capacity, queue may be longer.
Queue shown is maximum after two cycles.

Splits and Phases:  1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Intersection LOS: C
ICU Level of Service E

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build-Out (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn

308

Synchro 12 Report



Zebulon Sheetz
2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1

Build-Out (2027) AM

05/20/2025

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations 4 4 [l if
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 740 712 34 0 71
Future Volume (vph) 0 740 712 34 0 71
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 1% 2% 0%

Storage Length (ft) 0 125 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 1 0 1
Taper Length (ft) 25 25

Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1767 1791 1428 0 1508
Flt Permitted

Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1767 1791 1428 0 1508
Link Speed (mph) 35 35 15

Link Distance (ft) 421 340 208

Travel Time (s) 8.2 6.6 95

Confl. Peds. (#hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 096 09 09% 09 096 0.96
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 7% 5%  12% 2% 9%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking (#hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 771 742 35 0 74
Sign Control Free  Free Stop
Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 48.5%
Analysis Period (min) 15

ICU Level of Service A

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build-Out (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn

309

Synchro 12 Report



Zebulon Sheetz Build-Out (2027) AM

2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1 05/20/2025
Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.7
Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations + 4+ F if
Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 740 712 34 0 7
Future Vol, veh/h 0 740 712 34 0 7
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length - - - 125 - 0
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 0 - 0 -
Grade, % - 1 2 - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor % 9% 9% 9% 96 9%
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 7 5 12 2 9
Mvmt Flow 0 7711 742 35 0 74
Major/Minor Maijor1 Major2 Minor2
Conflicting Flow All - 0 - 0 - 742
Stage 1 - - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy - - - - - 6.29

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - = 2 -
Follow-up Hdwy - - - - - 3.381

Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - - - 0 404
Stage 1 0 - - - 0 -
Stage 2 0 - - - 0 -

Platoon blocked, % - - -

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - - - - 404

Mov Cap-2 Maneuver - - - - -
Stage 1 - - - - - -
Stage 2 - - - - - -

Approach EB WB SB

HCM Control Delay, siv 0 0 15.9

HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBT WBT WBR SBLnf1

Capacity (veh/h) - - - 404

HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - - 0.183

HCM Control Delay (s/veh) - - - 159

HCM Lane LOS - - - C

HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) - - - 07

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build-Out (2027).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

310



Zebulon Sheetz

3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2

Build-Out (2027) AM

05/20/2025

Lane Group EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations L % 4 T

Traffic Volume (vph) 32 106 97 235 439 76
Future Volume (vph) 32 106 97 235 439 76
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 1%

Storage Length (ft) 0 0 50 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 100

Satd. Flow (prot) 1613 0 1752 1845 1806 0
Flt Permitted 0.988 0.950

Satd. Flow (perm) 1613 0 1752 1845 1806 0
Link Speed (mph) 15 35 35

Link Distance (ft) 230 446 197

Travel Time (s) 10.5 8.7 3.8

Confl. Peds. (#hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 092 092 092 092 092 092
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 5% 3% 3% 2% 6%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking (#hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 150 0 105 255 560 0
Sign Control Stop Free  Free
Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 51.4%
Analysis Period (min) 15

ICU Level of Service A

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build-Out (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn

311

Synchro 12 Report



Zebulon Sheetz

3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2

Build-Out (2027) AM
05/20/2025

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 34
Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations * LI T S
Traffic Vol, veh/h 32 106 97 235 439 76
Future Vol, veh/h 32 106 97 235 439 76
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - 50 - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 1 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 5 3 3 2 6
Mvmt Flow 35 115 105 255 477 83
Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 984 519 560 0 - 0
Stage 1 519 - - - - -
Stage 2 465 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.25 4.3 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 542 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.345 2.227 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 275 551 1006 - - -
Stage 1 597 - - - - -
Stage 2 632 - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 246 551 1006 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 246 - - - - -
Stage 1 535 - - - -
Stage 2 632
Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/iv 17.9 2.6 0
HCM LOS C
Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBTEBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1006 428 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.105 0.35 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 9 17.9 - -
HCM Lane LOS A C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 04 1.6 - -

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 -

Kimley-Horn

Analysis\Synchro\Build-Out (2027).syn

Synchro 12 Report



Zebulon Sheetz Build-Out (2027) PM

1: NC 96 & Pearces Road 05/20/2025
Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations b 4 4 [l % if
Traffic Volume (vph) 93 749 776 504 338 50
Future Volume (vph) 93 749 776 504 338 50
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 1% 0% 1%

Storage Length (ft) 185 0 100 0
Storage Lanes 1 1 1 1
Taper Length (ft) 50 100

Satd. Flow (prot) 1761 1800 1827 1568 1727 1575
Flt Permitted 0.241 0.950

Satd. Flow (perm) 447 1800 1827 1568 1727 1575
Right Turn on Red No No
Satd. Flow (RTOR)

Link Speed (mph) 35 35 35

Link Distance (ft) 366 439 465

Travel Time (s) 71 8.6 91

Confl. Peds. (#/hr)
Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 098 098 098 098 098 098
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 5% 4% 3% 4% 2%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking (#/hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 95 764 792 514 345 51
Turn Type Perm NA NA pm+ov Prot Prot
Protected Phases 2 6 4 4 4
Permitted Phases 2 6

Detector Phase 2 2 6 4 4 4
Switch Phase

Minimum Initial (s) 10.0 100 10.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Minimum Split (s) 180 180 170 150 150 15.0
Total Split (s) 700 700 700 400 400 400
Total Split (%) 63.6% 63.6% 63.6% 36.4% 36.4% 36.4%
Yellow Time (s) 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.0 3.0 3.0
All-Red Time (s) 23 2.3 1.8 3.3 3.3 3.3
Lost Time Adjust (s) -1.1 -1.1 -0.6 -1.3 -1.3 -1.3
Total Lost Time (s) 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Lead/Lag

Lead-Lag Optimize?

Recall Mode C-Max C-Max C-Max None None None
Act Effct Green (s) 722 722 722 1100 278 278
Actuated g/C Ratio 066 066 066 100 025 025
v/c Ratio 032 065 066 033 079 013
Control Delay (s/veh) 13.7 15.8 16.2 06 514 300
Queue Delay 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Delay (s/veh) 137 158 16.2 06 514 300

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build-Out (2027).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

313



Zebulon Sheetz
1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Build-Out (2027) PM
05/20/2025

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
LOS B B B A D C
Approach Delay (s/veh) 15.6 10.0 48.7
Approach LOS B B D
Queue Length 50th (ft) 27 301 317 0 226 28
Queue Length 95th (ft) 73 513 537 0 308 55
Internal Link Dist (ft) 286 359 385
Turn Bay Length (ft) 185 100
Base Capacity (vph) 293 1181 1199 1562 549 501
Starvation Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0
Spillback Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0
Storage Cap Reductn 0 0 0 0 0 0
Reduced v/c Ratio 032 065 066 033 063 0.10

Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other
Cycle Length: 110
Actuated Cycle Length: 110

Offset: 50 (45%), Referenced to phase 2:EBTL and 6:WBT, Start of Green

Natural Cycle: 60

Control Type: Actuated-Coordinated
Maximum v/c Ratio: 0.79

Intersection Signal Delay (s/veh): 17.9
Intersection Capacity Utilization 80.4%
Analysis Period (min) 15

Splits and Phases:  1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Intersection LOS: B
ICU Level of Service D

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build-Out (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn

314

Synchro 12 Report



Zebulon Sheetz
2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1

Build-Out (2027) PM

05/20/2025

Lane Group EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR
Lane Configurations 4 4 [l if
Traffic Volume (vph) 0 769 758 71 0 107
Future Volume (vph) 0 769 758 71 0 107
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 1% 2% 0%

Storage Length (ft) 0 125 0 0
Storage Lanes 0 1 0 1
Taper Length (ft) 25 25

Satd. Flow (prot) 0 1800 1809 1568 0 1596
FIt Permitted

Satd. Flow (perm) 0 1800 1809 1568 0 1596
Link Speed (mph) 35 35 15

Link Distance (ft) 592 366 225

Travel Time (s) 11.5 71 10.2

Confl. Peds. (#hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 094 094 094 094 094 094
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 5% 4% 2% 2% 3%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking (#hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 0 818 806 76 0 114
Sign Control Free  Free Stop
Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 53.2%
Analysis Period (min) 15

ICU Level of Service A

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build-Out (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn

315

Synchro 12 Report



Zebulon Sheetz

2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 1.2

Movement EBL EBT WBT WBR SBL SBR

Lane Configurations + 4+ F if

Traffic Vol, veh/h 0 769 758 71 0 107

Future Vol, veh/h 0 769 758 71 0 107

Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sign Control Free Free Free Free Stop Stop

RT Channelized - None - None - None

Storage Length - 125 - 0

Veh in Median Storage, # 0 0 - 0 -

Grade, % - 1 2 - 0 -

Peak Hour Factor 94 94 94 94 94 94

Heavy Vehicles, % 2 5 4 2 2 3

Mvmt Flow 0 818 806 76 0 114

Major/Minor Major1 Major2 Minor2

Conflicting Flow All 0 - 0 806
Stage 1 - - -
Stage 2 -

Critical Hdwy - - 6.23

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 -

Critical Hdwy Stg 2 - - - -

Follow-up Hdwy - - 3.327

Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 0 - - 0 380
Stage 1 0 0 -
Stage 2 0 - - 0 -

Platoon blocked, %

Mov Cap-1 Maneuver - - 380

Mov Cap-2 Maneuver -
Stage 1 - - -
Stage 2

Approach EB WB SB

HCM Control Delay, siv 0 0 18.5

HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt EBT WBT WBR SBLnf1

Capacity (veh/h) - - 380

HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.3

HCM Control Delay (s/veh) - - 185

HCM Lane LOS C

HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) - - 12

Build-Out (2027) PM

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build-Out (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

316



Zebulon Sheetz

3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2

Build-Out (2027) PM

05/20/2025

Lane Group EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations L % 4 T

Traffic Volume (vph) 71 137 152 445 292 83
Future Volume (vph) 71 137 152 445 292 83
Ideal Flow (vphpl) 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900 1900
Lane Width (ft) 12 12 12 12 12 12
Grade (%) 0% 0% 1%

Storage Length (ft) 0 0 50 0
Storage Lanes 1 0 1 0
Taper Length (ft) 25 100

Satd. Flow (prot) 1647 0 1752 1863 1794 0
Flt Permitted 0.983 0.950

Satd. Flow (perm) 1647 0 1752 1863 1794 0
Link Speed (mph) 15 35 35

Link Distance (ft) 239 465 197

Travel Time (s) 10.9 91 3.8

Confl. Peds. (#hr)

Confl. Bikes (#/hr)

Peak Hour Factor 097 097 097 097 097 097
Growth Factor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%
Heavy Vehicles (%) 2% 4% 3% 2% 2% 3%
Bus Blockages (#/hr) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Parking (#hr)

Mid-Block Traffic (%) 0% 0% 0%

Shared Lane Traffic (%)

Lane Group Flow (vph) 214 0 157 459 387 0
Sign Control Stop Free  Free
Intersection Summary

Area Type: Other

Control Type: Unsignalized
Intersection Capacity Utilization 51.2%
Analysis Period (min) 15

ICU Level of Service A

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build-Out (2027).syn

Kimley-Horn

317

Synchro 12 Report



Zebulon Sheetz Build-Out (2027) PM

3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2 05/20/2025
Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 5.8
Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR
Lane Configurations * LI T S
Traffic Vol, veh/h 71 137 152 445 292 83
Future Vol, veh/h 71 137 152 445 292 83
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 0 - 50 - - -
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 1 -
Peak Hour Factor 97 97 97 97 97 97
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 4 3 2 2 3
Mvmt Flow 73 141 157 459 301 86
Major/Minor Minor2 Maijor1 Major2
Conflicting Flow Al 1117 344 387 0 - 0
Stage 1 344 - - - - -
Stage 2 773 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.42 6.24 4.13 - - -

Critical Hdwy Stg 1 5.42
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 542 - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.518 3.336 2.227 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver 229 694 1166 - - -
Stage 1 718 - - - - -
Stage 2 455 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver 198 694 1166 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver 198 -

Stage 1 621 - - - - -
Stage 2 455 - - - - -
Approach EB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v 26.8 2.2 0
HCM LOS D
Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBTEBLn1 SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 1166 - 374 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.134 - 0.573 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 8.6 - 268 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - D - -
HCM 95th %tile Q (veh) 0.5 - 34 - -

KARAL_TPTO\_Traffic\110529004 Zebulon Sheetz\T4 - Analysis\Synchro\Build-Out (2027).syn
Kimley-Horn Synchro 12 Report

318



Appendix I:
SimTraffic Reports

319



Queuing and Blocking Report
Existing (2025) AM 05/21/2025

Intersection: 1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Movement EB EB WB WB SB SB
Directions Served L T T R L R
Maximum Queue (ft) 175 273 441 350 200 363
Average Queue (ft) 41 170 222 32 176 144
95th Queue (ft) 102 281 375 159 227 355
Link Distance (ft) 266 435 435 364
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 1 0 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 7 0 0 2
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 100

Storage Blk Time (%) 6 37 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 3 17 2

Intersection: 2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1

Movement EB SB
Directions Served T R
Maximum Queue (ft) 150 83
Average Queue (ft) 13 32
95th Queue (ft) 78 66
Link Distance (ft) 371 154
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)

Storage Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2

Movement EB NB SB
Directions Served LR L TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 116 58 52
Average Queue (ft) 47 19 3
95th Queue (ft) 87 48 27
Link Distance (ft) 196 163
Upstream Blk Time (%) 0 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 50

Storage Blk Time (%) 0

Queuing Penalty (veh) 1

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 32

AM Peak Hour Zebulon Sheetz SimTraffic Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

320



Queuing and Blocking Report

Existing (2025) PM 05/21/2025
Intersection: 1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Movement EB EB WB WB SB SB
Directions Served L T T R L R
Maximum Queue (ft) 164 294 397 182 199 301
Average Queue (ft) 46 162 172 32 142 64
95th Queue (ft) 106 281 328 112 210 208
Link Distance (ft) 290 421 421 381
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 0

Queuing Penalty (veh) 3 0

Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 100

Storage Blk Time (%) 5 31 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 3 9 0
Intersection: 2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1

Movement EB SB

Directions Served T R

Maximum Queue (ft) 110 104

Average Queue (ft) 7 44

95th Queue (ft) 49 81

Link Distance (ft) 543 171

Upstream Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh)

Storage Bay Dist (ft)

Storage Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2

Movement EB NB SB

Directions Served LR L TR

Maximum Queue (ft) 121 68 2

Average Queue (ft) 56 26 0

95th Queue (ft) 93 57 3

Link Distance (ft) 205 163

Upstream Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh)

Storage Bay Dist (ft) 50

Storage Blk Time (%) 1

Queuing Penalty (veh) 3

Network Summary

Network wide Queuing Penalty: 19

PM Peak Hour Zebulon Sheetz SimTraffic Report

Kimley-Horn

321

Page 1



Queuing and Blocking Report

Background (2027) AM 05/21/2025
Intersection: 1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Movement EB EB WB WB SB SB
Directions Served L T T R L R
Maximum Queue (ft) 227 282 468 417 200 374
Average Queue (ft) 79 216 277 68 188 235
95th Queue (ft) 182 320 461 271 224 438
Link Distance (ft) 266 435 435 364
Upstream Blk Time (%) 6 3 1 3
Queuing Penalty (veh) 42 0 0 18
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 100

Storage Blk Time (%) 3 16 46 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 17 9 33 7
Intersection: 2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1

Movement EB SB

Directions Served T R

Maximum Queue (ft) 318 93

Average Queue (ft) 57 36

95th Queue (ft) 216 73

Link Distance (ft) 371 154

Upstream Blk Time (%) 2 0

Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0

Storage Bay Dist (ft)

Storage Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2

Movement EB NB NB SB

Directions Served LR L T TR

Maximum Queue (ft) 127 73 i3 147

Average Queue (ft) 54 27 1 19

95th Queue (ft) 107 59 11 93

Link Distance (ft) 196 364 163

Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 1

Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0

Storage Bay Dist (ft) 50

Storage Blk Time (%) 1 0

Queuing Penalty (veh) 3 0

Network Summary

Network wide Queuing Penalty: 129

AM Peak Hour Zebulon Sheetz SimTraffic Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

322



Queuing and Blocking Report

Background (2027) PM 05/21/2025
Intersection: 1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Movement EB EB WB WB SB SB
Directions Served L T T R L R
Maximum Queue (ft) 234 311 430 387 199 359
Average Queue (ft) 125 219 230 62 160 110
95th Queue (ft) 239 344 401 225 219 295
Link Distance (ft) 290 421 421 381
Upstream Blk Time (%) 7 1 0 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 53 0 0 1
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 100

Storage Blk Time (%) 12 15 37 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 89 13 18 2

Intersection: 2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1

Movement EB SB
Directions Served T R
Maximum Queue (ft) 434 104
Average Queue (ft) 82 45
95th Queue (ft) 339 84
Link Distance (ft) 543 171
Upstream Blk Time (%) 3 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)

Storage Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2

Movement EB NB SB
Directions Served LR L TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 138 74 36
Average Queue (ft) 59 28 2
95th Queue (ft) 101 59 18
Link Distance (ft) 205 163

Upstream Blk Time (%)
Queuing Penalty (veh)

Storage Bay Dist (ft) 50
Storage Blk Time (%) 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 4

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 180

PM Peak Hour Zebulon Sheetz SimTraffic Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

323



Queuing and Blocking Report
Build-Out (2027) AM 05/21/2025

Intersection: 1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Movement EB EB WB WB SB SB
Directions Served L T T R L R
Maximum Queue (ft) 231 290 468 411 200 376
Average Queue (ft) 106 214 295 81 186 237
95th Queue (ft) 218 312 480 305 225 442
Link Distance (ft) 266 435 435 364
Upstream Blk Time (%) 5 5 2 4
Queuing Penalty (veh) 39 0 0 23
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 100

Storage Blk Time (%) 8 14 47 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 50 9 34 4

Intersection: 2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1

Movement EB SB
Directions Served T R
Maximum Queue (ft) 282 89
Average Queue (ft) 52 40
95th Queue (ft) 212 74
Link Distance (ft) 371 154
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1

Queuing Penalty (veh) 0

Storage Bay Dist (ft)

Storage Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2

Movement EB NB NB SB
Directions Served LR L T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 155 65 9 151
Average Queue (ft) 61 27 0 22
95th Queue (ft) 120 59 9 108
Link Distance (ft) 196 364 163
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 2
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 50

Storage Blk Time (%) 1

Queuing Penalty (veh) 3

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 162

AM Peak Hour Zebulon Sheetz SimTraffic Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

324



Queuing and Blocking Report

Build-Out (2027) PM 05/21/2025
Intersection: 1: NC 96 & Pearces Road

Movement EB EB WB WB SB SB
Directions Served L T T R L R
Maximum Queue (ft) 235 330 432 393 199 372
Average Queue (ft) 154 246 232 79 160 118
95th Queue (ft) 270 365 409 274 220 308
Link Distance (ft) 290 421 421 381
Upstream Blk Time (%) 19 2 1 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 145 0 0 2
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 185 100

Storage Blk Time (%) 27 22 36 1
Queuing Penalty (veh) 201 20 18 2

Intersection: 2: NC 96 & Site Driveway 1

Movement EB SB
Directions Served T R
Maximum Queue (ft) 530 126
Average Queue (ft) 235 52
95th Queue (ft) 655 96
Link Distance (ft) 543 171
Upstream Blk Time (%) 20 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft)

Storage Blk Time (%)

Queuing Penalty (veh)

Intersection: 3: Pearces Road & Site Driveway 2

Movement EB NB NB SB
Directions Served LR L T TR
Maximum Queue (ft) 156 68 6 56
Average Queue (ft) 71 32 0 3
95th Queue (ft) 126 60 6 31
Link Distance (ft) 205 381 163
Upstream Blk Time (%) 1 0
Queuing Penalty (veh) 0 0
Storage Bay Dist (ft) 50

Storage Blk Time (%) 1 0

Queuing Penalty (veh) 7 0

Network Summary
Network wide Queuing Penalty: 395

PM Peak Hour Zebulon Sheetz SimTraffic Report
Kimley-Horn Page 1

325



Appendix J:
Signal Plans

326



Evaluation Only. Created with Aspose.PDF. Copyright 2002-2018 Aspose Pty Ltd.

327



MUNICIPAL UTILITY ALLOCATION POLICY
Statement of Purpose and Goals

Introduction

Drinking water supplies throughout the greater City of Raleigh distribution system are finite, subject to
disruption by drought and/or other calamity and Zebulon’s allocation is contractually limited. The Town
staff, the Planning Board, and the Board of Commissioners have given a great deal of thought and study
as to the best utilization of this valuable resource to benefit current and future citizens.

The Town of Zebulon’s municipal water and sewer capacity is a valuable resource that must be conserved
and apportioned to new development projects that promote the Town’s policy of ensuring a diversified
tax base and housing supply. Such an allocation policy will tend to promote diversity of housing available
to a wide cross section of citizens of diverse socio-economic backgrounds and promote economic viability
and sustainability by providing for retail and other commercial development within the Town of Zebulon.

In order to preserve and enhance property values, manage its limited water supply as a vital natural
resource, promote economic development, and incentivize smart growth practices, the allocation of
Zebulon’s potable water capacity shall hereafter be in accordance with this policy.

Land Use and the Tax Base

The local government expense of providing fire and police protection, schools, parks, social services, water
and sewage systems and other essential public services to residential neighborhoods is generally greater
than the ad valorem tax revenue generated by such neighborhoods. On the other hand, the cost of
providing services to commercial and industrial development is generally less than the tax revenue
accruing to the local government. Having a predominantly residential tax base would require the Town of
Zebulon over time to assess a higher tax levy to raise funds to provide essential services or to reduce the
level of public services provided. This is one reason among many why local governments including Zebulon
strive to achieve a balance of both residential and non-residential growth.

Zebulon’s historical development is transitioning from industrial to residential, leading to a current tax
base of approximately 40% residential and 60% commercial/industrial. The following table shows
Zebulon’s tax base over the past five years !

Zebulon Tax Base (Past Five Years)

Fiscal Year Commercial Residential
2021-2022 60% 40%
2020-2021 65% 35%
2019-2020 72% 28%
2018-2019 73% 27%
2017-2018 71% 29%

1 “Tax Base Components | Wake County Government,” Wake County North Carolina,
https://www.wakegov.com/departments-government/tax-administration/data-files-statistics-and-reports/tax-
base-components

328



As shown in the table above, the residential tax base has steadily increased proportionally over the past
five years. This trend in the tax base data, combined with the vested planned residential development in
the coming years, demonstrates the need for the Town to address this shift through policy. The Zebulon
Board of Commissioners believes that it is fiscally responsible and otherwise in the public interest to
promote and encourage non-residential development in the jurisdiction as an alternative to rapid
residential development to keep the ratio between the two development types well balanced. A goal of
maintaining a tax base of 60% residential and 40% commercial/industrial is hereby established.

Development Goals for the Full Build-Out of Zebulon

Communities without a wide variety of housing types and styles also put pressure on the Wake County
Public School System which remains committed to having students of a wide range of socio-economic
backgrounds attend each local school. In addition to the goal of maintaining a balanced tax base, the Town
of Zebulon is committed to achieving a balance of housing types within its jurisdiction.

This commitment is consistent with both the Town’s Strategic Plan and Comprehensive Plan. The Town of
Zebulon: Vision 2030 Strategic Plan lists “Growing Smart” as one of its three focus areas, calling for the
planning of appropriate land uses and affordability of the community. The Grow Zebulon Comprehensive
Land Use Plan identifies six guiding principles for the town. Two of those principles are “Zebulon will be
BALANCED” and “Zebulon will be PRUDENT.” A balance should be achieved for the Town’s tax base, its
land uses, and its housing types to allow for an affordable community with employment and business
opportunities that will help the community prosper. The achievement of balance in Zebulon will
contribute to the Town being prudent. As stated previously, a local government’s cost of providing
services to commercial properties is generally less than that of residential properties. Having a balanced
tax base that is not proportionally over-saturated with residential properties will contribute to keeping
the Town financially sound.

Below are three development goals that are integral to the utility allocation policy and the future of the
Town. These development goals apply to the entire, future Zebulon jurisdiction including the ETJ, short-
range and long-range urban service areas.

GOAL #1: Maintain 60%-40% ratio of residential to non-residential tax values.

Upon Adoption-January 2021
60% Residential - 40% Non-Residential

GOAL #2:  Residential Housing Percentage Breakdown
SFD|TH|MF — 75%]10%|15% (Note — Duplex counted as MF)

Upon Adoption-January 2021
80.5% | 0.5% | 19%

GOAL #3: Encourage Mixed Use Development to improve pedestrian
connectivity to non-residential activity.

329



Policy and Procedures

Water Allocation

All existing parcels of real property within the corporate limits of Zebulon, regardless of proposed acreage,
shape, or location as of the adoption of this ordinance are entitled to 115 gallons per day of water
allocation to build and sustain a single family or a limited business or commercial use. No additional water
allocation will be awarded for proposed development except in accordance with the requirements of this

policy.

Wastewater Connection

All projects considered for utility allocation must provide a wastewater system connection with adequate
receiving capacity, as determined by the Wake County Health Department and/or City of Raleigh Public
Utilities Department and approved by the Town of Zebulon Planning Director.

General Conditions & Requirements

o All proposed projects must be within the existing corporate limits or have filed a valid and
complete petition for Voluntary Annexation.

e All proposed projects under consideration must have a complete application submitted for the
appropriate Master Plan, Subdivision, Site Plan, Special Use Permit, Conditional Zoning Request,
Zoning Compliance Permit, Building Permit, or any other necessary approval.

e All projects are subject to a Utility Allocation or Developer’s Agreement approved by the Town’s
Board of Commissioners. If the Developer/Applicant fails to meet all terms of that agreement the
unused allocation will be reclaimed, no new building permits will be issued, and no new
connections to the water or wastewater systems will be permitted. Active building permits will
have certificates of occupancy held until mitigating measures are agreed to by all parties.

e Projects with proven vested rights upon adoption of this ordinance will be permitted to finish
their projects as previously approved.

e Public water may be utilized for irrigation purposes so long as the Primary Use associated with
the site has previously gained water allocation through the Town.

e Any third parties who buy land to build upon are bound by the approved Utility Allocation
Agreement or Development Agreement for that property. If the agreement is not fulfilled, the
above terms and conditions still apply regardless of who owns the land.

Compliance Required

This policy allocates municipal water in gallons per day for new development proposals, master plans, site
plans, building plans, and/or structures seeking construction approval. Each phase of a phased
development must comply with the terms and development schedule of an approved Utility Allocation
Agreement before the next phase can begin or the development risks loss of previously reserved
allocation.

Previously dedicated but unused allocation can be reclaimed by the Town’s Board of
Commissioners for:

(1) the lack of compliance with any existing Utility Allocation or Developer’s Agreement;
(2) violation of applicable town policy provision, ordinance standard, condition of approval;
(3) violation of federal or state regulation; or

(4) other good cause.

330



Utility Allocation Application Process

Upon receiving a new development proposal requesting water capacity, the Planning Staff shall direct the
Developer/Applicant to demonstrate the project’s qualifications. A Developer/Applicant shall state on the
appropriate application, and stipulate within an approved Utility Allocation Agreement, the use or uses
proposed to be built as part of the project along with the construction design and materials. Town action
on the request will be deferred until the application is complete and the requested information has been
provided.

Proposed projects shall complete the UTILITY ALLOCATION WORKSHEET according to its instructions to
determine the total number of points achieved. The Utility Allocation Application package will be reviewed
for completeness and compliance by the Technical Review Committee (TRC) in conjunction with the
applicable development approval for the subject property (conditional rezoning, planned development,
site plan, etc.).

Qualification for water allocation is judged by:

e The level of developer investment

e Anticipated increases in the Town’s ad valorem tax base

e Construction and dedication of public infrastructure

e Provision of employment opportunities for Zebulon citizens

e Provisions of diversified housing stock

e Preservation of open space

e Protection of existing tree canopy

e Conservation of existing habitat

e The provision of recreational amenities for current or future Zebulon residents

Projects must be awarded 60 TOTAL POINTS or more to merit water allocation.

Points are awarded in two categories, BASE POINTS and BONUS POINTS. BONUS POINTS are broken down
into six categories.

1. Nonconformity Abatement and Public Infrastructure Improvements
2. Green Development Standards

3. Gateway and Transit Improvements

4. Amenities

5. Affordable Housing

6. Other

Unless a project can gain all necessary BONUS POINTS from a single improvement identified in the
approved list, improvements must be made from at least two of the categories of BONUS POINTS.

All features and/or improvements that earn a projects BONUS POINTS must be clearly shown on a
development plan for each application type.

331



Expiration of Allocation Award

A developer/applicant who has secured allocation according to this policy and hasn’t progressed in
construction plan approval, building permit approval, or on-site construction for a period of 12 months
will lose the award of allocation without benefit.

Annual Review of Policy & Appeals

This policy shall be reviewed in January of each year and, when appropriate, readjusted by the Town’s
Board of Commissioners. The Town’s overall progress on policy goals will be considered and the
multipliers and/or point thresholds readjusted accordingly.

Appeals of any provision of this ordinance shall be decided upon by the Town’s Board of Commissioners
upon receiving a recommendation from the Planning Board.

BASE POINTS: List of Preferred Land Uses and Required Characteristics:

The uses listed below have been determined to be the most desirable and important uses for the Town
of Zebulon to promote and maintain economic and housing diversity. Only projects that completely
meet the stated performance characteristics will be considered for utility allocation. Please select one of
the following Base Point classifications.

60 Base Points Single Family Homes (Expedited Subdivision or Recombination)

Newly constructed Single Family Homes built upon new lots created via the minor
subdivision, exempt subdivision, expedited subdivision (3 or fewer lots) or
recombination process.

60 Base Points Change of Use

This category captures renovation, rehabilitation, up-fit or retrofit of existing
buildings or portions of buildings that pre-date this policy and require a code
summary sheet, change in building occupancy, certificate of occupancy, building
permit and/or building inspections and do not increase the utility demand from
the previous use of the building.

45 Base Points Business Office/Finance/ Insurance / Professional Services Center - Large
Qualifying projects must exceed 100,000 square feet of heated floor space and
create at least 150 employment positions that exceed the average annual Wake
County salary according to Wake County Economic Development or the
Employment Security Commission. Employees perform professional, scientific,
and technical services for others. Such services require a high degree of expertise
and training and provide high salaried employment opportunities. Examples
include software engineering, legal, medical, accounting, consulting,
architectural, biomedical, chemical, research and development, and
administrative services. Finance or Insurance Centers shall also pool financial risks
by underwriting insurance and annuities. Some establishments support employee
benefit programs. Examples include bank or credit union headquarters,
brokerages, investments, insurance, financing, and data processing
establishments.

45 Base Points Manufacturing/Industrial Employment Center
Manufacturing or Industrial establishments in this category exceed 200,000
square feet of floor space located in plants, factories, or mills and employ power-

332



driven machines and materials-handling equipment. They may also employ
workers who assemble or create new products by hand, without the
characteristic machinery-intensive enterprise. Many manufacturing
establishments process products of agriculture, forestry, fishing, mining, or
qguarrying as well as products of other manufacturing establishments. Most
manufacturing establishments have some form of captive services (e.g., research
and development, and administrative operations, such as accounting, payroll, or
management) in conjunction on-site.

45 Base Points

40 Base Points

Governmental Uses/Public Administration

This category encompasses centers for all government functions; it includes
federal, state, and local government agencies that administer, oversee, and
manage public programs and budgets and have executive, legislative, or judicial
authority. Establishments develop policy, create laws, adjudicate civil and criminal
legal cases, and provide for public safety and national defense.

Single Use Retail
Newly constructed single use, stand-alone building used primarily for retail,

restaurant, or similar commercial use.

40 Base Points

Hotels, Motels, or other Accommodation Service Establishments

This category serves lodging and short-term accommodations for travelers. They
may offer a wide range of services, from overnight sleeping space to full-service
hotel suites. They may offer these services in conjunction with other activities,
such as entertainment or recreation. Stays in these establishments are generally
less than one month. This classification does not include boarding or rooming
houses.

40 Base Points

Arts/Entertainment/Museums

These establishments operate facilities or provide services for a variety of
cultural, entertainment, and performing art functions. Establishments include
those that produce, promote, or participate in live performances, events, or
exhibits intended for public viewing; those that preserve and exhibit objects and
sites of historical, cultural, or educational interest; and those that operate
facilities or provide services to serve activities associated with the
aforementioned.

40 Base Points

Amusement, Sports or Recreational Establishment

Establishments in this category operate either indoor or outdoor facilities offering
family activities (i.e. sports, recreation, or amusement) and provide services, such
as facilitating amusement in places operated by others, operating recreational
sports groups and leagues. Examples include golf courses, indoor sports venues,
bowling alleys, miniature golf courses, athletic clubs, skating rinks and arcades.
This category may be used in conjunction with a commercial or residential
development as a mixed use development.

40 Base Points

Mixed Use Development (Transit Oriented)

Newly constructed or substantially rehabilitated collection of vertically mixed
retail, office and residential uses in multi-story buildings centered within a one-
half mile radius of an existing rail or bus transit station or the intersection of

333



Heather.Timothy
Rectangle


Horton Street and North Arendell Avenue in Downtown Zebulon. In order to
qualify as mixed use, developments must dedicate at least one-third of the total
heated square footage to residential use and the remainder to a mix of retail and
office uses. All three use types must be represented and at least 10% of the
heated square footage must be dedicated to street level, storefront retail uses.

40 Base Points

Mixed Use Development (Urban Infill)

Newly constructed or substantially rehabilitated collection of mixed retail, office
and residential uses in a multi-story building on a previously developed parcel
within the corporate limits. In order to qualify as mixed use, developments must
dedicate at least one-third of the total heated square footage to residential use
and the remainder to a mix of retail and office uses. All three use types must be
represented and at least 10% of the heated square footage must be dedicated to
street level, storefront retail uses.

40 Base Points

Mixed Use Development (Greenfield)

Newly constructed collection of mixed retail, office and residential uses in a multi-
story building or buildings on a previously undeveloped parcel. In order to qualify
as mixed use, developments must dedicate at least one-third of the total heated
square footage to residential use and the remainder to a mix of retail and office
uses. All three use types must be represented and at least 10% of the heated
square footage must be dedicated to street level, storefront retail uses.

35 Base Points

Housing Services for the Elderly Establishments

This category offers housing services for the aged, not requiring a license from
the North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services, such as
independent retirement housing, multi-unit assisted housing with services
(MAHS), and continuing care retirement centers. All facilities must provide, but
not necessarily be limited to, the following services/facilities: On-site laundry
facilities, on site management, guaranteed transportation services at least four
days per week, on-site exercise facilities, on-site computer access, and a
clubhouse/common lounge area for all residents.

35 Base Points

Mixture of Use Development (Retail/Office-Institutional/Commercial)

Newly constructed collection of horizontally arranged uses including retail, office-
institutional and commercial within a master planned project on a previously
undeveloped parcel or parcels totaling at least 10 acres. Mixture of use projects
must include at least two (2) use types with at least 25% of the space devoted to
each use type included in the development.

30 Base Points

Retail/Commercial Center

Newly constructed center of at least 50,000 square feet, typically containing an
anchor such as a grocery store and other smaller spaces and/or outparcels for
subordinate uses. Uses are entirely consumer-driven and include all manner of
retail, service and office possibilities.

30 Base Points

Business Office/Finance/ Insurance / Professional Services Center — Medium
Qualifying projects must exceed 50,000 square feet of heated floor space and
create at least 75 employment positions that exceed the average annual Wake
County salary according to Wake County Economic Development or the

334




Employment Security Commission. Employees perform professional, scientific,
and technical services for others. Such services require a high degree of expertise
and training and provide high salaried employment opportunities. Examples
include software engineering, legal, medical, accounting, consulting,
architectural, biomedical, chemical, research and development, and
administrative services. Finance or Insurance Centers shall also pool financial risks
by underwriting insurance and annuities. Some establishments support employee
benefit programs. Examples include bank or credit union headquarters,
brokerages, investments, insurance, financing, and data processing
establishments.

30 Base Points

Business Office/Finance/ Insurance / Professional Services Center — Small
Qualifying projects 50,000 square feet of heated floor space or less. Employees
perform professional, scientific, and technical services for others. Such services
require a high degree of expertise and training and provide high salaried
employment opportunities. Examples include software engineering, legal,
medical, accounting, consulting, architectural, biomedical, chemical, research and
development, and administrative services. Finance or Insurance Centers shall also
pool financial risks by underwriting insurance and annuities. Some establishments
support employee benefit programs. Examples include bank or credit union
headquarters, brokerages, investments, insurance, financing, and data processing
establishments.

30 Base Points

Multi-Tenant Retail Center

Newly constructed center 50,000 square feet or less, typically containing a more
than one tenant space within a single structure. Uses are entirely consumer-
driven and include all manner of retail, service and office possibilities.

30 Base Points

Single Use Office
Newly constructed single use, stand-alone building used primarily for office and
professional.

30 Base Points

Bungalow Court or Pocket Neighborhood
Newly constructed Bungalow Court or Pocket Neighborhood per the standards of
the Unified Development Ordinance.

30 Base Points

Distribution/Trucking Center
Newly constructed center of at least 500,000 square feet where products and
resources are transported to and delivered from via truck or rail.

25 Base Points

Warehouse
Newly constructed center of at least 500,000 square feet where products and
resources are stored.

25 Base Points

Religious Institutions
Any facility such as a church, temple, synagogue, mosque or monastery used for
worship by a non-profit organization and their customarily related uses.

20 Base Points

Intensive Industrial Uses:
Uses classified as Special Land Uses within the Industrial Classification.

335




20 Base Points

Multi-Family Residential & Condo Units

20 Base Points

Major Subdivision 4- 25 Lots
Any subdivision of land of four (4) — 25 Lots.

10 Base Points

Major Subdivision 26 lots or more
Any subdivision of land of 26 or more lots.

Board
Determination

All Other Uses Not Categorized

This category of use captures all other uses not categorized elsewhere.
Allocations for such uses are left to the discretion of the Town’s Board of
Commissioners upon recommendation of the Planning Board and acted on a case-
by-case basis.

336




TOWN CONFIRMED ON 2/19
FOLLOW UP CALL WE CAN
TAKE CREDIT FOR THESE

POINTS. BONUS POINTS

Proposed projects can gain BONUS POINTS by agreeing to provide any of the following items over and
above the UDO or Standard Specification requirements for their development proposal.

OTE: No bonus points are given for UDO requirements.

TEGORY 1 — Non-Conformity Abatement and Public Infrastructure Improvements

&ion 1A - Abatement of Nonconformities (Max - 3 points)
v 4 Abatement of any existing non-conforming structures 3
Abatement of any existing non-conforming use of land 2
Abatement of any existing non-conforming lots 1
Section 1B - Roadway Infrastructure Not Warranted by TIA/UDO/CTP (Max - 10 points)
Construction of full cross section of existing off-site public street 5
Nearby intersection improvements 5
Traffic signal improvements 4
Signage or striping improvements 1

Section 1C - Off-Site Public Greenway Improvements (Max - 10 points)
Construct more than 4000 linear feet of 10-foot-wide path 10
Construct more than 3000 linear feet of 10-foot-wide path 8
Construct more than 2000 linear feet of 10-foot-wide path 6
Construct more than 1000 linear feet of 10-foot-wide path 4
Construct 500 to 1000 linear feet of 10-foot-wide path 2

Section 1D - Off-Site Bike-Ped Improvements (Max — 5 points)
Construction of off-site sidewalk improvements (Subject to TRC 2
Approval)
Construction of off-site bike lane improvements (Subject to TRC 3
Approval)

CATEGORY 2. Green Development Standards/ Building & Site Design

Section 2A - Conservation of Natural Habitat Meeting Active Open Space (Max - 10 points)
Requirements as Defined in the UDO
One point per acre up to 10 acres 1-10
Section 2B - Parking (Max — 15 points)
Structured Parking Facilities - must reduce footprint by 20% 10
EV Charging Stations (two-port) 5
Provision of on-street public parking (1 point per stall up to 10 Max) 1-10

337


Heather.Timothy
KH - Check

Heather.Timothy
Highlight
Abatement of any existing non-conforming structures 3 

Heather.Timothy
Callout
TOWN CONFIRMED ON 2/19 FOLLOW UP CALL WE CAN TAKE CREDIT FOR THESE POINTS.


Section 2C - Stormwater SCM’s

(Max — 10 points)

Stormwater - Restored Riparian Buffer

10

Construct a fountain or other stormwater amenity within the
BMP/SCM
(as approved by Staff)

4

Stormwater - Landscaped Green Roof

Stormwater - Underground capture system for on-site irrigation

Stormwater - Bioretention

Stormwater - Wetland

Exclusive use of porous pavement in parking areas where suitable

N

Section 2D - Building/Site Design

(Max - 20 points)

Compliance with residential design guidelines per Section 5.2 of the

10

alternatives to vehicular travel within the development. (Subject to
TRC Approval)

uDO

Non-Residential building design that incorporates an active upper 5
story.

Pedestrian oriented and walkable site design which promotes 5

Section 2E - Infill/Redevelopment

(Max — 16 points)

Development or Redevelopment within DTC

10

Development or Redevelopment within DTP 6
Redevelopment of previously vacant building space over 20,000 6
square feet
Redevelopment of previously vacant building space under 20,000 5
square feet

Section 2F - Historic Preservation
Historic Structure Preservation via Deed Restriction (Determined by 10
TRC)
Restoration of Historic Structure (Must be approved by TRC) 5

Section 2G — LEED Certification

(Max — 10 points)

LEED Certification for Neighborhood Development (LEED ND)

10

Platinum LEED Certification 10
Gold LEED Certification 8
Silver LEED Certification 6
Bronze LEED Certification 4
LEED Certified Certification 2

CATEGORY 3 — Outdoor Enhancement and Transit Improvements

Section 3A — Outdoor Enhancement

(Max — 12 points)

‘ Construction of a Parkway Street Section on a Collector level street

5

338




Construction or Preservation of Gateway Landscaping or Structure
(Subject to Comprehensive Plan Consistency and TRC approval)

Outdoor Display of Public Art (Subject to TRC Approval)

Public Facing Outdoor Mural (Subject to TRC Approval)

Maintenance of Roadside Gateway Plant Bed (requires maintenance
agreement)

Planting Pollinator Garden (225 Square Foot Minimum)

Exclusive use of xeriscaping techniques and drought tolerant species

Enhanced Roadside Landscaping (Subject to TRC Approval)

v

Enhanced Buffer Landscaping (Subject to TRC Approval)

Construction of a Parkway Street Section on a Local level street

v

Installation of Native Shade Tree Species (per Tree up to 10 Trees)

RINININ|W W

10 TREES =10 POINTS |

Section 3B - Transit (Pursuant to location being adjacent to a planned or
active transit route)

(Max - 8 points)

Provision of more than 50 designated Park & Ride Stalls

Provision of 25 designated Park & Ride Stalls

Provision of 10 designated Park & Ride Stalls

Provision of mass transit easement w/ structure (bus stop with
shelter & bench)

N |W|U1| 00

CATEGORY 4 - Amenities

Section 4A - Private Greenway

(Max - 3 points)

meeting Town of Zebulon standards

Construction of more than 3000 linear feet private greenway 3
meeting Town of Zebulon standards
Construction of more than 2000 linear feet of private greenway 2
meeting Town of Zebulon standards
Construction of more than 1000 linear feet of private greenway 1

Section 4B - Pool (Combinations may be approved by TRC)

(Max - 8 points)

Olympic Pool and Aquatic Center

Junior Olympic Pool

Lap Pool (four lane minimum)

Resort Style Pool

Any Other Pool

= IN|W| U |00

Section 4C - Outdoor Deck/Patio

(Max - 3 points)

Deck/Patio - More than 3000 square feet 3
Deck/Patio - More than 2000 square feet 2
v 4 Deck/Patio - More than 1000 square feet 1

‘ Section 4D - Pool Amenities

| (Max - 2 points) |

339


kbrown
KH - Check

kbrown
KH - Check

kbrown
Highlight
Installation of Native Shade Tree Species (per Tree up to 10 Trees) 

kbrown
Highlight
1

kbrown
KH - Check

Heather.Timothy
Highlight
1

Heather.Timothy
Highlight
Deck/Patio - More than 1000 square feet 

Heather.Timothy
Text Box
10 TREES = 10 POINTS

Heather.Timothy
Highlight
Enhanced Buffer Landscaping (Subject to TRC Approval) 

Heather.Timothy
Highlight
2


Jacuzzi/Hot Tub/Whirlpool 2
Water Playground with apparatus 2
Sauna/Steam room 2

Section 4E - Clubhouse

(Max - 10 points)

Commercial Coffee Shop with at least 10 designated public seating
spaces.

10

With full kitchen and over 4000 square feet of meeting space 10
With full kitchen and less than 4000 square feet of meeting space 9
Meeting space without kitchen more than 3500 square feet 8
Meeting space without kitchen 2500 - 3499 square feet 7
Meeting Space without kitchen 1500 - 2499 square feet 5
Meeting Space without kitchen less than 1500 square feet 4
No meeting space, bathrooms and changing rooms only 3
Outdoor Kitchen or Grills 2

Section 4F - Additional Active Recreation

(Max - 10 points)

Gymnasium (regulation size indoor basketball court)

10

Baseball/Softball Field (regulation size)

5

Football/Soccer Field (regulation size)

Skate Park

Tennis Courts (two regulation courts, fenced)

Multi-Use Hardcourt (two regulation basketball courts, street
hockey, fenced)

(S2BRC RRC, REE,

Pickleball Court (three regulation courts, fenced)

Pocket Park — 5,000 square feet

IPEMA Certified Playground Equipment

Lighted Field of Play for nighttime use

Electronic Scoreboard or Covered Dugouts or Bleachers

Community Garden — 15-foot by 15-foot, with water access and
potting shed.

WwWww|hlwluw

Section 4G — Additional Urban Open Space Enhancements (Within Non
Residential Zoning Districts)

(Max — 10 points)

Fountain

v

Canopy Including Fixed Permanent Seating

Drinking Fountain with Pet Fountain

Permanent Game Tables

v

Permanent Tables with Shade Cover

All Weather Bulletin Board

Covered or Internal Bicycle Parking

Artist-Design Bicycle Racks

Little Free Library

Drinking Fountain

Public Work Bike Stand With Tools

RRR(R Rk (RR[NNN

340



Heather.Timothy
Highlight
Permanent Tables with Shade Cover 1 

Heather.Timothy
Highlight
Canopy Including Fixed Permanent Seating 2 

Heather.Timothy
Highlight
Artist-Design Bicycle Racks 1 

kbrown
KH - Check

kbrown
KH - Check

kbrown
KH - Check


CATEGORY 5 — Affordable Housing

Inclusion of a percentage of the provided housing stock of a proposed
development cost no more than 30% of a household income not exceeding
80% of the Area Median Income (AMI)

(Max — 10 Points

15% Affordable Housing 10
10% Affordable Housing 5
CATEGORY 6 — Other
(Max 5 Points)
Integrated public safety operation systems (EX. Flock Safety or others | 3
as approved by the Police Department)
Smart Waste and Recycling Stations 2

341




342



343



344



345



346



347



348



&« O (21 https://wakeweekly.column.us/search?activeNotice=z0izxTLLITiRgHNIbWJ-0

Powered by Column

Q Search @
zebulon
®) Date
09/09/2025 10/09/2025
© Notice Type
Select notice type
Reset Get Alerts

© Get your public notice published quickly and easily. Click "Get Started” to draft and submit your legal notice. For help with commanly ask

out our Help Center

(WAKE COUNTY)
Estate (Probate} Filings

NOTICE TO CREDITORS ESTATE OF MATTHEW.....the 3rd day of

October, 2025, Anita L. O'Brien, Executor 2307 Baucatcher Lane

Zebulon, NC 27597 The Wake Weekly October 3, 10, 17, 24, 20

25

JAKE COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA m 2025-10-03

(WAKE COUNTY) 5B

Notice of Hearing

Notice is hereby given pursuant to the provisions of Article 2.3.
6 of the Town of Zebulon Unified Development Ordinance that
a public hearing will be held on October 6th, 2025, at 6:00 PM
at the Zebulon Municipal Complex, 1003 N. Arendell Avenue, a
nd will be conducted bv the Board of Commissioners for the p

@ WAKE COUMNTY, NORTH CAROLINA m 2025-09-26

Notice of Hearing

..Hearing Notice is hereby given pursuant to the provisions of
Article 2.3.6 of the Town of Zebulon Unified Development Ordi
nance that a public hearing will be held on QOctober 13th, 2025,
at 6:00 PM at the Zebulon Municipal Complex, 1003 N. Arendel
| Avenue, and will be conducted by the BBl Commiissioner

COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA m 2025-10-03

Load More

DR . |
-

) . <
Notice of Hearing
Published in The Wake Weekly - (Wake County) on October 3, 2025 &
Location a +
Wake County, North Carolina
Notice Text
Notice of Public Hearing o

Motice is hereby given pursuant to the provisions of Article 2.3.6 of the

Town of Zebulon Unified Development Ordinance that a public hearing w
be held on October 13th, 2025, at 6:00 PM at the Zebulon Municipal

Complex, 1003 N. Arendell Avenue, and will be conducted by the Board
of Commissioners and Planning Board for the purpose of considering the

following items:

IDT Project Number 1745359 Planned Development 2025-05 Sheetz
(1406 N Arendell Ave)

PIN #2706011220 A request by Sheetz. INC., for a rezoning from Heavy
Commercial (HC) to Planned Development for the use of a Convenience
Store with Gasoline Sales.

Public comments may be submitted to
publ
of the hearing to be read into the record. Links will be provided along with
the full application packet and documentation on the Planning

Department web page at
https://www.townofzebulon.org/departments/planning/public-hearing-
information. For questions or additional information, please contact us at
(919) 823-1811.

The Wake Weekly

October 3, 10, 2025 -
.

comments@townofzebulon.org no later than 12:00 Noon on the day

Share Copy Link

349



350



351



352



WRITTEN STATEMENT OF ADOPTION
ORDINANCE 2026-18
SHEETZ PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
NOVEMBER 3, 2025

Per Zebulon Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) 2.2.15.G.3, the Zebulon Board of
Commissioners shall adopt a written statement upon the approval of a Planned
Development (PD):

. The Board Commissioners Approves Ordinance 2026-18

. Ordinance 2026-18 is fully consistent with the Town’s adopted Policy Guidance in the

Comprehensive Plan

. Ordinance 2026-18 is consistent with the comprehensive plan as it willimplement the

following goals and policies:
a. Goals for Land Use and Development:

i. Goal 1: A land use allocation and pattern that advances Zebulon’s
objectives of achieving greater housing variety, supporting its economic
development and tax base needs, and creating a complete community with
convenient resident access to schools, recreation, shopping and services
(Land Use and Development, p.2).

ii. Goal 2: Consistent character of land use within areas intended for particular
character types, from rural and suburban through auto-oriented and urban
along the community character spectrum (Land Use and Development, p.2).

b. Goals for Growth Capacity

i. Goal 1: A growth management philosophy and strategies that enable most
of the projected growth in the Zebulon area to be absorbed within and
contiguous to the existing developed town (Growth Capacity, p.2).

ii. Goal 2: A growth progression and pattern of development that promotes the
Town’s long-term financial sustainability and applies an adequate public
facilities approach to growth management. (Growth Capacity, p.2).

c. Economic Development Goals and Actions:

i. Goal 1: An economically resilient community with a diverse yet stable
economic base, an environment that supports both entrepreneurs and
established businesses, and a local real estate market attractive to
emerging investment, job creation and development opportunities
(Economic Development, p. 2).

ii. Goal 2: A town that remains the unquestioned hub community for eastern
Wake County as a multi-purpose destination and center of employment,
commerce, government services, education, culture and recreational and
leisure activities for residents and visitors (Economic Development, p. 2).

353



WRITTEN STATEMENT OF ADOPTION
ORDINANCE 2026-18
SHEETZ PLANNED DEVELOPMENT
NOVEMBER 3, 2025

. Ordinance 2026-18 does not amend the Town’s adopted policy guidance in the

Comprehensive Plan.
Deviations from the Town’s adopted policies are spelled out in the provided Planned
Narrative that is approved along with the proposed site plan.

. Ordinance 2026-18 is reasonable as it supports the orderly redevelopment of an existing

commercial property and brings a nonconforming site into legal conformity while
maintaining a commercial land use consistent with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan.

. Ordinance 2026-18 is in the public interest as it enables private reinvestmentin an

established commercial corridor, provides improved site design and landscaping, and
supports the Town’s broader goals of economic stability, corridor enhancement, and
reinvestment along NC 96.

Glenn L. York — Mayor

SEAL

Dora K. Moore — Interim Town Clerk

354



TOWN OF ZEBULON

Revenue Statement:2025 - 2026
for Accounting Period 6/30/2026
GENERAL FUND

As of 10/15/2025

Revenue Categories Estimated Revenue Revenue YTD % Collected % of Total Revenue YTD
Ad Valorem Taxes $ 15,370,500.00 $ 1,378,017.77 9.0% 35.3%
Penalties & Interest $ 27,500.00 $ (184.84) -0.7% 0.0%
Other Taxes & Licenses $ 250,500.00 $ 45,290.00 18.1% 1.2%
Unrestricted intergovernmental $ 3,698,000 $ 213,201.27 5.8% 5.5%
Restricted intergovernmental $ 2,371,700 $ 566,136.50 23.9% 14.5%
Permits & fees $ 682,500.00 $ 1,076,597.95 157.7% 27.6%
Investment earnings $ 700,000.00 $ 325,599.86 46.5% 8.3%
Sales & services $ 1,464,200.00 $ 219,823.75 15.0% 5.6%
Miscellaneous $ 81,630.00 $ 76,887.45 94.2% 2.0%
Fund Balance Appropriated $ 6,455,308.00 $ - 0.0% 0.0%
Total Revenues $ 31,101,838.00 $ 3,901,369.71 12.5% 100%

Sales & services_, Miscellaneous

6% _\ 2%
Investment earnings

% \

Ad Valorem Taxes
35%

Other Taxes & Licenses

9
Permits&fees_/ 1%

28%

\

Restricted intergovernmental
15%

Town of Zebulon General Fund % of Total Revenue To Date - FY 2026

m Ad Valorem Taxes
M Penalties & Interest
Other Taxes & Licenses
Unrestricted intergovernmental
M Restricted intergovernmental
M Permits & fees
Investment earnings
M Sales & services

Miscellaneous

Penalties & Interest

— 0%

Unrestricted intergovernmental
5%

355



TOWN OF ZEBULON

Expenditure Statement:2025 - 2026
for Accounting Period 6/30/2026
GENERAL FUND

Dept # Department
410 GOVERNING BODY
420 FINANCE
430 HUMAN RESOURCES
440 ADMINISTRATION
450 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
470 STADIUM
490 PLANNING AND ZONING
500 PUBLIC WORKS-PROPERTY & PROJECT MGMT
510 POLICE
520 PUBLIC WORKS-OPERATIONS
530 FIRE
570 POWELL BILL
590 STORMWATER
620 PARKS & RECREATION
690 COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Total Expenditures

356

As of 10/15/2025

Approp Amount Expenditure YTD % Exp.
$1,031,600 $209,200 20.3%
$766,350 $180,973 23.6%
$616,450 $134,382 21.8%
$741,220 $99,547 13.4%
$811,450 $229,827 28.3%
$109,760 $9,790 8.9%
$1,302,320 $265,498 20.4%
$1,818,500 $428,325 23.6%
$5,658,384 $1,381,904 24.4%
$6,497,700 $741,681 11.4%
$5,392,134 $2,102,039 39.0%
$261,000 $1,045 0.4%
$297,350 $44,050 14.8%
$4,475,320 $1,006,748 22.5%
$1,322,300 $64,218 4.9%
$31,101,838 $6,899,226 22.2%



Sales Tax

FY 2026
Month Article 39 (1) * Article 40 (1/2) Article 42 (1/2) Article 44 (1/2) City Hold Harmless FY 26 Totals Prior Year (FY 2025) % Inc (Dec) from Prior Yr
July $ 100,041 $ 44,116 $ 50,300 $ (1) s 37,081 $ 231,536 | $ 215,463 7.5%
August - - - - - - S 221,569 -100.0%
September - - - - - - S 213,559 -100.0%
October - - - - - - S 219,948 -100.0%
November - - - - - - S 225,778 -100.0%
December - - - - - - S 259,899 -100.0%
January - - - - - - s 187,830 -100.0%
February - - - - - - s 188,545 -100.0%
March - - - - - - s 242,340 -100.0%
April - - - - - - S 233,223 -100.0%
May - - - - - - s 228,145 -100.0%
June - - - - - - 244,895 -100.0%
Total $ 100,041 $ 44,116 $ 50,300 $ () $ 37,081 $ 231,536 | $ 2,681,194 -91.4%
FY 2025
Month Article 39 (1) * Article 40 (1/2) Article 42 (1/2) Article 44 (1/2) City Hold Harmless FY 25 Totals Prior Year (FY 2024) % Inc (Dec) from Prior Yr

July $ 94,211 $ 40,449 $ 47,301 $ (7) $ 33,509 $ 215,463 | $ 204,776 5.2%
August 95,790 42,199 48,135 (1) 35,446 221,569 | $ 215,045 3.0%
September 96,772 38,590 48,593 (1) 29,605 213,559 | $ 202,153 5.6%
October 97,156 40,855 48,796 (1) 33,142 219,948 | $ 206,484 6.5%
November 97,689 43,039 49,116 0 35,934 225,778 | $ 218,921 3.1%
December 117,643 46,802 59,099 0 36,354 259,899 | $ 237,799 9.3%
January 80,572 36,330 40,531 (2) 30,399 187,830 | $ 186,226 0.9%
February 81,025 36,245 40,720 (3) 30,557 188,545 | $ 182,092 3.5%
March 106,967 45,127 53,701 (1) 36,547 242,340 | $ 223,970 8.2%
April 102,985 43,231 51,657 0 35,350 233,223 | $ 198,414 17.5%
May 98,413 43,645 49,484 (12) 36,616 228,145 | $ 217,129 5.1%
June 106,896 46,129 53,741 (0) 38,129 244,895 233,544 4.9%
Total $ 1,176,119 $ 502,642 $ 590,873 $ (27) $ 411,588 $ 2,681,194 | $ 2,526,551 6.1%

* Net proceeds of the Article 39 tax are returned to the county of origin.

357




Monthly Summary of Sales Tax Collected

# FY 2026 Article 39

B FY 2026: Total + FY 2025 Article 39

7 FY 2025: Total

OOONNNNNNNNNY

ODADDDDDDDAMY

May

OONNNNNNNNNNN 5

QAN &

2
lb
5
K

WONOONORNNNNNN] 2

O, &

NN £
,7///”//////0

/////U/////A

NN 4

October

September

Augu:

NN
SONNNNNNNNNNY

+16,073

$300,000

$250,000
$200,000
$150,000
$100,000

$50,000

Pa123||0) Xey s3jes

358



	11-03-2025 Agenda
	ADM -- Operation Greenlight
	Wake County Tax Report - Aug 2025
	ADM -- Amending Administration Budget (Staff Report)
	ADM -- Amending Administration Budget (Attachment - Ordinance 2026-14)
	FIRE -- Fire_EMS Station Utility Easement (Staff Report)
	PW -- N. Arendell CAMPO Grant (Staff Report)
	PW -- N. Arendell CAMPO Grant (Resolution)
	Admin-- Strategic Plan Grant (staff report)
	Admin-- Strategic Plan Grant (applicant list)
	Admin-- Strategic Plan Grant (committee recommendation)
	C&ED Stadium Lease STAFF REPORT
	P&R-- Gill Street Park (Staff Report)
	P&R-- Gill Street Park (Attachment - Resolution)
	P&R-- Gill Street Park (Attachment- Master Plan)
	P&R-- Zebulon Community Park (Staff Report)
	P&R-- Zebulon Community Park Park (Attachment - Resolution 2026-14)
	P&R-- Zebulon Community Park (Master Plan)
	P&R-- Zebulon Community Park (Attachment - General Fund Ordinance 2026-15)
	P&R-- Zebulon Community Park (Attachment - Cap Proj Fund Ordinance 2026-XX)
	P&R- Zebulon Community Park (Resolution 2026-15)
	P&R- Zebulon Community Park Plan (Attachment- CIP)
	1. Sufficiency Certification
	Letter of ownership
	2. Application Documents
	3. Aerial Map
	4. Zoning Map 
	5. corporate limits map
	Affidavit attachements
	Signed Affidavit
	Public Notice Affidavit - Zebulon South Annexation
	PLAN -- Zebulon South Annexation (Ordinance 2026-17)
	1. Application
	01_416 Sheetz Zebulon - Planned Development Application
	01_416 Sheetz Zebulon - Proposed Uses

	2. Neighborhood Meeting Packet
	3. Updated Plan Set
	4. Plan Set
	04_416 Sheetz Zebulon - Concept Plan Set
	C-100 ALTA SURVEY
	C-110 EXISTING CONDITIONS AND DEMOLITION PLAN
	C-200 SITE PLAN
	C-300 GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN
	C-320 DRAINAGE PROFILES
	C-330 DRAINAGE DETAILS
	C-400 UTILITY PLAN
	C-410 UTILITY PROFILES
	L-100 LANDSCAPE PLAN

	02_416 Sheetz Zebulon - Building Elevations
	03_416 Sheetz Zebulon - Fuel Elevations

	5. Planned Development Narrative and TIA
	6. Utility Allocation Checklist
	7. Future Land USe Map
	8 Aerial Map
	9. Site Photo
	10. Zoning Map
	11a. Public Hearing Nottification Affidavit
	11b. Public Hearing Notification Affidavit
	12- Prepared Statement Per UDO 2.2.15.G.3 - Ordinance 2026-XX
	FIN -- November 2025 Financial Update (Attachment - FY 2026 Expenditure and Revenue Statement (as of October 15, 2025))
	FIN -- November 2025 Financial Update (Attachment - Sales Tax Collection Report)
	Sales Tax Breakdown by Article (FY 16 vs FY 15 vs FY 14).pdf
	Detail w YTD Subtotal

	Sales Tax Breakdown by Article (FY 16 vs FY 15 vs FY 14)2.pdf




